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To leverage our
expertise and
experience to
secure sustainable
returns and mitigate
risk for our clients in
the volatile worlds
of shipping and
energy.

Lt Vislon

To enable more
prosperous, secure
and sustainable
global trade within
the shipping and
energy industries.

We are a leading provider
of expert advice in shipping
investment, chartering and

risk management.
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Highlights

-~ B1% increase in revenue from continuing operations to
£1629m (FY22: £1013m)

- 100% increase in underlying operating profit to £201m
{FY22:101my)

- Cashflow from cperating activities in the year
increased by 8% to £220m (FY22: £205m)

— Reported profit after tax for the year down by 67% to
£46m (FY22 £139m)

- Underlying earnings per share increased by 65% to
4622 pence {(FY22: 2795 pence)

- Final dividend of 8.0 pence per share. Total dividend
for the year of 120 pence per share (FY22: 90 pence)
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- Successful implementation of shipbroking-focused
growth strategy

- Acqguired two new tanker desks: in Madrid, Spain, and
in Florida, USA

- Launched new Natural Gas derivatives and Qil
derivatives desks

- Opening of Corporate Finance desk in Athens, Greece

— Launch of our inaugural Trainee Shipbroker Scheme
in London

~ On track to double the Group's FY21 underlying
aperating profit by FY25

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Braemar at a Glance

Wi vee o
Braemar provides expert

advice in investment,
chartering, and risk

management to enable ils
clients to secure sustainable

returns and mitigate risk
in the volatile worlds of
shipping and energy.

Ploaw vae cpseg e
Our experienced brokers work in tandemn

with specialist professicnals to form teams

tailored to our customers’ needs, and

provide an integrated service supported by a

collaborative culture.

L
o
toy

Global ofices

Employees

We operate 24/7 across the world, covering

all of the major shipping hubs to provide

our customers with unigue opportunities in

both established and emerging markets

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accownts 2023

Governance Financial Statements

Vi liat we do

The business is structured in three divisions,
reflecting our operations

Investment Advisory

I he global shipping market I1s a volatile and cyclical business
Evolving regulations comibined with an increased focus on
compliance and accountability means that shipping companies
are under more pressure than ever before. We help them to make
careful, informed and justifiable decisions

Chartering

Our specialists pool resocurces, knowledge and industry-leading
expertise to build long-term relationships between shipowners and
charterers. Heavy investment in technology and databases allows
us to provide customised, cost-saving solutions that create and
protect the best deals for our clients.

Risk Advisory

Qur integrated corporate inance and brokerage teams help protect
our clients against the turbulent price movements and cyclical
Iquidity crunches that are commonplace in shipping markets.

' Austraha b

Aberdeen Houston Perth
Dancle’s Rapy Clamas

Athens London Shanghai
Beijing Madrid Singapore
Dubai Melbourne Southport
Geneva Mumbai
Harmburg New Delhi
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Investment Case

By streamlining our key services towards our core expertise, shipbroking, we have, over the last two years, transformed the
Group’s balance sheet and delivered strong posttive cashflow, with £69 millon net cash at 28 February 2023, compared to net
bank debt of £9.3 millon at 28 February 2022,

We are investing for growth, and we remarm on track tc achieve our stated goal of doubling the Group’s FY21 underlying
operating profit by FY25 Braemar 1s led by an experenced board and management team who are well positioned te continue

the execution of our growth strategy and each bring a wealth of experience to the board

Braemar has a clear and focused growth strategy that 1s onentated arcund organic and acquisitive expansion, and we have a
strong platform 1o act as a consclidator in a fragmented shipbroking market.

Unique proposition

Ag one of only two shipbroking
cermpanies hated i U Lordun

Stock Exchange, Braerar offers an
attractive, diversified opportunity to
INvest in the shipping industry, without
e need o nvesl directly in vessels,
Our proven, future-facing strategy is
delivering sustanable profit and growth,
progressive dividends, and we remain
focused on delivering quality returns for
our sharehclders

Global, diversified
operations

With offices in 12 countries, including the
pivutal locauvns of London, Singapore
and Athens, Braemar 1s well-positioned
to sarve key Industry players giobally,
across many different time zones and
cuftures Qur operations are diversified,
ncluding Tankers, Dry Carge, Sale &
Purchase, Securities, Corporate Finance,
and Offshore, supporting our goal

of creating a scalable business, with
reslient profit and cash flow generation
across the economic cycle.

Braemar Plc Annusl Report and Accounts 2023

Facilitating climate-

smart shipping

Our global teams have proven track
records, delvering expert advice

in Chartering, Corporate Finance,
Research and Analytice, Operations,
and Risk Management We leverage
our strong networks to secure the bast
prices and performance for our clients.
I line wath our commitment o UN SDG
84 - decoupling economic growth
from environmental degradation — the
Group 18 endeavourng to promaote
Inclusive and sustanable economic
growth across the industry by
ncorporating clrmate-smart expertise
into its chent services In April 2023,

the Group's ESG efforts and future
commitments were recognised by

the Financial Times and Statista, who
named Braemar one of ‘turope’s
Clmate Leaders’ This title reflects the
progress Braemar has made to reduce
its Scope 1and 2 emissions.



Chairman’s Statement

The markets in which the Group
operates were generally favourable
during this inancial year. While the Group
is cautiously optimistic about market
conditions in its key sectors in the years
ahead and has taken numerous steps
to make the business more resilient,

as shipping 1s an inherently volatile

and cyclical business. Factors such as
a weaker global economy, increased
environmental regulation, or commodity
export bans could dampen dernand for
seaborne trade, whereas geopoltical
tensions and conflict can increase
rmarket prices leading to higher revenue

| was appointed in May 2021 with

a mandate to help Braemar's new
management team in two areas: to
streamlne and simplify the Group's
operations and 1o develop and execute
an ambitious, shiobroking-focused,
growth strategy

Governance

Financial Statements

Strong trading performance

It is well reported that the period
corresponding to FY23 was one of
strong trading in the global shipping and
energy industnes. Trading in both sectors
1s predorminantly in US dollars, but the
Group’s major costs are in sterling.

This meant that the Group reaped the
rewards of a weli-structured FX hedging
strategy as well as benefiting from
favourable foreign exchange rates.

Revenue from continuing operations rose
by B1% to £152 9 milion (2022 £101.3
milien), generating a 100% increase

in underlying operating profit from
continuing operations of £201 million
(2022 £101 million} Primarily as a result
of specific items, including £81 mitlon
of goodwilt impairment, reported profit
after tax decreased by 6/% to £46
milion {2022: £13.9 miillion). Underlying
earnings per share increased by 65%

.
—

to 46 22 pence (2022 2795 pence), and

the Group's reported earnings per share

decreased by 65% to 1585 pence (2022
4556 pence).

lam pleased to report that we have
made strong progress on both objectives
The smplfication of the Group 1s now
complete we have disposed of alt

Hearvye igdsd

non-core businesses and assets, and
have transformed the Group's balance
sheet frorn net debt of £9.3 milion on
28 February 2022 to a net cash position
of £89 milion as at 28 February 2023

Staff numbers and transaction volumes
increased in line with our expectations,
augmented by several bolt-on
acguisitions, and the development

and execution of our growth strategy

15 also progressing well During this

past financial year, the Group acquired

a leading US shipbroker in Southport
Maritime Inc in Florida, USA, a 10-strong
tanker desk in Madrid, Spain and a
Natural Gas desk; and an Qil Dernvatives
desk Iin London. | am pleased to report
that the Group's clients have responded
positivel 1o the services we have added
to our cperations and all of the additicnal
services are performing well.

Our targeted hinng strategy alsoc proved
successful In the year. The total number
of people working at Braemar increased
by 6% to 384 (28 February 2022 362),
with an increase in fixtures of 18% It

15 important to note that this growth

in ixtures was proportionately much
greater than the increase in the Group's
broker headcount, and demonstrates
the Group's ability to achieve non-linear
growth, with average revenue per head
Increasing by 42% to £398.000

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2073

Progressive dividend policy

In my statement last year, | was

pleased to announce the introduction
of a progressive dvidend policy to
supplement the Group's growth
strategy. The introduction of this policy
demonstrated the board's confidence
in the growing financial strength and
prospects of the Group, its belief

in the iImpertance of dividends for
sharehclders, and its intenticn to iInclude
the payment of progressive dividends In
the Group's growth agenda.

As a result of the exceptional cash-
generation by the Group's activities in the
yedar, | am pleased to announce that the
board 15 recommending a final dividend
for FY23 of 80 pence per share for
approval by sharehoiders at the Group's
reconvened AGM on 18 December 2023,
to be paid on 9 February 2024 This

final dvidend together with the interim
dividend already paid of 40 pence per
share, represents a total dvidend for the
vear of 120 pence, an increase of 33%
over last vear (2022 90 pence per share).

| am also pleased to report that

the Capital Reduction process was
completed as planned on 5 June 2023,
addressing the histonc payment of
unlawful dividends and increasmng the
Group's capacity to pay future dividends
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Chairman’s Statement continued

The final dividend will be paid on

9 February 2024 to shareholders who
are on the register at the close of
business an 5 January 2024, with a
corresponding ex-dividend date of

4 January 2024. The last date for
Dividend Reinvestment Plan ("DRIP”)
elections wil be 19 January 2024,

Enabling climate-smart shipping

i am proud to be the Chairman of a
business which believes that taking care
of the envircnment, treating colleagues
and clients farly, and mantainng ethical
business practices 1s not only the nght

thing 1o do, but is also good for business.

Our corporate operations have been
globally carton neutral for six years This
has, to date, been achieved by investing
in offset programmes. | am pleased to
report that the Group made continued
progress in the year by further reducing
its carbon footprint and adopting more
environmentally friendly practces across
Its operations. In April 2023, the Group's
ESG efforts and future cormmitments
were recognised by the Financial Times
and Statista, who named Braemar

one of ‘Eurcpe’s Climate Leaders’ This
title reflects the progress Braemar has
already achieved to reduce ts Scope
1and 2 emissions There i more to

be done to enhance the Group's
rmeasurernent and reduction of Scope 3
emissions, and | look forward to
reporting on pragress in this area in

the coming years.

Braemar is incorporating climate-
smart expertise throughout its client
service offering, and, as a business,
we are committed to explofing new
ways to enable cur clients t© achieve
their sustainabilty ambitions. Qver

the last year, we have developed our
sustamability offering further. As well
as being able to service the voluntary
carbon market via Brasmar Offset, the
Group s now providing clients with
the access to the mandatory carbon
credits they need to fulfil ther obligations
under the EU's Emissions Trading
System ("ETS").

The Braemar board

The Braemar beard is functioning well.
We have a well-balanced team of
executives and non-executives, with
wide ranging experence, skills and
expertise froem diverse sectors, who are
united in their approach to the business.

On 31 January 2023, Stephen Kunzer,
non-executive director, stood down frem
the board to take up the position of Chief
Executive Officer of Lila Global. Stephen
played a supportive role In developing
the Group's new growth strategy and we
wish him well in his new executive role in
the industry

Cat Valentine joined the board, as an
independent non-executive director,
with effect from 16 May 2023 She is

a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Audit & Risk Commitiee.
Cat is a communications professional
with extensive knowledge of the
small-cap growth companies’ market
and considerable M&A transaction
experence As the Group continues to
develop and implement its expansion
and growth agenda, her expertise will
add considerable value to the board and
will hefp the Group to further deliver on
its strategic amlbutions

Grant Foley joined the board as Group
Chef Financial Officer on 1 August
2023. Grant has rmore than 25 years’
experience in leading public and private
financial services and technology
businesses, and joined the Company
from ClearScore, the UK's leading credit
marketplace, where he served as Chief
Financial Officer At ClearScore, Grant
drove significant improvernents across
the finance function, mplementing new
systems, processes and reporting as
the business scaled. Grant also brings
adaitional transaction experience to the
beard, and his other roles have included
CMC Markets Plc where, as Group Chief
Financiai Officer and Chief Operating
Officer, he was instrumental in the
company’s successful IPO. The board
tharks Nick Stone, whe stepped down
as Group Chief Financial Officer on

31 July 2023, for his centributions during
his four years at Braemar

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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| am proud to be

the Chairman of

a business which
believes that

taking care of the
environment, treating
colleagues and
clients fairly, and
maintaining ethical
business practices is
not just the right thing
to do, but is also good
for business.

Nigel Payne
Cnarman

Photo! (¢) MRL and Louis Dreyfus
Corporation, all rights reserved




internal independent investigation
As announced on 28 lune 2023,

the board commenced an internal
Independent investigaticn into an
historical transaction dating back 10
2013 As a result. the publication of these
financial results was delayed, and the
Group was not able to publish its FY23
results by 30 June 2023 as required
under the Financial Conduct Authority's
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules Consequentiy. the Company
requested that trading in its ordinary
shares be suspended, this request was
granted and suspension in the trading
of the Company's ordinary shares 100k
effect or 3 July 2023. The investigation
was overseen by an Investigation
Committee, chaired by myselt and solely
compnsing the Independent non-
executve diectors The inveshgaton
was conducted by FRP Advisory

lrading Limized. an ndependent
specialst torensic accounting firm.

and ndepencent external counsael

" he mvestigation was complox, it was
carmprehonsive and ultimately focused
on a rov.ow of several transactons
between 2000 and 213

Braemar Plc 4Annua yort and A

Governance

The investigation has now been
completed The board and the Group
have acted promptly to agdress the
process and control areas that were
identified as requiring improvement,
including taking key remedal actrons and
the necessary steps to comply with the
Group's legal and regulatory obligations.
The beard 1s committed to maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance
and will ensure the remedial actions

are tracked through to completion.

The Group has recognised a provision

in relation to these transactions,

which is primarily historical unsettled
commissions payable and is treated as a
balance sheet reclassification as detailed
in the Financial Review, which the board
considers appropriate at this time.

Qur most valuable assets

On behalf of the board, | would ke

tc thank every one of the Group's
employees for their hard work and
dedication; our clients for their trust and
support. and out sharenolders for ther
continued conhdence in ou Compzany

Over the past year, tne Group contnued
to invest In s peopls We axpandec ow
teams across the globe implemented
new programmnes to attract and retamn
top talent. and our strong nerfornmance
i3 due to ther bard work ana creativity

Financial Statements

As a result of their successes, the
Braemar brand continues to rise. This is
now beginning to create a virtuous circle,
in which, as our reputation grows, we arg
better able to attract high performers,
who further enhance Braemar's
performance, working environment,
brand and overall client offering to the
benefit of all stakehaolders.

There is a renewed energy within
Braemar, and the business is in a good
place, led by our excellent Group CEO,
James Gundy, and his experienced
executive management team. The
energy, drive and focus within the
business is there to be seen.

OQutlook

The market conditions in the Group's
core sectors, shipping and energy,
generally remain healthy, and the
long-term outlook for the Group
remains favourable

Trading in FYZ24 to date has been

good (and in line with the board’s
expectations), as the benefits of
Braemar's increased breadth, depth,

and scale continue to compound. As
expected. the nvestments made in

the last year have increascd the cost
base for the new financial year, hut also
provide a platform for further growth in
future years The Group remains on-track
to double FY21's operating profit by FYZ25,
delivering strong returns and creating
long-termivalue for our stakeholdes

Wb thrs growtn-tocused st
delverng stong results. the ty
t0 The future with contaence

Nigel Payne
Chairman
15 Novermber 2023
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Business Model and Strategy

Strategic direction

Focused on
shipbroking

Our business model

Expert advisers in

investment, chartering

and risk management
for the shipping and
energy markets.

Cur integrated teams deliver creative
solutions and failored support for
customers around the world, placing
Braemar at the forefront of the
shipbroking industry.

' Why Braemar

Purprese

To leverage our expertise and experience
to secure sustainable returns and mitigate
rnisk in the volatile worlds of shipping

and energy.

. s

HE TR RS RS U R I I Y

Experienced brokers work in tandem
with specialist professionals to offer
an integrated service supported by
a collaborative cutture.

P R SRR R I It

Qur team draws on a wealth of diverse
sector experience to provide the most
advanced market inteligence in the
shipping industry.

To enable more prosperous, secure and
sustanable global trade within the shipping
and energy industries.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

What we do

Byvovtmord Avbvidory

The right vessels, at the right price, at

the right time. Qur team combines years
of commercial, financial, technical and
operational expertise with the most
comprehensive market analytics i the
industry to create investment opportunities
that are both protected and maximised for
sustainable returns.

P eesi et

Customised chartenng solutions built
around the specific needs of our clients.
By investing in cutting-edge technology
and bespoke databases, our brokers and
analysts create innovative strategies that
defiver long-term gains over short-term
fixes,

Volatile price movements are
commenplace in shipping markets Qur
Securities desk heips our clents manage
their exposure by providing & liquid
marketplace, white our Corporate Finance
desk assists those facing liguidity crunches
with loan portfolio pricing, management
and restructuring
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Our strategic
priorities will
enable us to

of future growth
opportunities.-

Information can empower — but only when
you know how to use it. Our specialists
know exactly how market inteligence

can be applied to give our clients the

best advantages.

L Lt L A L

{

We draw on in-depth knowledge and a
wide breadth of coverage to help clients
navigate a complicated landscape.

Governance

I Vados

We are committed to proactive, measurable
Environmental, People, Social & Governance
("EPSG") initiatives and the facilitation

of climate-smart shipping. We set high
standards for our team and give them

clear frameworks and policies within

which to operate.

S Codislioration

By sharing knowledge and resources
across desks, our team can anticipate
our clents’ needs and provide prompt,
informed solutions.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounrts 2023

Financial Statements
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Strategy in Action
O1

~ |A new chapter
«ie | FOr Braemar

EFSTRNY VLR

> 4

There are clear synergies for
Natural Gas with our shipping
desks. We have similar client
bases, and there are big ' ’ @‘w«
opportunities to expand the ‘ =
breadth of activities.

Marc Jarvis
Head of Natural Gas,
Braemar Securities

Enhancing our Securities offering
and diversifying into the energy
broking space

In late 2022 Braemar acquired a
talented and resourceful Natural Gas
derivatives tearn wilh a long track record
of success.

The acquisiton was a respanse tn
a clear need in lhe energy market
for assistance navigating volatile
rate changes and price fluctuations.
and, the Nat Gas desk addionally
complements our market-leading
Risk Advisory function

Nat Gas fits with our profile of seeing
the synergies with the products that our
clients are transporting, and capitalising
on the opportunities provided by the
overlap with our Charterng operations

L.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023



The desk s primarily dealing in EU gas,
UK National Balancing Point (*NBP”) gas,
and LNG They are also able to broke €U
Allowances ("EUAS™, which are carbon
crediits used in the European Union's
Emissions Trading Scheme ("EU ETS™)

From 2024 all ships greater than 5000GT
transporting cargo or passengers for
commercial purposes will be subject to
these rules, and the vessels owners will
he reguired to account for therr carbon
emissions. Due to the partnership
between our Chartering and Energy
Derwvatives desks, we're uniguely able

in the shipbroking industry to helpz our
clients manage ther EU ETS compliance
via physically delivered, and exchange
cleared EUAs

The desk serves a scphisticated and
demanding client base, ncluding many
of Europe’s leading energy companies
as well as banks and hedge funds,
and we are pleased to see that it has
become profitable for Braemar ahead
of our expectations

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 20273

Photo: (c) Alpha Qas,
all rights reserved




Technology-
driven
innovation

However, due to ships transporting
approximately 80% of glebal trade, the
industry is cumulatively responsible

for 3% of worldwide greenhouse

gas emissions

As a Company which s primarily a
shipbroker, Bragmar’s environmental
footprnt i1s a tiny percentage of the
shipping Industry’s emissions. However,
we work in an industry that is not
currently on course to mest its 2050 and
‘Net Zero’ commitments. As an adviser,
this presents a huge opportunity for us
to provide access to solutions that help
our clients to achreve therr sustainability
ambitions We want to be a driver and
influencer of that change, and over the
last year we have invested further in
expanding our sustainability offering

Further details on what this means for
cur business are as follows

Neutralising our
historical emissions
via carbon offsets

We recognise that there are steps
which we can take to remediate our
histoncal emissions from our operations
Through Braemar Offset and our
partner, CHOOOSE, we have completely
offset our reported corporate carbon
footprint since 2017, We are pleased

to be continuing to invest In projects
which brng substantial benefits to
underprivileged communities, protect
fragile ecosystems, and create more
diverse and inclusive workforces

Braemar Plc Arnual Report and Accounts 2023

Developing a
“green” mindset

As a business, we are committed to
reducing our carbon footprint and
playing our part in the shipping industry’s
dnive to ‘Net Zero” We are doing this by
becomng more energy efficient, making
greener commercial choices, and
ncorperating sustainability into our client
services and our decision making at a
desk and Group level.
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Providing access

to voluntary and
mandatory emission
reduction solutions

We have invested in solutions that
enable our clients to fuifil ther voluntary
amixtions, as well as to ensure therr full
compliance with the European Uniom's
ETS ("Emissions Trading Scheme™)

Braemar Offset enables our clients

to fulfil their voluntary sustanability
ambitions, by directly connecting them
with some of the most impactful and
verified climate projects avalable today.
In partnenng with Braermar Offset,
companies can proactively play a rote
N improving their green credentials and
helping to accelerate clmate action

Through cur new Natural Gas derivatives
desk, we can offer drrect access to
Eurcpean Union Allowances (“EUAs”)
The EU ETS is a cornerstone of the

ElU's policy to combat climate change,
and from 2024 t will apply to ships
caling at EU ports above 5000 GT
transporting cargo or passengers for
commercial purposes

Enhancing our
renewables
offering

We are investing in our renewakles
offerng, as part of our overall growth-
orientated strategy. We are positioning
the business to support the transition
to a low carbon economy and for
future growth in renewable energy
and low carbon fuels,

While transporting fossil fuels 1s a key
part of our clients’ businesses today,
we expect and are planning for major
change on this frort as the industry
transitions to ‘Net Zerd'

Braemar Pic Anaual Repoit and Accourts 2023

Phote: (c} Oldendorff, all rights reserved

Helping our
clients navigate
new regulations

Braemar sees ships throughout their
Ifecycle, and this presents opportunities for
colaboration and value creation. We see
them when they start life on our Newbuilding
desk, through changes of ownership wa

our Sale & Purchase desk; as they voyage
around the globe under instructions from
our Chartering desks, and finally, as they
reach the end of their working lives, with our
Recyclng desk By working in partnership
with our clients, we use our expertise

and experience to maximise that vessel's
potential, while minimising its aggregate
environmental footprint

The rules which govern shipping are
ncreasing year-on-year, and the primary
focus 1s environmental iImprovement
Regulations, such as the EU ETS, as well
as major new technical measures such as
the Energy Efficiency Existing Ship Index
("EEXI") and the Carbon Intensity Indicator
(“CiI"), are changing the way ships trade
and making it much less viable to operate
ineficient ships. Across our Chartering and
Shipping Investment desks, we are focused
on helping our clients to ensure that therr
assets and future Investrents are cleaner,
safer, and more productive.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
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My key focus upon becoming CEO
was to return to our core expertise,
shipbroking, as this has always been

at the centre of our success. We have
simplified the business and returned

1t to growth, which in turm has placed
Braemar firmly back on a growth
trajectory. We have achieved this by
capitalising on strong markets, selling
non-core businesses, reducing our debts
and subsequently investing in the long-
term resilence of the Group.

The successful implementation of this
strategy has achieved excellent results
for the Group in FY23 Underlying
operating profit rose by 100% to £201
milien (FY22 £101 million), and revenue
increased by 61% from £1013 million

to £152 9 million, as revenue and

fixlure volumes increased on almost
avery Shipbroking desk. 1Us worth
ernphasising that the growth the Group
has achieved in terrns of revenue and
profit are from a business that has a
much lower headcourt {compared with
the headcount pricr to the Cory Brothers
sale In March 2022) and has been hugely
simplified since [ became CEC in 2021
Average revenue per head for FY23 was
£398000. an increase of 42% on the
prior year.

We have a deeply experienced
leadership team that knows this industry
nside and out, and a strong balance
sheet that 1s built for growth

Together they are enabling us Lo be

a platform for consolidation in the
fragmented shipbroking market, and

we expect to continue diversification
within shipbroking, in addition to growing
organically and through M&A

As part of the execution ot ouw
shipbreking-focused growth strategy we
achieved significant milestones in FY23
including the acquisitions of Southport
Maritime in the US, and a new tanker
desk in Madrnd We also continued to
enhance ouwr Securnties offering with the
launch of new QIl dervatives and Natural
Gas denvatives desks, which strongly
complement our existing Tanker and

Dry Cargo FFA desks. Our clients are
responding favourably to our enhanced
and diversified offering and the synergies
which they provide.

Internal independent investigation
As detaled in the Chairman’'s Statement,
the internal Independent investigation
commenced in late June 2023 has

now been completed [t was time
consuming and complex and | would like
to thank the independent Investigation
Committee for overseeing the process

| would also like to thank our clents

and shareholders for ther patience

and understanding during this period
Braemar and its people have shown
considerable resilience throughout

this period, and | want to thank all our
employees for their hard work and focus.

Braemar's growth and achievements this
year would not have been possible without
the relentless hard work and dedication

of our global tearn, whose commitrment

to excellence continues to drive our
performance and Nsprres me every day.

Building on strong foundations
Throughout a year of many challenges
for the global economy, we remaned
firmly focused on delivenng valug to all
our stakeholders. Qur commitment to
innovation and operaticnal excellence
has enabled us to remain agile and
respensive N the constantly evolving
shipping and energy landscapes.

As | outhned last year, our mamn ambition
over the medium-term is to achieve a
sustanable annual underlying operating
profit, that regardless of market factors,
is double the £E82 millon underlying
operating profit in FY21

In FY23, we achieved 51% revenue growth
and increased our underlying operating
rmargin from 10% to 13% over FY22. In the
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year under review, we delvered further
gains inrevenue and prefitability Net
bank cash at 28 February 2023 was £69
rnilion, helped by the inttial proceeds of
the sale of Cory Brothers (E65 million)
in March 2022 but after cash outflows
for acquisitions totaling £7.3 million
{Southport for £6.3 milion, and a new
tanker desk in Madnd for £13 million
upfront) — a substantial Improvernent
on the net bank debt of £83 millon at
28 February 2022. Profit after tax was
£4.6 mifion (FY22. £139 millon), largely
lower due to the imparment of goodwill
relating to the Corporate Finance
business.

Over this inancial year, trading has been
good across our Chartering and Sale

& Purchase desks, as well as on our
Investment and Risk Advisory desks
Chartering fixture volumes were up 18%
across all desks, Risk Advisory revenues
increased 42%, and Sale & Purchase
transactions volurne grew 23%.

Buoyant shipping and

energy markets

In our Ndustry, eamings are determined
by the relationship between the supply
of ships and the demand for ships At
its simplest, shipping is ‘Economics 107
While there are variations from sector to
sector, the key positive supply factors
were shared across the industry: lenger
voyage distances, minimal fleet growth,
and supply-chain inefficiencies All these
factors will remain in FY24 atthcugh they
are Ikely to moderate and the demand
picture In mMost sectors supports a
positive rate floor.

Ol demand growth is back 1o where it
was pre-Covid, and the [EA predicted
in May 2023 that global ol demand

N 2023 would be two millon barrels
per day higher than in 2022 Despite

oil companies wanting newer ships

to reduce the risks of accidents, the
average age ot the global fleet is
becomng much older than it has been
historically Low scrapping and an
unusually low orderbook is expected to
further shrink the availability of rmodem
ships over the next few years This puts
a high floor under tanker rates during a
period when energy securty concerns
have increased voyage distances and
tanker demand growth has accelerated
relative to all export volume.

The average age of the bulk carrer fleet
1S also increasing. while the orderbook
for new ships 1s very small by histcrical
standards — and it 1 a similar story in
sectors such as Offshore



With demand for green energy and dry
cargo commodities growmg globally,
combined with ncreased consumer
demand now that China's Zero Covid
policy has been revoked, we can
expect to see positive returns over the
medium term.

It is worth noting that not all markets
are strong at the same time, and
events impact shipping sectors in
different ways. For example, In broad
terms, Covid was good for dry cargo,
and bad for tankers. This is why we
are proritising diversification in our
shipbroking operations: and this 1s &
key strength of the Group. Resllierce
through diversification 1s what will enable
Braemar to be successful throughout
the business and shipping cycles.

Investing in our EPSG

As | said n my report last year and

have emphasised since, we remain
committed to delivering sustainable
growth and value to our shareholders
and contributing to the communities
and environments in which we operate.
We are proud of the positive impact that
our business has, and it will always be a
Group priority to operate ethically.

Our sustainability strategy focuses on
mirimising cur envircnmental impact,
encouraging dversity and mnclusion,
and supporting local inttiatives that
drnve positive change. We beleve that
shipping has a critical role to play in
shaping a more sustainable world, and
we are committed to doing our part

Governance

QOutlook: A stronger, more
resilient business

Cur reslience and adaptability have
been tested over the last year, but our
commitment to our strategic vision and
values enabled us to emerge stronger
than ever A year on since my first CEO
statement, | am delighted to be able to
say that we have achieved the results
we promised across every metric, and
now we are a much more diversified and
restlient shipbroking business.

We have invested in our people,
expanded our product portfolio, and
entered new markets and locations

to diversify our revenue streams and
mitigate risk The investments that we
have made, as we implemented our
growth strategy, have enabled us to stay
ahead of the curve in a rapidly changing
industry, and will provide the foundations
for an even stronger business in the
years to come

It 1s an exciting time to be at Braemar.
Shipping is undergeng huge changes:
in fuels, N trade patterns, and in the
global regulations that govern how

we operate. Thanks tc these types of
developments, the markets in which we
operate are facing major volatility, and

to achieve success N them reaures the
highest levels of expertise and practical
expernience. The investments that we
have made since | became CEG have all
been in the service of ensuring that we
are able to continue to be able to deliver
best-in-class advice, and to maximise
the value we create for our clients
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The Group has traded well in FY24 to
date and we are on track to achieve the
sustamnable doubling of FY21's underlying
operating profit by FY25 Given our
investments, costs will be higher in FY24
and we have incurred non-recurring
costs of c£25m in relation to the
Investgation. However, we have buift
strong foundaticns in my first two years
as CEQ and there is much more work

to be done to achieve the Group's full
potential. | look forward with confidence
1o the remainder of the year, as we
relentlessly continue to execute our clear,
growth-focused strategy

I would ke to express my gratitude to
our shareholders, employees, clients,
and partners for their continued support.
Our successes would not have been
possible without the hard work and
dedication of our talented teams, or
the trust and loyalty of our clients and
partners. | look forward to another
successful year ahead and remain
committed to delivering exceptional
results for all our stakeholders.

James Gundy
Group Chief Executive Officer
15 November 2023



Shipbroking
breadth and
market share
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These combined locations provide the ideal
platform for us to fully penetrate the North and
South American markets and add beneficial
scale to the Group’s activities.

Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Operating Officer
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Southport Maritime increases
Braemar’s presence in the
Americas

Enhancing Braemar's coverage in
the Americas has been an important
strategic goal of Braemar, since the
board launched its growth agenda in
November 2021

In Southport, we have acquired one
of the leading tanker shipbrokers in

the USA, and strongly enhanced our
presence In the Americas.

Southport Marttime Inc. 1s recognised
as a specialist for crude and refined
products in the North American export
market, as well as in the Latin American
and Carnbbean markets

With a particular focus on spot tanker
fixtures. Southport’s 18-strong team

has a reputation for high performance
within the industry Since it was founded,
Scuthport has enabled its clients to
transport billions of barrels of iguid
petroleurn and oll products worldwide,
helping them to benefit from both
short-term velatiity and long-term
ndustry trends
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Working from offices in Flonda. the
Southport team complements Braemar's
existing Tanker desks in London,
Singapore, Madrnd, Houston, and Geneva,
as well as significantly enhancing
Braemar’s presence in the Americas

These combined locations provide the
ideal platform for us ta fully penstrate
the North and South American markets
and add beneficial scale to the

Group's activities
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Enhancing Braemar’s Security Offering

Building on
five years of
progress
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Qver the last year, Braemar has
continued to build its Securities offering
with the arnval of a ten-strong Natural
Gas derivatives desk, and a new Oil
Derivatives desk.

These desks are complermentary
addtions to Braemar's Securities
offering, which has substantially grown
revenue and market share in recent
years. Braemar’s Securities desks now
employ almost 40 people

The new Natural Gas derivatives and Qil
derivatives desks follow the successful
acquisition and integration of Atlantic
Brokers — which Tris Simmonds led — in
2018, the launch of BraemarScreen in
2620 that brought new levels of price
transparency to dry freight denvatives,
and a highly successful two-decade
Tanker FFA partnership with GFl.
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Tris Simmoends began his career as an
oil broker at Spectron Energy, before
moving to GFl and co-starting its Oil
Dernvatives desk, as well as subsequently
helping to launch its European Power,
Gas and Coal desks, and helping to set
up Braemar's Tanker FFA IV with GFI.
Between 2001 and 2012, Trnis was the
Head of Coal and the Head of EMEA
Physical Commmoditties at GFl. In 2013, Tns
co-founded Atlantic Brokers, a business
that he subsequently sold to Braemar

in 2018. Tris has been an Executive
Committee Member of Braemar for five
years, and Braemar’s Chief Operating
Officer since 2021.
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Why did Braemar choose to invest
more in its Securities offering?

A - Providing access to more energy
products was always part of our growth
strategy There are clear synergies with
our chartering desks, and many of our
chents have told us that they need better
market access

When | worked at GFI, it was clear that
ther Coal desk existed because of their
European Power and Gas desks, and
that, In turn, supported the work of their
EU Allowances ("EUA™)/EU Emissions
Trading System (“EU ETS”) desk

There's a complementary crossover of
derivatives traders in shipping and the
kind of products they trade. Not cnly are
they trading freight, but because of the
nature of how freight prices are dictated
they're often trading the underlying
products as well

The most notable ones have historically
been iron ore and coal, and we've seen
consistently strong value from our

Coal desk and cur Dry Cargo desks,

s0 we recognised that there were

clear opportunities for us t¢ develop
similar synergies across our Investment
Advisory and Chartering operations.

What are the benefits to having
greater access to a derivatives
offering for Braemar’s clients?

A — We're smplifying the process

of execution. and we're providing
inteligence value wel beyond just
providing a screen to check on prices
and execute a deal

We've been able to do this because
we've brought in talented teams with
good track records, streng customer
bases, and deep product knowledge
They're natural collaborators that work
closely with our Chartering desks This
makes them more attractive trokers
because of how their knowledge and
understanding of ther market - whether
it's price, volume flow, or cargo volumes
- Is improved

Governance

Over the last five years, Securities’
share of Braemar’s revenue has
quadrupled. Why have these desks
been so successful?

A - In Sander Bots and Andy Hil, Michael
Griffin, and, latterly, Jay Lovell we've had
strong, capable desk leaders who have
built very talented teams. Marc Jarvis and
Rebecca Reed-Sperrin are at different
stages of their desks' develcpment,

but | expect to see them grow n a
simnillar way.

Our Tanker FFA desk is a strategic
agreement with GFI that's more than 20
years old, and the value that it creates for
Braemar continues to compound year
after year

On our Dry Cargo FFA desk, we have
found a niche by supplying preducts to
a marketplace that - for all ntents and
purposes — didm't exist. There have been
attempts to create a trading screen for
the dry FFA market, but they provided
mncomplete solutions. Braemar Screen
has enabled customers to smplify therr
internal workflows, and the provision

of hquidity, coverage, and pricing
removed the friction from therr ability to
execute trades.

What can Braemar’s clients expect
from its Securities desks in the
coming years?

A - in the coming years there will be
substantial change in how shipping
rmust account for its greenhouse gas
emissions. The European Union's
Emissions Trading System ("EU

ETS") 1s one of the first to attempt

thrs, but it wor't be the last We're
Investing In the solutions and expertise
required to enable cour clients to
achieve ther regulated and voluntary
sustainability ambitions

To date, the only option that charterers
and owners had for managing ther EU
ETS nsk was to go to a specialst EU ETS
provider. However, we can now provide
that access directly, via our new Naturai
Gas desk They've been executing clean
spark spreads (this Is the difference
between the wholesale market price

of electricity and its cost of preduction
using natural gas} - buying natural gas
as well as the reguired number of carbon
allowances to offset the gas's emissions
- for ther customers using EU ETS for
several years
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This I1s going to be particularly attractive
because most of our Chartenng clients
don't want 1o have to execute a futures
contract every time they fix a ship. If
you do that in-house you then have

to deal with the inttial margining and

the variabion margning challenges in
addition, the physical charter versus the
possible hedge that you're doing with
your EU ETS can become two totally
different risks to control Managing
these challenges requires very specialist
skiilsets as wel as large balance sheets,
because if you execute your own futures
contracts they will quickly become
capital intensive

EU ETS 1s a complex mechanism, and
it carries nsks that are not correlated
to shipping. If you don't have the right
experence to manage its challenges.
you're gong to struggle to handle it
efficiently and cost-effectively

ole

The Natural Gas desk
is another addition to
our Securities offering,
which has substantially
grown revenue and
market share in

recent years.

Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Operating Officer
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Key Performance Indicators
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The performance of our Shipbroking
business was very strong, with revenue
and pront well anead ol our expectaliv s
and the preceding financial year's resufts.

The success we have realised this year
is due in large part to our decision to
divest non-core assets and streamline
our operations in FY22 Thanks to our
greater focus on Shipbroking, we were
able to capitalise more effectively on
the opportunities in the market and to
create substantially enhanced value for
our clients.

We have realised total revenue growth
of 40% in Investrent Advisory, 57% in
Chartering, and 42% in Risk Advisory,
as well as an 8% increase in cash
generated from operations.

All KPIs relate to continuing operations.

Cash generated
from operations
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2022: £205m

Number of offices

14
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2022: £101.3m

Underlying
operating profit
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Reported EPS

4556p

' 15.85p

2022

-65%
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Number of employees
(average across the year)

362

2022

+6%

2022 362

Equity scheme
participation

7%

2022
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2022 37%

Underlying EPS
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2022: 2795 pence

Full-year dividend

per share

2022

+33%

2022: 4556 pence

5 2073

2022: 9 pence
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Market Review

Buring FY23, shipping markets
performed well. Earnings across the
Container, Gas, and Tanker markets were
some of the highest recorded in the last
20 years, and Dry Cargo revenues were
close behind.

As we look ahead, we are cautiously
optimistic. Sentiment in the short and
medium term, as measured by time
charter rates, is broadly positive, and
the vessel supply and freight demand
pictures for the shipping markets look
promising in our two biggest markets
~ Tankers and Dry Cargo — over the
foreseeable future.

The delvery schedule of ships in almost
all sectors remains manageable; many
inefficiencies in global supply chains
remain post-Covid;, large parts of the
tanker and dry cargo fleets are travelling
much longer voyage distances due to
sanctions; and vessel scrapping is likely
to pick up ahead of a stricter regulatory
environment and an increased focus on
ESG-critena for investments.

We now present a FY23 summary of our
three business segments: Investment
Advisory, Chartering, and Risk Advisory.

“s " BraemarPlc Annual,Répprt and Accounts 2023
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Operating Review

Investment
Advisory

Phote: (c) Big Litt Shipping, -
all rights reserved

Corporate Finance

Strong earnings in 2022 and the start of
2023 across most sectors have meant
that many shipowners have achieved
significant profits and accumulated
large cash reserves. Many owners
decided to use their profits to opt for
more conservative inancing structures.
As a result, the diversity of Corporate
Finrance’'s mandates has vaned
considerably. These diverse projects
have included the disposal process for
the Cruise Ship Global Class One out of
the insolvency of the German yard My
Werften, restructuring in the Offshore
space, disposals In the Container market
and inland waterway M&A adwvisory
Despite these successes, revenue

and profits were down compared to
the previous year. Corporate Finance
succassfully launched a new office

N Athens, Greece, and expanded its
Singapore office

Sale & Purchase/Newbuildings
Sale and Purchase activity has remained
strong with a record number of second-
hand sales across all sectors and

desks. The strong spot tanker market
hag contributed hugely to a signidficant
nse in tanker asset prices, and the
tal-end of the strongest container
market in decades has created many
high asset value transacticns. The

desk has continued to grow its forward
orderbook In many sectors, ncluding
LNG, Bulkers and Tankers Newbulding
berths have been at a premium. and the
desk’s strong relationships with leading
shipyards have reaped benefits for its
cllents However, with strong freight
markets across the beard, ship recycling
volumes have rermamned light The desk
is optimistic about the cutlook for the
wet and dry freight markets in FY24 and
expects this to continue 1o translate into
a good volume of transactions

Braemar Plc 4Annual Report and Accourts 2023
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Operating Review continued
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Tankers

Vessel earnings mcreased across all
classes of Deep Sea Tankers. The
increase n long-haul voyages because
of changes to crude trade flows was

the major driver for Aframaxes and
Suezmaxes, and VLCC earnings were
drniven by increased activity in the US
Gulf However, VLCC demand was Iimited
by the economic restrictions in China
which were removed only recently.

The acquisitions of Southport and

the new desk in Madrnd have already
created several productive cross-office
collaborations, and further enhanced and
complemented the quality of Braemar's
global coverage, particularly for the
Spanish clean markets and US Gulf's
crudes and ail products

Supply chan challenges prompted

by the pandemic and a resurgence of
interest in nearshornng and reinvigorating
American manufacturng put the jones
Actin the spotlight this year Demand is
likely to remain strong, and further use of
1ts waterways to transport freight looks
increasingly likely The US Flag desk

has seen strong rates in FY23 which
lock likely to continue, and recently
launched an Inland desk to capitalise on
opportunities in that market. The desk
worked with three oll majors for the first
time last year, and the desk i1s currently
on track for 30% revenue growth,

Braemar Plc Ann.al Report and Accounts 2003

Dry Cargo

Coal was the major theme of the year as
natural gas prices soared and countries
sought less expensive energy sources
The orderbook rermains historically

low, and new envircnmental regutation
arriving in 2023-24 —~ with more on the
horizon — Is likely to set the tone for

a favourable vessel supply/demand
balance in the coming years Dry Carge
has centinued to strengthen its presence
In strategic bases such as Athens,
Greece, and Sao Paulo, Brazi! The desk
has already seen positive results from its
ability to leverage those enhanced local
relationships In Australia, major gamns
have been seen In the grains market,
and solid Contract of Affreightment
("COA") cover — an agreement to
transport a given guantity over a fixed
pernod — for 2023 has strengthened
relationstups wath key charterers
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The Dry Cargo desk has also been
instrumental in helping the United
Kingdom's Ministry of Defence
department fulfil its multipurpose
vessel ("MPP”) requirements, and it
worked closely with the UN's World
Food Programme to help ship fertiliser
to Malawi to help it reduce the costs of
crop production.

Offshore Energy Services

The Renewables and Qi & Gas markets
delivered growth throughout the year.
Vessel supply was insufficient to meet
demand. and charter rates increased
substantially. A lack of newbuilding
orders In recent years increases the
Ikelihood that these rate levels are going
to reman elevated for a prolonged
period This shertage of vessels has led
to substantally increased S&P activity
for the desk, particularly in the Platform
Supply Vessels (“PSV”) and Subsea
sectors. The desk’s forward order book
growth to March 2023 was double that
of March 2022, and the outlook for the
year ahead 15 positive with the volume
of term fixtures increasing, and spot and
term rates likely 1o continue to Improve.

Specialised Tankers

FY23 saw the strongest chemical and
European coastal products tanker market
for many years. This was primarily caused
by reduced ship supply - increasing ton-
mikes, swing tennage exiting chemicals,
and a reduced order book -, and these
talwinds are unlkely to completely
disappear in FY24. The desk continued
to grow, and it is capitalising on its
investment in research, and geographical
expansion to Dubai, Houston, and
Melbourmne which strongly complement
the main desk in London. This growth has
enabled Specialsed Tankers to expand
its reach and market share, and to realise
further intra-desk synergies

R

The elimination of Russian pipeline gas
supply to Europe, In large part because of
the war in Ukraine had profound effects
on the LNG market. Long establshed
trade routes switched from West to East
as US gas volumes were directed to
Europe to replace Russian volumes. Gas
prices soared and with t demand for
medium and long-term LNG shipping,
with rates for certain vessels peaking

at approximately USD 500k per day. In
line with Brasmar's growth strategy, the
LNG desk has grown to six people, split
between London and Geneva. Revenue
continues to be well diversified across
the desk’s activities, and there is further
growth planned into in FY24
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Prospects for the freight market look
positive as Very Large Gas Carrer
("VLGC") shipowners expect increased
vessel demand, despite the current
forward order book of approximately
20% of the existing fleet Simiarly, n the
Medium Gas Carrier ("MGC") market the
cutlook remains good: mostly due to the
projected expansion in iquid ammonia
shipments in the near future. From a
shipping perspective the Petrochemical
segment had a reascnably strong year,
and the Pressurised segment had a
sold year with improved results from
both spot and time charter coverage.
Bragmar's LPG & Petrochemicals desk
has enhanced its MGC and VLGC
presence with the recruitment of an
ex-bunker broker, and concluded two
new long-term petrochemical COAs as
well as renewing another The desk has
realised Increased time charter coverage
and grown its customer base this

year, with several promising long-term
projects on the horizon for FY24

—-—

Photo: (¢} Kyklades Maritime Corporation,
all rights reserved
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Operating Review continued

Risk Advisory

aney s ey

(Securities)

Photo: (c) Global Class One,
Qlobal Dream, all rights resarved

Braemar’s Securities business consists of four derivatives markets: Dry Cargo, Natural Gas, Qil, and Tanker.

Dry Cargo Derivatives

The FFA market reflected the volatiity

of the Dry Cargo market over the last 12
months, but the outleok for the next year
and beyond 15 looking tkely to be fertile
Volumes across the market have grown
dramatically, and continue o increase,
with more nen-traditional financial capital
increasingly finding its way inte the FFA
market. The Dry Cargo FFA desk has alsc
started to reap the benefits of Braemar’'s
investment in ts Securtties businesses,
Including through the launch of Dry Cargo
FFA operations for Asia in Singapore, as
well as hiring several brokers The addition
of the Natural Gas and Oil Derivatives
desks has led to cross-desk synergies as
the business is able to service customers
across asset classes, and Braemar
Screen conbinues to provide the market’s
leading technology platform.

Natural Gas Derivatives

The Natural Gas market is returning to
price normality after the major shock it
endured when Russia invaded Ukraine N
2022 Substantal pressure on Nat Gas
avallabifity ted to record high spot prices,
and gas impoert markets remain sensitive
to further supply restnctions. Braemar's
Natural Gas desk started operations in
January 2023, and i already profitable. It
has successfully launched a new product
- Trade At Heren (“TAH”) - that the market
hasn't previously traded, and the desk is
recewving significant interest in its ability

to broker European Union Allowances
{("EUA") for compliance with the EU's
Emissions Trading System ("ETS™)

Braemar Plc AnnLal Report and Accourts 2023
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Oil Derivatives

in the ol markets the last 12 months
have been marked by high volatility and
low trading volumes n swap markets
Although these trends have been
softened by war in Ukrane and the
post-Cowvid recovery of global demand.
2023 has brought renewed activity, and
traded volumes are steadily increasing.
The desk’s initial focus on fuel oil and
middie distillates 1s progressing steadily,
and Braemar's new ability to help its
clients hedge their bunker fuel exposure
through swap and option markets has
been warmly received.

g
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Tanker Derivatives

The Tanker FFA market was extremely
volatile throughout 2022, primarily
because of the Russia-Ukraine conflict
That volatility led to a histoncal dealing
high across the Dirty, Clean and LPG FFA
sectors This year has conlinded i a
similar fashion with growing requirerments
to hedge and opportunities to speculate
onprices As a result, the Tanker FFA
market is expected to continue to thrive
In FY24. The acquisition of Southport has
enabled the desk to create a stronghold
on US Gulf FFA routes, and the desk
remains the leading glokal facilitator of
Clean, Dirty and LPG FFAs

MAYE MANX
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Financial Review

Summary Income Statement FY23
The strong racing and higher revenues have delivered signficant increases across all
continumng profit measures

- Statutory operating profit increased by 22% to £11.7 million (FY22 £95 million).
- Underlying operating profit increased by 100% to £201 miilon (FY22 £101 millon).
- Statutory profit before tax increased by 1% to £95 millon (FY22 £85 million).
- Underlying profit before tax increased by 103% to £18 0 million (FY22. £89 milion)

Statutory profit in FY23 was impacted by the impairment of the goodwill on
acquisition of Naves {now Braermar Corporate Finance}, which was completed by
the previcus management team in 2017

ot

7 /
4 Underlying Statutory
O O FY23 Fyo2 % Inef Fyaz3 [ ars % nc/
. . , £'000 £000 (Dec) £000 £000 {Dec)
EEE TR B toig
’ . Revenue 162,911 101,310 51% 152,81 101310 51%
e Operating profit 20,075 10,060 100% 11,669 2,546 22%
cono e D g Profit before tax 18,040 8,885 103% 9,451 8,543 1%
Profit 13,399 8,539 57% 4,596 13,918 (87)%

Earnings per share 46.22p 27950 66% 16.85p 4556p (65)%

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer

Continuing operations

Revenue from continuing operations
grew by 51% from £101.3 millon to

£152 9 milion, as revenue and fixture
volumes across almost every Shigbroking
desk ncreased, with the excepuon of
Corporate Finance.

The US dallar exchange rate moved
from USS134/81 at the start of the year
to USS121/E1 at 28 February 2023 with
an average of US$121 A significant
proportion of the Group's revenue is
earned in US dollars Revenue growth
was positively Impacted by the strong
US dollar, which contributed around 24%
of the overal increase US dollar revenue
Increased by 18% Iin the period.

To protect the future sterling value of
those revenues, at 28 February 2023, the
Group held forward currency contracts to
sell US$123 millon at an average rate of
US$1.22/£1.
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Due to the substantial Increase N
revenue and the considerable hard work.
which was put inte its generation, there
was a corresponding Increase in profit-
related bonuses paid to the brokers, This
Wwas the rain contributor 1o the ncrease
N operating costs, compared to the
prior year. As planned, salary costs also
Increased, due to the investment In new
brokers and desks, the new office in
Madrid and the acquisition of Southport
N the US. Travelling and entertaining
expenditure increased to £64m from
£21m, as a result of a full year largely
free from Cowvid restrictions As a result
of all these factors, underlying operating
costs increased by 46% from £805m to
£1328m

Central costs ncreased in total by 49%
from £4.2 million to £8 2 millon, This
was the result of increased share-based
payment charges, Inked in part to the
Improved performance in the year and
higher levels of expected vesting of
awards, higher staff costs and non-
recurring costs related to the delayed
year-end audit process
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Net finance costs for the year

increased by 123% to £2 2 millon

(2022 £10 milion} The cost has three
elernents the revolving credit facility
provided by HSBC, which provides the
working capital needed by the business
as well as the core Indebtedness; the
corwvertible loan notes asscciated

with the acguisition of Braemar Naves;
and the interest charge on the lability
associated with nght-of-use assets
accounted for under IFRS 16 Average net
debt improved versus FY22 and average
borrowing is largely in ine with FY22, but
costs have increased in the year as a
result of the increases in interest rates
with average SONJA Increasing from
01% In FY22 to 19% in FY23. In addition,
there has been an adverse moverment
in foreign exchange rates, causing

an increase of £05 millen to finance
costs largely in relation to the euro
denominated Naves labilities

Included within the net finance costs

In FY22 is a credit of £02m, which did

not recur in FY23. This was in respect of
the accounting for the restructuring of
deferred consideration owed in relation to
the acquisition of Braemar Naves

Finance income ncludes a credit of
FO1miion, relating to the revaluation of
amounts due for the sale of Cory Brothers
that tock place In the previous year

Underlying operating profit before specific items

Governance

Financial Statements

Specific items — Acguistion and disposal-related

expenditure
Specific tems ~ Other cperating costs
Specific itemns — Other incorme

Operating profit

Specific items and discontinued
operations

Do enbipuesd Cpin s U

In FY22, the board successfully executed
several transactions with the aim of
simplifying the Group's operations to
concentrate on a new growth strategy
centred around Shipbroking As a

result, the inancial results of Wavespec,
AqualisBrasmar and Cory Brothers,
which were disposed of during the year,
have been presented as discontinued
operations, together with the profits and
iosses on therr disposal. In aggregate, all
these items total a profit of £72 million

Specific items

R A R N O N e L
VR

Braemar uses APMSs as key financial
indicators to assess the perfermance
of the Group Management considers
that the APMs used by the Group help
to provide an alternate assessment of
business performance, by excluding
iterns which management does not
beleve relate to business performance
N the period, and provide useful
information to investors and other
INterested parties We have separated
the impact of Indwidually material capital
transactions, such as acquisitions

and disposals, from ongoing trading
activity to allow a focus on ongoing
operational performance Our APMs
inchude underlying operating profit and
underlying earnings per share

Iterms that are not considered to be
part of the ongoing trade of the Group
have been presented as specific.
These items are material in both size
and/or nature and we believe may
distort understanding of the underlying
performance of the business if not
identified separately. Details of these
iterms can be found in Note 10 to these
Financial Statements
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FY23 Fy22
£'000 £000
20,076 10,060
(1,999) (122)
(10,253) 392
3,846 0
1,669 9,646

The most significant of these items is

an impairment of goodwill As a result of
a weaker performance in FY23, a more
negative outlook for the business and
challenging market conaitions, the Group
has recognised an imparment of £&1
milion to the Goodwill which arose on
the acquisition of Naves. Further details
can be found in Note 15,

As a result of accounting requiremenis,
a gain on bargain purchase on the
acqguisition of Southport of £36 rmillicn
was recognised in the Group's Income
Statement This gain arnises due to the
recogniion of acquired net assets,
while for accounting purposes the
consideration is treated as a post-
acquisition employee expense

Balance Sheet

Net assets at 28 February 2023 were
£767 milion {FY22 restated £715
million). The year saw an increase In
aross trade receivables of 28% to £320
millon from £250 million, due to the 51%
revenue growth in shipbroking dunng the
period. Despite this rise in gross trade
recelvables, the provision for impairment
of trade receivables only increasecd

by 18%, reflecting strong working

capital management and control over
receivables ageing. A receivable of £50
rmillon (FY22: £4.8 million) 1s included in
other long-term receivables in respect of
the VertcrnCaory deferred and contingent
consideration

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure was £1.7m
{F¥Y22: £2.3m). The most significant item
of capital expenditure relates to the
treatment of office leases under IFRS

18 whereby the lease is treated as an
asset additton. These lease additions
were £09m in the year (FY22 £10m) and
do not relate to cash payments in the
year The balance relates to capitalised
expenditure on computer equipment/
software of £E05m (FY22 £08m) and
other expenditure on fixtures and fittings
of £03m (FY22 £03m}
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Financial Review continued

Provisions (internal

independent investigation)

In June 2023, the board commissioned
an mternal independent investigation
into an historical transaction originating
in 2013 The investigation was overseen
by an Investigation Committee chaired
by the Group's non-executive Charrman
and was conducted by an ndependent
speciafist forensic accounting firm and
independent external counsel. The
Investigation was comprehensive and
complex and ultmately encompassed
several transactions between 2006 and
2013, which required further investigation

As a result of the investigation, the

Group has recognised a provision

of £20m in relation to the uncertain
obligations connected to a number of the
transactions and commission chligations
dentified as part of the investigation

Of the £20m, £17m relates to historical
unsettled commission payable, which
was recorded In 2017 upon completion of
the relevant contracts, which criginated in
2013, This balance has been reclassified
from tradie payables to provisions

during the year. While the board cannot
forecast with certainty final outcomes

In respect of these obligations, based

on the Group's current information, the
amount recogrised s the current best
estimate of the amount required to settle
the obhigations at the balance sheet

date, taking mtc account the nsks and
uncertainties surrcunding the cbligations,
including interpretation of specific laws
and likelihood of settlement Non-
recurring costs of c£25m wil be reported
in FY24 regarding the investigation

As the ultimate potential obligations and
outcomes In relation to the transactions
subject to the internal iIndependent
investigation are uncertain, there
remains a risk that the final outcomes
coutd matenally impact the recognised
balance. It is impracticable to provide
sensitivity estimates of potential
downside variances at this tme.

Borrowings and cash

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group

had a revolving credit facility with HSBC

of £300 millon The facility also provides
access to a global cash pooling facilty in
the UK, Germany and Singapore, which
enables efficient management of lquidity
between its main regional hubs The
Group operates a pooling arrangernent for
cash management purposes and at the
end of the year the Group had net cash of
£62 millon (2022 net debt £23 milkon)

Retirement benefits

The Group has a defined benefit pension
scheme, which was closed to new
memibers during FY16 The scheme has
a surplus of £11 million (FY22 deficit

£21 milton), which 1s recorded on the
Balance Sheet as at 28 February 2023
The agreed annual scheme-specific
funding, since the trienmal valuation as at
March 2020, was a cash contribution of
£CH million per annum. As a result of the
net asset position, these contributions
were stopped from March 2023

Taxation

The Group's underlying effective tax rate
in relation to continuing operations N
FY23 was a charge of 28% (FY22: 21%),
which 1s broadly in Iine with the UK tax
rate in the current year. The increase was
largely driven by a benefit in the prior
year relating to a change in applicable
tax rate to an overseas entity, and
additicnal non-deductible costs in the
current year.

Capital management

The Group manages {1s capital structure
and adjusts it In response to changes

in economic conditions and its capital
needs To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new
shares and debt nstruments The Group
has a policy of maintaining positive cash
balances, whenever possible, which

can be supported by short-term use of
its revolving credit faclity. This is drawn
down as required, to provide cover
against the peaks and troughs in our
working capital requirements.

ESOP Trust

During FY23, the Company requested
that SG Kleinwort Hambros Trust
Company (Cl) Ltd. as Trustee of the
Company’'s ESCP Trust, purchase shares
in Braemar Shipping Senvices Plc. Durng
the year a total of 2,795,000 shares

N the Company were purchased by

the Trustee and 1877473 shares were
released, as a result, at 28 February
2023, the ESCP held 3572630 shares
(FY22 2669603 shares) The total

cash outflow as a result of these share
purchases was £80m (FY22 £70m).

At FY23 year end, the ESOP contained
sufficient shares as are expected toc be
needed to cover all current share awards
described in Note 31 of the Financial
Statements
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Dividend

The directors are recommending for
approval at the reconvened AGM on

18 December 2023, a final dividend of
80 pence per share, to be paid on

9 February 2024 The intenm dividend
of 40 pence per share n respect of the
six months to 21 August 2022 was paid
4 January 2023, The total dividend of
120 pence for the year is covered 36
times by the underlying earnings per
share from continuing operations of 4319
pence The total cash outflow in respect
of dividends paid durnng the year ended
28 February 2023 was £32m (2022
£21m)

Following a project started dunng the
year to improve the level of distributable
profits of the Company, it was
discovered that certain dividends paid
between 2016 and 2023 were paid by
the Company without having sufficient
distriputable reserves from which to
lawfully pay them. Having identified these
issues, to rectify the gap m retained
earnings and the unlawful payment

of dividends, after the balance sheet
date the Company completed a Capital
Reduction and entered releases from
hability for the benefit of shareholders
and directors For further details see
Note 12.

Going concern

The strong trading cash flows generated
during the year, combined with the
cash consideration recewved for the
sale of Cory Brothers on 2 March 2022
have placed the Group in a strong cash
position, with a net cash position at the
year end The Group will maintain its
prudent approach to working capital
forecasting and credit controls The
Group's revolving credit faciity was
renewed N November 2022 on largely
similar terms to the previous one it
replaced and provides the seasonal
working capital that 1s required
Accordingly, the accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer
15 Novermber 2023
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The board 1s pleased to confirm that
durning the year ended 28 February
2023, the directors have discharged
their duties to act in a way they beleve
promotes the iong-term success of the
Company for the benefit of its members
as a whole This statement sets out
how the directors have done this whilst
having regard to the matters set cut in
section 172 of the Companies Act 2006

The board is responsible for ensuring
that the principal decisions It takes
promcte Braemar's long term success
for its members and in doing so, they
must have regard to the

- likely consequences of any decrsion
in the long term,

- Interests of the company's
employees,

- need to foster the company’s
business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others,

- Impact of the company’s operations
on the community and the
environment;

- desirability of the company
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct; and

- need to act fairly as between
members of the company.

The board has determined the
Company's key stakeholders are i1tg
employees, cllents and shareholders
The views of these stakeholders

are considered by the board when
principal decisions are taken The

board understands the importance of
effectively engaging with the Cormpany's
key stakeholders, to better understand
their views and interests, and to better
consider the potential impact of the
Directors’ decisions on them Information
on how the Company engaged with
various stakeholders cduring the year can
be found N the EPSG Report on pages
34 to 45 and the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 54 to b7 of this

Annual Report.

The directors’ duties under Section 172 of
the Companies Act 2006 are embedded
In all the decisions that the board and

its Committees make, as are a range of
other factors. including alignment with
the board's strategy and values

A summary is provided below of the principal decisions taken by the board dunng
the year and how key stakeholders and other matters set out in section 172 were

considered by the board iIn making these decisions.
Principal decisions of the board:
Decision Section 172 and stakeholders

Acquisition of Southport Mantime Inc. -

Hirng of the tanker desk, in Madrid, -
Spain .

Enhanced Securities offering with .
new Natural Gas and Ol dervatives -
desks

Recommended a final dividend of .
8 pence per share for approval by .
shareholders at the 2023 AGM .

Change of Audit & Risk Committee -
name .

Board decision making in action

Ca e 4 b sty
i [ i i

— In December 2022 the Group
announced the strategic acquisition
of leading US shipbroker Southport
Maritime Inc. The acquisition
enhanced the Group's coverage In
the Americas, which has been an
impartant strategic chjective since the
board launched its growth agenda
in Novemiber 2021 In considering the
acquisition, the board considered
the lkely mpact on all stakeholder
groups. The Southport team
complements Braemar’s existing
Tanker desks in London, Singapore,
Madnd, Houston, and Geneva as well
as signficantly enhancing Braemar's
presence in the Americas The
acquisition also enhanced the Groug's
existing coverage in Houston and
Sao Paulo, these combined locations
provide the ideal platform for the
Group to penetrate the North and
South American markets and add
further scale to the Group's activitios
Addiionally, the board considered
that the transaction was expected to
enhance earnings for the year ending
February 2024 Maore detall on thig
acguisition can be found on pages
16 to 17 of this Annual Report.

Braemar Pl Annaal Report and Accounts 2023

conseguences of decisions In the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

consequences of decisions in the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

consequences of decisions in the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

conseqguences of decisions In the long term
Interests of stakeholders: shareholders

the need to act fairly as between members
of the Company

consequences of decisions in the long term
reputation for high standards of business
conduct

- In December 2022, Braemar recruited
a new tanker broking team, based
in Madnd The highly expenenced
team of ten brokers 1s renownea
within the international tanker
market having previcusly worked for
Medco Shipbrokers SL. The team
specialises in crude, dirty products,
clean products, and pericd chartering.
This new desk offering and client
base complemented Braemar's
existing tanker desks in Londen and
Geneva, strengthened Braemar'’s
global coverage and brought new
commercial refationships to the
Group Expanding into new markets
is a core tenet of the Group's strategy
and the recruitmant of this team was
Another step in the execution of the
Group's growth plan.
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In November 2022, Braemar launched
a ten-strong Natural gas desk, the
step was taken N response to a

clear need in the Fnergy market for
assistance navigating volatile rate
changes and price fluctuations

The Natural Gas desk was ancther
addrttion to Braemar's Securities
offering and providing access

to more energy products is a
component of Braemar's growth
strategy. Additionally, there were clear
synergies with our shipping desks
and there was chent demand for
greater market access. A talented
team with a strong track record would
provide a strong platform to add more
products More detall on this launch
can be found on pages 10 to 11

.
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In March 2023, the board agreed

to recommend a well-covered finai
dividend of 8 pence per share for
approval at the forthcoming AGM. The
board is mindful of the importance

of dividends to shareholders and this
cecision 1s 1N Ine with the Company’s
stated progressive dividend policy
Together with the intenm dividend

of 4 pence per share, this equates

to total dwvidends per share for the
year of 12 pence, a 33% Increase over
the pnor year dividend of ¢ pence
per share.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounits 2023
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During the year. the board approved

the proposal to change the name

of the Audit Committee to the Audit
& Risk Committee This step was
taken 10 recognise the Committee’s
responsibilities with respect to risk
management and to demonstrate the
Company’s continued commitment
to strengthening risk oversight and
internal control The decision also
supports our strategy which 1s aimed
at long-term sustainable growth and
development of the business. Further
detal on the Group’s corporate
governance arrangerments, the work
of the Audit & Risk Committee and
the Pnncipal nsks can be found on
pages 60 to 64 and 47 to 63.
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Environmental, People, Social and
Governance (“EPSG”) Report
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At Braemar, we recognise the
importance of sustanability to our
success as a business and we are
committed to being a sustanable
business, delivering growth whilst
creating a positive impact on society.
The environmental, sccial, and
governance elements of traditicnal ‘ESG’
critena help us to measure, manage, and
demonstrate our contributions to farer,
more prosperous, and more sustanable
way of doing business However, we
believe that because of the importance
of people to our business, we need to
explicitly recognise ther contribution in

EPSG Framework

' .
L ¢

environment

: Targets
: 63,66

. Reduc ¢ operational emissions.
Achieve net zero emissions

by 2050

Giving our people’s time,
passion and experience
to benefit society and the

the title of our Framework and to ensure
we mantain equal focus on our most
important asset,

We are a people-focused Company,
and without our people we would not
have a sustainable business. Therefore,
we place our people front and centre
within our EPSG strategy to demonstrate
the importance we place on them, and
to ensure ther continued growth and
success. This year we have nvested in
our people, developing both therr skills
and capacity to enable cur business to
thrive. We report further on this in the
People section below.

Facilitating climate-smart shipping

2 4 ¥
Pt T
Giving a percentage of
our profit to support our
FSG work

8 DEGENT WOAK AND
EQONCHIC GRPNTH

af

Targets
8.4,8.6

Think glekally to activate
One Braemar

Activate global programmes

Incorporating climate-
smart expertise into our
client services

Think giobally actlocally
to drive benefit for our
communities

As a business within an industry that's
responsible for between 2-3% of the
world's GHG emissions we recognise
that we can play a part n helping the
industry with the green transition. We
remain true to our EPSG purpose to
facilitate climate-smart shipping and
discuss in detail how we are doing that
throughout our Report

Ensuring effective governance and
managmng our business ethically are
guiding principles for Braemar. Through
our EPSG strategy we are committed to
ncreasing the maturity and transparency
of our reporting and strengthening board
oversight In this area.

E We believe it takes expertise and experience to secure sustainable returns and mitigate
HUS risk in a volatile shipping world

;“*

Collaborating with the
maritime industry to
achieve shared ESG goals

1o ="
L
Target. Targets
13.3 14.1,14.2

Coliect data and report
on ESG metrics aligned
to strategy

Protect 10,000km? of marine
biodiversity areas by 2030

Facilitate responsible and

sustainable shipping within
the industry

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accourts 2023

fer bringing diverse talent
into the workplace
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Future Plans

Governance Financial Statements

In addition to the climate-smart initiatives already instigated, we are committed to implementing these plans by 2025:

©

Strengthen our existing charity

partnerships to focus on the
key social 1Issues affecting
the countries in which

we operate.

Coliaborate with expert
organisations to protect
marine blodiversity.

1

A
/TN el
Develop a strategy for

transitioning to net-zerc
carbon emissions

dil

Collaborate with industry
initiatives to expedite our
ernvircnmental objectives

ldentify new beneficiaries
with a focus on the
needs of maritime and
seafaring communities.

a4 D

Develop a clear set of reportable
metrics 1o evaluate our activities
and show the progress of our

ESG commitments for all our
stakeholders, including employees,
clients, communities and investors

Strengthen our Executive
and board supervision for
all aspects of governance
relating to our ESG waork

We have bullt the foundations we need to deliver our EPSG strategy Going forward, we will start to deliver on actvities to reach the
commitment we have made to reach cur goals

Target 6.3

Target 6.6

Clean water and sanitation
Ensure availability and sustainable management of water and sanitation for all

Improve water quality by reducing pollution .. minimising release of hazardous chemicals
and materials .. and substantially increasing recycling and safe reuse globally

Protect and restore water-related ecosystemns, including mountains, forests, wetlands,
rivers, aquifers and lakes

DECENT WORK AND
TCONDMIC GROWTH

Decent work and econemic growth
Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable economic growth, full and productive

employment and decent work for all

o

Target 8.4
Target 8.6

13 o

Target 13.3

Target 14.1
Target 14.2

Endeavour to decouple economic growth from environmental degradation

Reduce the proportion of youth not in employment, education or training

Climate action
Take urgent action to combat climate change and its impacts

Improve education, awareness-raising and human and institutional capacity on climate
change mitigation, adaptation, impact reduction and early warning

Life below water
Conserve and sustainably use the oceans, seas and marine resources for

sustainable development

Prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds

Sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant
adverse Impacts, includng by strengthening their resilence, and take action for their
restoration in order to achieve healthy and productive oceans

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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EPSG Report continued

Our enwronmental

Nevertheless, the international shipping
ndustry accounts for approximately 2-3%
of worldwide greenhouse gas emissions
and faces significant challenges in the
transition to a green economy. However,
sfforts to reduce shipping's greenhouse
gas emissions have picked up pace n the
last twelve maonths

The Internatonal Martime Crganisation
(IMO") Introduced regulations targeting
emissions of existing ships In January
2023, the Carbon Intensity Indicator
{"CII"} and the Energy Efficiency Existing
Ship Index ("EEXI") The EEXIis a one-
time requirement for existing vessels to
demonstrate that they are as technically
efficient as therr new-build counterparts.
The CIl, on the other hand, looks at
operational efficiency, with each vessel
receiving an A-E efficiency rating based
on therr performance N the previous
year

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accourt

The European Unicon is also bringing
N its own rules targeting international
shipping The past year has seen
preliminary deals reached on the EU
Emissions Trading Scherme (“EU ETS™)
and FuelEU Maritime

Alongsicie these regulations, companies
are facing growing financial pressure

to decarborise. This 1s now translating
into early adoption of alternative

fuels, production Is increasing, and
infrastructure 1s being put in place N
large EU ports Methanol has emerged
as a fuel option, and the first ammonia
engines are expected by the end of
2024 or early 2025

Developing an affordable and
sustainable global supply of these
fuels remains a momentous challenge,
however Efficiency improvements will
therefore be key to meeting immediate
emissions goals. A range of emissions
saving devices are being used, with
some even turning back to wind.

% 2223

Optimising operations by taking
advantage of the latest data and
Al technologies can also offer
considerable savings

While there 1s a long road ahead, shipping
15 now taking solid steps towards a

green energy transition, and we are well
positioned to help our clients to achieve
several of their sustanabilily ambitions

Our direct impact

As a broker we seek to facilitate clirmate-
smart shipping, aiming to reduce nsk
and seek opportunities to akd our clients
N their green transitions.

We take care to reduce our carbon
footpnnt, which is a result of energy use
from our offices and business travel

In Aberdeen. for exarmple. we have
relocated to mare energy efficient offices
which have car chargers for electric
vehicles, and we continue to work
toward reducing the amount of paper
we use in our offices
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As with the prior year, we have continued
to offset our reported footprint through
the nurchase of carbon credits through
Braemar Offset We have invested

in offset schemes that include wind
power, solar photovoltaic projects,
conservation intiatives, and biomass/
landfll gas projects

Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting ‘SECR’

We measure and monitor our energy
and calculate our greenhouse gas
ernissions Dased on the use of gas

and electricity in our offices, car use for
business purposes, and corporate travel.
as shown N the table below. The data
in this table represents the Group's GHG
emissions and excludes associate- and
jeint ventures

Scope 1 covers direct emissions from
owned or controlied sources.

Scope 2 covers indirect emissions from
the generation of purchased electricity,

steam, heating and cooling consurmed

by the Group.

Scope 3 inciudes the following indirect
ermissions from the Group's value chain
most material to our business business
travel, employee commuting and
working from home, and transmission
and distribution of electricity. Scope

3 emissions do not currently include
purchased goods and services, waste
disposal, investments, or leased assets.

Our carbon tootprnnt has been
calculated using the GHG Protocol
Corporate Standard guidelines,

using the UK emission conversion
factors produced for 2022 by the

UK Departrnent of Business, Energy
and Industnal Strategy ("BEIS™) and
Department for the Environment,
Food and Rurat Affairs (“DEFRA"). The
model used 1o calculate the Group's
GHG emigsions was developed by an
independent consuftant however the
data used to populate this model has
not been independently verified

The Group's total emissicns have
Increased by H4% to 830.72tC0Oe

(2022 4692tCO_e continuing operations
only) This is mainly due to increases

In corporate travel, specifically flights
which have returned to the pre-Cowvid
level Other areas of energy and carbon
emissions have remained on a level with
the prior year except for a decrease in
emissions related to employees working
from home as they return to working in
the offices. We continue 1o improve our
management and reporting of emissions,
as our systemns develop and reporting
accuracy increases, this may highlight a
greater level of emissions— such as that
seen In the increase in reporting Scope 1
gas emissicns

Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions

3%

20%
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In fine with the SECR requirements, we
have calculated our Intensity Ratio based
on our emissions per employee, an
approphate measwre (O a people-pased
business. Our carbon intensity for the
reporting year is 2tCO,_e per FTE {2022
1.3tCO e/fte), with the increase related to
corparate travel This 15 a material aspect
of our carbon footprint and we aim to
reduce and maintain this at lower levels
over the long term.

The Greup are committed to reaching
the UK's net zero goa! by 2050 and will
set out our transition plan in the next
reporting period.

Scope 3 emission sources

@ Transportation and distribution (“T&D")
of electricity

® Employaes working from home:

© Business travel in rental cars or
employee-owned vehicles

< Emissions from flights
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Braemar Plc - Group energy usage and associated GHG emissions
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Year ended 28 February 2023 Priar year
UK RoW Total UK RoW Total
Energy consumption (kWh)
Gas 31,760 58,610 80,370 - 10,000 10,000
Electricity 377,581 210,762 588,343 313,083 263,338 576,401
Mileage 644 131,003 131,647 - 58,064 56,064

Total energy consumption 409,985 400,375 810,360 313,063 320402 642,465

GHG Emissions (tCOze)

Scope i

Emissicns from compustion of gas B5.80 10.70 16.60 - 200 200

Emissions from combustion of fuel

for the purposes of owned transport 0.16 8756 8.91 - 900 900

Scope 2

Emissions from purchased electricity

{location-based) 73.02 93.77 166.79 6600 126.00 192 00

Scope 3

Emissions from transportation and

distribution ("T&D") of electricity 7.09 1.66 8.76 6500 500 7100

Ermissions from employees working

from horne 510 14.61 19.M1 40.00 42.00 8900

Emissions from business travel in rental

cars or employee-owned vehicles - 25.27 25.27 - 500 500

Emissions from flights 352.92 234.30 687.22 7000 2100 16100

Total gross emissions 444,09 389.06 833.15 18300 28600 469 00

FTE 138 246 384 174 188 362
3.22 1.57 216 110 150 130

Carbon intensity per FTE tCO,effte tCO.effte tCO,effte (CCpe/ite tCOpg/fle 1(COe/fte

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accourts 2023



Facilitating climate-smart shipping
The Group is clear that its EPSG purpose
15 to facilitate chimate-smart shipping.
Thus s the primary way that we can
support our clients in navigating both the
nsks and opportunities associated with
clmate change

Over the years we have developed
several products and services to support
our clients’ transition to the green
economy These include our newbuild
and ship recycling advisory senvices,
which help shipowners to maximise

the green potential of their vessels

at the beginning and the end of ther
working Iivas.

Our Research desk provides analysis for
our clients on the transition to the green
economy. In the reporting year this has
included topics such as green fuels,
methanol and slow stearming.
Braemar’s representatives speak
regularly at industry events on 1ssues
related to the green transitions For
example, Braerar's lan Metzger was the
lead presenter at TradeWinds's Green
Seas Fuels Forum m March 2023

Braemar Offset, our platform to

enable carbon offsetting of our clients’
corporate and cperational emissions,

is now in ks second year Bragmar
Offset drectly connects cur clents with
impactful and verfied climate projects
which helps them play a proactive role to
improve therr sustanability and positively
accelerate climate action The Group

15 developing metncs to report on the
success of Braemar Offset from FY23,

~ . . .

Financial Statements

e,

The European Union s bringing in rules
which target the GHG emissions of
international shipping. The past year
has seen preliminary deals reached on
the EU Emissions Trading Scheme
("EU ETS") and FuelEU Maritime

The EU ETS will introduce what is
effectively the world's first carbon tax
for international shipping, requiring
companies to purchase and annually
surrender allowances for emissions on
EU voyages from 2024.

FuelElt Maritime will bring further
challenges from 2025, setting limits
on the carbon intensity of marine
fuels used on EU voyages and
charging a monetary penalty for
underperformance.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Targets ramp up every five years,
starting at -2% in 2025 (compared

to 2020} and working up to -80% by
2050, phasing out most fossil fuel use
on EY routes.

These rules and increased legislation
bring challenges but also opportunities
to develop green products to develop
the carbon transition market.
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures Report

The Group recognises that the international shipping industry
accounts for approximately 2—-3% of world-wide greenhouse
gas emissions which presents significant nsks and cpportunities
for our busness

We seek 10 incorporate the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") recommendations nto our strategic
decision makmng gong forward. This is our second year of TCFD
reporting, where we have bult on the sold foundation of the first
year and started to analyse the impacts of climate change on

our business While we are not yet fully compliant with the TCFD
recommendations we are bulkding towards full complance with
TCFD-recommended disclosures in future yvears

In the table below, we have stated where we are fully, partially
or not yet comphant against each disclosure

The following summary sets cut how the Group incormporates

climate-related risks and opportunities into the four pillars set

out by the TCFD: governance, strategy, risk management, and
metrics and targets

This surmmary includes references to other sections of this
Annual Report where further disclosures are provided, and an
explanation i1s given where the Group's compliance with TCFD
disclosures 1s partial or omitted.

4
i
t
L

Describe the board’s oversight Full
of climate-related risks and
opportunities

Principal nsks and uncertainties
on pages 47 to 63

Audit & Risk Committee Report on
pages 60 to 84

HH

Describe management’s role in Full
assessing and managing climate-
related risks and opportunities

Y Prncipal nsks and uncertainties
i J on pages 47 to 63

Describe the climate-related risks Partial
and opportunities the organisation

has identified over the short,

medium and long term

[

Principal nsks and uncertanties
on pages 47 to 53

Describe the impact of climate-
related risks and opportunities
on the organisation’s businesses,
strategy and financial planning

Non-

Describe the resilience of the Non-
organisation’s strategy, taking into
consideration different climate-
related scenarios, including a 2°C or

lower scenario

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

compliant

compliant

The board has overall responsibility and oversight of climate-related risks and
opportunties. it is Informed by the Audit & Risk Committee of risks and opportunities in
relaton to climate change.

The Audit & Risk Cormmittee reviews the impact of climate-change risks and
opportunties and incorporates these risks and opportunities Into the Group's Risk
Management Framework.

The Risk Committee reports to the Audit & Risk Committee via the Group Chief Operating
Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer, the latter having executive responsibifity for
this area. Further details on the roles and responsibilities of these two Committees can be
found on page 48.

Durng FY23, the Group Chief Financial Cfficer {with the support of the Risk Cormmittee)
had overal responsibiity for assessing and managing ckmate-related nisks and
uncertainties. With the suppaort of external consultants and internal industry experts

the management team is kept updated on climate change risks and opportunities
throughout the year. Going forward, once the scenaric analysis is complete, management
teams will discuss the lkely climate risks and opportunties to decide those most material
1o the business

The Risk Committee has considered the Group's climate-related nsks and opportunities
and has identified the following relevant timeframes:

Short term: 0-2 years
Medum term. 3-10 years
Long term: Beyond 10 years

Ervironment and Climate Change has been identified as a principal risk, although it is not
expected to have an impact on financial performance in the short term.

The Group has cormmissioned an external ESG adwvisory firm to support the Company
to better identify cimate-related nsks and opportunities on the organisation's business,
strategy and financial planning

Further detailed nsks and opportunities will be presented on completion of the scenario
analysis work In time for reporting in the FY24 Annual Report

The commissioned external ESG advisory firrm waill also help quantfy the impact of
clirate-related risks and opportunites on the arganisation's business, strategy and
financial planning.

The Risk Committee has been tasked with ensuring that the impacts of climate-related
risks and opportunties are assessed in the Group's business, strategy and financial
planning We will continue to develop this area throughout the year and provide updates
in future reports.

The Group has started 1o model climate-related scenanos and to assess the resiience
of the organisation’s strategy to these scenaros. It 1s considered that there 1s little or no
negative impact in the short term, and this 15 balanced with possible opportunties.

The Group incorporates various financial scenanoes In ts strategic modeling, Including
freight rates, commodity prices, and foreign exchange rates, In FY24, work will comrmence
to Incorporate climate change scenanos inte the Group's financial medeling and expects
to continue this work In future reporing years.

When this inual work is complete the Group wall be able to better quantfy the impacts and
assess the resiience of the Grougd's strategy. Updates will be provided in future reports
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R

P

Describe the organisation’s processes Partial

for identifying and assessing climate-
related risks
ONGOING nsk.
Describe the organisation’s precesses Partial
for managing climate-related risks
Describe how processes for Full

identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks are integrated
into the organisation’s overall

risk management

© Principal risks and uncertainties
on pages 47 to 63

During FY23 the Audit & Risk Comimittee, with support from the Risk Committee,
had responsibility for identifying, assessing and managing ctimate-related risks and
opportunities. The Audit & Risk Committee has responsibility for monitoring this as an

Governance Financial Statements

The Audit & Risk Cormmittee, with support from the Risk Committee, is responsible for
identifying, monitoring and managing cimate-related risks.

The processes described above are fully iIntegrated into the Group's overall risk
rmanagement processes

Disclosa the metrics used by the Non-

organisation to climate—related  compliant

risks and opportunities in line with its

strategy and risk management process

Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, if Partial
appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse gas

{“GHG™) emissions, and the related

risks

Describe the targets used by the Non-

organisation to manage climate- compliant doing so

related risks and opportunities and
performance against targets

Throughout FY24 we are working to develop a set of metrics to demonstrate how we
will assess our clmate-related risks. An update on this work will be published in future
Annual Reports. These metnics will be aligned to the Group's specific climate-related
rsks as well as the Environment pillar of the Group's EPSG Framework.

The Group has disclosed all mandatory Scope 1and Scope 2 GHG emissions.

The Group has also disclosed certain voluntary Scope 3 emissions, including the GHG
emissions due to employees working frorm home.

The Group has committed to reach net zero by 2050 in bne with the UK's objective for

The Group continues to offset its carbon footprint on an annual basis through our
Braemar Cffset platform in partnershio with CHOOOSE

Throughout FY24, we will develop the targets that will be used to manage clmate-
related risks and opportunites and performance aganst targets An update on this work
will be published in future Annual Reports.

In its EPSG framework, the Group has committed to aligning s climate-related targets to
certain references in the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs™).
The references that are relevant to cimate-related risks and opportunites are

SDG 8.4 Improve Resource Efficiency in Consumption and Production.
The Group is developing targets to improve the energy-efficiency of ts offices.

SDG 13.3 Improve education, awareness-talsing and human and Insthutional
capacity on climate change mitigation, adaptation, impact reduction and early

waming.

The Group is developing targets to raise awareness of climate change and mitigations in
our Industry amongst both our team and our clients.

'
R

As we journey through this process, we are becoming more
aware of both the risks associated with climate change, in
terms of the physical and regulatory effects and, also, the
opportunities this presents for a business like ours.

On the one hand, we know that clmate change regulation will
impact the seling and transportation of some of the goods

that we help our clients ship around the world, such as coal
Over time some nations will ban this fossll fuel from entering
therr country, and we expect a downturn of the amount that will
need to be transported over the long term.

On the other hand, we are presented with opportunities to
broker ships that directly support the transition to green energy
as well as for alternative goods needed for the green transition,
the increase In the renewables markets and auxiliary services
required to facilitate that, and chartenng voyages via zero
shipping routes, among others, We currently operate an offset
provision service via Braemar offset

Braemar Ple Annual Repoit and Accounts 2023

The recent change to regulation with shipping now Included
n the European market Emissions Trading Scheme ("EU ETS™)
presents both a short-term risk and offers cpportunities to
the market

On balance, we feel well prepared for both the possible risks
and opportunities for the business. Over the next reporting
year, we are developing climate scenarios and analysis based
on the short, medium and long term and according to the
Pars algned commitments of both 15 and 2 degree scenarios
Further detail on our climate-related financial rsk will be
disclosed as a result of this ongoing work.
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EPSG Report continued
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We continue to create
one global Braemar
experience across all
our departments and
offices by introducing
new, more agile,
systems, impeccable

Lf}ﬂ{e?;;;ez'cﬁ‘,g% brict 'f‘;‘e}g?i SN
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boeippipriteelieds feoern st teler ek

T T T P TR LI T SIS AV B S operations, and a
el e i balanced cor_porate
: e ;'i‘-{'«': iy structure. This will
! T support growth
; I A and make us
S more competitive

in retaining and
3 . , rewarding our current
; o ' S ' ' | talent, as well as

' S ' attracting talent for
the future.

Becki Mackay
Group Head of HR

Braemar Plc Annval Report and Accounts 2023
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Diverse talent development

We: retain our strategic focus on
recruitment and retention as well as
mitigating the nsk of losing highly
specialised people within a relatively
small ndustry. Shipbroking can be a job
for life, and we are proud that 56 many of
our people choose to stay with Braemar
for significant parts of ther nareer

Cur strategy 1s to maintain a compeling
value proposition for our employees, and
to be the employer of choice for top
talent and the talent of the future This
approach is already enabling us to hire
leading brokers from the indusgtry. Our
EPSG strategy, focused on facilitating
clmate-smart shipping, is creating
opportuntties to hire and train new talent
We know we need fo attract the talent
of the future, and we have created

a Trainee Broker Scheme to provide
opportunities for the next generabion

of shipbrokers and attract a greater
diversity of pecple, many of whom might
not have considered shipbroking as

a career

Kay Woods

LPG & Petrochemicals
desk for 35 years'

Kay initially joined a team of 10
on the LPG & Petrochemicals
desk, one of two women, and
she has seen many changes
over the years. ‘The sector

is far more regulated and
professional, and there are
many more women corming into
the industry, both in operations
and as brokers!

While the LPG & Petrochemicals
Desk is a smaller part of

the shipping world it can be
stressful. If something goes
wrong with a ship, such

as t running late, it can be
warth millions of dollars, so
relationships and trust are
critical, and Kay has built these
over many years.

1 Kay nitially joined Burbank, which was
later acquired by Braemar

The Trainee Broker Scheme is open to
anyone with the dnve and curiosity to
start a career in shipbroking. we are not
an industry which only hires graduates
or people with previous experence We
want to give jobs, training, and support
to pecple of any age or background with
the character, tenacity, and capability

to benefit from the job satisfaction.
personal growth, and long-term rewards
that come from being a shipbroker

Employee engagement

Our pecple have largely returned to
working in our offices, and we continue
to focus on creating a safe, healthy
working environment Qur offices are
increasingly ervircnmentally friendly, with
many of our teams engaging N recycling
waste and energy reduction activities.
We continue to support employees

with their mental health and overall
weli-being. The ongoing exercise to
benchmark employee remuneration and
review employee incentive packages

will be more easily achieved with the
Increased visibity of global pay and
benefits afforded by our new HR system

“ft's vital to be personable, to make
connections and find commonalities
with all kinds of people, to be
solutions-focused, and to gain

the trust of the charterers so you
can ring them in the middie of the
night to negotiate a compromise,
solve an issue, or deliver bad news.
it’s the refationships which make
things happen smoothly and keeps
bringing clients back to Braemar —
and leads to the mega-deals”

She uses her experience to support
trainees as they learn about the
world markets and how theyre
connected which, she says, often
changes their view of the world.
Covid was an eye-opener for many
with the realisation of just how many
products arrive by sea and the
impact of delays to shipping.

If Kay could have known 35
years age what she knows now,
she would have told herself she
was going down the right path:

Braemar Plec Annual Report and Accourts 2023
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Gender diversity

As at 31 December 2022 women
accounted for 23% of our global
workforce (2022 23%), with 2 female
and 4 male directors on the board

We reman committed to addressing
the gender imbalance across our
organisation, an integral part of our
EPSG strategy, and we look forward

to reporting our progress in this area
We are seeing more women Joining
the industry, and women are among
Braemar's longest-retained employees.
Our Trainee Broker Scherme 1s one of
the first actions we have taken to attract
more diverse talent to the industry.

“Shipping is dynamic, you're a
critical part of the world market,
working with different people in
many places. You're never bored,
there's always something to do or

solve, or new projects to work on’.

Kay Woods
LPG & Petrochemicals desk
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EPSG Report continued

Strengthening charity partnerships
In the coming year we will be engaging
our cmployees in reviewing and enhancing
our social and environmental charity
partnerships While we work towards
implementing a more strategic global
approach to social and environmental
partnerships, our offices have continued
to help our long-term charity partners,

as well as some new ones

We have enjoyed a long relationship with
shipping-related charities in September
our Deep Sea Tanker desk took part in
Mercy Ships’ Carge Day, donating their
commissions to provide free surgical
and medical care to some of the most
vuinerable people N sub-Saharan Africa

SRS IEIAR T

FTef i

3

One of our UK desks donated to the
Mission to Seafarers which provides
emotional and spintual services as well
as welfare and cmergency support
And through our tanker FFA IV with

GFI Group, we contributed to the BGC
Partners Charity Day which, every year
with the Cantor Fitzgerald Relef Fund,
‘commemorates friends and cofleagues
who perished on September 11, 2007

This year we supported the Valero
Beneftt for Children to raise funds for
children’s charities across the US And
our Specialised Tanker desk donated
a deal commission to the Turkey/Syna
earthguake relief appeal
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In December 2022, we created

an ‘Advent Calendar of Charities’

and donated a total of £25000 to
them Each day during December
we randormly selected a member

of staff who could decide where to
donate £1000, and on 24 December
£2000 The charties staff chose
included Floga who work in Greece
to aid understanding about chidhood
cancer, Human Appeal for their Gaza
Emergency Appeal, National Energy
Action for therr cost of Iming work

to help people who can't afford to
heat therr homes, as well as UNICEF,
Macmillan Cancer and several other
hospices

We also donated at least £5600 each
to more than 20 individual charities
which employees are passionate
about, ncluding the Alzheimer’s
Society, Cancer Research UK,
Dementia UK, Guide Dogs, RSPCA,
and WwH

Qur team in Singapore have made
donations, as well as volunteered therr
time, to support Willing Hearts for their
soup kitchen which distnbutes 7000
daily meais to over 70 locations, 365
days a year The team also donate to
and volunteer with Ronaid McDonald
House which enables families to stay
close to their hospitalised child at

na cost
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EPSG 1s overseen at the board level by
Elizabeth Gooceh, senior independent
non-executive director. Managing the
pusiness In an ethical manner is an
essential part of the ethos of Braemar
driven by both our CEO, lames Gundy,
and our Chairman, Nigel Payne, bath
refer to our EPSG commitments in therr
respective reports on pages b to 7 and
14 10 15 of this Annual Report

We set high standards for cur team and
give them clear frameworks and policies
within which to operate, as set out in our
Employee Handbook. This is supported
by an externally provided telephone

lIne to report any INcidents under our
whistlebiowing policy, and by the Group's
internal training programme which
covers key policies

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accourls 2023

Qur Anti-Meney Laundernng (“AML")
and Know Your Customer {"KYC")
policies and procedures form a key
component of Braermar’s governance
framework Qur Complance team
provides a Group-wide traning
program to help ensure cur employees
are aware and comply with all relevant
legal and regulatory oblgations
including our AML and KYC policies
and procedures.

We are committed 1o protecting
human rights and ensuring there is
no slavery or human trafficking in our
business or supply chan There s a
clear statement of our intent on our
website www. braesmarcom
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Non-Financial Information Statement

Environmental matters - Health, safety and environmental

Qur employees « Employee handbeok
« Whistleblowing
+ Health and safety

Social matters

Humah rights = Anti-slavery
+ GDPR

Anti-bribery and corruption - Anti-Bribery and Corruption
« Anti-Tax Evasion
+ Anti-Fraud

« Anti-Money Laundering/Know Your Customer
- Entertainment, Meals and Gifts

Our business model

Prinecipal risks — Risk
management

Non-financial key performance
indicators

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Refer 1o the EPSG Report on pages 34 tc 45
Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 tc 45
Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

For more information, refer to pages 8 to ©

For more information, refer to pages 47 to 53

Refer to page 21 for the non-financial key
performance indicators
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk management

Effective risk management forms an
ntegral part of how we operate. its
essential for delivering our strategic
objectives as well as protecting our
relationships and reputation

Risk awareness is a key element of
Braermar’s organisational cuiture at all
levels and 1s key N managing rnsks to our
pusiness, helping to ensuré the process
of risk identification, assessment and
respense Is embedded within daily
operational and functinnal Activiies
across the Group

The board 1s responsible for managing
the Group's nisk, overseeing the internal
control framework, and determining

the nature and extent of the principal
rnsks the Company is willing to take to
achieve its long- term objsctives The
Group's risk management and internal
control frameworks are continually
monitored and reviewed by the board
ana the Audit and Risk Committee.

with support from the Risk Committee,
The board is committed to mantaning
the highest standards of conduct in all
aspects of its business. Group polcies
and procedures have been designed to
ensure that the level of nsk to which the
Group s exposed is consistent with the
Group's risk appetite and aligned with
the Group's long-term strategy

Reporting to the Charr of the Audit and
Risk Committee and administrativety
to the Group Chief Financial Officer,
the Head of Intemal Audit and Risk
leads the Internal Audit and Risk
Management function

The Group's Risk Management approach
or framework INncorporates both
bottorm-up and top-down identification,
evaluation, and management of risks
Within cur framework

— Senior management have initial
responsibility for identifying,
monitoring. and updating business
risks; while

- Group IT, HR, Legal, Complance
and Finance management also
assess ther respective functions for
operational and functional nsks

The Group's Risk Management
framework is managed via an online
system which is accessible to the senior
management team and operational and
functional management teams globally.
The system'’s functionality has allowed
for enhanced monitoring and reporting
automation The system allows for:

- Group-wide real-time updating,

~ Distributicn and completion of
periodic internal control self-
assessment surveys,

~ Ongoing monitoring of risks and
mitigation activities at Group,
Operational and Functional levels, and

- Risk Management reporting at
Group, Regional, and Company
lecation levels,

The Group’s rsk management framework
considers both the Iikelhood and the
impact of identified risks materialsing
Risks are mitigated, where possible, by
the implementation of controi activities,
which are evaluated as part of the risk-
based internal audit plan to determine
their effectiveness in mitigating or
reducing nsk to acceptable levels

All i dentified nsks are aggregated and
reviewed 0 assess ther mpact on the
Group's strategic chjectives and the
resources reguired to manage them
effectively Principal rsks are aggregated
together with asscciated issues or areas
of uncertanty The extent of controls and
mitigation as well as the potential for a
material effect on the market value of
the Group are then assessed Inherent
nsks can be significant, but our control
processes and managerent actions
reduce the risk level.
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The risk management process evaluates
the timescale over which new or
emerging risks may occur. The risk
management process alsc considers
the potential mpact and likelihood of
risks, as well as the timescale in which
rnsks may occur. The outcome of this
process Is then reviewed with furthar
consideration and assessrment provided
by the Risk Committee, the Audit and
Risk Committee, and the board.

Oversight and evaluation of the
effectiveness of Braemar's risk
management framewaork s led by

the Group Chief Financial Officer,
supported by the Risk Committee whose
membership includes the Group Chief
Operating Officer, Company Secretary.
Head of Internal Audit and Risk, Head of
Complance, and representatives of other
functions and locations of the business.
The Risk Cornmittee monitors risks
regularly. taking into consideration the
appetite, tolerance, and potential impact
for specific nsks on the Group
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Principal risks

The principal risks which may impact the
Group's abilty to execute its strategic
objectives have changed since 2022
Three nsks previously disclosed as
principal risks have been removed with
two emerging nsls acded to the 2023
disclosure. The risks that follow, whilst
not exhaustive, are those princical

risks which we believe could have the
greatest impact on our business and
have been discussed at meetings

of the board, the Risk Committee

and the Audit and Risk Committee.

The board reviews thesg risks in the
knowledge that currently unknown,
non-existent or immatetal nsks could
turn out to be signficant in the future
and confirms that a robust assessment
has been performed The Audit and
Risk Cormmittee review and approve
the principal risks and any related
mitigation plans

Exacerbated by the ongoing conflict

in Ukraine, the increased significance
and prominence of sanctions and trade
restrictions have been assessed as

necessary to disclose separately as a
principal risk in its own right

As outlined In the 2022 Annual Accounts,
Braemar's primary medium-term
ambition is, through strategic hires and
acquisitions, to increase the size of the
business. This means that Integrating
and aligning new acquisitions is an area
of Increased focus of the operational and
financial functions of the Group

Three principal risks disclosed in

2022 have been omitted from the
current year's disclosure Whilst the
reiated risk has not been mitigated

in its entirety. they no longer reflect
the most signimcant nsk o which the
board considers the Group is exposed
to. These risks are namely ‘Change
Management’ ‘Financial capacity’ and
‘Major business disruption’.

Risk mitigation

The Group takes vanous measures

to mitigate risk Key steps in our risk
management process throughout the
yvear included

- Ongoing periodic review and updating
of policies and procedures, Including
AML and KYC, to enhance/strengthen

Group risk governance

J Top-down

i Cversight, identification,
assessment, and mitigation
of risk at Group level.

8

- Bottom-up .
i Identification, assessment

¢ and mitigation of risk across

' Braemar's operational and

! functional areas.

i'
1
i
|

Board of Directors

- Reviews and approves risk management and internal control systems.

- Determines the nature and extent of principal risks.

- Monitors exposures to ensure their nature and extent are aligned with Braemar's goals
and strategic objectives.

- Sets the tone for developing and embedding a nsk-aware mindset into Braemar’s
organisational culture.

v
[

Operational and functional business areas
- Performs risk identification and assessment across operational and functional areas.

Risk governance includes principal, operaticnal and emerging risks.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

the Group's govermance framework,
with ongoing monrtoring of employee
compliance by the Head of Internal
Audit & Risk and Head of Complance
A systern of internal checks and
authorisations, complemented by
Independent assurance activities
Usage of common finance, HR and
operations systems across the Group
supported by our IT team:
Succession planning and strategic
recrutment supported by the Group
HR team

Establshment of board-approved
Group budgets with ongoing
performance monitering against
budgets/reforecasts and independent
investigation of significant variances
Regular reporting of Treasury
management activity to the board

by the Group Chief Financial Officer.
(Note the Group does not enter
speculative treasury transactions }
Ongoing monitoring of contractual
nsk by the Group legal team
Operation of the Group's
whistleblowing procedure
Maintenance of appropriate
insurance cover

- Embeds risk mitigation and intermal controls menitoring across functional areas and regions.
~ Embeds risk awareness culture in day-to-day processes and operations.
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Increased o Decreased e No change NEW New

Group Risk Governance

Principal Risks

The directars have carried out an assessrent of the principal and emerging risks facing the Cormpany. The most signihcant nsks
to which the board considers the Group 1s exposed. based on the evaluation process described in the Group's Risk Management

Framework are set out below

e w ny

Sanctions and trade restrictions

Braemar operates in a
global landscape of trade
and financial sanctions
with a variety of associated
compliance requirements.

This has been assessed as a
new Principal Risk for the 2023
financial year.

Integration risk

As outlined in the 2022 Financial
Year, Braemar's primary medium-
terrn arnbition is, through strategic
hires and acquisitions, to increase
the size of the business.

Integrating and aligning any
new acquisition with the Group
poses various challenges

from an operational and
financial perspective.

This has been assessed as a
new Principal Risk for 2023
financial year.

Conducting business with sanctioned
entities, through sanctioned regions
and faciitating transport of sanctioned
goods will lead to non-compliance
with sanctioned regimes resulting

in financial penattes/fines and
reputaticnal darmage

Note

Increased scrutiny from regulatory
bodies and nsing geopolitical and
MACroeconomIC 1Issues, including the
continued Russia/Ukraine conflict has
Increased the potential mpact of rsks
assocated with breaches of sanctions
and trade restriction requirements

Inefficiencies and/or reduced
expected synergies realised after
ntegrating new acquisitions into the
Group and algning them with the
respective Group strategies

— Enhanced KYC procedures performed and
specialised legal team engage In constant
montonng of updates to applcable sanction
regimes and regulations.

NEW

- Technology sclutions used to optimise the
efficiency of sanction screening performed

- External assurance providers performing internal
audt reviews over the sanctions process and
providing recormmendations which management
ntend to implement in the current inancial year

- Performance of new business is montored through

regular dialogue with relevart business leaders NEW

- Anintegration strategy 1s monitored throughout the
varnous stages of an acguistion

- Complance and legal mecharisms in place to
ensure the purchase meets any relevant regulatory
requirements and the target companry algns
approprately wath the relevant Group valdes

- Prortisation of identified growth opportunties
to ensure tesources are appropniately alocated
to opportunities with the best potental return
on Investment

Loss of key personnel and weak organisational culture

Braemar is a people-based
business and people are vital to
its success.

Inadequate policies and reward
structures could incentivise
negative behaviours, create
internal conflict, lead to
reputational damage, and
contribute to failure in attracting
and for retaining skilled personnel.

Failure to adapt to, or align with,
market expectations, including

the offering of flexible or hybrid
working arrangements, could result
in the inability to attract and retain
skilled personnel.

Lack of appropriate consideration
of environmental and wider social
issues could also contribute to
the inability to attract and retain
skilled personnel.

Ermployee relatons claims/itigation/
tnbunals attnbuted to negatve
behaviours or actions, Increases the
potental for reputational damage
because of negative publicity 1IN the
public domain

Loss of key staff could result in
reduced revenue f former staff
atternpt to take contacts and
business with them The restrictive
covenants ncluded In employment
contracts help to mitigate this nsk

Strategic growth chjectives may not
be achieved If Braemar fals to attract
and retan skilled personnel

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accourts 2023

Ongoing review of polcies including Conflicts

of Interest, Code of Conduct, and the Employee
Handbook, to ensure behavioural expectations and
amployment practices for managers and employees
are clearly defined

Orgarsation structure changes ncluded the creation
of associate director roles to identfy key employees
and to better define progression opportunities

Ongoing developrment of a culture of engagement and
professional development, mcluding implementation of
performance management obyectives, clearly defined
pathways for career progression, and succession
planning at sericr management levels

Annual review of compensation with external
benchmarking helns to ensure remuneration packages
continue to be appropnate and competitive

Ongoing consideration of roles potentially surtable for
hybrd and flexible worlang arrangements
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Compliance with laws and regulations

Braemar generates revenues from
a global business that exposes
the Group to risks associated with
legal and regulatory requirements
in muktiple jurisdictions.

Currency fluctuations

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk because of a large
proportion of its revenue being
generated in US dollars while the
cost base is in muRtiple currencies.

Cybercrime/data security

Cybercrime could result in loss

of business assets or disruption
to the Group’s IT systems and its
business. Lack of appropriate data

security could result in loss of data.

Disruptive technology

Shipbroking is still largely a
business that is transacted via
personal relationships dependent
on quality service. Hence the

tisk of technoloyical change,
disintermediation and increased
customer demands for enhanced
technelogical offerings could
render aspects of our current
services obsolete, potentially
resulting in loss of customers.

Legal and regulatory breaches
could result in fines. sanctions being
nmpused v ou business, and the
loss of Braemar's ability to continue
operating

Fallure to meet all reporting obligations

could lead to reputational damage
which could then lead to loss of
revenuc and staff

A change n exchange rates could
result in a inancial gain or loss

Loss of service and associated loss
of revenue Reputational damage

Potential for loss of cash due to fraud

or phishing

Relationships could be devalued and
replaced by disruptive technology
platforms, resulting N increased
competition, conseguent price
reductions, and loss of revenue

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Ac counts 2023

Group-wide traning program te help ensure employec
awareness of, and complance with, all relevant legal
and regulatory obligations

- Braemar corperate governance framework,
—  Braerar nsk managerment methodology.

- Compliance with our policies, including our AML/
KYC policies” {enhanced} customer due diigence
requirernents, and

- Compllance with relevant laws & regulations,
ncluding anti-bribery and corruption regulations

Enhanced KYC procedures and ongoing mortonng
of complance with governance policies and legal/
regulatory requirernents across the Group

Cngoing monitoring to ensure NSUrance Cover IS
mairtaned at adequate levels

The board sets the treasury policy which details

the level of exposure the board 1s comfortable wath
and the Group hedges to the level stipulated in the
treasury policy Forward currency (US $) contracts arc
entered INto to mtigate the nsk of adverse currency
movements

Globally, cyber-attacks increased signficantly durnng
and post the COVID pandemic To address the
persistent threat, and to enhance secunty measures
already N place, Braemar has emicarked on a global
Cyber Security programme This programme includes
the mplementation of the NIST Cyber Securnty
Framework and ISO 27001 as Bracmar's controls
catalogue Our Secunty Operations Centre 1s fully
aperational with 24/7 monitoring and coverage

Investment in technelogy through partnenng with best-
in-class providers, such as Zuma Labs, has effectively
dfferentated Braemar

Ongomng modernisation of our intrastructure to allow
for focus on INnnovation and strategic cirection

(v
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Environment and climate change

Seaborne transportation is
estimated to create approximately
3% of the worlds carbon emissions
and there will be increased
pressure to reduce that in future
years. Failure to monitor and
address the risks associated with
that reduction process could result
in loss of revenue for Braemar and
its customers and counterparties.

The Group's P&L and hguidity could
be negatively mpacted f customers
are losl as a result of Braemar not
keeping pace with our peers and
ndustry best-practice

Non-comphance with regulations or
disclosure reguirernents could result in
fines or penaties

Faulure to approprately monitor
and mitigate these rnsks could
lead to Braemar suffering senous
tepulativnal darmage

Note:

Management does not expect
climate-related risks to have a material
Impact on the Group's short-terrn
financial performance

Geopolitical and macroeconomic

Braemar’'s business is reliant on
global trade flows and as such

may be negatively impacted by
geopolitical and/or macroeconomic
issues, such as changes in crude
oil price, restrictions in global trade
due to pandemics such as COVID,
sanctions, and changes in supply
and demand.

A downturn in the world ecanomy
could affect transaction volumes,
resutting In reduced revenue

Changes In shipping rates and/

or changes in the demard or
pricing of commodities could affect
supply actvity

Note:

The continued conflict between
Russia and Ukraire and related global
sanctions has Increased the potential
mpact of nsks asscciated with both
geopolitical and/or macroeconomic
1ssues and complance with relevant
laws and regulations

Braemar Plc Annual Keport and Accounts 2023
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bos Increased o Decreased e No change NEW New

Investrment In the offshore renewables market and
technology to allow the Group and 1its clients to offset
carbon emissions

Ongoing developrment of the EPSG strategy
which allows the Group to monitor and report on
envirenmental and cimate-related risks

Diversification on a sector and geographic basts
reduces dependency on indvidual business areas

Ongoing maonitorng to ensure the Group 18
appropriately resourced across s activities and
gecgraphies

Ongaing managemeant of costs based on current and
reasonably foreseeable market condticns

Enhanced KYC procedures and ongoing monitoring of
compliance with governance policies, sanctions, and
other legal/regulatory requirernents across the Group
to help ensure laws and regulatons are not breached

Braemar’s diverse service offering, led by experts in
therr fields means the Group s in the est position 1o
find new opportunities in volatle market conditions anad
able to take advantage of market turnarounds

Financial Statements

Eai
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

internal audit

The Group's Internal audit function is
monitored and reviewed by the Audit
Committee, to ensure that the Group's
rsk management and internal contrels
processes are working effectively.

A detaled description of the Group's
internal audit functicn can be found on
page 64 of this Annual Report

.

The Group generated strong underlying
operational cash flow In the year of
E221m, up from £205m in FY22, and has
continued to do so In the first months of
trading in the current year The Group’s
Balance Sheet has strengthened
significantly due to the strong trading
and cash receipts and is In a stronger
position than at February 2022, with

net bank cash of £69m (2022 net

bank debt £93m) This is despite the
investments that were made towards
the end of the year in the new office n
Madrid and the acquisition of Southport
Maritime in the US that total £7.3m -
£13m upfront for the new Madnd desk.
and £8m for Southport. Therefore, the
directors beleve that the Group s well
positioned to manage its risks Whilst
there are still uncertainties facing the
business INclucing those related to the
conflict in the Ukraine, they are nothing
ke those that were the case In the
previous twe years due to the Cowvid
disruptions.

A rmore detalled analysis of the rnsks
facing the business 1s outlned in

Note 1 {see pages 104 to 108) The
analysis concludes that there 1s no
material uncertainty relating to going
concern, based on cash flow forecast
for a 16-month pericd from the signing of
these accounts to 28 February 2025 The
directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and Group have
adeqguate resources to continue to trade
for twelve months from the date of the
approval of these Financial Staternents
and for this reason they continue tc
adopt the going concern basis in
preparng the Financial Statements

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the directors have
assessed the prospects of the Group
over a penod of four years, which they
believe 1s an appropriate period based
on lhe Groug's current financial position,
banking facilities, budgets and forecasts,
strategy. principal risks, and exposure to
potentially volatile market forces

Inrecent years and particularly during the
COVID pandernic, the Group's bankers,
HSBC, have been highly supportive and
allowed relaxations of covenants to give
the board the tme to make alternative
plans to ensure sufficient lguidity 1s
available to continue the Group's plans.
Those relaxations of covenant levels
were never In fact required and the
Group traded comfortably within the
covenants relating to the facility during
the last financial year and is confident
that it will continue to do so.

During the year, the directors were
successful in renewing facilities with
HSBC with very similar terms to the
previous one that expires in the first
instance N Novermber 2025 but that
may be extended with lender approval
by a further cne or two years giving a
maximum duration until Novernber 2027
More detall can be found in Note 110 the
Financial Staterments on pages 104 to
106 of this Annual Report. The viability
assessment has been carned out over a
four-year pened from the balance sheet
date to 28 February 2027, by which tme
new barkng facilities will need to have
been conciuded It therefore assumes
that similar banking facilities will be made
available to the Group for the whole of
this time The directors’ assessment
considers those current facility terms
and Includes a review of the financial
impact of significant adverse scenarios
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In generating those scenarios,
consideration was also given to the risks
to the business that have been identified
in this Annual Report on pages 47 to 51
as new of INcreasing.

Sanctions and trade restrictions —
Braemar operates in a global landscape
of international and financial sanctions
with a variety of asscciated compliance
requiremnents. This has been assessed
as a new Principal Risk for 2023
financial year. Although the degree of
due dilgence and legal reviews has
increased in the period due 1o the
enhanced sanctions regime resulting
from the Ukraine war, there 1s little
evidence of reduced volumes or values
of commissions as a result

Integration risk — the business made
an acquisition in the US during the year
and set up a new office in Madrd, in
Spain toward the end of last year Itis
still early days but there 15 no evidence
currently of weaker revenues and profits
from those offices than forecast, Indeed
both have traded well since coming nto
Brasmar ownershig,

Compliance with laws and
regulation - the risks tc the business
caused by the increasing degree of
sanctions resulting from the conflict

in the Ukrane have clearly increased
over the last six months but have yet
to manifest itself In reduced revenues
Exposure to sanctioned business 1sm't
rmatenal to the Group and experience
to date suggests that although freight
patterns are changing as a result,
overall volumes are not declining. The
Group also has a number of reporting
okhgations that must be met During
2023, the Group was late in delivering
its Annual Report and accounts,
however, this has not led to a matenal
loss of revenuc or staft. (he Group is
mplementing measures to prevent any
aelays reoccurnng and acknowledges
that any future delays could have an
impact on the reputaticn of the Group.
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Environment and climate change -
environmental and clmate change
factors will have a significant long-tenm
impact on the Shipping industry and
pose a risk to the Group If they aren’t
recognised and adapted to In the short
to medium lermn, Lhese changes wil
also provide opportunities to provide
additional support to the iIndustry and
for additional revenue gereraticn The
longer-term risks are not expected to
have an iImpact on the business dunng
the perod under review.

Geopolitical and macroeconomic —
similar to the compliance with laws

and regulation risk the conflict in the
Ukraine war raised the risk level due

to geopohtical and macroeconomic

nsk with a resuttant glebal downturn

or recession likely to have a negative
impact on the business Heightened
tensions N other parts of the world such
as Taiwan could alsc lead to further
disruption, however the expenence to
date 1s that the shipping market volatility
has if anything increased revenue
generation rather than reduced it

Revenue was chosen as the main
variable in generating the adverse
scenarios as there are no costs of sale
within the business and the remaining
costs are largely fixed or made up of
bonus pools which will vary in ine with
the levels of revenue Set against those
falls in revenue is the Ikely effectiveness
of potential mitigations that are
reascnably belleved to be availlable to
the Group over this period

In considering these potental
mitigations, the board was mindful

of its duties under Section 172 of the
Companes Act 2008 and considered
the potentially competing interests of
different stakeholder groups and the
potential long-term consequences of
the actions, including the use of funds
for employee remuneration (and the rolg
this plays in the retention of staff), paying
dividends, making investments and
repaying det.

The assessment iInvolves the production
of cash flow forecasts designed to
assess the abilty of the Group to
operate both within the banking facility
covenants and Iquidity headroom The
main downside sensitivities used were
annual revenue reductions of 75% and
15% from October 2023 to Decemiser
2024 and stabilised thereafter Under the
75% cases the board concluded that
with only very minor cost-saving or cash
management mitigations avalable to i,
the Group could continue to operate
under the current banking facilities over
the three- year perod. Under the 15%
case certan additional cost saving and
cash mitigation actions were reguired to
allow the Group to continue to operate
within the current banking facilities, all of
which were within the board's control

The assessment also incorporated a
‘reverse stress test” which was designed
to identify scenarios under which the
Group's banking facilities would be
nadequate 1o continue as a going
concern despite using all the mitigating
options avalable. The result of this test
shows that all available mitgations
would be exhausted, and faciltes
breached If there was approximately

a 35% decrease in forecast revenue
frorn Qctober 2023 through to
December 2024

The directors have concluded that whilst
future outcomes cannct be guaranteed
or predicted with certainty the revenue
and operating margin scenaros that
would lead tc such a failure are highly
unlikely This is especially so In the hght
of current trading where revenues are
running in line with forecasts, They also
noted that the facility headroom in terms
of liguidity remained adegquate even
under the reverse stress test conditions
and that it was the leverage covenant
which would be breached f revenue

felt by more than 35% and then only
during 2024,
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There 1s no evidence indicating that
revenues will fall to levels indicated in this
test and that the likelhood is therefore
remote and that there is therefore no
material uncertainty in this regard, nor
any iImpact on the basis of preparation
of the Financial Statements There is also
a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue In operaton and
meet ts labilities as they fall due over the
next three financial years.

This Strategic Report was approved on
behalf of the board on 15 Novermber 2023

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer
15 November 2023
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Strategic Report

Corporate Governance Report

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the board of directors,

| am delghted to present the Corporate
Governance Report which detalls the
Company's governance arrangements,
the cperation of the board and its
Committees and how the board
discharged its responsibilities during
the year

Braemar maintains a robust governance
framewcrk, designed to support the
Company's long-term strategy and be

in alignment with the Company’s values
and cufture The board remains highty
engaged in fulfiling its role of leading

the Company and overseeng the
governance arrangements across the
Group and continues to be committed to
maintaning a high standard of corporate
governance, Throughout the financial year
ended 28 February 2023, the Company
fully compiled with all the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code
("Code"), except for provision 11 and we
have provided a full explanation in the
board composttion and changes section
below, the board 1s now fully compliant
with provision 1

Governance is a key pillar of our
Environment, People. Social and
Governance “EPSG” framework and a
high standard of corporate governance
1s essential for the Group to succeed n
delverng its strategy and 1s integral to
enhancing tts reputation and maintaining
the trust of its sharehaolders, clents,
empioyees and other stakeholders. More
information on our EPSG framework

can be found on pages 34 to 45 of this
Annual Repaort,

This Corporate Govermnance report
comprises this Introduction (pages 55 t©
57}, the Audit & Risk Committee Report
on pages 80 Lo G4, the Nurnination
Committee Report on page 6, tegether
with the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 66 to 85. describes how the
hoard and its Committees operate and
how the Company has appled the Code
cdunng the year ended 28 February 2023

Board composition and changes
The board consists of the non-executive
Chairman, the Group Chief Executive
Officer, the Group Chief Cperating
Officer, the Group Chief Financial Officer
and three Independent non-executive
directors. The Chairman leads the

board and I1s responsible for its cverall
effectiveness in drrecting the Company,
taking intc accourt the interests of

the Company's vanous stakehclders
The Group Chief Executive Officer

leads the executive management in

the development of strategy and the
management of all aspects of the
perfermance and operations of the
Company and its subsicianes. We

have a strong board who bring diverse
experence and personal skillsets,

please refer to the skills section in the
director biographies for more detall on
each director's skills and experience. An
mnternat board performance review was
undertaken in 2022 which concluded that
the board continues to operate effectively
with each director contributing positively
to the board’s overall effectiveness

Lesley Watkins stepped down from the
board with effect frorm 31 March 2022
Stephen Kunzer stepped down frorm the
board with effect from 31 January 2023
to take up A CEQ position at Lila Global in
Dubai. The board was pieased to welcorme
Cat Valenting as a non-execulive director
with effect from 18 May 2023. Cat 1s a
communicalions professional with over
25 years' expernence, advising quoted
and privately-owned companies on
investor and corporate communications
She has extensive knowledge of the
small-cap growth companies’ market
and considerable M&A transactional
experence, having advised a broad range
of chents on both AIM and the Main
Market Cat's extensive experience has
added considerable value to the board
On Cat's appointrment to the board. she
was also apponted to the Remuneration
Committee and Audit & Risk Committee.
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Provision 11 of the Code states that at
least half of the board, excluding the charr,
should be independent non-executive
directors As the board had Iittle prior
notice of Stephen's departure to take up
a CEO position at Lila Giobal in Dubai,
for a short time between Stephen's
departure and Cat’s appointment,

while the recrutment process was
underway, the board was not compliant
with provision 1l though this was swiftly
rectified following Cat's appointment
Further detall on the appointment
process can e found in the Nomination
Committee Report

Further to the anncuncement on 20
June 2023, Grant Foley joined the board
as Group Chief Financial Officer with
effect from 1 August 2023, more detall
on his appointment can be found in my
Statement on pages 5to 7

The board has decided to voluntanty
disclose aganst the targets set out In the
new Listing Rule requirements, the targets
cictate that

- at least 40% of the board should
be women;

— atleast one of the senior board
postions (Char, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer or senior
independent director} should be
a woman; and

- at least one member of the board
should be from an ethnic minority
background, excluding white ethnic
groups {as categorised by the Office
for National Statistics).

The board currently meets the first two
targets, with 42% of the directors being
women and Elizabeth Gooch as the
senior independent director.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The non-executive directors, none of
whom has ever fulfiled an executive

role within the Company, are appointed
for an initial three-year term subject to
annual re-election at the Annual General
Meeting in accordance with the Code
Prior to making director appointments,
the boad (supported ly the Nomination
Committee) considers other significant
drector appointments to assess whether
the candidate will have sufficient time to
undertake their role effectively. The board
has considered the other commitrments
of the non-executive directors and

the board continues to beleve that all
non-executive directors have suffiicient
time to continue undertaking ther roles
effectively. The non-executve directors
are responsiple for constructively
challenging and scrutinising the strategies
and performance of the executive
drectors using their independence and
perspectives gainaed from thelr diverse
expenences, as well as having broader
oversight of the Group through the work
of the board and its Committees

Biographies of current board members,
together with infornnation on ther

skills, experience and their external
appontments, are included in this
Corporate Governance Report. In
lanuary 2023, the board appointed
Rebecca-Joy Wekwete as Company
Secretary All directors have access to
the Company Secretary for advice on all
governance matters to help ensure that
the board is able to discharge its duties
and function effectively and efficiently
The Company Secretary ensures that
the board receives the financial and
operaticnal information they require to
enable them to appropriately discharge
their duties and regponsibilbes and
crrculates board papers electronically

in advance of meetings. Directors may
also seek independent advice at the
Company’s expense where needed

The board met 15 times dunng the year
{FY22 15} and the attendance by each of
the Directors is set out below.

Attended
Non-executive Directors
Elizabeth Gooch 1515
Stephen Kunzer' 1243
Joanne Lake?® 1445
Nigel Payne 13/16°
Lesley Watkins® 1/1
Executive Directors
Nichclas Stone 15/16
Jarmes Gundy 1515
Tris Simmends 12/15

1 Stephen Kunzer left the board on
31January 2023

2 Joarne Lake |joned the board with eftect from
1 March 2022

3 Ir Nigel's absence, the meetings were chared
by loanne Lake

4 Lesley Watkins left the board or 31 Marcn 2022

Board committees

The board has three standing
Committees. Audit & Risk, Nomination
and Remuneration. Each of the board
Committees comprnses solely of
independent non-executive directors
The composition and responsibilities

of the board Committees are set out

in each cf the Committee reports, on
pagses 60 to 85 of this Annual Report
The Remuneration Committee Report
on pages 66 1o 85 of this Annual Report
1s thcorporated into this Corporate
Governance Report by reference The
terms of reference for each of the
Committees can be found in the Investor
section of the Company’s website

The Group also has an Executive
Cormmittee 1o support the Group
Chief Executive Officer with the day-
to-day rmanagement ot the Group
and the development and execution
of the Group's strategy The Executive
Committee comprises the thiee
executive drrectors

Braemar Plc Annual Repoit and Accourts 2023

The Group also has a Risk Committee.
The Risk Committee reports to the
Audtt & Risk Committee on matters
inchiding. the nsk management
activities. sk appetite, emerging nsks
and other changes to the risk matrix,
the worle Of the Internal audit function,
and the day-to-day monitoring of the
Group's risk management framewaocrk

It comprises the Group Chief Financial
Officer, Group Chief Operating Officer,
Company Secretary, Group Financial
Contrcller, Group Head of HR, Managing
Director (Singapore), Group Director

of Digital Transformation & IT and the
Group Head of Compliance The Chair
of the Audit & Risk Committee has a
standing invitation to attend meetings
of the Risk Committee and other
colleagues are invited from time to time
to provide additional input on the Group's
operatiens and potential sk exposure
where considered appropriate

Risk management, compliance
and effective controls

The directors have a duty to the
Company’s shareholders to ensure that
the information presented to them s fair,
balanced, understandable, and provides
shareholders with the necessary
nfermation to assess the Company’s
position, performance, business model
and strategy. Further details of the
directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the Company's Financial Statements

are set out in the statement of directors’
responsiblities on pages 88 to 89 of this
Annual Report

In fulfillng ts responsibilties, the

board has established procedures for
identifying and evaluating any risks
associated with its strategic cbjectives
{including both emerging and principal
risks) and considering how those risks
can be managed effectively. The Aucdlit
& Risk Committee 1s responsible for
the independent review and challenge
of the adequacy and effectiveness

of the Company’s approach to risk
management and reports its findings to
the board.



57

The Audit & Risk Committee 1s
supported by the Risk Committee

and the Internal Audit function More
inforrmation on the work of the Audit &
Risk Committee and the Internal Audit
function can be found in the Audit & Risk
Committee Report on pages 60 to 64 of
this Annual Report, and more information
on the Company’s risk management
processes, INcluding a summary of the
principal risks facing the Group and the
procedures N place to identify emerging
rnsks, I1s set out on pages 47 10 53 of this
Annual Report.

Culture and values

The Company’s EPSG framewaork
recoghises the three pillars of
environmental, social, and governance
that have become the widespread
definition of ESG, with the addition of a
fourth pillar to recognise the people that
are the foundation of our business and
are integral to the communities we live
and work In. As part of this framework,
Braemar remains committed to providing
Its services to the highest standards
and operating ethically, lawfully and with
professional Integnty at all tmes. The
framework enables the Company to
foster a culture and operating practices
that incorporate our values We believe
that this will support the Group wath its
strategy to grow the Braemar brand in
an increasing number of global markets
More information on our culture and
values, what action has been taken
during the year to ensure that policies,
practices and behaviour across the
Group are aligned with them, how we
engage with, invest in and reward our
workforce, and our commitment to
diversity and inclusion can all be found
In the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45
of this Annual Report.
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Shareholder relations

The beard recognises the importance
of maintaining good communication
with key stakeholders of the Company’s
business and taking the interests of
those stakeholders into consideration In
its decision-making. Key stakeholders of
the Company include its shareholders,
with whom the board seeks 1o engage
with regularly in order to fulfil its duties
under Section 172 of the Companies Act
2006 The Company follows an active
nvestor relatons programme carried
out mostly through regular meetings of
the Group Chief Executive Officer and
the Group Chief Financial Cfficer with
existing and potential Investors following
the announcements of the Interim and
preliminary full year results of the Group

The Company has also crganised
various opportunities and forums
throughout the year to enable existing
and prospective investors to hear more
from the executive directors on the
business and its strategy. From time to
time, the non-executive directors and the
non-executive Chairman will aiso consult
with the Company’s major shareholders.
Feedback from the Company's
shareholders is also received through the
Group's corporate broker and corporate
affarrs team

In accordance with legal and regulatory
requirements. the Company ensures
that shareholders are kept updated on
matenal information, especially that of a
potentially prnce sensitive nature, as soon
as possible This is done via corporate
announcements which are made
avalable on the Company’s website and
through announcements to the market
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The Company encourages participation
at its AGM whera each resolution 1s
separately put to the mesting for a vote,
The Company notes that at last year’s
AGM, all resolutions proposed were
passed with the requisite majorties

of votes The Direclors’ Remuneration
Report received more than 20% of

the votes against, detail on the action
taken to understand the reasons behnd
the result are set out In the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Internal independent investigation
Asg announced on 26 June 2023, the board
commenced an internal independent
nvestigation inte an histoncal transaction
dating back to 2013. The investigation was
overseen by an Investigation Cormmittee
chaired by myself and comprised the:
independent non-executive directors

The investigation was conducted by FRP
Advisory Trading Limited, an independent
specialst forensic accounting firm, and
ndependent external counsel Afthough
the investigation was complex, it was
comprehensive and uftimately focused on
a review of several transactions between
2008 and 2013,

The independent Investigation has now
been completed The board and the
Group have acted promptly to address
the process and control areas that were
identified as requiring iImprovement,
including taking key remedial actions and
the necessary steps to comply with the
Group’s legal and regulatory obligations.
The board is committed to maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance
and will ensure the remedial actions are
tracked through to completion

Nigel Payne
Chairman
15 November 2023
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James Gundy
Group Chief Executive
Officer

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial
Officer

Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Operating
Officer

Appointment date

1January 2021

1 August 2023

1 August 2021

Backgreund and
relevant experience

James has over 35 years’
Shipbroking experence
specialising in Tankers and
Sale and Purchase/New
bulding projects He joned

the Company in 2014 as

Chief Executive Cfficer of
Shipbroking following the
merger of Braemar Plc and
ACM Shipping Group Plc, where
James was the Chief Executive
Officer of ACM Shipping

James was an integral part of
the successful integration of
the two businesses which led
to his appointment as Group
Chief Executive Officer i

Grant has over 26 years'
experience N leading publc
and prvate financial services
and technology busingsses

He joined the Company from
ClearScore As Chief Financial
Officer at ClearScore, he drove
signihcant improvements
across the finance function,
Implementing new systems,
processes and reporting as
the business scaled Grant

also has additional transaction
experience, and his other roles
have included CMC Markets Plc
where, as Group Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Operating

Tris has over 30 years'
experience in the commeodities
Inclustry including 14 years

at GFl Group where he
became Head of European
Commoadities Tns founded
Atlantic Brokers in 2013 which
was sold to Braemar Plc n
2018 Since the acguisition in
2018, Tnis held the position of
Managing Director of Braemar's
derivative brokerage business
and he was appointed as
Group Chief Operating Officer
in August 2021

Committee
Memberships

January 202t Officer, he was mnstrumenital in
the company’s successful PG
None None None

Skills

Shipbroking, leadership, mergers
& acquisitions, business
development, sales, marketing,
Investor relations, strategy

Finance, investor relations,
mergers & acquisitions, strategy
and risk management

Mergers & acquisitions,
business development,
cormpliance and sales

External
appointments

None

Braemar Plc Annual Repoit and Accounts, 2023

None

None
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The Chairman leads the board and is responsible for its overall effectiveness in directing the
Company, taking into account the interests of the Company’s various stakeholders. The Group
Chief Executive Officer ieads the executive and divisicnal management in the development of
strategy and the management of all aspects of the performance and operations of the Company

and its subsidiaries.

Nigel Payne
Chairman of the Board

Elizabeth Gooch MBE
Non-executive Director
& Senior Independent
Director irom 1 apri 2022)

Joanne Lake
Non-executive Director

Cat Valentine
Non-executive Director

1 May 201

1 August 2021

1 March 2022

16 May 2023

Nigel joined the Company as
nor-execttive Chairman in May
2021 Nigel has a proven record
of enhancing shareholder value
with over 30 years’ expenence
on nternatonal public and
private boards both as an
executive and non-executive
director. Nigel's board roles
nclude organisations such

as Sportingbet plc, Gateley
Heldings ple, Sun International
(JSE), BlueBet pty (ASX),
GetBusy plc, Ascot Racecourse
Betting and Gaming hmited, EG
Solutions plc, Stride Gaming
plc, Hangar8 plc, Kwalee ftd
and Green Man Gaming ltd.
Nigel is a qualfied Chartered
Accountant

Elzabxeth has over 18 years’
experience 1N governance,
compliance and financial
reporting of publicly Isted
companies, having founded
and run EG Solutions plc

Elzabeth works with founders
of UK Tech Startups and
Scaleups to heip them grow
and scale ther businesses
She 1s an angel Investor, non-
executive director and Mentor
to tech companies in a wide
range of sectors inchluding
secure messaging, cyber
security, artificial inteligence,
robotic process automation
and e-commerce.

Joanne has over 30 years'
expenence in financial and
professional services - both in
investrment banking, with firms
including Panmure Gordon,
Evolution Securities and
Willams de Broe, and in audit
and business adwvisory services
with Price Waterhouse Joanne
15 a chartered accountant and
fellow of the Chartered Institute
for Securities & Ihvestment

Cat was appointed to

the board in May 2023

She 1s a communications
professional with over 25
years expernence, advising
smal cap growth companes
on Investor and corporate
communicatons She joined
the strategic communicatons
advisory business, Belvedere
Communications, In 2017, where
she i1s director and co-owner

Chair of the Normination
Committee

Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

Member of the Nommation and
Audt & Risk Cornmittees

Chair of the Audit & Risk
Committee

Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Mermber of the Audit &
Risk Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Leadership, strategy, business
development, mergers and
acguistions, Investor relations,
finance and governance

Governance, complance,
financial reporting, investor
relatons, equity fundraising

Capital markets, equity
fundraising, mergers &
acquisitions, strategy and
growth companies

Corporate communications,
investor and media refations,
equity capital markets, and

organisational developrment

Non-executive Chairman of
Gateley Holdings Plc and Green
Man Gaming Ltd

Non-executive director of Sun
International Ltd, GetBusy pic,
Ascot Racecourse Betting
and Garning Ltd, Kwalee Ltd
and Blue Bet pty

Director of Turnkey Group

(UK Holdings) Limited and
Howarths HR and Employment
Law Limited
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Non-executive Charr of Made
Tech Group Pic

Non-executive director and
Senor Independent drector
of Henry Boot Plc

MNeon-executive director

of Gateley {Holdings} Plc, Pollen
Street Plc and Morson Group
Limited

Director of Behedere
Communications
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The Committee name was changed

to the ‘Audit & Risk Committeg’ to
explictly reflect the Committee’s nsk
management oversight responsibilities.
The Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors
and its terms of reference can be

found in the Investors section of the
Company’s website The Committee

is chared by ncn-executive director
Joanne Lake, who was appointed to the
beard with effect from 1 March 2022
and succeeded Lesley Watkins as Chair
of the Committee, following Lesley's
departure on 31 March 2022 Joanne 1s a
highly expenenced chartered accountant
with a strong financial background and
with the complementary skills of the
other members, continues to ensure
that the Committee has a sufficient

level of both financial and relevant
sector experience With respect to other
membership changes, Stephen Kunzer
left the Committee on 31 January 2023
Cat Vaientine joined the Committee upon
her appointment te the board on 16 May
2023. The gualiications and experience
of the members of the Committee can
be found In the director biographies on
pages 58 to &9 of this Annual Report

The overall role of the Audit & Risk
Committee (the “Committee”) during
the financial year was largely
unchanged from previous years.

Only members of the Committee had
the right to attend meetings however,
standing invitations were extended to
the Chairman, Group Chief Executive
Officer, Group Chief Operating Officer,
Group Chief Financial Officer, Compary
Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and
Risk Management and representatives
of the external auditor. The Company
Secretary acted as secretary to the
Commitiee. The internal and external
auditors attended Committee meetings
and pericdically met in private with the
Committee Charr to discuss matters
relating to the Commiittee’'s remit and
issues arising from their work. The
Committee held nine meetings during
the year, the attendance of which can
be found to the left

The key function of the Committee

is 10 address the following specific
responsibilities, while adapting its
activities as appropriate tc address
changing priorities within the business:

-~ Financial reporting. reviewing the
published half-year and annual
Financial Statements and reports,
and any other formal announcement
relating to the Group's financial
performance, and advising the
board on whether such information
represents a far, balanced and
understandable assessment
of the Company’s positicn and
prospects, monitorng compllance
with relevant statutory reporting
and Isting requirements; reviewing
and considering any changes
in accounting standards; and
cansidering the suitability of, and any
changes to, accounting policies used
by the Group, ncluding the use of
estimates and Judgements.

- Internal control and risk management:

reviewing the adequacy of the
Group’s internal controls: assisting
the board In conductng a robust
assessment of the Company's
emerging and principal risks,

and moniternng the scape and
effectiveness of the activiies of the
Groug’s internal audit activities in the
context of the Group's overall nsk
management framework.
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— As part of this responsibility, the
Committee receives reports from the
Risk Committee and regularly reviews
the Group's compliance polictes and
procedures, including those relating
to whistleblowing, the prevention of
bribery, corruption and fraud, and the
Group's KYC processes.

- Reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of the external audit
process and the independence of
the external auditor: conducting the
tender process to appoint an external
auditor and making recommendations
to the beard on the appointment,
reappointrment and removal of the
external auditor; planning with the
external auditor the half-year review
and full-year audit programme,
inclucing agreement as to the nature
and scope of the external audit as
well as the terms of remuneration in
the context of the overall audit plan,
monitoring the ongeing effectiveness
of the external auditor, monitorng the
objectiveness and independence of
the external auditor, and approving
and monitoring any non-audit
services undertaken by the external
auditor, together with the level of non-
audit fees

The following secticns describe the work
of the Committee during the year ended
28 February 2023

Review of Financial Statements
The Committee monitors the integrity
of the Coempany’s Financial Statemerts
and has reviewed the presentation of the
Group's iIntenm and annual results As
part of this review, it considered matters
raised by the Group Chief Financial
Officer, together with reports presented
by the external auditor summarising

the findings of their annual audit and
interirn reviews.
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The key areas of estimates and
Jjudgements considered for the year
ended 28 February 2023 are

HENL RS

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is
irmpaired requires an estimaton of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which these assets have been
allocated The value-in-use calculation
estimates the present value of future
cash flows expected to anse for the
cash-generating unit The key estimates
are therefore the selection of suitable
discount rates and the estimaticn

of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units {"\CGU")
depending on the specific risks and

the anticipated economic and market
conditions related to each cash-
generating unit Climate change nsk has
been taken intc account In determinmg
the underfying inputs used in calculations
used for Impairment reviews and 1s not
considered to have a material impact on
the value-In-use calculations.

The Committee considered the work
dene to support the discount rate, the
growth assumptions and the potential
impact of chmate change and are
satisfied these estimates are apprognate.
The result of this work Indicated that the
Geodwill relating to the acquisition of
Naves in 2017 was impaired and further
work was carried out to determine the
extent of that iImpairment

Following the completion of this work,
the Committee concluded that an
mpairment of £81 milion was required to
bring the carrying value into line with the
value in use. This work 1s described In
Note 10 to these Financial Statemonts

Acquisition accounting

Following the acquisition ol Southport
Mantime in December 2022, the: far
values of the assets and labilities
acgured at the acquisiton date were
estimated with the support of a third-
party expert valuer This valuation

of acquired intangibles 1s subject to
estimation of future cash flows and
the discount rate applied to them.
Determination of the useful economic
lives of ntangible assets requires
assumptions abxout future market
trends and future risk of replacement or
obsolescence of those assets

Strategic Report

The Committee reviewed the work of the
third-party expert, the forecast cashflows
and the discount rate apphed and are
satisfied that they are appropriate The
consideration 1s beng treated as post
combyination remuneration expense due
to the requirement for the recipionts

to continue working for the business

for a 3-year pericd As a result of the
purchase price not being treated as
consideration, the Committee was
satisfied that the approprate treatment
was to recognise a gain on bargain
purchase ansing from the recognition of
the net assets acquired.

Fair value of VertomCory

contingent consideration

The estimate at the balance sheet date
of the far value of the earnout payments
15 £14 million, an increase of £01 milion
from the estimate in the previocus year.
The fair value of the earncut payments
involves two critical estimates, the

future profitability of the combined
business and the discount rate used

to calculate the net present value The
future profitability forecasts are based
on an updated business plan prepared
by the combmned VertomCory business
following the first ten months of trading
as a combined entty The discount rate
was used to calculate the net present
value which was based on the credit risk
of Vertom Agencies BV following a credit
check performed by management

The Committee reviewed the
assumpticns on future profitability and
considered the most recent budget
provided by the combined VertomCory
business. The Committee concluded
that management’s estmates are
appropriate and that the carrying value
of the earnout payrment is reascnable

Recoverability of deferred tax assets
The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewcd at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it 1s
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered

The Committee considered the
expected future taxable profits of the
Group and are satisfied that these are
sufficient to allow the deferred tax asset
10 be recovered
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Share option vesting

The far value determined at the grant
date cf the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straght-line
basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group's estimate of the number of
equity mstruments that will eventually
vest. At each reporting date, the Group
revises Its estimate of the number of
equity Instruments expected to vest as a
result of the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions

The Committee I1s satisfied that the
processes to determine the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions
are appropnate.

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables and accrued income
The provision for imparment of trade
receivables and accrued income
represents management’s best estimate
at the Balance Sheet date. Several
Judgements are made In the calculation
of the provision, primarily the age of the
nvoice, the existence of any disputes,
recent historical payment patterns and
the debtor's financial positicn. Further
details can be found in Note 22 to the
Financial Statements

The Group reviewed the impact of the
conflict in the Ukraine on the Financial
Statements at 28 February 2023 to
ascertain if there was any evidence

to suggest that the Group’s trade
recenvables may be at a higher risk of
becoming credit impaired as a result of
the conflict. There was no evidence of
any matenal Impact and therefore, no
impairment allowance was made.

The Committee reviewad management’s
process for determining the provision
and considered the Ikelhood of the
conflict In the Llkraine impacting the
collection of trade receivable and

were satished that the judgements

are appropriate

Valuation of defined benefit

pension scheme

The Group uses an independent actuary
to provide annual valuations of the
defined benefit pension scheme The
actuary uses a number of estimates In
respect of the scherne membership, the
valuation of assets and assumptions
regarding discount rates, nflabon rates
and mortality rates.
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The membership details are provided
by an independent trustee while

the valuation of assets is verified

by an independent fund manager
The discount rates, inflation rates

and mortality rates are reviewed by
management for reasnnability. Further
details can be found in Note 28 to the
Financial Statements.

The Committee considered the review
work performed by management in
respect of the estimates made by the
independent actuary and the information
provided by the Independent trustee and
are satsfied with the process

R AT UTEE SR TR

Revenue recognition

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts

with Customers” requires judgement

to determine whether revenue is
recognised at a “point In time” or “over
tme”, as well as determining the transfer
of control for when performance
obligations are satisfied

The Committee considered the work
done to validate the accuracy of
revenue transactions and is satisfied
that management'’s jJudgement on
the timing of revenue recognition 1s
materially correct

Classification and recognition of
specific items

The Group excludes specific items
from its underlying earnings measure;
management jJudgement is required
as to what iterns qualify for this
classification Each item reported as
specific 1s either directly related to
acquisitions or not expected to be
incurred cn an ongoing basis. Further
details can be found n Note 10 to the
Fmancial Statements

The Committee reviewcd the
itemns for reasonableness and
consistency and are satisfied with
management’s classfication

Recoverability of defined benefit
pension scheme net asset

As aresult of actuanal moverments during
the period., including an increase N the
discount rate from 265% at 28 February
2022 10 490% at 28 February 2023,

the UK defined benrefit scheme s in an
actuarial surplus position, net of tax, at 28
February 2028 (measured on an IAS 18
“Employee Benefits” basis) of £11 milion
(28 February 2022 liability of £21 millon).

The surpius has been recognised

ch the basis that the Group has an
unconditional rght to a refund, assuming
the gradual settlernent of Scheme
liabifites cver tirme until all members have
left the Scheme.

The Committee reviewed the terms

of the scheme and the discount rate
used to estimate the value of the assets
and liabilties of the scherme and have
concluded that the recognition of the
surplus was reascnable

Assessment of business
combinations

During the year, the Group acquired
the entity Madrid Shipping Advisors
SL. Management concluded that the
transaction did not meet the definition
of a business combination, and as a
result, treated the transaction as the
recruitment of a team of brokers with
associated sign on bonuses

The Committee considered the key
terms of the transaction and the
nature of the arrangement as a whole.
As part of the transaction, no assets
were acqguired, nor were any labilties
assumed The Committee agreed
with management’s view that the
transaction did not meet the definfticn
of a business combination because
the acquired entity only held service
contracts for key employees and was
a newly (ncorperated company. set up
specifically for the acquistion

Climate-related risks

Management have considered the
impact of climate-related risks In
respect of impairment of goodwill, and
recoverability of recevables in particular
and do not consider that cimate-related
risks have a materal impact on any key
judgements, estimates or assumplions
in the consolidated Financial Statements
The potential impact of climate

change has been reviewed by the Risk
Committee and has been identfied as
an emerging risk for the shipping and
energy sectors within which the Group
operates, but not cne which is likely to
have an impact on the business in the
short to medium term

The Committee has also assessed the
short-to-medium-term impact relating
to climate change risks and it 1s not
expected that climate-related risks will
have a matenal iImpact cn the Group’s
short-term financial performance
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Going concern and viability

The Group has drawn up its accounts on
a going concern basis and the directors
have assessed the viability of the Group
over a four-year period Four years 1s
used because the Group's revolving
credit facility will need renewng after this
four-year petricd.

The Cormmittee received reports to
support these matters and considered
the assumptions made, the sources

of liquidity and funding, the nsks and
sensitivities to the forecasts and the stress
tests used, Ncluding the potential impact
from the independent investigation The
Cermmittee concluded that the apphcation
of the going concern basis for the
preparation of the Financial Statements

is appropriate More detal can be found

in the Principal nsks and uncertainties
section of this Annuat Report
In June 2023, the board commissioned
an internal independent investigation
into an historical transaction from 213
The Investigation was overseen by an
Investigation Committee chaired by the
Group's non-executive Charrman and
was conducted by an independent
speciakst forensic accounting firm,

and independent external counsel

The investigation was comprehensive
and complex and uttmately focused
on a review of several of transactions
between 2006 and 2013,

As a resuit of the Investigation, the Group
has recogrised a provision of £20 million
in relation to the uncertain oblgations
connected to a number of the
fransactions and commission obligations
reviewed as part of the investigation

Cf the £2.0 miilion, £17 million relates

to historical unsettled commission
payabie, which has been reclassified
from trade payables to provisions

durning the year While the board cannct
forecast with certanty final cutcomes

In respect of these oblgations, based

on the Group's current informaticn, the
amount recegnised I1s the current best
estimate of the amount required to settle
the oblgations at the balance sheet
date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligations.
iNcluding interpretation of specific laws
and likelhhood of settlement
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Capital reduction and dividend
rectification process

in December 2022, the Company
commenced a project to research
options for ncreasing the distributable
reserves avallable to the Company in
order to support the Group’s stated
progressive dividend policy. | he initial
focus was on short term options that
would Increase the distributable reserves
as at 28 February 2023 in order to allow
a final dividend recommendation with
the publication of year end results later
in 2023. A review of these short-term
options identified that charges taken

to retained earnings in recent years for
the impairment of the value of certain
preference shares held by the Company
represented unrealised losses and could
therefore potentially be excluded from
the calculation of distributable reserves
Whilst reviewing the possibility that the
Impairment losses could be determined
as unrealised losses for the purpose

of measurnng distributable reserves, a
broader review of other gains and losses
that had been recorded in retaned
sarmings in recent years was carried out.

This review identihed certain gaings that
had been recorded regularly relating to
share-based payments charges The
gains In guestion arose when shares
were awarded to employees of other
Group companies and the cost of those
shares increased the cost of iInvestment
of those Group companies and retained
earnings This review led the Company
to identify that a significant balance
within retained earnings (that was not
previously identified as created by
unrealised gains) was Incorrectly used
by the Company in the calculation of its
distributable reserves. This meant that
the Company paid several diviclends
between 2016 and 2023 without having
sufficient distnbutable reserves from
which to lawfully pay such dividends. Full
details of the historic relevant dividends
are set out In the crrcular posted to
shareholders dated 28 March 2023.

The Cormpany corwvened a General
Meeting which was held on 18 Apri
2023 where shareholders voted n
favour of all the caprtal reduction and
dividend rectification special resolutions
put forward by the board With the
confirmation of the Court, the Company
cancelled its share premium account
and capital rederption reserve The
Company then applied the sums
resulting from this cancellation reduction
to its distributable reserves
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Review of the control environment
and financial processes

The audit for the previous year
highlighted weaknesses in some of
the Group's accounting precesses and
resources. The Committee reviewed
the causes of the weaknensrs and
the associated control envircnment
and concluded that the Fmance Team
did not have sufficient qualified and
experienced members. A plan was
therefore developed to strengthen the
resources In the Finance team and to
make the changes required to ensure
the weaknesses do not re-occur.

The plan is in the process of being
mplemented and additional resources
have been recruited into Finance team,
including a new experienced Group
Financial Controller and additional
qualified accourtants in different areas
within the team Work is ongoing to
strengthen the regular review and
financial control processes and mprove
the use of the financial systems avallable.
A particular focus 1s being given to the
consolidation system as several of the
weaknesses identified related to the
consoldation of the Groug's results in
the context of disposals and acquisiticns
rather than ongong trading.

This work has «dentified additional

prior period adiustments reguired

N the current year to the Financial
Statements as are described in Note 35
and the Comrnittee has reviewed the
reasons why they were not identfied
previously This review has provided the
Committee with stronger assurance and
confidence that the improved control
ervironment will reduce the nsk of similar
adjustments In the future. The Audit &
Risk Committee 1s keeping under review
the further process of mprovement to
ensure that the plan 1s continues to be
appropriately progressed.

internal independent investigation
The internal Independent investigaton
referenced in the Chairman's Staterment
on pages b to 7 highlighted improvements
that were required in the Compiliance
function. particularly around ‘Know Your
Customer’ {"KYC") checks and ohgoing
monitoring The Group has acted promptly
to address the weaknesses identified and
has implemented new procedures and

an ongoing improvement plan

Braemar Plc Annual Reporl and Accounts 2023

o Financial Statements

External audit

BEO LLP was reappointed as external
auditor at the 2022 AGM for their fifth
year as auditor to the Group. The lead
audit partner at BDO LLP responsible
for the external audit is Oliver Chinneck
Olver was a key audl partner in the
previous four years but has taken over
the lead role in the current year and has,
therefore, served five years following the
conclusicn of the 2023-year end audit.

In line with the independence
reguirements Cliver should rotate after
five years However following the matters
ansing in the current year audnt and

the change in Chief Financial Officer,

to mantain audit quality, the Audit &

Risk Committee wrote to BDO's ethics
partner to request that Oliver’s tenure as
lead audit partner be extended by a year
Following review, BDO agreed to the
one-year extension for the FY24 audt
and put In place effective safeguards to
rmaintain Independence.

The Group has a clear polcy for the
approval of non-audit services, which
sets a imit on the level of fees for
non-audit services at 70% of the
external audit fee The external auditer
1s only appointed to perform a non-
audit service when doing so would

not compromise the Independence
and effectiveness of the external

audt function, and when its skills and
expertise make (it the most sutable
suppler The Group pclicy for the
approval of non-audit services requires
the Committee’s prior approval of

all non-audit services This vear, the
external audit fee represents 81% of the
total fee paid to BDO LLP (FY22 ©1%;).
The Committee alse continues to agree
the scope and related fee for the annual
external audit The non-audit services
performed dunng the vear related 1o the
half-year review.

The Committee additionally rmonitors
the independence of the external

audit function, as well as its objectivity
and effectveness, through the annual
schedule of meetings (at which it
discusses the auditor's reports and
performance), through inviting feedback
from those invelved with the external
auditor's work across the busness, and
through additional meetings between
the Chair of the Cormmmittee and the lead
audit partner
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Report of the Audit & Risk Committee continued

Revicw by the Financial

Reporting Council

The Financial Reporting Council {'FRC”)
carried out a review of Braemar's interm
results for the six months to 31 August
2022 in accordance with Part 2 of

the FRC Reporting Review Operating
Procedures. Based on their review,

there were no questions or quenes

they wished to raise with the Company.
They dicd however highlight items

where they believed that the readers

of the accounts would benefit from
improvements in disclosure which, to the
extent applicable, have been addressed
in the year-end Financial Statements.

Internal audit

Internal audit is an Independent
assurance function which supports
Braemar in improving s cverall control
framework. The work cf the internal
audit function suppoerts Braemar to
evaluate and improve the design and
effectiveness of the risk managemment
frarmework, internal control, and
governance processes The Audit & Risk
Committee defines the responsibility and
scope of the internal audit function and
approves its annual plan Reporting to
the Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee
and admirustratively to the Group Chief
Financial Officer, the Head of Internal
Audit and Risk leads the Intermnal Audit
and Risk Management function

The Audt & Risk Committee monitors
the delivery of the internal audit plan
throughout the year and provides
challenge to ensure that management
1s sufficiently responsive tc any

audit findings.

Business functions, processes and areas
forming part of the roling three-year
nsk-based Group internal audit plan are
based on assessment of risks to the
business, as descnbed on pages 47

tn A3 nf thig Annual Report. The plar is
reviewed and updaled at least annually
to help ensure key Group and new or
emerging risks receive appropnate and
tmely audit focus. Updates or changes
to the audit pian, and internal audit
reports, are reviewed by the Audit & Risk
Committee during the year.

Ihe Group's operational and functional
management teams are engaged

and involved in the risk assessment
process and in the development of
the internal audit pian by way of the
following activities:

- Risk Committee meetings to agree
and coordinate complance, risk
rmanagement, and to provide input
into internal audit actvty,

- submission of operational and
financial senior management
confirmations that the results of
therr respective business areas are
accurate, that stated levels of debtors
and accrued income are recoverable,
adequate provisions have been
made for unccllectible amounts, and
that the business complies with the
Group's position on the UK Bribery Act
and there have been no breaches of
applcable sanctions;

- completion of semi-annual contrel
seff-assessment questionnares
by all Group entities tc help ensure
that adeguate controls are in place
Completed guesticnnarres are
reviewed and discussed with senior
management for their respective
business areas, and

— suggestions for internal audit activity
are sought from each business
area, and operational and functional
departments

Audits were conducted this year on
sanctions, Braemar Corpcerate Finance
and employee expenses. Management
action plans were developed and agreed
with action implementation dates for
icentified control gaps or deficiencies.
Progress against agreed management
actions from audits is monitored

through regular updates to the Audit

& Risk Committee

Risk and internal control
framework

During the year, the Audit & Risk
Committee continued its focus on review
and enhancement of the Group’s risk
and internal control framework. Braemar
15 committed to the highest standards of
conduct in all aspects of its business
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In reviewing and improving this
framework of policies, processes and
procedures, the directors remained
mindful of the potentially competing
interests of the Company’s stakehalders,
particularly the need to balance

cost, resource, and lhe interests and
perspectives of cllents and other market
participants with the need to maintain
its reputation for integrity and to comply
with international laws and best practice.
This review, and the Audit & Risk
Committee’s ongoing responsipilines

in this area, saw the Audt & Risk
Committee involved in;

- reviewing the work of the Risk
Committee, particularly on matters
such as the regular reviews of the
Group’s emerging and principal risks
and the development of its enhanced
Risk Management Framework,

- reviewing and improving the Group’s
framework of compliance pelicies
and procedures, Including in refation
to sanctions, bribery and corruption.,
conflicts of interest, know your
customer, entertanment, meals, gifts,
tax evasion, and whistleblowing;

- reviewing the design of a
comprehensive programme of
compiliance training for all staff,

- reviewing the financial reporting
framework and improving the
processes for regular reporting of key
financial judgements and estimates,
as well as other elements of nsk
management across the business;,

- reviewing the Group’s IT cyber
securty monitering and planning
programme,

— reviewing the Group's nsurance
coverage, and

- reviewing the Group's foreign
exposure and hedging strategy.

More Inforrnation on the Grougy's
amerging and principal risks, including
a summary of the principal risks facing
the Group and how these are managed
can be found on pages 47 to 53 of the
Annual Report

Joanne Lake

On behalf of the Audit & Risk
Committee

15 Novernber 2023
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Report of the Nomination Committee

The primary responsibilities of the
Nemination Cormmittee are to ensure
that the board and its commitiees
have the right composition, to lead the
process for appointments to the board,
and to ensure that the Company has
appropriate plans in place for succession
to the board and senicr managerent
roles. The Committee’s terms of
reference can be found in the Investors
section of the Company’s website

The Nomination Committes comprises
three independent non-executive
drectors and is chared by the
Company’'s non-executive Chairman,
Nigel Payne Following on from an
extensive reorganisation of the board and
the board committees in the previous
financial year and with the present
board being therefore largely new in
ther roles, aside from the appointment
of Joanne Lake on 1 March 2022 (which
the Nomination Committee had met and
approved in the previous financial year),
it was not deemed necessary to hold
any review meetings during this financial
year The Nomination Committee did
meet in February 2023 to discuss the
appointment of a new non-executive
director tc reptace Stephen Kunzer,

Board changes

Lesley Watkins stepped down as a
Director with effect from 1 March 2022
and was replaced by Joanne Lake
Stephen Kunzer also stepped down from
the board with effect from 31 lanuary
2023. When Stephen stepped down
from the board, the Committee led

the search to appoint a non-executive
director to the board. This search
compnsed a review across a wide-
ranging number of industry sectors from
both internal and external sources.

In considering the optimum critena and
attributes for this role, the Committee
considered the existing structure

and diversity of the board and senicr
management. the culture of the
organisabon and the fecus of the
Group's future strategy The Cornimillee
agreed that it was important to add
incremental skills to the beard. In May
2023, the Committee was delighted

to recommend Cat Valentine for
appointment to the board; Cat was duly
appointed to the board for a three-year
term subject to annual re-election by
shareholders with effect from 16 May
2023, In June 2023, the Committee was
pleased to recommend the appointment
of Grant Foley as Group Chief Financial
Officer. Grant joined the board with
effect from 1 August 2023, more detall
on his appointment can be found in my
Statement on pages b to 7. Nick Stone
left the business on 31 July 2023 and cn
behalf of the board, we thank Nick Stone
for his contributions and wish hirm well
for the future

Succession planning

The Nomination Committee’s succession
planning has two key areas of focus:
firstly, to ensure that the board has the
right combination of skils, experience,
knowledge and independence; and
secondly, to ensure that the Company
has plans in place for orderly succession
This includes the development of a
dverse talent pipeline for the Company’s
senior management and more broadly
across the Group. The Committee
manages the former through Its ngorous
and formal appreach to new board
appointments and regularly challenges
the directors to consider the size and
composition of the board and the
appropnate range of skills and balance
between executive and non-executive
directors through an evaluaton process.

The Committee manages the second
area through the review of the succession
plans in place for senior management
across the Group. As part of this, the
Committee challenges the executive
directors and senior management across
the business to present detailed insights
into the crganisational structures and
personnel profies of the businesses and
how they look to develop key talent and
mitigate Succession nsk.
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More information on how the Company
INvests in the traning and development
of its people can be found on pages

34 1o 45 of this Annual Report. Where
necessary, the Company also considers
how best to fill potential vacancies with
external candidates.

In both of these areas, the Committee
ensures that the drrectors and senior
management remain mindful of the
Group's diversity policy. Braemar
recognisas the importance of diversity in
all respects, Including (but not limited to)
gender, skills, age, experience, ethnicity
and background. The Cormmittee believes
that diversity and an inclusive cutture are
important contributors to a company’s
ability to achieve its strategic objectives
and delver long-term, sustainabie
success As al the date of this Report,
approximately 26% of the Group's
Executive Committee and its members’
drect reports are female (FY22 10%) and
three of the seven board positions are
occupied by female board members.
More nformation on the Group's polcies
and approach on diversity can be found
In the “Culture and values” section earlier
in this Corporate Governance Report and
n the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45 of
this Annual Report

Board evaluation

The board carries out regular self-
evaluations to monitor and Improve

on its performance and address any
weaknesses. As with the prior year, it was
decided that the formal annual evaluation
could be effectual wathout the need for
any external facilitation, with the process
being led by the Charman with the
assistance of the Company Secretary. An
important component of this process was
the completion of a set of guestionnaires
by the directors to record their iews on a
range of matters and to act as a catalyst
for broader foedback The Commttee
has considered the actions from the
evaluation exercise conducted in 2022 At
the time the evaluation was carmed out,
most of the directors were new to the
board and it was therefore agreed that
an evaluaton should be carried out the
following year once the board had been
working together for a substantive period
trme The Chairman continues 1o work
with the other directors and the Cempany
Secretary 10 Improve the effectiveness of
the board and its Cornmitiees.

Nigel Payne
On behalf of the Nemination Committee
15 November 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to
introduce the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ended 28 February
2023 As in past years, the first section
of this introductory statement details

the work of the Commiittee together
with our remuneration philosophy, which
remains unchanged | will then go on

te descripe how we paid our executive
directors in the year In the context of
Company perforrmance, and to ntroduce
the remuneration tems for which we

are seeking shareholder approval at our
2023 AGM. This year this includes the
three-yearly renewal of our Directors’
Remuneration Policy.

The Remuneration Committee
and its work

The Remuneration Committee is
appointed by the board and comprises
three independent non-executive
directors. The non-executive Chairman
15 Not a member of the Committee,
The Committee is chared by Elizabeth
Gooch and its terms of reference can
be found in the investors section of the
Company’s website. The Committeg’s
man responsibilities are to:

- determine the paolicy and framework
for executive remuneration,

- set the remuneration for the executive
directors, the Chairman and the
Group's senior managerment,

— review remuneration and related
policies for employees across the
Group, and

— approve the design of, and determine
targets for, performance-related
incentive schemes and/or equity
participation schemes across
the Group.

In discharging these responsibilities,

the Committee may call for information
and advice from adwvisers inside and
outside the Group During the year,

the Committee took advice from the
Chairman of the board, the Group
Chief Executive Officer, the Group Chief
Operating Officer, the Group Chief
Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary, who all attended various
meetings at the nvitation of the
Committee, but did not participate in any
decision making, nor were they present
for any discussions, regarding

or affecting therr own remuneration.

The Committee received independent
remuneration advice from FIT
Remuneraticn Consultants LLP “FIT” on a
range of matters within the Committee’s
remit, for which fees of £32,679
{excluding VAl and disbursements

and calculated on a time-spent basis)
were charged during the year FIT

are members of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and, as such.
voluntarly operate under the Code

of Conduct in relation to executive
remuneration consulting in the UK

FIT was alsc engaged to provide

advice in relation to the operation of

the Company's share plans, and the
Committee 1s comfortable that the FIT
tearmn continues 1o provide objective and
independent advice
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Remuneration philosophy

The Commiitiee’s approach to executive
remuneration remains unchanged.

The pay structures in our sector are
atypical compared with the norm

of executive pay. However, they are
proven to work within Braemar as well
as being accepted practice across

the shipbroking sector and other
commission based businesses. The
board carefully analysed whether the
business would be better served by a
non-shipbroking CEQ and COOC and
unanimously concluded that it would not.

The Committee 1s focused on retaining
our executive directers and appropriately
incentivising them to deliver shareholder
value, whilst alse being mindful of best
practice and market trends (including
the guidelines of Investor bodies). In
Fy23, the Committee worked within the
existing shareholder approved policy to
reward our executive directors

Our framework 1s based on five
core principles.

— P AR the
success of our business s entirely
dependent upon the experience
and skills of our employees and
management team, the specialist
advice they offer, and the relaticnships
that they develop with our clients
The structures, designs and guantum
of our remuneration arrangements
must be sufficient to allow us to retan
our team and compete in highly
competitive global talent markets

R AR EE N AT PR FE SN Y BN
e e o we seek to pay no
maore than is necessary and alsc
ensure that a substantial portion of
execuUtive reward is aligned to both
profitability and delivery of strategy
In Ine with our competitors, we
operate prott sharng arrangements
for those individuals engaged in
broking activities

[SETEIRETER T )

: : S our
executive remuneration structures
must be clear and understandable for
parbcipants and other stakeholders
- e we
align long-term rewards with the
long-term value of our shares through
share ownership guidelines and
share-based remuneration
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o we ensure that
remuneration drives the right
behaviours to support our strategy
and reflects our values, ncluding
the entfication and rmitigation of
any rnlas that could aroe fram aur
ncentive plans

Our performance in FY23 and

our review of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy

PO S PR I B ST IS )
v b

As more fully detailed in the Charman’s
introduction to this Annual Report, FY
2022/23 was a second year of very
strong performance for Braemar:

- We achieved record revenue
(£152.9 millon) and record
profitabilty (£201 milicn underlying
operating profit).

- The Group's cash generation has
also been strong.

- We mantaned our progressive
dividend policy with total dvidends
per share for the year of 12 pence,
a 33% Increase over the prior year
dvidend of 9@ pence per share

— Qur share price performance
remained strong 1IN FY23, our TSR
grew by 251%, which compares
favourably to the performance of the
FTSE SmallCap (ex IT) In the same
penod (minus 41%;.

The Committee believes that the
performance of the Company 1S
testament to the strong execution of
our clear strategy which 1s focused on
our core shipbroking activities. This has
been the strategy of the business since
January 2021 when our Group Chief
Executive Officer, James Gundy was
appointed, with his combined role as
both leader of our shiptroking business
and CEQ.

Performance and reward in FY23
Given the positive Group performance
and shareholder experience in the year,
the Committee approved boruses for
our CEO of £2 95 milion and for our
COOQ of £125 million
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F¥23 was also the end of the three-year
performance penod for the Long Term
Incentive Plan “LTIP* awards granted in
July 2020 These awards vested in full
as the relevant performance measures
were satisfied The underlymng operating
profit for the previous Shiplroking
Dwision and Group EPS reported for the
period to 28 February 2023 were higher
than the maximum target as explaned
further in this Report

Before confirming the cutcomes

for FY23 annual bonuses and the
LTIP vesting referred to above, the
Committee consiclered the nature of
the matters which were investigated
following the financial year end and
which necessitated the delay of the
Annual Report publication and the
related suspension of the Company’s
shares from trading The Committee
determined that the nature of the
matters investigated should not impact

Incentive plan outcemes given both therr

histoncal nature and the steps taken by
the current management team to rectify
and resolve these 1ssues when they
became apparent

Review of our Directors®
Remuneration Pelicy

In preparing for the renewal of our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy by
shareholders at the 2023 AGM, the

Committee reviewed the operation of the
policy and its continued ability 1o suppaort

the Company mn executing ts strategy
and to drive perfoermance which will
benefit our shareholders.

The Committee acknowledged that the
structure of remuneration packages
designed in this way differs from the
notrn for mosl UK PLCs However, the
Committee also concluded that the
impact of the policy, which reflects the
norms and practices of the shipbroking
industry, had been significantly

to shareholders’ benefit since the
appointment of our CEO and COO and

therefore it was unanimously agreed that

the policy should be continued
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In short, the rationale for mantaning the
current remuneration package structures
for our executive directors is that

— The model whereby our CEO and
COO are paid on a continuing
Lasis fur thuer shipbnukiny businiess
activites has served the Company
well since James' appointment
as our CEQ in fanuary 2021 and
Trs’ appointment as our COO N
August 2021

- The board believes it is in the interest
of all stakehclders to retain the
services of James and Tris.

- By mantaining the current pay
arrangements for James and Tris, we
are maintaining the integrity of their
packages from before they joined the
board and honouring commitments 1s
at the core of Braemar's values

For completeness, we are making

two changes 1o the operation of

James’ bonus which we consider to

be appropriate following the last two
years' demonstration of his cormbined
PLC CEO and leading broker role. These
changes have clanfied that the initially
expressed annual cap for James’ brokers’
bonus (£4 milicn per annum} 1s NOt
relevart (this 1s, we believe, 1s shown

to be the case by this year's bonus
outcome which 1s beneath this level
despite the strong perfermance). We will
also remove the underpin reguirement
on the first £425000 of bonus which
required specific consideration of Group
performance before that amount could
be paid Our practical expenence of

the way James appreaches his role has
demonstrated that he approprately
balances both overal Group activities
and personal front-line broking work to
the benefit of ali stakeholders

Other changes to our policy are
highlighted in the intreduction to the
remuneration policy section of this
Report. These include certain changes in
remuneration practice previously advised
to shareholders (for example, changes in
our policy of having a portion of bonus
ocutcomes deferred into shares).
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Implementation of our policy
inFY24

In short, our intention is for our Directors’
Remuneration Policy to continue to apply
consistently In FY24 This will involve

the following.

- - . the base salanes of
our CEO and COO will remain frozen
at the same levels as applied N FY23,
our CEQ and COO will
again participate in the brokers’ bonus
which 15 driven by the profitabiity

of the broking desks and ther
respective contributions towards this.
In addition, part of the COO's bonus
will be judged against nen-financial
metnes {relating to his leadership

of Group central functions and
leadership on acquisitions and other
strategic projects), the weighting of
non-financial metrics for the COO

will lkely vary year to year depending
on the needs and pricrities of the
busiress Our COO plays a key role in
identifying, developing and delivering
opportunities for the business to
grow through strategic hres and
team acguisitions which complerment
our core busingss Successful and
prudent pursut of such opportunities
will benefit our shareholders in the
long-term by adding further restlience,
strength and depth to our business.
we will again operate our

LTIP plan in F¥24, with each of our
executive Directors receiving an LTIP
award over shares worth up tc 100%
of base salary.

— et

R
— lote

Applying a consistent approach to cur
pay arrangements provides clarity to our
executive directors and has over time

led to both cur CEQ and COO bulding
significant snareholdings i the Company
{shares worth almost five-times salary
for the CEQ and shares worth almost
three-tmes salary for the COQ, retlecting
FY23 year-end share prices}. This
provides very clear alignment of interests
between our executive directors and

our shareholders

In early 2023, following a benchmarking
exercise, the Chairman’s fee was
reviewed and from 1 March 2023
increased to £135000 {£108000 in FY23).
This was the first increase of the Chair's
fee since 2019 and no other changes
are proposed to NED fees for Fy?4

As announced on 20 June 2023, Grant
Foley jomned the Cornpany on 1 August
2023 as Group Chief Financial Officer,
with Nicholas Stone standing down on
31 July 2023, Details of the new package
arrangements for Grant and of Nick’s
leaving terms are summarised later in
this Report

Format of the Report and matters
to be approved at our 2023 AGM
The remainder of this Report comprises
two sections:

1. Our proposed new Directors’
Remuneration Policy. This is
peng proposed for approval by
shareholders at the reconvened 2023
AGM and if approved will take effect
from the date of the reconvened 2023
AGM and may apply for a period of
up to three years, unless a different
policy is approved by shareholders in
the interim, and

2. The Annual Report on Remuneration,
which sets out the details of how
our policy was mplemented
durnng FY23 and the decisions
taken In relation to the prospective
application of the polcy n FY24
The Directors’ Remuneration Report.
{compnsing both the annual report
on remuneration and this introductory
statement) will be subject to an
aavisory vote by shareholders at
the AGM
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We trust that our shareholders will
recognise the cutstanding year of
performance delivered by our executive
team and vote in favour of the
resolutions 1o approve the new Directors’
Rermmuneration Policy and the Directors’
Rernuneration Report at our 2023 AGM

Finally, the Committee would like to
put on record its thanks to our former
Comrmittee member, Stephen Kunzer,
for his work and his contribution to the
business of the Commitiee. Stephen
stepped down as a member of the
Committee on 31 January 2023 With
respect to other membership changes,
| arn delighted to welcome Cat Valentine,
who was appointed t¢ the board in
May 2023 and to the Committee at
the sarne time. More detalls on Cat’s
appaintment can be found in the
corporate governance statement on
pages b4 to 57

Elizabeth Gooch

On behalf of the Remuneration
Committee

15 November 2023
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Remuneration Policy

This part of the Report sets out the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy (the “Policy”) as determined by the Remuneration Committee.

The Poicy will be submitted to the 2023 AGM for shareholder approval If approved by shareholders, the Policy will formally take
effect from the date of the reconvened 2023 AGM and will apply for three years beginning with the date of its approval, unless a
new polcy 1S presented In the nterm

How the Policy was determined and changes from the 2020 Policy

In prepanng the Policy for approval at the 2023 AGM, the Committee has approved a number of changes These all reflect the
reality of changes in remuneration practices at the Company since the approval of the previous Directors’ Remuneration Policy at
the 2020 AGM, together with matters that have been advised to our shareholders in subsequent Directors’ Remuneration Reports
The changes accordingly reflect the following.

- : B © . =James Gundy, our CEQ, took up his role in January 2021 and Tris Stmmonds,
our COO took up his ro\e 1) August 2021 These executives perform dual roles as both {) the typical roles of a Isted company
execUtive director, and (i) being leading cperational executives in the core shipbroking business James and Tns have held these
roles N the core shipbroking business for several years. In line with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy in force at the time of
their appointment as executive directors and as both James and Tris were internal appointments, they have maintained the pay
structures which they participated in prior to therr appointments to the board. The proposed new Policy therefore includes these
structures prmmpal\y the “Brokers' Bonus”, in which both James and Tris will continue to participate

- Lo . : ’ st o — As we explaned in the 2022 Directors’ Remuneration Report, during the
pnor year we rewewed our pohcy on deferral of variable remuneration for brokers in which relatively high amounts of total annual
bonus outcomes were being deferred INto shares each year resulting in a negative impact on the liquidity of the Company's
stock. Whilst still recognising the benefits of alignment to the longer-term experience of shareholders, we reduced bonus
deferral requirements across shipbroking in order to address this liguidity issue. The policy was amended to defer 5% of brokers’
annual bonus outcomes as opposed to the previous 10%. However, we maintamed the 10% deferral for our executive team.
These ongoing deferral reguirements will be reflected in the new Policy

The Committee 1s satisfied that all of the proposed changes in the Policy continue to align with our remuneration philosophy,
as set out on pages 66 to 67

Braemar Ple Anncal Report and Accounts 2023
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Remuneration Policy continued

Policy table for Executive Directors

THOSE .

link to strategy

Base Salary

To provide an
element of fixed
remuneration as
part of a market-
competitive
remuneration
package to attract
and retain the
calibre of talent
required to deliver
the Group’s
strategy.

Benefits

To provide
amarket-
competitive
benefits package
for the nature and

location of the role,

Base salarnes are determined
by the Committee, taking Nto
account

- skils and experience of the
indradual,

- siZe, scope and comploxty
of the role;

- market compettiveness
of the overall rermuneration
package,

- perfarmance of the individual
and of the Group as a
whole, and

- pay and condtions
elsewhere in the Group

Base salares are normaily
reviewed annually with changes
effective from the start of the
financial year.

Incorporates various cash/
non-cash benefits which are
competitive in the relevant
market, and which may include
such benefite as a car (or car
allowance), club membership,
healthcare, ife assurance,
ncome pretection nsurance, and
reimbursed business expenses
(inclucing any tax iability)

Where relevant, other benefits
on broadly the same terms as
provided to the wider workloce
or to reflect spechic ndrdual
crreumstances, such as housing,
relocation, travel, or other
expatnate alowances may also
be provided

Any reasonable business-refated
expenses can be reimbursed
(and any tax thereon met if
determined to be a taxabie
benefit)

Executive drectors may also
partcipate In the Company’s
Save As You Earn ("SAYE™)
scheme on the same basis as
other employees and subject to
statutory fimitg
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While there 1s no defined
masamurm, salary increases are
normally made with reference to
increases for the wider employee
population

The Committee retains discretion
to award larger increases where
considered appropnate, to reflect,
for exarnple.

- Where an executive girector
has had an increase in
responsibility

- Where an executive director
has been prornoted or has
had a change in scope

- Anindmdual's development
or performance in role (eg
to align a newly appointed
executive director’s salary with
the market over time)

- Where an executive director’s
salary Is no longer market
competitve (eg due to an
Increase in size and complexity
of the business)

Increases may be implemented
over such time penod as the
Committee deems appropriate

Bereft provision, for which

there 1s no prescribed monetary
raxamun, is set at an appropriate
level for the specific nature and
location of the role

None

None

No matenal
changes

No rateral
changes
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Pension

To provide a post-
retirement benefit
to attract and
retain talent.

Annual Bonus

To incentivise and
reward annual
performance
aligned with

the long-term
objectives of
individuals and
the delivery of
strategy.

Deferral

into shares
strengthens long-
term alignment
with shareholders.

The Committee may offer
parkcipaten 1 a delined
contnbution pension scheme
or provide a cash allowance

Executive directors are eligible
to participate In the annuai
bonus at the discretion of the
Committee each year

Where executive directors
undertake brokng actvities
they may, at the discretion of
the Committee, be eligible to
participate in the Brokers' Bonus
arangements

The Brokers' Bonus 1s non-
contractual and is currently
calculated as a percentage
of profits from either personal
and/or desk revenues
dependng on the role fulfilled

Where executive directors

do not undertake broking
activhies, they may participate

In an annual bonus Tor which
appropriate performance targets
are set at the outset of the year
In accordance with this policy.

Payout levels for all executive
drectors are deterrmined by
the Committee after year-end

A portion of the annual bonus
will be deferred nto shares
under the Deferred Bonus Plan
('DBFP7), described In more detal
n the section below

Clawback provisions will also
apply, as explained on page /4
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The maximum cantribution for
any executive director will be n
Iine with the level avalable for the
majorty of UK employees at any
given time {currently 5% of salary)

In Ine with market practice for
the Company's peers, there is no
cap on ndividual Brokers” Bornus
awards However, the Brokers
Bonus is funded by broking
profitability, and therefore any
amount 1s capped by the profits
generated by broking activities.
as well as the profitability and
financial posmion of the Group as
a whole

Where exccutive directors do
not undertake broking actrvities,
the maximum annual bonus
opportunity 1s 100% of base
salary pa

. Financial Statements

None

Where executive directors
participate in the Brokers’
Bonusg, this 1s currently
calculated as a percentage of
profits which, depending on
the individual's role may reflect
either personal broking and/or
desk revenues

Haowever, the Committee may
also make a porton of the
Brokers' Bonus for executve
drectors subject to the
attainment of specific non-
financial or personal metncs.

Where executive directors do
not participate in the Brokers'
Bonus, the performance
measures appled may be
financial or non-financial,
corporate or individual, and

In such proportions as the
Remuneration Committee
considers approprate for any
fhnancial year

For all executive drectors, the
Cormmittee retans discretion
to overnde any formulaic
bonus outcome, if it considers
it appropriate to do so. to

take account of overal or
underlying Group or personal
performance or such other
factors as it considers relevant
The Committee may also set
“gateways” or “underpins”

tor glements of an executve
director's bonus which must
e attaned before that part
of the bonus 15 paid, should
the Committee consicdler

this appropriate

No material
changes.

Clarficd the
continued
participaton N the
Brokers’ Bonus for
those executive
directors who
undertake broking
activities

Clarifed that dunng
the Ife of this
Policy, non-financial
rmetrics may be
appled for part of
the Brokers’ Bonus

Clanfed that where
executive drectors
do not undertake
broking actwvitics,
they will continue
to participate in a
normal executive
Directors” annual
bonus, with a range
of performance
measures set
annualty

The Committee has
the abilty to overnde
formulaic bonus
outcomes for all
executive drectors
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!
;

Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP™)

To provide a
variable element
which aligns

the reward of all
executive Directors
with long-term
performance
delivered for
shareholders.

Awards are rmade under the
2014 Long-Term Incentive

Plan ("LTIP"} as approved by
shareholders at the 2014 Annual
General Meeting

Awards vest subject to
performance measured over o
penad of at ieast three years

Vested awards are subject to
an additional holding period,
which unless the Committee
determines otherwise will run
up to the ffth anniversary of
the date of grant

All executive directors are eligible
to participate each year at the
discretion of the Committee

The Committee retains the
discretion to overnde formulaic
vestng outcomes downward, If
T considers it approprate to do
50, to take account of overall or
underlying Group or personal
performance or such other
factors as it considers relevant

Awards are subject to clawback
provisions, as described in more
dctall on page 74

Shareholding Requirements

In-employment
sharehelding
requirement.

To create greater
alignment between
executive Directors
and shareholders,

Executive directors are required
to buld a shareholding of 100%
of base salary. Shares subject
to urwvested or vested but
urexercised awards under the
DBP and vested but unexercised
LTIP awards may be included, in
all cases on a net of tax basis

Executive directors will be
required to retan all of the
shares {net of tax) that vest
under the DEP and the LTI untl
the shareholding requirement

Is met

The Committee shall retan

a discretion to waive the
reguirernents, N whole or N part,
N exceptional circumstances
such as critical liness or
personal financial hardship
{ncluding divorce)
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The usual maximum award
opportunity n respect of

a financial year 1 100% of
base salary

However, in circurnstances that
the Committee considers to
be exceptional, awards of up
to 200% of base salary may
be made

Not applicable

Vesting 1s based on the
achieverment of performance
targets set In respect of key
performance measures aligned

to the strategy and sharehaolder

value {currently underlying
earnngs per share),

Up to 25% vests for threshold
performance

The Committee retans
discretion to set alternative
measures and weightings
for awards over the life of
the Policy.

Targets for performance
measures are set and
assessed by the Cornmittee
in its discretion

Not applcable

No matenal
changes

No material change
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Post-employment
sharchalding
regquirement.

To ensure
continued
alignment of the
long-term interests
of executive
Directors and
shareholders post-

PR

Shareholding Requirements continued

Executive drectors are required
10 mantan a sharcholding
equivalent to the in-employment
shareholamng requirement
immediately prior to departure
{or the actual share and award
holding on departure, If lower)
for two years post-cessation
Shares subject to unvested
awards under the DBP and
vested but unexercised LTIP

Strategic Report

Not applicable

Not applcable

Financial Statements

Clanfied the
Ntreauction date far
this polcy from the
2020 AGM

cessation. awards may be included, n both

cases on a net of tax basis

The requrement will only apply
10 shares vesting under DBP
and LTIP awards made from the
2020 AGM onwards and will not
apply to shares acquired erther
from awards granted before this
date or from shares purchased
drectly by the executive director

Discretions retained by the Committee in operating the incentive plans

The Cormmittee operates the Company’s varous incentive plans according to therr respective rules and in accordance with HMRC
rules where relevant. To ensure the efficient administration of these plans, the Committee may apply certain operational discretions
including those descrbed below,

Awards under any of the Company's share plans referred to in this Report may:

- be granted (If at all) at such tmes and within the Iimits of the plans and policy as conditional share awards of ni-cost options or
In such other form that the Committee determines has broadly the same economic effect;

-~ have any performance conditicns applicable to them amended or substituted by the Committee 1if an event occurs which
causes the Committee to determine an amended or substituted performance condition would be more appropriate and not
materially less difficult to satisfy. Any such changes te performance conditions would be explaned in the subsequent Directers’
Remuneration Report and, if appropriate, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders This ability to
amend or substitute performance conditions will aiso apply to the annual bonus plan;

- incorporate the nght to receive an amount (N cash or additional shares) equal to the value of dividends which would have
been pad on the shares under an award that vests up to the time of vesting (or where the award is subject 10 a holding pericd,
release) This amount may be calculated assuming that the dividends have been reinvested in the Company’s shares on a
cumulative basis,

— be settled In cash at the Committee’s discretion and in exceptional cases {for example where there are tax cr regulatory issues
which make it impracticable to settle in shares, to enable the Company 10 cash settle part of the award to cover any 1ax
withholding requirements or on a change of control at the request of the acquirer), and

- be adusted In the event of any varation of the Company’s share capital or any demerger. dehsting, special dividend or other
event that may affect the Company’s share price.

Furthermore, operational discretions are also retained as described in the policy table above and in respect of:

- determining the extent of vesting on the assessment of performance;

- determining “good leaver” status, the extent of vesting and related determinations in the case of share-based plans or the
annual bonus;

- determining the extent of vesting and/or exchanges under share-based plans in the event of a change of control and other
material corporate events;

- approving arrangements to meet tax withholding obligations and in respect of exercise perods and processes,

- weighting of performance measures and setting targets for the annual bonus and LTIP from year to year; and

- inthe case of DBP awards only (cther than the CSOP element) the redesignation of conditional awards to nil-cost options and
vice versa.
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Bonus deferral

A portion of the annual bonus will be deferred into shares under the DEP, the latest plan rules for which were approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the 2021 AGM Such awards will vest, unless the Committee determines otherwise. after three years
from the date of grant, subject to continued employment with the Group

For executive directors, the Company’s polcy s to defer 10% of annual bonus ocutcomes each year under the DBP.

The Committee may delerrmine that DBP awards are made in conjunction with the Company Share Option Plan ("CSOP") to enable
UK tax resident individuals to benefit from the growth in value of the shares subject to the awards in a tax-eficient manner. In such
circumstances, when DBP awards are granted, a corresponding market value option will be granted under the terms of the CSOP,
the maximum. aggregate face value of which may be up to £60000. The options wil! vest on the same terms as and on the same
date as the corresponding DBP awards. Under the terms of a CSOP, no ncome tax or employee’'s or employer's National Insurance
contributions will be payable, on exercise, on the growth in value of the shares. The number of shares in respect of which the

DBP awards will vest will be reduced toc take account of the gain in value, as at exercise, of the corresponding CSOP options

CSOP awards would only be made in conjunction with the DBP as described above, and not on a stand-alone basis

Clawback

Under the DBP and the LTIP, the Cormmittee may reduce the number of shares subject to unvested awards and/or impose further
conditions on unvested awards (effectively “malus”) and/or reguire payments in cash or shares be made in certain circumstances
which inclucle:

- amatenal misstaterment or restatement of any financial results of the Company,

— amaternal fallure of risk management by the Company or a relevant business unit;

- senous reputational or financial damage to the Company or a relevant business unit as a result of the participant’s misconduct
or failure of supervision;

- the discovery of facts that could have led to the dismissal of the participant prior to the vesting of the award,

— an error of calculation,

- the Company suffering corporate failure, or

- such cther exceptional circumstances as the Committee considers relevant

These terms may alsc apply In the case of the cash element of the annual bonus

The relevant recavery periods are until the time of vesting of the relevant award in the case of DBEP awards and at any time prior
to the second anniversary of vesting or payment of the award (as relevant) in the case of awards made under the LTIP and in the

case of the cash element of an annual bonus

Performance measures and target setting

As set out In the policy table, the Brokers' Bonus is non-contractual and 1s currently calculated as a percentage of profits
from erther personal and/or desk revenues depending on the role fuifilled. A portion may also be subject to non-financial or
personal metrics

The annual bonus where executive directors do not participate In the Brokers' Bonus is typically based largely on the financial
performance of the Group during the year \When setting the financial performance targets each year, the Committee considers
a number of factors including the board’s business plan. Targets will be appropniately strelching and aligned to delivery of the
Groups business plan and strategy

Performance measures and targets for the LTIP are determined by the Committee to reflect the Group's strategy and to align
executive directors with long-terrm value creation for shareholders The Committee sets long-term performance targets that require
appropriately stretching levels of performance. taking into account internal and external expectations.

Existing remuneration arrangements

The Committee reserves the nght to make any remuneration payments and/or payments for loss of office (including exercising
any discretion available to it In connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not in line with the Policy where
the terms of the payment were agreed either (i) before this new Policy comes into effect, provided that the terms of the payment
were consistent witn the shareholder-approved Directors” Remuneration Policy in force at the time they were agreed, or (i) at a
time when the relevant individual was not a director of the Company and, In the opinien of the Committee, the payment was not
in consideration for the indmdual becoming a director of the Company For these purposes. “payments” includes the Committee
satisfying awards of vanable remuneration and, In relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the
ume the award is granted
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Nlustration of the Remuneration Policy

Strategic Report

Financial Statements

An illustration of the appiication of the remuneration policy for 2023 is set out below The charts below give an indication of the
level of rernuneration that would be receved by the executive director in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

|

Fixed slerments of rormuncration
only (being FY24 salanes,

5% employer pension
contributions, plus an

estmate for 2023/24 benefits}

Minimum performance

Performance in line
with expectations

Maximum performance

Maximum performance plus
50% share price growth

£5.250
£5000 £4,906
P
£4,750

E4.667

£4500
£4.250
E4000
£3760
£3500

E3.250

£3,087

£3000
£2750
E £2500
£2.250
£2000
£1,750
£1500
£12560
E1000
£75Q
£500

£250

£0

Max wath
growth

Minmum  On-target  Maximum Mimmurn

CEO

ﬂ Swd . Annual Bones - Lorg-term Incentyes o

St B oo Growth
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On-target

[ L [
i

No annual bonus award

For participants in Brokers'
Bonuses, the average of
the last 2 year's bonuses

For the CFG, 0% of base salary

For participants in Brokers' Bonuses,
the In Ine with expectation bonus
plus 0%

For the CFO, 100% of salary

£2233
e20a [ .-

Max with '
growth

Mevurnum

coo

Minmum

No vesting

25% of maximum award vesting
{equivalent to 26% of salary) for
achieving expected performance

100% of maximum award vesting
{(equivalent to 100% of salary) for
achieving maximum performance

100% of maximum award vesting
{equivalent to 100% of salary) for
achieving maxirmurn performance
plus hypothetical share price growth
of 50%

Max with
growth

On-target  Maximum

CFO
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External appointments

The Committee recognises that executive directors may be nvited 1o become non-executive directors in other companies
{including at the request of the Cormpany) Such additional external appointments should not be undertaken without the prior
approval of the board The Committee wil consider whether a Director should be permitted to retain any fees paid for such service

on a case-by-case basis

Policy table for the Chairman and Non-execiitive Directors
§

.o Ve o 2o e

To provide market- The remuneration of the Charrman i1s determned by the While there 1s no maxmum fee No material changes
appropriate fees to Committee and the remuneration of the non-executive level, fees are set considenng
recruit and retain drrectors 15 deterrmined by the board (excluding the non- ket tioe T
individuals of the executive Directors) - market practice for
calibre required to comparative rolgs,
deliver the strategy. Fees are normally reviewed on an annual basis — the time commitment and
h | duties involved, and
Where the Chairman i1z a non-execwtive Chairman, they wail ~ the requrernent to attract and
g}cewc a single feeEz encompé;smg all duties Whgrc tlhebb retan the qualty of Indviduals
ompany has an Executive Chairman, they may be elgi required by the Cormpany
for addmonal elements n Ine with the executive director
palicy table

Non-executive directors receve a basic fee and may alsc
recetve addbional fees for Committee or other board duties

Fees are payable In cash, although the Company may retan
the rght to make payment in shares

Expenses reasonably incurred in the performance of the role
may be rermbursed or paid for directly by the Company, as
appropriate. Including any tax due on the benefts

A non-executive Charman and non-executive directors do
not participate IN any of the Group's bonus arrangements,
share plans or pension schemes

Approach to recruitment remuneration

In respect of the appaintment of a new executive director, the overall approach of the Committee would be to provide
remuneration arrangements sufficient to facilitate the appointment of individuals of sufficient cailbre to lead the business and
deliver the strategy, whilst seeking to pay no more than it considers necessary to secure the required talent

The Committee would normally seek, as far as practicable, to align the remuneration package with that set out in the policy table
for executive directors Base salary would be set at an appropriately competitive level to reflect skills and experience and, where
considered appropriate, may be set at a level which ailows future above-average salary progression to reflect performance in role
if the individual was UK based, pension contributions or a cash allowance in llieu of pension would be payable at a rate not greater
than that avalable to the majority of the UK workforce Currently this 1s 5% of salary. Participation in the annual bonus and the LTIP
would be In lIne with the structure and maximum opportunities set cut N the policy table, other than as referred to below.

Where an ndividual forferts remuneration arrangements with a previous employer as a result of appointment to the Company.,
the Committee may offer compensatory payments or awards to buy-out the awards forfeited And so facilitate recrutment. Such
payments or awards could include cash as well as performance and non-performance related share awards, and would be in
such form as the Committes considers approprate considering all relevant factors such as the form, expected value, anticipated
vesting and timing of the forfeited remuneration There is no limit on the value of such buy-out awards. but the Committee’s
intention is that the value awarded would be no higher than the estimated value forfeited Such awards may be made under the
Compary's existing annual bonus, DBP ard LTIP plans or under arrangements established under 24.2(2) of the Listing Rules

Where an executive director 1s appointed from within the Group, any legacy arrangements may be honoured in ine with the original
terms and conditions Similarly, if an executive Director is appointed following an acquisition of or merger with another company,

the Committee may determine that legacy terms and conditions are honoured.

The remuneration package for a newly apponted Chairman or non-executive director would be in Ine with the structure set out n
the policy table for the Chairman and non-executive drectors
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Service contracts and letters of appointment

The policy for executive directors 1 for them to have rolling service contracts that provide for a notice period by either party.

The notice pericd may range between six and twelve months. The Company may terminate the executive director’s contract by
making a payment in leu of notice of the unexpired notice period equivalent to a value comprising salary, pension and contractual
benefits. There 1s no provision In any of the service contracts of the executive directors for any ex-gratia payments

A non-executive Charrman and non-executive directors are appointed pursuant to a letter of appcintment The policy is that non-
executive directors are appointed for an initial term of three years which may be extended for further three-year penods on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee and with the board's agreement, subject to annual re-election at the AGM. The
non-executive directors’ letters of appointment are to be terminable on one month’s notice from either party.

Executive
Grant Foley
James Gundy
Tris Simmonds

Non-executive
Elzabeth Gooch
loanne Lake
Nigel Payne

Cat Valentine

Appointment date Notice period
1 August 2023 6 months

10 November 2020 6 months
21 July 2024 6 months

21 July 2021 1 month

2 February 2022 1 month

6 April 2021 1 month

16 May 2023 1 rmonth

Loss of office payment policy
In the event that the employment of an executive director 1s terminated, any compensation payabkle will be determined in
accordance with the terms of the service contract as well as the rules of any share or Incentive plans

In the event of termination, the following will normally apply:

Payment in lieu of notice

Annual bonus

OBP awards

LTIP awards

As set out above In the previous section, the Company may terminate crnpioymaent by making a payment in
lleu of notice of the unexpired notice period which shall comprise base salary. pension entitlerments and other
contractual entitlements (or an amount N lleu of them}

There 1s no automatic entitlement in respect of the year of cessation, although the Committee retains the
discretion to make an award for good leavers, taking inte account the crcumstances of departure Any such
award would remain subject to performance and the maximum opportunity would normally be reduced pro-
rata to refiect the penod of the year worked.

if cessation of employrment 1s by reason of death, il-heatth, Injury or disabilty (certfied to the satsfaction of the
Committee), retrement. redundancy or the employing entity no longer being part of the Group, unvested DBP

awards shall vest in full {subject to the normal reduction if the corresponding CSOP option is exercised) on the
ongnal vesting date, unless the Committee decides to accelerate vesting

If cessaton of employment 1s for any other reason, then the Committee retains discreton to apply good leaver
treatrent To the extent the Committee does not exercise this discretion, unvested and vested but unexercised
DBF awards will lapse in full

It cessation of ernployment is by reasen of death, iInjury. disabilty or li-health (certified to the satisfaction of
the Committee), the employing entity no longer being part of the Group or at the discretion of the Committee
any other reason, unvested awards will continue and vest on the normal vesting date, unless the Committee
deciges to accelerate vesting

For all other reasons, unvested awards will lapse on cessation The extent to which unvested awards vest in
these crcumstances will be determined by the Cormmittee, taking INtc account the extent to which the onginal
performance conditions are sabsfied and, unless the Committee determines otherwise, the ponod of time that
has elapsed since the award was granted untl the date of cessation

Vested but unexercised awards held on cessation ordinarily remamn exercisable for a lmted period

For LTIP awards which have vested at time of cessation but have not yet been released from a holding penod,
the vested awards will continug and ordinarily be released on the onginal release date

In the event that a buy-out award 1s made on recruitment, then the relevant leaver provisions would be determined at the time of

the award
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The Committec reserves the nght 1o make any other payments in connection with a director’s cessation of office or employment
where the payments are made in good fath, in discharge of an existing legal oblgation {or by way of damages for breach of such
an oblgation) or by way of settlement of any claim arising in connection with the cessation of a director's office or emnployrment
Any such payments may include, but are not imited to, paying any fees for outplacement assistance and/or the director's legal
and/or professicnal advice fees in connection with their cessation of office or employment.

Remuneration arrangements across the Group

The Group oporatcs o1« nuniber of ditterent sectors and geographies and therefere remuneration practices vary widely across
the employee population. Differences in remuneration practices for executive directors, senior management and other employees
In the Group generally reflect differences in market practice taking Into account rofe, senicrity and geographical location, The
Committee is alse mindful of the importance of executive remuneration baing aligned and proportionate with wider remuneration
practices and policies at all levels across the Group.

Remuneration arrangements must be capable of attracting, retaining and engaging the calibre of talent needed to deliver the
strategy in the specific talent markets in which the Group competes. The involvernent of employees in the Group's performance
is encouraged through participation in incentive plans, appropriate for the markets in which the Group operates In particular, our
shipbrokers, including any relevant executive directors, may participate in commission-tased profit-sharing arrangements which
reflect market practice in industry peers Alignment with shareholders through share ownership s widely encouraged through
participation in share-based incentive schemes.

When making decisions In respect of the executive director remuneration arrangements, the Committee takes into consideration
the pay and conditions for employees throughout the Group, including levels of salary increase and the operation of key
incentive plans

Engagement with shareholders

The Committee remains committed to and encourages cpen and constructive dialogue directly with shareholders. The Committee
mOoNItors INvestors' views, best practice developments and market trends on executive remuneration The Company encourages
sharehclders to contact the Committee Chair with any questions regarding the Palicy Shareholders also have the opportunity to
engage with the Commitiee at the Company's Annual General Meetings
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Implementation of the Policy for FY24
This part of the Report sets out details of how the Remuneration Committee ntends to apply the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

(the “Policy”™} to the current Directors in Fy24

i

The base salaries for the current executive directors are shown below

Fy23 FY24

£'000 £°000 Change
Grant Foley N/A 326 N/A
Jarmes Gundy 475 475 0%
Tns Simmoends 375 375 0%

b ot oty

James Gundy, Grant Foley and Tris Simmonds receive benefits and pension in ine with the Policy

In Ine with the Pelicy, as Jarmes Gundy and Tris Simmaonds continue to undertake broking activities, they continue to be eligible to
participate in the Brokers’ Bonus arrangements. This bonus is non-contractual and is based on profits generated through broking
activities as described in the Polcy

The annual bonus for Tris Simmonds will additionally have an element subject to the attainment of non-financial metrics,
depending on the needs of the business which can reflect the Group's strategy and operational objectives for the year. including
driving efficiencies and growth across the Group

The annual bonus for Grant Foley 1s based on a combination of performance measures linked to Group financial performance and
the achievermnent of the Group’s strategy and operational objectives for the year In FY24, Grant Foley's participation willbe on a
pro-rata basis.

A poartion of the annual bonus awarded to the CEQ, CFO and COO will be deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan, and
the deferral level will be at 10% of bonus outcome.

The board beleves annual bonus targets to be commercially sensitive and, consequently, does not publish details of them on a
prospective basis. However, it will consider a fuller disclosure on a retrospective basis when It reports on the performance against
them In the following vear's Annual Report.

RE

The Committee proposes to grant LTIP awards 10 our executive directors for FY24 at normal policy levels of 100% of salary
{although on a pro-rata basis for Grant Foley) All awards will take the form of nil cost options to acquire ordinary shares of 10 pence
each in the Company following a three-year vesting period subject to meeting the performance criteria set by the Committee and
the rules of the LTIP. More detail on the performance metrics and targets will be disclosed in the related announcement when the
awards are made Any vested awards will be subject to a further two-year holding period

(SRR fer -
During the vear, the Committee reviewed the Charman's fee and this was increased to £135000 with effect from 1 March 2023,

A summary of NED fees 15 sel oul in the table below.

Fy23 FY24

£000 £'000
Chairman fee 108 135
Non-executive director fee 50 b0
Audit & Risk Committee Charr fee 10 10
Remuneration Committee Chair fee 10 10
Committee membership fee’ N/A 5

1 Cat Valentine receves an additonal fee of £5000 for her mermbership on the Remurerauon and Audit & Risk Comrittees
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Implementation of the Policy in FY23
This section sets out detalls of the remuneration outcomes In respect of the year ended 28 February 2023 Those sections that
have been audited have been identified below

I s

The remuneration of the executive Directors in respect of FY23 is shown in the table below (with the prior year comparative)

James Gurndy Nicholas Stone Tns Simmonds'
FY23 Fy22 FY23 Fy22 FY23 Fv22
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Base salary” 450.0 4250 260.0 2500 333.3 1458
Benefits® 2.6 36 1.6 22 27 21
Pension® 22.9 213 12.5 1256 16.7 73
Annual bonus® 2,950 19480 0.0 440 1,250.0 2500
LTIPe 67841 479.0 484.4 1080 - -
SAYE’ 7.9 - 4.6 - - -
Total 4,111.5 28770 7531 44.0 1,602.7 40562
Total Fixed 476.5 4450 2641 2647 352.7 1552
Total Variable 3,636.0 24270 488.0 1500 1,260.0 2500

1 Tns was appointed as Group Chief Operating Officer on 1August 2021 and hus data for 2021/22 represents hus remuneration for the year as a direclor and does
rotinclude Fis remuneration as an employee ‘or his role prior 1o his promotion  His bonus for FY22 i that period was the £250,000 amount shown above This
corrects a disclosure of £145,000 made in this table last year in error {which had further pro-rated an already pro-rated number;

James’ base salary was increased from £425 000 to £475,000 n September 2022 Trie’ oase salary was increased from £250.000 to £375,000 i July 2022
Benefits include private healthcare

Pension includes the value of pensior contributions to the Company’s defined contnbution scheme (or an equivalent cash allowance) in responge of the
relevant year

b Annual bonus represents the full value of the annual ponus awarded inrespect of the relevant financial year, including thie portion that s deterred into shares
pursuart to tne DBT

LTIP represents the value ot the LI P award that ves:s in respect o a performance penod endirg ir the relevant tinanc:al year

SAYE represents the gain on the exercise of shares purchased through the save as you earn scheme

bwr

~;

The fees of the non-executive Directors are shown in the table below.

Fixed fee

Fy23 Fy22

£000 £000

Lesley Watkins 3.5 525
Stephen Kunzer 40 425
Elzabeth Gooch 60 -
Nigel Payne 108 o]
loanne Lake 80 _

odar it Cie Yo ot . Ta - - o
In FY23, Elizabeth Gooch and Joanne Lake each recewved a fee of £5000 for addtional work on behalf of the board in the
management and resolution of reporting ssues which delayed the publication of the FY22 accounts This work involved a
signmcant numbern of addibonai meeltings in Summer 2022 This £5000 fee was in addition to their base NED fees and fees for
chairing the Remuneration Committee and Audit & Risk Committee respectively

i

There were no payments to past directors in the year A summary of Nicholas Stone’s ieaving arrangements (s set cut below

~ A payment In heu of notice, totaling £561.8305C, was paid in his final salary, inclusive of basic salary and pension
contribution entitlerment

- No bonus was paid in respect of FY23 or FY24

- With respect to outstanding LTIP awards, Nichclas Stone received a payment of £51,83050 in lieu of 36653 vested 2019 LTIP
awards and retained all 186,250 vested 2020 LTIP awards, subject t¢ the terms of the LTIP including continued helding perods
All 2021 LTIP awards (88495} were lapsed in full.

— All outstanding DBP awards and inked CSOP options (65180 in total}, which were granted in 2020, 2021 and 2023 were lapsed
in full
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The following bonus payments have been provided for

- Jlames continues to participate in the Brokers’ Bonus, which delivered an outturn of £2 850000 from a successful year This
represented a percentage of profits derived from perscenal broking revenues and a percentage of other revenues generated
across the business krased on his invelvement and leadership across all desks The relevant revenues were then reduced for
agreed costs and an agreed profit share percentage was applied.

- Tns horns delvered an outturn of £1200000 tom a successtul year. The annual bonus for Tris Simmonds in FY23 was
determined with reference to the successful acquisitions made dunng the year and revenues of the broking desks across the
Group with a portion of this revenue allocated to Tns for the purposes of bonus calculation An agreed profit share percentage
was then appled to this calculation

As disclosed, Nicholas Stone did not receve a bbonus for FY23. accerdingly we have not disclosed the onginal profit metrics that
were set for this item

fairo, T 2 Ut P
The Committee granted LTIP awards tc James Gundy dunng the penod at a level of 100% of salary and an exceptional 200%
of salary award for Tns Simmonds in his first year as COQ. The awards have performance criteria based on the Company's
growth in Earnings per Share "EPS”, measured over a three-year performance period ending on 28 February 2026

The underlying EPS measure will be adjusted to eliminate 50% of the estimated impact of changes in foreign exchange
rates over the performance period

The performance targets require a 3-year CAGR growth of 25% or more for full vesting (100% of the award), with threshoid vesting (25%
vesting of the award) at 15% CAGR. For attaining 3-year growth between these points, vesting will be pre-rata on a straight-Ine basis

.o

P PR B L S T SR T PPN L

- The 2020 LTIP awards were granted in July 2020 and were based on performance over a three-year performance period
ending 28 February 2023 aganst the following adjusted EPS targets set when the award was granted: 25% vesting for
underlying EPS of 30 pence in FY23 (the final year of the performance period for the award), rising on a straight-ine basis for
100% vesting for adjusted EPS of 42 pence.

As James Gundy's award was granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award alsc included a performance
condition linked to the underlying operating profit achieved by the previous Shipbroking Division, with 356% of the award vesting

by reference to underlying EPS (with the same thresholds as Nicholas Stone’s award) and 65% vesting by reference to the
cormponents making up the previously reported Shipbroking Division's underlying operating profit achieved in FY23 (the final year
of the performance penod for the award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying cperating profit of £13.8 milion rising on a
straight-Ine basis for 100% vesting for underlying cperating profit of £18 millon.

With an underlying EPS outturn of 4318 pence and a Shipbroking Division underlying cperating profit outturn of £2567 million, the
vesting outturn for each of Nichclas and James was 100%. The awards that vested are now subject to a two-year holding penod,
following which they will be released and become exercisable

Under the shareholding guidelines, executive Directors are reguired to buld and retain a shareholding in the Group at least
equivalent to 100% of ther base salary

Non-executive directors are not subject to a shareholding guideline. The following table sets out the shareholdings (including by
connected persons) of the directors In the Company as at 28 February 2023 This shows that James Gundy and Tns Smmonds
have met the sharehalding guidelinc

Number of shares Shareholding

berehcially held at as a %

28 February 2023 of salary!’ Guidelne met
Executive directors
lames Gundy 772166 516% Yes
Nicholas Stone 14500 17% No
Tris Simmonds 348447 279% Yes
Non-executive directors
Stephen Kunzer 10,000

Nigel Payne 8268
Elzabeth Gooch -
Joanne Lake -

i Shareholding as a percentage of ralary s calcutated using the base salary/fee and the clos ng share price on 28 February 2023
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

The table below provides details of the interests of the executive directors in ncentive awards dunng the year

Awards Awards
held at Share price Exercised/ held at 28 Exercise Exercisable Exercisable

1Mar 2022  Grant date  on grant £ Granted released Lapsed Feb 2023 price £ from to
James Gundy
202 1 TIP 33794 29 00t 1A 730 - - 17243 33,294 - 26 May23 200ct28
2018 DBP 184000 17 Juni@ 210 - 184000 - 194,000 - 30 Aug 22 30 Aug 22
2018 LTIP 184,210 14l 1855 - - 18.01C 166,200 - 11ul 24 1Jul 29
2019 SAYE 5,625 5 g 180 - 5626 - - 160 1AUg 22  1Feb 23
2020 DBP 386,195 9 Jul 20 1.21 - - - 386,195 1221 9 Jul 23 9 Jul 23
2020 LTIP 218,750 24 jul 20 123 - - - 218,760 - 24 1ul 25 24 jul 30
20210BP 169,925 B lun1 266 - - - 169925 266 8lun24 Blun24
2021 LTIP 300,884 14 Jun1 291 - - - 300884 - 14Jun26 14 Jun 31
2023 LTIP - 16 Feb 23 314 184,360 - - 184,360 - 15Feb 26 16 Feb 33
Nicholas Stone®
2019 LTIP 105,263 1S 1.855 - - 68610 36,663 - 1Jul 24 1Jul 2¢
2019 SAYE 4,500 5 Jul1g 1.80 - - — 4500 160 TAug 22 1Feb 23
2020 DBP 28,245 9 Jul 20 121 - - - 28245 1224 9 Jul 23 9 Jul 23
2020 LTIP 166,250 24 Jul 20 1.23 - - - 186,250 - 24 Jul 25 24 {ul 30
2021 D8P - 8 Jun 21 266 - - - 25398 2086 8lunz24  8lun?24
2021LTIP - 1 un2i 291 - - - 88,495 - HMun26 14 Jun 31
Tris Simmonds
2012 DBRP 50,000 17 Julig 2035 - - - 50,000 200 30Aug22 1Sep2?
2020 DBP 34,511 @ Jul 20 122 - - - 34,511 - 9 Jul23 9 Jul 23
2021 DBP - 8 Jul 21 2.66 26,315 - - 20,315 - glun24 8 lun24
2023 LTIP - 16 Feb 23 314 268 516 - - 269516 - 15 Feb 26 16 Feb 33

N

o

Share price ncluded 1s tne Market price or the date of granl When caleulating the number of awards 1o be made, the Company uses the middie market guotations
for the throe trading days prior to grant

James Gundy's 2018 LTIP awarc vesled ir regard to 33,294 shares on 26 May 2027 with the remamder lapsing The award that vested was now subject 1o a two-
year holang pernod which ended on 26 May 2023

Details of Nicholas Stone's leaving arrangements are set out earler in trus report

James Gundy and Mictolas Slore were also given corresponaing oplions under the Company Share Opuon Plan (*CSOP™ over 24860 shares, which will vest on the
same date as the DBF award Tnis Simmonds was given corresponding optiona under the CSOP over 15,000 shares, which will vest on the same date as the DBP
award The rumber of shares In respect of which the DBF award will vest will be reduced to take accounrt ot any gair i value, as at exercise, of the CSOP opticns

The performance conditions attached to the outstanding LTIP awards are as follows:

- 2019 LTIP: Nicholas Stone’s 2019 LTIP award is tested solely on adjusted EPS in FY22 (the final year of the performance period

for the award) with 25% vesting for adjusted EPS of 35 pence rnsing on a straight-line basis for 100% vesting for adjusted EPS
of 48 pence As Jarnes Gundy’'s award was granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award included

a performance cendition linked to the underlying cperating profit achieved by the previous Shipbroking Division with 15% of

the award vesting by reference 1o adjusted EPS (with the same thresholds as Nicholas Stone's award) and 85% vesting by
reference to the previous Shipbroking Division's underlying operating profit achieved in FY22 (the final year of the pertormance
period for the award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying operating profit of £11.25 millien rising on a straight-line
basis for 100% vesting for underlying operating profit of £15 millon. Detall on the outturn of these awards is set out in the 2092
Drectors’ Remuneration Report forming part of the Group's Annuat Report and Accounts 2022

2020 LTIP. Nichclas Stone’s 2020 LTIP award is tested solely on underlying EPS in FY23 {the final year of the performance perod
for the award) with 25% vesting for underlying EPS of 30 pence nsing on a straight-ine basis for 100% vesting for underlying EPS
of 42 pence. As James Gundy's award was granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award again included
a performance conaition linked to the underlying cperating profit achieved by the previous Shipbroking Division with 256% of the
award vesting by reference to underlying EPS (with the same thresholds as Nichclas Stone’s award) and 65% vesting by reference
to the previous Shipbroking Division's underlying operating proft achieved in FY232 (the final year of the performance pericd for the
award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying operating profit of £138 million nsing on a straight-line basis for 100% vesting
for underlying operating profit of £18 millon Detall on the outturn of these awards is set out above.

2021 LTIP. Both James Gunay’s and Nicholas Stone's 2021 LTIP awards had performance critena based on the Company’s
growth in absolute TSR measured over a three-year performance penod ending on 13 June 2024, as folows. the maximum
possible opportunity will vest if growth in TSR is equivalent to a CAGR of 22% or more per annum over the three-year
performance penod. if CAGR over the performance penod is less than 12% per annum, none of the awards will vest, if CAGR

15 12% per annum. 26% of the award will vest, and If CAGR 1s between 12% and 22% per annum, the vesting outcome will be
caiculated on a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%
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= 2022/23 LTIP- Both lames Gundy’s and Tris Simmonds 2022/23 LTIP awards had performance critena based on the Cormpany's
growth in EPS measured over a three-year performance period ending on 28 February 2025 as follows the maximum possible
opportunity will vest if growth in EPS 1s equivalent to a CAGR of 25% or more per annum over the three-year performance
penod, If CAGR over the performance pericd is less than 15% per annum, none of the awards will vest; if CAGR is 186% per
annum, 25% of the award wil vest, and If CAGR is between 15% and 25% per annum, the vesting outcome will be calculated
on a straighit-line basis between 25% and 100%

The followmng table shows the year-on-year percentage change in the salary, benefits and annual bonus of the directors and the
employees of the Company for FY23. The table also includes a comparison aganst the average for the Group’s UK employees for
FY23 compared to FY22 The Company considers that the Group’s UK employees is the more representative comparator group, as
the majerity of the Group's employees are not employed by the Company itself, and as the Group Chief Executive Officer and the
majority of the Group's workforce are UK-based

% Change In basc salary % Change in benefits % Change in annual bonus
FY22 to Fy21to FY22 to FY21to FY22 to FYZto
FY23 FYy22 FY23 Fy22 FY23 FYZ22
All UK employees 12% 6% 0% 0% 104% 13%
All Plc employees 7% 10% 0% -20% 66% 9%
Executive directors
James Gundy’ 6% N/A 0% N/A 51% N/A
Nicholas Stone a% 3% 0% 22% - -78%
Tns Simmaonds? 50% N/A 0% N/A 194% N/A
Non-executive directors
loanne Lake® N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Lesley Watkins® 0% 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Stephen Kunzer 0% 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Nigel Payne® 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ehzabeth Gooch® 18% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

1 James Gundy joned the board on 1 January 2021, 50 therg 1s no prior year companson in respect of FY20 and Fy21
2 Ins Simronds was appointed as Group Chiet Operating Ofiicer on 1 August 2021, so there 15 no prior year comparison
3 Joanre Lake joined the board on 1 March 2022, so there 1s no prior year comparson

4 Lesley Watkins resigned on 31 March 2022

& Nigel Payne joined the board on 1 May 2021, s¢ there 1s no prior year comparison

6 Elizabeth Gooch joined the board on 1| August 2021, so there 1s no prior year companson

The table below shows how the Group Chief Executive Officer’s single-figure remuneration for FY23 compares to the equivalent
single-figure remuneration for the Group’s UK employees ranked at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile

Zath 75th

percentie Median percentile

Yoar Method pay rafio pay ratio pay ratio
2023 Option A 744 4041 181
2022 Option A 801 541 211
2021 Option A 211 1311 51
25th 76th

percentile Median percentile

pay pay pay

2023 £ £ £
Tatal pay and benefits 55,500 102,000 230,000
Salary element of total pay and benefits 48,500 78,462 120,000
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

The Company has agan selected Option A as the method for calculating the CEO pay ratio Option A calculates a single figure

for every UK-based employee in the year to 28 February 2023 and identifies the employees that fall at the 26th, 50th and 76th
percentles This method was chosen as it 1s considered the most accurate way of iIdentifying the relevant employees and aligns to
now the single figure table is calculated

The Company has Included the following elements of pay in its calculation: annual basic salary, alowances, bonuses, share
awards, employer’s pension centrnbutions, and PHD benefits These pay elements were separated into recurnng and Non-recurring
components The recurring components were scaled relative to the proportion of the financial year worked by each individual
employee before being added to the non-recurring eierents such as bonus and share awards

This resulted in a singte figure for each employee, from which the Indviduais at the 256th, 50th and 75th percentiles could
be dentified.

The chart below shows total employee remuneration and distributions to shareholders paid during FY23 and FYZ22 (and the
difference between the two)

FY23 Fyz2 Change

£ million £ milion {%)

Total employee remuneration 98.3 720 365%
Distributions to shareholders 2 2 %

The chart below shows the Total Sharehclder Return of the Company aganst the FTSE All-Share Index over the last ten years
The Committee beleves the FTSE All-Share Index is the most approprate index against which the Total Shareholder Return of the

Company should be measured
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The table below provides remuneration data for the role of the CEO for the current and each of the fast ten financial years over the

equivalent period

FY23
James
Gundy
CEO £000
Single total hgure
of remuneration 4112
Annual bonus
{% of maximumj 74%
LTIP vesting
{% of maximum) 100%

Statement of voting at AGM

Fv22
Jamcs
OU\‘\(Jy

£000

2,830

49%

90%

YA
Ronald
Series/

lames
O wly
E000

714

34%

18

Fy20
lames
Kidwell/
Ronald
Senes
£'000

324

10%

0%

Fy19
James
Wil
E'0C0

404

0%

0%

Fy18 Fy17 Fyi6 Fy15 Fyi4
James James James James James
Hichwell Kichwell Kichwell Kidwell Kicwell
£000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000
579 404 577 549 438
50% 0% 680% 55% 23%
0% 0% N/A® 0% 0%

The following table sets out the votes cast (including those cast by proxy} at the 2022 AGM in respect of the Committee’s Report.
for the year ending 28 February 2022 and at the 2020 AGM in respect of the prior Directors’ Remuneration Policy (which was the
last general meeting of the Company at which a resolution was moved by the Company in respect of the Policy)

Resolution

Approval of Remuneration Report for

year ending 28 February 2022

Approval of Remuneration Policy

Votes

4348717
7,823,464

7124
9780

Votes
aganst
Total votes Voles
4 % cast withheld
17556702 2876 6104 419 1143182
195386 28C 7818850 1540245

The Cornmittee noted and considered the voting outcomes for the resclution to approve the Remuneration Report at our 2022
AGM However, as the Company disclosed In the announcerment regarding the results of the 2022 AGM, the board considers that
the operation of its remuneraticn practices are very clearly in the best interests of all stakeholders of the business and that the
Rermuneration Committee has discharged its duties properly

The board further notes that some of the votes against the Directors” Remuneration Report were cast as a result of "vote against”
recommendations being received from certain proxy shareholder advisory services. From the Company’s perspective, these
recommendations didd not take account of the Company’s specific business model and governance structures and were not

nformed by any direct engagement with the Company

The board and the Remuneration Committee encourage an cpen and constructive dialogue directly wath its shareholders and
continue to be willng to engage with any shareholder on any relevant topics should they so wish. including all remuneraticn topics

within the Committee’s remit.

Elizabeth Gooch

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee

1b November 2023
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 28 February 2023

This section contans additional information that the drrectors are required to include
within the Annual Report Together with the Strategic Report on pages 2 to B3, it
forms the Management Report for the purposes of DTR 415R Other informaticn that
IS relevant to this Directors’ Report, and which s incorporated by reference into this
Directors’ Report, can be found elsewhere in this Annual Report, as follows

- Results and decisinns relating to dividends on pages 5 to ©

- Important events during the year ended 28 February 2023 and Ikely future
developments in the business of the Company or its subsidiaries on pages 5 to 7
and 14 to 15.

— Going concern on page 30

- Greenhouse gas emissions on page 38

- Employee engagement and diversity on page 43

- Engagement with clients and other key stakeholders on pages 32 to 33

- Corporate Governance Report on pages 54 to 89

- Section 172 Staternent on pages 32 to 33

- Risk and compliance framework review on pages 47 to 53.

- Principal decisions taken during the year on pages 2. 14 to 15 and 32 to 33.

— EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

— Non-Financial Information Statement on page 46

Rebecca-loy Wekwete
Company Secretary

Principal activity

Braemar Plc (registered number 02286034) 1s the ulimate holding Company for
the Braemar Group, a global provider of expert investrment, chartering, and risk
management advice to the shipping and energy markets

Review of the business
A more detaled review of the business for the year s included m the Charman's
Statement, the Group Chief Executive Officer’s Statement and the Financial Review

Amendment of Articles of Association
The Company's shareholders may amend the Company's Articles of Association by
special resolution

Branches outside the United Kingdom
The Group has branches and/or representative offices in China, Switzerland and Greece

Change of control - significant agreements

No person holds securities in the Company carrying special rights with regard to
control of the Company. The Company is not aware of any agreements between
hoiders of securities that may result In restrictions in the transfer of securities or
voting rights.

The Cenvertible Loan Notes that are summarised below carry certain accelerated
conversion rights in the event of default on financial commitments associated with
the instruments or business distress within the Group The Conwvertible Loan Netes
shall automatically convert or be redeemed in the event that any person or persons
acting in concert holds more than 50% of the issued share capital of the Group or
an impairment charge in excess of €60 million s reflected in the audited Financial
Statements of the Group.

There are a number of ordinary course of business agreements that take effect,
aiter or terminate following a change of control of the Company, but none of these
are considered 1o have a significant potential impact on the business of the Group
as a whole.

Convertible Loan Note Instruments

On 26 September 201/, the Company completed the acquisition of Braermar Naves

A new class of convertible loan note Instruments (the “Convertible Loan Notes”)
formed a core part of the consideration for this transaction The Company has issued
all of the Convertible Loan MNotes to be issued in connection with this acquisition, of
which £4448 9566 worth reman outstanding
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These Convertible Loan Notes are unsecured and unhsted The Conwertible Loan Notes are denominated in eurcs and, as part of
the restructuring. it was agreed that they would carry a 5% per annum coupon from September 2025, increasing from 3% The
conversion prices were fixed at 3803 pence for management note holders and 450 3 pence for non-management note holders
For moere information on the Convertible Loan Notes, please see Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

Political contributions
There were no political contributions during the year ended 28 February 2023 (2022 £nil)

Share capital and voting rights

As at 28 February 2023, the Company’s totalissued ordinary share capital was 32924877 shares of 10 pence each {28 February
2022 32200279 shares) All of the Company’s shares are fully paid up and quoted on the London Stock Exchange plc’s Official
List. The nghts and cbligations attaching to the Company’'s ordinary shares (as well as the powers of the Company's directors and
any rules relating to ther appontment and replacement} are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, copies of which can
be found online at Companies House, or by writing to the Company Secretary There are no restrichons on the voting nghits or the
transfer restrnictions attaching to the Company’s issued ordinary shares

At the AGM held on 9 August 2023, shareholders passed a resolution to renew the directers’ authoerity 1o allot shares in the
Company Further details are provided in the Notice of the AGM

Share schemes
Detalls of long-term incentve schemes are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 72

Purchase of own ordinary shares

The Company 1s authonsed to make market purchases of the Company’s ordinary shares pursuant to the authonty granted by its
shareholders at the AGM held on 8 August 2023, This authority will expire at the end of the 2024 AGM The Company did not use
this authorty in either the year ended 28 February 2022 or the year ended 28 February 2023

The directors proposed that this authority be renewed at the 2023 AGM In accordance with the Cempany’s Articles of Associaticn
and this resclution was passed In accordance with the ABI Investor Protection Guidelines, the maximum number of ordinary
shares which may be acquired under such authornty 1s 10% of the Company’s issued ordinary shares The directors will only make
a purchase of shares using this authority If it is expected to result n an increase in earnings per share and will take INto account
other available investment opportunities, appropriate geanng levels and the overall position of the Company. Any shares purchased
n accordance with this authority will subseguently be cancelled.

Options and ESOP Trust
The total number of options to subscnbe for shares in the Company that were outstanding as at 28 February 2023 was 2,754,003,

being 836% of the 1ssued share caprtal.

During the year ended 28 February 2023, 2795000 of the Company’s ordinary shares were purchased by SG Kleinwort Hambros
Trust Company (Cl} Ltd, as Trustee of the Company’s ESOP Trust (2022:2 740184). The Trustee had absolute discretion and
independance in respect of any trading decisions it made N respect of these purchases. As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held
3579630 shares

Directors and their interests

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report are shown on pages 58 to 59 Lesley Watkins served as
a director of the Company dunng the year ended 28 February 2023 and until 31 March 2022, Stephen Kunzer also served

as a director of the Company during the year ended 28 February 2023 and until 21 January 2023 Nicholas Stone alsa

served as a dircctor of the Company until 31 July 2023

The directors’ beneficial Interests in the ordinary shares and share options of the Company as at 28 February 2023 are disclosed
in the Directors’ Rermuneration Report on page 81 There have not been any changes in such interests between 28 February 2023
and 31 October 2023.

As at 28 February 2023, the executive directors, in common with other employees of the Group, also have an interest in 3579630
(2022 2669837) ordinary 10 pence shares held by $G Kleinwort Hambros Trust Company (Cl) Ltd on behalf of the Employee Share
Ownership Plan and in 52290 (2022 62,220) ordinary 10 pence shares held by Computershare Trustees (lersey) Limited on behalf
of the ACM Shipping Limited Ernployee Trust

The directors heid no maternal interest in any contract of significance entered by the Company or its subsidianes curing the year
ended 28 February 2023

During the year, the Company mantaned cover for its directors and officers and those of its subsidiary companies under a
directors’ and officers’ llability msurance policy, as permitted by the Companies Act 2006
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Directors’ Report continued
for the year ended 28 February 2023

Significant shareholdings
As at 28 February 2023, the Company was aware of approximately 334% of its ordinary shares being held by Group employees
and the ESOP Trust The working vendors of Braemar Naves Corporate Finance GmbH currently hold €4 448956's worth of

Cornvertible Loan Notes

As at 28 February 2023, the Company was aware of the following significant direct or ndirect shareholdings of 3% or more.

Percentage

of 1ssued

Number of orclinary

Name shares share capital
8G Kleinwort Hambros Trust Company (Cl) Limited as Trustee of the Braemar Shipping Services Plc ESOP 3,641,220 NO06%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management 2871688 872%
Interactive Investor 2357228 716%
Quentin Soanes 1,288,900 3.91%
Barclays Wealth 1,185,936 360%
National Financial Services 1127908 3.43%
Magnus Halvorsen 1,000,000 304%

1 Percentages are shown as a percentage of the Company's total voting ngh's as at P8 February 2023

Financial instruments
The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out In the Corporate Governance Report on pages 56 to 57

and in the Strategic Report on pages 47 to 53

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing this Annual Report and the Group and Company Financial Statements in accordance

with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Company Financial Statements for each financial year Under such law,
they are required to prepare the Group Financial Statements in accordance with international accounting standards n conformity
with the Companies Act 2006 Under the Financial Conduct Authorty's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules, Group Financial
Statements are reguired to be prepared in accordance with UK adopted 1AS and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Under company law, the directors must not approve the Group Financial Statements uniess they are satished that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the Company for that

period
in prepanng these Financial Statements, the directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies In accordance with |AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
grrors and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- present nformaticn, including accounting policies, N a manner that provides relevant, relable, comparable and
understandable information;

— provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specihc reguirements in iFRSs 1s insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, cther evenils and conditions on the Group's financial position and
financial performance.

- Inrespect of the Group Financial Statements, state whether UK adopted IAS and the requirements of the Coempanies Act 2006
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements;

- Inrespect of the Parent Company Financial Statements, state whether UK adopted IAS in conformity with the Companies Act
have been foilowed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements, and

- prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s appropriate to presume that the Company and the
Group will not continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company’s
and Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy the iinancial position of the Company and the Group and enable
thern to ensure that the Company and the Group Financial Statements comply with Section 403 of the Companies Act 2006
They are responsible for such intermal controls as they determine s necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements
that are free from matenal misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Braemar Plc Annual Repurt and Accounts 2023
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lnder applicable law and rogulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Repert and corperate governance statement that complies with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the mairtenance and integrity of the corporate and financial Information ncluded on the
Company’s website, Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from

legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual Financial Report
Each of the directors, whose details can be found on pages £8 to 59, to the best of their knowledge confirm that the

- consohdated Financial Statements, prepared n accordance with UK adopted (AS and the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 give a true and fair view of the assets, labilities, financial position and profit of the Parent Company and undertakings
included In the consclidahon taken as a whole,

- Annual Report. including the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report. together includes a fan review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal nisks and uncertainties that they face,

- Annual Report and accounts, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

Disclosure of information to the auditors
In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, each person who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this Annual

Report confirms that:

- so far as the drector is aware, there is no relevant audit informaticn of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and
— the director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audt
information and to establish that the Company’s auditor s aware of that information

Forward-looking statements

Where this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, these are based on current expectations and assumptions

and only relate 1o the date on which they are made These statements should be treated with caution due 1o the inherent risks,
uncertainties and assumpticns underhing any such forward-locking information. The Group cautions investors that a number of
factors, including matters referred 1o in this Annual Repert, could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or
Implied in any forward-looking staternent. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those discussed on pages 47 to 53 of this

Annual Report.

Forward-locking statements in this Annual Report Include statements regarding the intentions, beliefs or current expectations of
our directors, officers and employees concerning, among other things, the Group's results, financial condtion, liquidity, prospects,
growth, strategies and the business Nether the Group, nor any of the Directors, officers or employees, provides any representation,
assurance or guarantee that the occurrence of the events expressed or implied in any forward-looking staternents i this Annual
Repaort will actually occur Undue relance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements Other than n accordance
with our legal and regulatory obligations, the Group undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-locking
statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

Appointment of the auditors
In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the reappomntment of BDO LLP as auditor of the
Cormpany was proposed and passed at the AGM held on © August 2023

Annual General Meeting

The 2023 AGM of the Company was held on 9 August 2023 al lhe Company's offices; only those resolutions that did not relate
to the 2023 Annual Report and accounts were dealt with and the meeting was adjourned to a later date The reconvened AGM
will be held at 10 am on 18 December 2023 at the Company’s offices at One Strand, Trafalgar Square, London, WC2N 5HR

The reconvened meeting will deal with resolutions 110 4 (Inclusive), as set out In the Notice of Meeting that was sent to
shareholders on 17 july 2023

By crder of the board
Rebecca-loy Wekwete

Company Secretary
15 November 2023
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Braemar Plc

Opinion on the Financial Statements
In our opinion:

- the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at
28 February 2023 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,;

- the Group Financial Statements have hesn properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

- the Parent Company Financial Staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirerents of the Companies Act 2008

We have audited the hnancial statements of Braemar Plg (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year
ended 28 February 2023 which comprise’
Composition Financial reporting framework

Group - Consoldated Income Staternent Applicable law and UK adopted international
- Consolidated Statemeant of Comprehensive Income  accounting standards
- Consoldated Balance Sheet
- Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Netes to the financial staterments, including a

surmmary of significant accounting policies.

Parent Company - Company Balance Sheet Apphcable law and United Kingdom Accounting
- Company Statement of Changes in Total Equity Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
- Notes to the financial staternents, including a 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewark (United Kingdom
summary of significant accounting policies Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
rasponsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the hnancial statements
section of our report. We befieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Committee.

Independence

Following the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appeinted by the board of directors on 2 October 2018

to audtt the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2018 and subsequent financial penods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is five years, covenng the years ended 28 February 2019 to 28 February 2023. We remain independent
of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to qur audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services prohibited by that standard were not
provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group and the Parent

Company’s ability to continue te adopt the going concem basis of accounting included:

- Evaluating the direclors’ going concern assessment and forecasts, including assessing the underlying base case cash flow
forecasts by obtaining supporting docurments, including current forward order book and considering other impacts such as:
- geo-poltical conflict on the business and the shipping industry,

- current economic matters; '

- climate-change; and

- the impact of the legally privileged independent internal investigation (led by independent external legal counsel and
supported by independent forensic accountants} (the "Internal finvestigation”) and associated share suspension, both of
which were announced by the directors on 26 June 2023;

- Evaluating the stress tests performed by the directars, (including additional siress tests and sensilivities identified by the
girectors foliowing the Internal investigation and impact of the matter disciosed in Note 28 1o the financial statements) to
determine whether they are appropnate based on our knowledge of the business and industry and whether further stress tests
should be perforrmed;

- Rewviewing the reverse stress test forecast to assess the point at which covenants woutd be breached or & liquidity
event triggered,

- Considering the directors’ conclusion that the likgihood of the reverse stress case scenario matenalising is remote and the
ability of the directors 10 undertake further mitigating actions that are within their control should this be required,
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- Assessing the Group's covenant compliance calculations (actual at year-end and forecast post year-end)} with the terms of the
facility agreement;

- Assessing the post year end covenant wawvers receved from the provider of the banking facilities following the delay In approval
of the financial statements,

- Assessing the impact on the banking facilities as a result of the findngs of the Internal Investigation and observing covenant
walver correspondence,

- Assessing the impact of prior penod adjustmente on retrospective covenant compliance subrmissions, and

- Assessing the financial statement disclosures regarding going concern to determine whether they are complete and accurate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matenal uncertamties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Parent Company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a penod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for Issue

In relation to the Parent Company’s reporting on how it has appled the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nathing
material to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibiities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Overview
Coverage 3% (2022 98%) of Group revenue and 98% (2022 85%} of Group total assets
Key audit 2023 2022
matters 1 Acquisition of Southport Mantime Inc v
2 Disposal of Cory Brothers Division® v
3 Cut-off on revenue recognition and compliance with the requirerent v
of [FRS 15 revenue recognition*”
4 Imparrment of goodwill in respect of the Corporate Finance Division v
{Naves) Cash Generating Unit (*CGU")
5 Accounting treatment of certain legacy transactions subject to Internal v
Investigation
The accounting treatrnent for the disposal of Cery Brothers Div sion 15 no longer considered to be a key auvdit matter for the 2023
audit onthe basis that the transaction complotea in 2022
st Cut-oft onrevenue recogritior. s no longer considered 10 be a key audit matter due to reduced assessed nsk in the currert year
Materiality Group financial statements as a whole

£201000 (2022 £450000) based on 5% (2022 5%) of underlying profit before tax

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group has diverse internaticnal operations Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and
its environment. including the Group’s system of Internal control, and assessing the risks of matenal misstaterment in the Financial
Statements, We also addiessed the risk ol management overnde of internal controls, including assessing whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that may have represented a risk of matenal misstaternent

We designed an audit strategy to ensure we have obtained the required audit assurance for each component for the purposes of

our Group audit opinion Components were scoped N to address aggregation risk and tc ensure sufficient coverage was obtained
of group balances on which to base our audit cpinion
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Braemar Pic

R e L L A
For the work performed by component auditors, we determined the level of Involvement needed in order to be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a

whole Our involvernent with component auditors inciuded the following:

i

Significant components + We focussed our Group audit scope prmarnly on the audit work at four signficant components

inclucing the Parent Company, which were subject 1o tull scope audit procedures

The significant components cormprise 79% of Group Revenue and 77% of Group assets.

= The Group audtt team audited two significant components with the Singapore and Australia
components being audited by local BDO member firms in the respective countries.

= The Group audit team issued the Group instructions, oversaw the risk assessment process and
the overall audit approach and strategy with the component auditors at the planning stage The
Group audit team performed remote reviews of the significant components working papers The
Group audit team attended several virtual conference mestings with the component auditors
throughout the planning, fieldwork and completion stages of the audt.

Other full scope audits and - There were three components for which full scope audits were carried cut In arder to provide
Specified audit procedures additional audit coverage
- There were two further components which were considered for specified audit procedures
- Specified audit procedures were performed to address the nsk of matenal misstatement linrited
to the significant risk in relation to revenue recognition and certain other financial statement areas
within these components. All other balances were scoped in for analytical review procedures
- The additicnal full scope audits and specific scope audit testing was performed on components
that contribute an aggregate of 14% of the Group revenue and 21% of Group assets
+ These procedures were performed by a component team within BDO LLP, a BDO rmember firm
in Germany and a UK non-BDC Member firm. The Group audit team directed the work for the
specified procedures through the issuance of detaled mstructions, briefings and performing a
review of selected working papers

Remaining components + The remaining 17 components were scoped in for analytical review procecures to confirm ocur
conciusion that there were no significant nsks of material misstatement in the aggregated

financial information
- Certan financial statement areas of the {7 compoenents were subject 1o unpredictability testing
= Al of the analytical reviews were completed by the Group audit tearm or BDO member firms.

[ ’
Our work on the assessment of potential impacts on climate-related risks on the Group’s operations and financial
staternents included.

- Enguines and challenge of management to understand the actions they have taken to identify clmate-related risks and therr
potential impacts on the financial statements and adequately disclose cimate-related risks within the Annual Report:

- Qur own gualtative risk assessment taking nto consideration the shipping sector in which the Group operates and how climate
change affects this particular sector,

- Review of the minutes of board and Audit and Risk Committee mecting and other papers related to climate change; and

— We challenged the extent to which climate-related considerations, including the expected cash flows, where appropriate, in the
directors’ goting concern assessment and viability assessment

We also assessed the consistency of management’s disclosures included as ‘Statutoty olher Information” within the Annual
Report (including the disclosures n the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disciosures {"TCFD™) section) within the financial
statements and with our knowledge obtained from the aucit Our responsibility over other information is further described in the
Reporting on other information section of our repert.

Based on our sk assessment procedures, we did not identify there to be any Key Audit Matters materially impacted by
climate-related risks
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Financial

Staterments of the current period and include the maost significant assessed nsks of materal misstaternent {whether or not due
to fraud) that we identified, Including those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Key audit matter

Acquisition
of Southport
Maritime Inc.

{(See Note 14 and the
accounting pohicy in
Note 3a)

Impairment of
goodwill in respect
of the Corporate
Finance Division
{Naves) Cash
Generating Unit
{(*CauU”)

(See Note 15 and the
accounting policy in
Note 3k)

On 16 of December 2022, the Group acquired
the entire share caprital of Southport Marttime Inc
(“Southport”) The purchase price amounted

to £66 milklon in up-front cash {subect

1o claw backs} and £25 million in deferred
consideration in the form of shares of Braemar
Plc. All consideration is subyect to future
employment conditions.

InIine with IFRS 3 Business Combinations the
Group is required 1o record identifiable assets
and liabities at far value.

The purchase price allocation performed
requires signficant judgement and estimatss,
specihcaly in relation to the valuation of
acqured intangible assets Changes in these
assumptions may have a material impact on
the farr values Due to all consideration being
contingent on future service, and therefore
treated as remuneration, the far value of
consideration was £nil resulting in a gain

on bargain purchase being recorded in the
consolidated (ncome statement of £36 million.

Key assumptions were partcularly noted in the
cash flow forecast and discount rate

There 1s also a nsk that the disclosures are not
complete and accurate

Due to the matters descnbed, we considered
this business combination and in particular the
purchase price allocation as a key audit matter

Bue to the reduction in revenue and profit,
managerment identified a potential impairment
of the: corporate finance CGU.

Management have assessed Imparment
using a value in use Mmaodel which requires a
number of assumptions and estimates.

The impairment review identified an
mpairment of £91 million

Key assumptions In the imparment review
include short term revenue growth rates,
earnings margins, long term growth rates and
discount rates.

For these reasons we considered this area as
a key audit matter
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How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures included,

- Review of the share purchase agreement and
confirmation of key terms including confirmation that
all consideration was subject to future employment
conditions;

+ With the support of our internal valuation experts

and through interactions with the management

team of Southport, we assessed the completeness

of intangible assets identified, appropriateness of

valuation methodologies utilised and assessed the key

assumptions including revenue growth rate and discount
rate applied;

Recalculating the gain on bargain purchase recorded

In the consolidated Income staterment based on the

consideration and net assets acquired:

+ Obtaning supportng evidence for all other material
acquired assets and liabilties, on a sample basis, other
than for cash which was tested in total; and

+ We have also assessed the note disclosure (Note 14)
under the requrements of IFRS 3 for completeness and
ACCuracy.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed, we are satisfied
that the acguisition accounting for Southport meets the
requirernents of IFRS 3 and that the disclosures comply
with the requirements of the accounting framework

Qur procedures included.

= Challenging management's assurnptions in respect of
the cash flow forecasts including obtaning supporting
documents for revenue growth such as current pipeling,
considenng histonc forecasting accuracy, analysing
industry trends and using our knowledge of the business,
Challenging management on any significant changes in
assumptions from prior year, including changes to short
term revenue growth rates, earnings margins, long term
growth rates and discount rates.
Utilising our own internal valuation experts to assess
the adequacy of the discounts rates and long-term
growth rates applied, and to assess the mechanics and
rmathermatical accuracy of the value in use models; and
+ Considenng managerent's senstivities and perfarming
our own sensitivities where considered necessary in
respect of the key assumptions.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed. we are satisfied that
the assumptions made by management in the mpairment
review are approprate and therefcre also that the
imparment recognised is within an acceptable range
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of Braemar Pl

Key audit matter

Accounting
treatment of
certain legacy
transactions

subject to Internal

Investigation

(See Note 28,

Charman’'s Statement
pages 5 to /7, Financial
Review pages 28 to 30,
Corporate Governance
Report pages 54 to

As announced by the directors on 26 june
2023, with further updates announced on
22 Septernber 2023 and 26 October 2023,
the directors engaged external forensic
accountants and external legal advisers to
undertake the Internal Investigation, which
uttimately encompassed review of several
legacy transactions.

The 26 June 2023 announcerment stated that

N 213, and involves payments being made
through to 20177

89 and the Report

of the Audit & Risk
Committee pages

60 to 64)

Following the completion of the Internal
Investigation which was announced by the
directors on 28 October 2023, a provision of
£20 millon was recorded on the Consclidated
Balance Sheet as set cut in Note 28 The

£20 million provision results from a £17 milion
reclassfication from trade payables where
the balance was recorded in the prior year
financial staterments, and an additicnal charge
of £0.3 million to the Consoldated Income
Staterment charge

There 1s a nsk that the accounting is not N lne
with the results of the Internal Investigation,
that further accounting entries are required
such that the provision 1s not complete and/or

accurate, and that disclosures are not complete

and/or accurate.

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materialty both In planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements We
consider materalty to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of

reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements

the Internal Investigation related to “a particular
transaction of circa $3 milion, which orignated

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Qur procedures included

+ With the support of our internal forensic speciabsts,
assessing the nature, scope and objectives of the Internal
Investigation to ensure that it was appropriately designed
to address the potential Issues raised,

+ reading the output from the Internal Investigation
ncluding and considenng management's assessment
of the associated impact on the financial staternents
in terms of the appropnate accounting treatment and
disclosures,

- assessng associated documents, including minutes of
meetings held by the Group’s Investigation Committes,
and holding discussions with the firms undertaking the
Internal INnvestigabon;

» discussing the accounting treatment and quantum of

the provision with management and the Group's external

legal advisers; and

assessing the completensss and accuracy of the

disclosures included in Note 28

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed, we are satisfied that
the accounting adopted in respect of the transactions is In
cormgliance with the accounting framework adopted, and

that the disclosures are complete and accurate based on

the requirements of the accounting framework adopted

In arder to reduce to an appropnately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed materalty, we use a lower matenality
level, performance materialty, to determine the extent of testing needed Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not
necessarilly be evaluated as immatenal as we also take account of the nature of identified misstaternents, and the particular
circumnstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial staterments as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whale and performance
matenality as follows

Materiality
Basis

Rationale

Group
£001000 (2022 £450000)

6% (2022 6%} of underlying profit before tax

Underlying proit before tax 1s considered the most
appropriate benchmark based on the nature of
the trading business where In cur Judgement the
stakeholders would be most interested in the
performance of the business and underlying profit
being a key performance measure in this regard
We also consider this te be consistent with market
practice and Investor expectations
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Parent Company
£810.000 (2022 £405,000)

Based on 90% (2022 90%) of Group matenality

Capped maternialty at 90% (2022 20%) of Group given the
assessment of component aggregation risk
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Further materialty measures applied in the conduct of the audit nclude

Measure Application
Performance  Group: £585000 (2022 £283000) Performance materialty was set at 685% (2022: 83%) based
materiality Parent: F526:000 (2022 £252000) on the history of misstatements identified in the prior years

and the number of accounts subject to high degrees of
estimation and judgement

Component The range of matenality used for components Our audt work at each component has been executed
materiality ranged from £43000C0 to £810000 at levels of matenalty applicable to each individual entity
(2022 £120000 to £405000) based on its size and risk as approved by the Group
audit team and In each case, lower than that applied to
the Group

We set materatty for sach component of the Group based
on a percentage of between 48% and 90% (2022 27%

and 90%) of Group materialty dependent on the size and
our assessment of the risk of material misstatement of that
component. In the audit of each component, we further
applied performance materiality levels of 65% (2022 62% to
70%} of the component materiality to our testing to ensure
that the risk of errors exceeding cormponent matenalty was
approprately mitigated.

Reporting Group: £18000 (2022 £8000) All audit differences In excess of the reporting threshold'

thresheld . ) are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee, as well as
Parent: £16000 (2022 £8000 . - ’

( ) differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted

reporting on gualtative grounds.

Quantitative We also report to the Audit and Risk Cornmittee on disclosure matters that we identfied when assessing the
& qualitative  overal presentation of the financial statements
disclosures

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other nformation comprnises the information included in the Annual
Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other Information and, except to the extent otherwise explictly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility 1s 1o read the other information and, n doing so, consider whether the other information is
matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtaned in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears

te be materially misstated If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required o
determine whether this gives rise to a matenal misstaterment in the financial statemenits themselves If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a matenial misstatement of this other infarmation. we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directers’ staternent in relation 1o going concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the Corporate Governance Staterment relating to the Parent Company’'s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement 1s materially consistent with the financial staterments or our knowledge obtained dunng the aucit.

Going concern and - The directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of
longer-term viability accounting and any material uncertainties identified set out cn page 52; and
+ The directors’ explanation as to therr assessment of the Group's prospects, the perod this
assessment covers and why the period 1s apprepriate set out on page 105

Other Code provisions - Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 88;
+ Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal nsks
set out on page 49;
+ The section of the Annuat Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems set out on page 64; and
+ The section describing the work of the Audit & Risk Committee set out on page 60

Braemar Plc Annual Reporl and Accounts 2023



96

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Braemar Plc

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed during the course of the audit, we are required by the
Companies Act 2006 and I1SAs {UK) to report on certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and in our opinion, based on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

Directors’ report + lhe informalion given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the Tnancial year tor which
the hinancial staterments are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements; and
- the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its
environment obtaned in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or the Directors’ report

Directors’ remuneration  [n our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared n accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Matters on which we We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
are required to report 20086 requires us 10 report to you if, in our opinion.
by exception - adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adeguate for

our audit have not been recenved from branches not wisited by us; or

+ the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

- certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audt

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully In the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine 1s
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error

In preparnng the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going corcern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either iIntend to iquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but 10 do s0

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free frarm material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance 1s a
high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists Misstaternents can anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually or In the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staternents
oo, . . e . T L S L N I P t.

Irregulanties, includng fraud, are instances of non-complhance with laws and regulations We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outined above, to detect material misstaterents in respect of irregutarities, Inciuding fraud The extent to which cur
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detalled below

- We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which t
operates, through discussion with rmanagement and the Audit and Risk Committee and our knowledge of the industry;

- We focused on significant laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstaternent In the financial statements,
ncluding, but nat imited to, the Companies Act 2008, the UK Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority, UK adopted
International accounting standards for the Group and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice for the Parent
Company. Health and Safety legislations. the Bribery Act 2010 and tax legislations,

- We considered comphance with these laws and regulations through discussions with management, and in-house legal counsel,
reviewing internal audit reports and discussing with the Audit and Risk Committee Qur procedures also included reviewing
minutes from board meetings of those charged with governance to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations as well as attending Audit and Risk Commitiee meetings,

— With support from our internal forensic specialists, and pursuant to agreeing an appropriate limited warver of legal professional
privilege. we read and assessed the report in respect of the Internal Investigaton and associated documents, Including minutes
from the Investigation Committee, and held discussions with the firms undertaking the Internal Investigation — our Key Audit
Matter "Accounting treatment of certain legacy transactions subject to Internal Investigation” above, containg further details;
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- With the support of our internal tax specialists, we reviewed the Group’s tax computations against the reguirements of the
relevant tax legislation and where applicable, reviewed correspondences with relevant taxation authorties,

- We reviewed the financial statements disclosures aganst the requirernents of the applicable accounting framewaork, and

- We reviewed documentation in relation to the Capital Reduction process that was completed to address the payrment of
unlawful dividends historically. and increase the Group's capacity to pay future dividends, as disclosed in Note 12.

- With the support of our forensic specialists we assessed the susceptibiiity of the Group's financiat statements to rnaterial
misstaternent, INcluding how fraud might occur. We considered the fraud risk areas to be management override of controls and
revenue recognition, as well as certain matters arising from the Internal Investigation. We performed a robust risk assessment and
obtained an understanding of the design and implementation of relevant controls surrounding the revenue recognition process for
each revenue stream and the relevant controls over the financial reporting close process (FRCP) such as controls over the posting
of journals and the consoclidation process and obtained an understanding of the segregation of duties in these processes:

- In addressing the nsk of fraud including management override of controls we tested the appropriateness of journal entries
made throughout the year by applying specific criteria to select a sample. verified to supporting documents and obtained an
understanding of the business rationale for each of the journal entries;

- Inrelation to the improper revenue recognition fraud nsk, on a sample basis, we tested revenue recognised in relation to new
buld and second-hand ship sales by obtaning evidence to support the satisfaction of the performance oblhgation and that
revenue was recorded in the correct period. We also tested material manual Jjournals that impacted all revenue streams by
obtainng supporting documents and assessing the business rationale and validity of the journals;

-~ We performed a dstalled review of the Group's vear end adjusting and consolidation entries and investigated any that appeared
unusual as to nature or amount through inquiry with managerment on the nature of the adjustment and verification to supporting
evidence,; assessed whether the judgements made and accounting estimates were ndicative of a potential bias particularly on
one-off transactions such as the acquisition of Southport Maritime Inc. which involved judgements and estimates (refer to the
key audit matter section above); Specifically, we considered the facts and circumstances in respect of the internal Investigation
and accounting referred to in Note 28,

- We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud ngks to all engagement team members
and component auditors, who were deemed to have the appropriate competence and capabilites, and remained alert to any
indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit;

- The component teams also considered the susceptibility of the financial statements due to fraud in respect of the relevant
components. Testing of management override was completed by the component teams through testing the appropriateness of
a sample of journal entries in line wath the journal testing procedures as detalled above and assessment of risk of managerment
bias on the significant jJudgements and estimates as detailed in Note 2;

- We appiled professional scepticism in our audit procedures and performed randomised procedures to Include a level of
unpredictabiity, and

- We performed an assessment of the Group’s IT and the wider control environment and as part of this work obtained an
understanding of the design and implementation of IT access controls.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to nisks of matenal misstatement in the financial staterents, recogrising that the
rnsk of not detecting a matenal misstaterment due to fraud 1s higher than the nisk of not detecting one resuiting from error, as fraud
may mnvolve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through cellusion. There are inherent imitations
In the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations 1s from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibliities 1s available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at. www fre.org uk/
audhiorsiesponsibililies. This description forms part of our auditor’s report,

Use of our report

This report 1s made sclely to the Parent Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company's members those
nmatters we are required to state to them in an auditor’'s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept of assume responsioility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

Oliver Chinneck (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP. Statutory Auditor
Londeon, UK

15 November 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales {(with registered number OC305127)
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Continuing operations

Revenue

Other operating Income

Operating expense
Operating costs
Acquisition-related expenditure
Impairment of inancral assets’
Impairment of goodwill

Total cperating expense

Operating profit

Share of associate loss for the year
Finance INncome
Finance costs

Profit before tax from continuing
operations

Taxation

Profit from continuing operations

Profit net of tax from discontinued
operations

Profit attnbutable to eguity
shareholders of the Company

Total

Earnings per ordinary share
Basic
Diluted

Continuing operations

Earnings per ordinary share
Basic
Diluted

Notes

10

510
10
510
10

20
8,10
8,10

10, 11

13
13

28 Feb 2023
Spgqiﬁc

Underlying items Total
£000 £000 £'000
162,911 S 152,011
o= =3i8465 3,846
{132,598) (355) (132,953)
- (1,999) {1,999)
(238) {848) {1,086)
- {9,060) (9,050)
(132,836) {12,252) (145,088)
20,075 (8,406) 11,669
{23) - {23)

119 83 202
(2,131) (266) {(2,397)
18,040 (8,689) 9,451
(4,641) (214) {4,855)
13,399 (8,803) 4,596
13,399 {8,803} 4,596
Underlying Total
46.22p 15.85p
38.62p 13.25p
46.22p 16.86p
38.52p 13.25p

Underlying
F£000

101,310

(90,503}

(747}

(91,250)
10,060
(19)

21
(1,237}

8.886

{(1,829)
7046

1493

8,632

Underlying

2795p
2278p

2308p
1879p

28 Feb 2022

Specific
tems
£000

(392}
(122}

514
(514)

172
(242)
(342

5,722

5,380

Total
£000

101.310

{20,895}
(122}
(747)

(&1,764)
9,546
a19)

253
(1,237)

8,543

(1.839)
6,704

7215

13,219

Total

45 56p
3713p

2194p
1788p

1 The 2022 operating costs have been rectated to show imparrmert of inancial assets separataly 00 the ncome statement Imparment of financial assets was

previously within operating costs

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 165 forrm an integral part of these Financial Statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 28 February 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive incomef{expense)

ftems that wilf not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Actuanal gain on employee benefit schemes — net of tax

fterns that may be reciassified to profit or loss:

- Foreign exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations
- Investment hedge

- Cash flow hedges - net of tax

Other comprehensive income/(expense) from continuing operations

Discontinued operations.
- Share of other comprehensive income/{expense) of associates
- Recycling of foreign exchange reserve

Other comprehensive income from discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 165 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes

29

32

1,20

28 Feb 2023
£°000

4,596

2,361

2,522

{124)

29
5,050

9,646

28 Feb 2022
£000

13,919

1,318

b38

(1,968)
{112)

52

408
460

14,267
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 28 Felbruary 2023

Assets

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other investments

Investment In asscoiate
Dervative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets

Pension surplus

Other long-term receivables

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Financial assets

Derivative financial Instruments
Current tax recevable

Cash and cash equivalents
Assets held for sale

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Derivative financial iInstruments

Trade and other payables

Current tax payable

Provisions

Conwertible loan notes

Liabilites directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilties
Derivative financial instrurments
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Convertible loan notes
Deferred consiceration
Pension deficit

Total liabilities

Total assets less total liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Share prermium

ESOP reserve

Cther reserves

Retained earnings/{deficit)

Total equity

As at 28 Feb
2023
Note £'000
15 71,407
18 3,980
17 5,320
19 1,780
20 701
24 30
9 4,794
29 1,120
21 8,554
_ 97,686
22 43,323
24 -
24 1,224
973
25 34,735
80,255
_T7ea
24 1122
26 57,310
410
28 2,575
27 699
65,847
27 29,919
9 344
24 1,022
24 642
28 734
27 2,852
27 -
29 -
36,413
—101,260
76,681
30 3,202
30 53,796
31 (10,607}
32 28,819
1,381
76,681

Rostated

As at 28 Feb
2022

£000

70,251
997
7078
1.780
724

8
3713

5636
090,827

35,792

54

13,964

49,810
149,637

688
39183
1608
486
1.416

43,381

28331

335
797
2755

485
2,062

34,765
78146
71491

3221
53030
6771
26130

(4.119)

71491

Restated

As at 1 March
20

E000

83,055
2129
2,841
1,962

3,763
200
2,200

&3]

1,888
106,638

32.416
746
1573

14,111
438

50,282
156,920

47833
1,318
307
4461
126

54,044

31634
174

56
6980
2,681

882
3,812

39,936
~ 93980
62,940

3174
52,510
{1.362)
27100
(18,482)

62,940

The Balance Sheets as at 1 March 2021 and 28 February 2022 have been restated for a prior period adjustment, see Note 356 for

more detall.

The Financial Staterments on pages 104 to 185 were approved by the board of directors on 15 November 2023 and were signed on its

behalf by

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Ofhcer

James Gundy
Group Chief Executive Officer

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accourts 2023
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinued operations
Adliustrnent for:
Deprecialion and arnor Usation charges
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Net loss on disposal of PPE
Share scheme charges
Net foreign exchange gans with no cash impact
Gain on acquisition of Southport
Gain on disposal of shares in AqualisBraemar
Gain refating to disposal of Cory Brothers
Gain on digposal of Wavespec
Loss on impairment of Wavespec recevable
Imparment of Naves goodwill
Imparment of property. plant and equiprnent
Imparment of intangible assets
Impairment of financial asset
Reversal of dilapidations provision
Adstment for non-operating transactions ncluded in profit before tax:
Net finance cost
Share of loss/{profit} In associate from continuing and discontinued operations
Adjustment for cash items in other comprehensive income/expense.
Contribution to defined benefit scheme

Operating cash flow before changes in working capital

Increase n receivables
increase in payables
Increase N provisions

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest receved
Interest paid
Tax paid, net of refunds

Net cash generated from operating activities

Braemar Ple Anual Repor! and Accounts 2023

28 Feb 2023

Notes £'000
9,451

il -

16,17 3,364
87

20

4,520

(1,167)

14 (3,8643)
10, 11 -
10, 11 (203)
10, 11 -
1C.1 -
9,050

10 150
80

10 848
{(124)

8 2,196
20 23
29 450)

24191

{14,867}
16,836
2,081

28,261

119
1,925)
(4,381)

22,064

Restated

28 Feb 2022
£'000
85643
8,081

3483

10
2884

(3.375)
(4134)

{694)
2,381

392

684
(56)
(450}

18,169

(7577)
12,571
285

23,438

12z
(@21)
(2161

20,468
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Restated
28 Feb 2023 28 Feb 2022
Naote £'000 £000
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 {695) (652)
Puchiase ul ullien nilangible assels 1G (80) (10}
Investment in associate 20 - (326}
Acquisiion of business {cash acquired) 14 349 -
Disposal of Cory Brothers, net of cash disposed 1 6,500 (12.353)
Disposal of Wavespec. net of cash disposed 1 - {63)
Proceeds frorm disposal of investment In associate 20 - 7232
Principal received on finance lease recevables 18 607 799
Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities 8,671 (5,868)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from RCF loan facility' 7.694 8,292
Repayrment of RCF ioan facility' (3,000) (8.000)
Repayment of principal under lease labilites 18 (3,86B6) (3,621)
Cash proceeds on 1ssue of new shares 30 694 -
Cash proceeds on exercise of share awards settled by release of shares from ESOP 477 -
Dwidends paid 12 (3,190) (2,109
Purchase of own shares 31 (7,963) (7043)
Settlement of convertible loan notes 27 (1,448) (2,506)
Net cash used in financing activities {(10,601) (15.077)
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,134 477)
Cash and cash equivalents at begirning of the year 25 13,864 14,164
Foreign exchange differences 2,637 277
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25 34,735 13,964

1 The 2022 cash proceeds and repayment from the RCT facility have been restated as thoy were previously reported as £282 000 on a ret bas s

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 165 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accourts 2023



103 Strategic Report

Governance

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity

For the year ended 28 February 2023

Group Notes
At 1 March 2021
Prigs penod adjustment 35

At 1 March 2021 (restated)
Profit for the year

Actuarial gan on employee benefits
schemes — net of tax

Foreign exchange dfferences
Cash flow hedges - net of tax

Other cocmprehensive iIncome from
discontnued operations

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners.

Dindends 12
Shares issued 27,30, A
Acquisition of own shares

ESOP shares allocated

Share-based payments 30

At 28 February 2022 (restated)
Profit for the year

Actuanal gan on employee benefits
schemes — net of tax

Foreign exchange differences
Cash flow hedges - net of tax
Net investment hedge

Other comprehensive income
Totel comprehensive Income

Transactions with owners in ther
capacity as owners:

Deferred tax Income on share awards
Dimdends 12
Shares issued 27 30
Acquisition of own shares

ESCOP shares allocated

Share-based payments 30

At 28 February 2023

Share
capital
F'000

3174

3174

47
3,221

71
3,292

Share
premim
£000

52,510

52,610

520

b

520
53,030

768

766
53,7986

ESOP
rescrve

£:000
(1.362)

(1,362)

(25)
(7,043)
1,659

(5409)
(6,771}

(7,963)
4,127

(3,836)
(10,60Q7)

Other
reserves

£'000
28,084

(294}

27100

b38
(1.268)
480
870)
870

f

28,819

The accompanying notes on pages 104 1o 165 form an integral part of these Financial Statemenits
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Retaned
{deficity
earnings
£'000
(15,9086)
{2 576

(18,482}
13,219

1,318

1.318
16,237

(2108)

(1659
2,894

(874)

(4,149)
4,588

2,361

2,361
8,957

863
(3.180)

(3.650)
4,520

(1,475)
1,381

Total
equity
£000

56,510
{3,570

62,840
13,618

1,318
538
(1.268)

460
348
14,267

(2109}
542
{7.043)

2.8¢4
{5,716}

71,491
4,596

2,361
2,622
201

(124)

5,050
9,646

863
(3,190)

837
(7,963)

a77
4,520

(4,456)
76,681
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Braemar plc {the "Compary”, previously Braemar Shipping Services pic) is a public company limited by shares incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act The Company is registered in England and Wales and its registered address is 1 Strand,
Trafalgar Square, Londen, United Kingdom, WC2N 5HR The consolidated Financial Staterents of the Company as at and for the
year ended 28 February 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group’).

The Group Financal Statements of Braemar Ple for the vear ended 28 February 2023 were authonsed for issue in accordance with
aresolution of the directors on 15 November 2023.

1 Basis of preparation

The Consoldated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention except for terns measured at fair value as set
out In the accounting policies below.

Certan statements in this Annual Report are forward-looking Although the Group believes that the expectations reflected in these
forward-locking statements are reasonable, it gives no assurance that these expectations will prove to have been correct These
forward-locking statements involve risks and uncertainties, so actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied
by these forward-laoking statements

The Group Financial Statements are presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand sterling (£'000)
except where otherwise indicated

There were no new standards or amendments (including the armendments to IFRS 3, IAS 1 and the Annual improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle) that were adopted in the annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February
2023 which had a significant effect on the Group.

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the IASB that are
effective n future accounting pericds that the Group has decided not to adopt early

The following amendments are effective in future periods and have not been early adopted by the Group:

- Insurance Contracts ((FRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17);

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and (AS 28}
- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current {Amendments to IAS 1);

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies {Armendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

- Definttion of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8);

- Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabiities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12), and

- International Tax Reform - Pillar Twe Model Rules — Amendments to 1AS 12

The adoption of these standards and amendments is not expected to have a material impact on the Financial Staternents of the
Group in future periods.

In January 2020, the 1ASRE 1ssued amendments to 1AS 1, which clarify the critcna used to determine whether labilties are classified
as current or non current These amendments clanfy that current or non-current classification 1s based on whether an entity

has & right at the end of the reporting pericd to defer settlement of the liabllity for at least 12 months after the reporting period
The amendmerits also clarify that “settlement” includes the transfer of cash, goods, services, or equity Instruments unless the
oblgation to transfer equity mstruments anses from a conversion feature classified as an equity nstrument separately from

the lability component of a compound financial instrument Following concerns raised by stakeholders, the IASB ssued further
armendments In Qctober 2022 to specify that only those covenants which an entity must comply with on or before the reporting
perted should affect classification of the corresponding liability as current or non-current The October 2022 amendments defer
the effective date of the January 2020 amendments by one year in order that both sets of amendmants are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with earlier application permitted

Under the Group's current accounting policy, a financial lability with an equity conversion feature 1s classified as current or non-
current disregarding the impact of the conversion option The amendments to IAS 1 will result in the equity conversion feature
relating to certain of the Group's financial labiltes. iImpacting the classification of those liabiities While the Group's assessment
of the Impact 1s ongoing, the Group expects that amounts included as nen-current in relation to “Convertible Loan Notes” will be
reclassified to current liabilities

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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The Company has elected to prepare its Parent Company Financial Statements n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (“FRS 1017)

The Group and Company Financial Staterents have been prepared on a going concern basis. in reaching this conclusion
regarding the going concern assumption, the directors considered cash flow forecasts to 28 February 2026 which s more than
12 monthc from the dato of cigning of theoe MNnancial Statemaents

A set of cash flow forecasts ("the base case”) have been prepared by management and reviewed by the directors based on
revenue and cost forecasts considered reasonable in the ight of work done on budgets for the current year and the current
shipping markets In putting together these forecasts particular attention was pad to the following factors:

- The Group’s compliance with sanctions put in place as a result of the conflict in the Ukraine has meant additional work
reviewing compliance obligations on a regular basis as the laws have been amended but did not have a matenal effect on
trading In FY23, nor 1s it expect to have an impact in FY23/24.

- The level of likely cost inflation, particularly around salaries and energy costs.

- The Group's Investment in a new office In Madrid, an acquisition in the US and new trading desks in the Secunties business
have started well and there 1s no indication that integration risks are going to be a threat to the forecasts for FY23/24.

- Geopoltical tensions can cause volatility in shipping markets, but If anything. that uncertanty can give nse to additional
opportunities for the business to support the Industry and clients further There is therefore no expectation that the current
global poltical tensions will have an adverse impact on trading in FY23/24.

- The impact of climate change 1s not expected to have any matenal impact on the busingss 1n the short term and ndeed could
lead to additional opportunities.

- The impact that the investigation and resulting delay in publishing the annual report and accounts couid have on the
performance and reputation of the business.

The directors have considered trading performance during the current year and have concluded that none of these factors are
currently likely te have a significantly adverse impact on the Group's future cash flows.

The Group's balance sheet has been strengthened significantly due to the strong trading and disposals of non-core assets during
the prior year As at 28 February 2023 the Group held net bank cash of £6€ milion (2022; net bank debt £9.3 millon). As at 30
Septermber 2023 the Group had net bark cash of £53 million, following the payrment of year end broker bonuses.

30 Sept 2023 28 Feb 2023 2B Feb 2022
£m £m

Nole £m
Secured revolving credit facilities 27 {25.1) {27.8) (23.3)
Cash 25 30.4 34.7 14.0
Net cash/{debt} 5.3 8.9 (9.3)

During the period, the Group has extended its revoiing credit facility {"RCF”) with its mam bankers, HSBC The RCF is for £300
million plus an accordion limit of £10.0 milion and has an initial termination date of November 2025 with two options, subject to
lender approval, to extend the term of the facility by 12 and 24 months respectively Drawdown of the accordion facility is subject
to addiiona! credit approval It has an EBITDA leverage covenant of 25x and a minimum interest cover of 4x. At 31 May 2022, 31
August 2022, 30 Novermber 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group met all financial covenant tests. In addition, there is a further
reguirement to provide HSBC with the Group's audited Financial Staternents within 6 months of the year-ena. Due to the delay in
completing the audited Financial Statements the Group obtained waivers for this requirement.

The cash flow forecasts in the base case assessed the abilty of the Group to operate both within the banking covenants and
the facility headroom, and included a number of downside sensitivities on the budgeted revenue, ncluding a reverse stress test
scenario The directors consider revenue as the key assumption in the Group's budget. The cost base 1 largely fixed or made up
of discretionary bonuses, which are directly Inked to profitability. Based on two flex scenarios, a revenue decrease of 75% and a
revenue decrease of 15% from the base case, only very minor mitigations were necessary to meet banking covenants.

Areverse stress test was also performed to ascertain the point at which the covenants would be breached in respect of the key
assumption of budgeted revenue decline This test Indicated that the business, alongside certain mitigating actions which are

fully in control of the directors, would be capable of withstanding a reduction of approxmately 35% in budgeted revenue from

the base case assumptions from September 2023 through to February 2025 In light of current trading, forecasts and the Group's
performance over FY23, the directors assessed this downturn in revenue and concluded the likelhood of such a reduction remote,
especially in ight of the forward order book of $65 milion at the end of September 2023 (£38 millon of which is for the financial
year ending February 2024 and 2025), such that it does not impact the basis of preparation of the Financial Staterments and there
is no matenal uncertanty in this regard
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 Basis of preparation ontinued
The consoldated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of Braemar Plc {(previously Braemar Shipping Services
plc) and all its subsidianes made up to 28 February each year or 28 February in a leap year

Subsidianes are entities that are controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the rights to vanable returns from its
Involvernent with an entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity The results of subsidiaries
sold or acquired during the year are Included In the accounts up to, or from, the date that control exists All intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in full

2 Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of the Group's Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent llabilites, at the reporting
date Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical expernence and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual experience may differ from these
estimates and assumptions

R Y o A T A T T

The following are the key estirmates and assumptions that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have a signicant nsk of resulting in material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next inancial year

Goodwilt s tested for impairment on an annual basis, and the Group will also test for imparment at other times f there 1s an
indication that an impairment may exist Determining whether gocdwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of
the cash-generating units to which these assets have been allocated. The value-in-use calculation estimates the present value
of future cash flows expected to arise for the cash-generating units The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable
discount rates and the estmation of future growth rates which vary between cash-generating units depending on the specific
risks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to each cash-generating unit (see Note 15 for a description of
the approach used by managaement to determine these key values)

As part of determining the value in use of each CGU group, Management has considered the potential Impact of cimate change
on the business performance over the next five years, and the terminal growth rates. While there is considerable uncertanty
relating to the longer term and quantifying the impact on a range of outcomes, management considers that environmental-related
incremental costs are expected to have a relatively low impact. Recognising that there are extreme but unlikely scenarios, the
Group considers that while exposed to physical rsks associated with climate change (such as flooding, heatwaves, sea level rises
and increased precipitation) the estimated impact of these on the Group is not deemed matenal.

In addiion, the Group is exposed to transitional risks which might arise, for example, from government policy, customer
expectations, matenal costs and increased stakeholder concern. The transttional nsks could result n financial mpacts such
as higher envircnmentally focused levies (e.g. carbon pricing). While the Group 1s exposed to the potential financial impacts
associated with transitional risks, based on information currently available, these are not deemed to have a significant impact.

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method, based on the far values of the consideration pald Assets
and labilities, with imited exceptions, are measured at their far value at the acquisition date. The Group estimates the provisional
fair values and useful lives of acquired assets and labilities at the date of acquision The valuation of acaured intangibles is
subject to estimation of future cash flows and the discount rate applied to them. The valuation of the customer-related intangible
assets is determined based on an excess earmnings methodology while the valuation of the marketing-related intangible asset s
based on a royalty savings method. For further details on the acauisition n the year, see Note 14 Business combinations

On 28 February 2022 the Group sold Cory Brothers to Vertom Agencies BY for maximum consideration of £155 million. Initial cash
proceeds of £85 milion were received on completion of the transaction, and three contractual “earm-out” payments wil be made,
being an agreed percentage of the future gross profits of the combined YertornCory business over three subseguent earmn out
periods. Each of the three earn-out payments are subject to minimum and maximum amounts which are specified in the share
purchase agreement,

The minimum earnout consideration has been classied as deferred consideration recewvable The minimum amount is specified

in the SPA and is therefore not an estimate, however an estimate of a discount rate 1s necessary to disgcount the deferred
consideration recewvable A discount rate of 239% was used to calculate the net present value; this was based on the credt risk of
Vertom Agencies BY following a credit check performed by management Deferred consideration recevable 1s inhally recognised
at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
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The balance of the earnout consideratian, up to the maximum specified in the SPA has been classified as contingent consideration
receivable because it 1s contingent on the future profitability of the combined business. The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable involves two critical estimates the future profitability of the combined business and the discount rate used to calculate
the net present value. The future profitability forecasts are based on a business plan prepared by the combined VertomCory
business Contingent consideration recevable is iIntially recognised at fair value and subsequently measures at far value through
profit and loss.

See Note 23 for further detalls, including a sensitivity analysis of the contingent consideration receivable to the discount rate and
the assumptions of future profitabiity

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered See Note 9

The fair vaiue determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s typically expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of equity instruments that will eventually vest At each
reporting date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-
market-based vesting conditions The impact of the revision of the original estimates, If any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to reserves. See Note 30

Trade receivables and contract assets are amounts due from customers in the ordinary course of business Trade receivables and
contract assets are classified as current assets if collection 1s due within one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the
business (f longer). If not. they are presented as non-current assets

The provision for imparment of trade recevables and contract assets represents management's best estimate at the Balance
Sheet date A number of judgements are made in the calculation of the provision, primarily the age of the invoice, the existence of
any disputes, recent histoncal payrment patterns and the debtor’s financial position

When measunng expected credit losses, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information, which 1s based
on assumptions for the future movement of different sconomic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. Probability

of default constitutes a key Input N Measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time honzon, the calculation of which includes histoncal data, assumptions and expectations of future market
conditions See Note 22

The Group uses an Independent actuary to provide annual valuations of the defined benefit pension scheme. The actuary uses
a number of estimates in respect of the scherme membership, the valuation of assets and assumptions regarding discount rates,
inflation rates and mortality rates.

The rmembership detalls are provided by an independent trustee while the valuation of assets 1s venfied by an independent fund
manager. The discount rates. inflation rates and mortality rates are reviewed by management at each reporting date, See Note 29

in the year ended 28 February 2022, the: sale of Wavespec, the Group's Engineering Division, completed for a maximum
consideration of £2.6 million, The fair value of the consideration 1s a cntical accounting Judgement.

The consideration was due to be satisfied by the issuance of a promissory note with a matunity date of 31 March 2026. 1 he tar
value of the consideration was based on the net present value of the promissory note (E24 rmillien). A discount rate ot 211% was
used to calculate the net present value. The discount rate was made up of two elements, the first being a b-year BBB+ bond yield
of 151%, the second being a premium for lack of marketability at 080% A 5-year BBB+ bond yield was used because it matches
the maturity of the promissory note and reflects the credit rating of the bank that was expected to provide the letter of credit.

As at 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023, the buyer had not delivered on its obligations to secure the promissory note and
therefore management have made a judgement that the prormissory ncte 1s unlikely to be honoured and consequently the fair
value of the consideration 1s impared and a credit loss of £2 4 millcn was recognised within discontinued operations in the year
ended 28 February 2022

As described further and set out In Note 28 — Provisions, the directors have made significant judgements in relation to the
estimation of the amount of provision 1o be recognised N relation to uncertain commmission cbligations
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Use of estimates and critical judgements continued

Faopae e ;

The following are key judgements that the Group makes, apart from those iNvolving estimations (which are dealt with above), that
the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised In the Financial Statements

IFRS b “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” reguires judgement to determine whether reverue is recognised at a "pontin
ume” or “over tme” as well as determining the transfer of control for when performance obligations are satished

For Chartering, the Group has defined the performance obligation to be satisfied at the point in time where the negatiated contract
between counterparties has been successfully completed, being the discharge of cargees, and therefore revenue is recognised at
this pontin time This 1s a cntical Judgement since revenue recognition would differ f the performance obligations were deemed to
be satisfied over a time pernod, or at a different poirt in time

As a result of actuariai movernents during the period, including an increase in the discount rate from 265% at 28 February 2022 to
490% at 28 February 2023, the UK defined benefit scheme s in an actuarial surplus position at 28 February 2023 (measured on an
IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” basis) of £11 millon {28 February 2022 lability of £21 milion} The surplus has been recognised on the
basis that the Group has an unconditional nght to a refund, assuming the gradual settlement of Scheme liabilities over time until

all rmembers have left the Scheme. The surplus will be subject to a tax charge on s recovery which the Group does not believe
meets the definition of an income tax under |AS 12, and as a result, the surplus has been presented net of the expected taxes
payable of £06 milion, at a rate of 35%.

In reporting financial infermation, the Group presents Alternative Performance Measures ("APMSs") which are not defined or
specified under the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). The Group beleves that these APMs,
which are not considered to be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, provide stakeholders with additional helpful
information and enable an alternative companson of perfarmance over time.

The Group excludes specific items from its underlying earnings measure. Management judgerment 1s required as to what items
qualify for this classification There can also be judgement as to the point at which costs should be recognised and the amount
to record to ensure that the understanding of the underlying performance 1s not distorted Specific tems include the results from
discontinued operations See Note 10

During the year, the Group acquired the entity Madrid Shipping Advisors SL For a business combination to exist, the Group must
obtain control of a business To be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the abillity to create outputs. As part of the transaction, no
assets were acguired (such as brand, order book, property, plant and eguipment), nor were any labilities assumed The entity holds
the service contracts for key employees and was a newly incorporated company, set up specifically for the acguisition. The Group
has made the judgement that the acquisition did not meet the definition of a business combination as the acquired entity did not
meet the definition of a business. The transaction was treated as the recruitment of a broker team, which 1s consistent with the
substance of the arrangement

. .
§

Management have cansidered the impact of climate-related nsks in respect of impairment of gocdwil, recoverabiity of recevables
and the recoverability of deferred tax assets in particular and do not consider that climate-related nisks have a material mpact on
any key jJudgements, estimates or assumptions in the consolidated Financial Statements

In the prior vear, cimate change was assessed as part of ongong discussions of key and emerging risks for the Group and

the shipping and energy sectors within which it operates. Consideration of the potential short 1o medum-terrn impact of the
Environment and Climate Change nisk resulted in its inclusion as a Group Principal Risk
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3 Accounting policies

The acguisition method of accounting 1s used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity mstruments
or other assets are acquired The consideration transferred for the acquisiion of a subsidiary comprises the:

- fair values of the assets acquired:

- liabilites incurred to the Tormet swhers ol e aeguied Busingss;

- eqguity interests issued by the Group,

- fair value of any asset or lability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangerment; and
— fair vajue of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

Identifiable assets acquired and labilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured Initally at their far values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acguisition basis erther at fair value or at the non-controling interest’'s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets

Acquisiticn-refated costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-controlling interest in the acguired entity; and acquisition-date
fair value of any previcus equity Interest In the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identihable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwilll. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identihable assets of the business acquired, the difference 1s
recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration s deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to therr present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used 1s the entity’s Incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a simifar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparabie terms and conditions

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a inancial lability. Amounts classified as a financial lability are
subsequently remeasured to farr value, with changes in farr value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination s achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acguirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquires is remeasured to far value at the acquisition date. Any gamns or losses ansing from such remeasurement are
recegnised i profit or loss

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, amounts paid or shares 1ssued to sellers are often Iinked to therr continued employment.
An assessment 1s performed to determine whether the amounts are part of the exchange for the acquiree, or should be treated as a
transaction separate from the business combinaton. Transactions that are separate from the business combination are accounted for
in accordance the relevant IFRSs which generally resufts in the amounts keing treated as a post-combination remuneration expense

| S S ot .
Revenue 1s recognised in accordance with satisfaction of performance obligations Revenue of the Group consists of

i Chartering desks — The Group acts as a breker for several types of shipping transactions, each of which gives nse to an
entitlernent to commuission’
Deep sea tankers, specialised tankers and gas, dry cargo and cffshore:
- far single voyage charterng, the contractual terms are governed by a standard charterparty contract in which the broker’s
performance abligatinn s satisfied when the cargo has been discharged according to the contraciual terms, and
- for tme charters, the commission is specified in the hire agreement and the performance obligation 1s spread over the term
of the charter at specified intervals in accordance with the charter party terms
n} Risk Advisory desks
Securities
- forncome denved from commodity broking, the commuission 1s recognised when a binding contractual arrangement is
entered into between the two parties, at which point, the Group has fulfilled its performance obligation.
iy Investment Advisory
Financial
- Income comprises retaner fees and success fees generated by corporate finance-related activities. Revenue 1s recogrised in
accordance with the terms agreed in individual client terms of engagement Recurming monthly retainers are recognised in the
month of invoice and success fees are recognised at the point when the performance obligations of the particular engagement
are fulfiled.
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3 Accounting policies continued
Fovio o e e continued
i) Investment Advisory continued
Sale and purchase.
- 1 the case of second-hand sale and purchase contracts, the broker’s performrance obligation 1s satished when the
principals in the transaction complete on the sale/purchase and the title of the vessel passes from the seller to the buyer;
- with regard to newbuilding contracts, the commission is recognised when contractual stage payments are made by the
purchaser of a vessel 1o a shipyard which in turn reflects the performance of services over the life of the contract;, and
- forincome derved from providing ship and fleet valuations, the Group recognises income when a valuation certificate is
provided to the clent and the service is inveiced
iv) Logistics (a discontinued operation).
- the performance cobligation for agency income is satished at the point in time when the vessel sails from the port
For forwarding and logistics income the performance obligation 1s satisfied when the goods depart from their load location
Where the Group acts as a principal rather than as agent, the revenue and costs are shown gross.

Dwidend income from investments 1s recognised when the nght to receive payment is established.

I A A L P AT I I

Government grants are netted aganst the cost incurred by the Group When retention of a government grant is dependent on the
Group satisfying certain criteria, it 1s intally recognised as deferred income and released to the Income Statement once the criteria
for retention have been satished See Note b

Transactions in currencies other than sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting fror the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currency are recognised In the Incorme Statement.

In order 10 hedge its exposure 1o certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into derivative financial instrument contracts,
mainly forward foreign currency exchange contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges (see Note 3(m)) For a gualifying
hedge relationship, the farr value gain or loss on the hedging instrurment is recognised as part of Revenue when the underlying
transaction is recognised N accordance with the Revenue recognition policy set out above

The presentational currency of the Group is sterling. Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidianes, branches and associates are
transiated from their functional currency into sterlng at the exchange rates ruling at the Balance Sheet date Trading results are
translated at the average rates for the period Exchange differences ansing on the consolidation of the net assets of overseas
subsidianes are recognised through other comprehensive income in the foreign currency translation reserve {see Note 32}

On disposal of a business, the cumulative exchange differences previously recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve
retating to that business are transferred to the Income Statement as part of the gan or loss on disposal The Group finances
overseas Investments partly through the use of foreign currency borrowings in order to provide a net investment hedge over the
foreign currency nsk that anses on translation of its foreign currency subsidiaries For effective hedge relationships, the gain or loss
on the hedging instrument 1s recognised in equity through other comprehensive iIncome

The laxalion expense represents the sum of he current and delerred lax.

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income
Statement because it excludes items of Income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
iterms that are never taxable or deductible The Group and Company’s liakility for current tax is calculated using rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

Deferred income tax is provided in full. using the lizbilty method, on temporaty differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and labilities and therr carrying amounts in the consolidated Financial Statements. However, deferred tax labilities are not recognised if
they arise frorm the initial recognion of goodwil Deferred Income tax 1s also not accounted for if it anses frorn inftial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the tme of the transaction. affects nether accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and dees not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences Deferred incorne tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred Income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liabilty 1s settied Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset where there 1s a legally enforceable night to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority, Current tax assets and tax liabilties are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
naht to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneousty.
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Current and deferred tax s recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive Income or directly In equity In this case, the tax 1s also recognised in other comprehensive Income or directly
in equity, respectively

Business combinations are accountad for using the acquisition method The goodwill recognised as an asset by the Group is
stated at cost less any accumulated Imparment losses,

On the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the net assets (including any identifiable intangible assets) acquired
The excess of the consideration transferred, any non-controlling interest recognised and the fair value of any previous equity
interest In the acquired entity over the far value of net identifiable assets acguired is recorded as goodwill. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred in accordance with [FRS 3

In relation to acquisitions where the fair value of assets acquired exceeds the far value of the censideration, the excess far value 1s
recognised immediately In the Income Statement as a gan on purchase.

On the disposal of a business, goodwill relating to that business remaining on the Balance Sheet 1s iIncluded in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal As permitted by IFRS 1, goodwill on acguisiions ansing prior to 1 March 2004 has been retained at
prior amournits and is tested annually for impairment

[EERPEE LA T

The Group capitalses computer software at cost. It 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of up to
four years

The Group capitalises internally generated development costs when it 1s able to demonstrate:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it Is subseguently avalable for use;

— that there is a clear intention that the intangible asset would be completed and then used,

- thatitis able to use the intangible asset;

- that future economic benefits are probakble;

- that there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the develepment and to use the asset, and
- the expenditure attributable to the Intangible asset during its devslopment can be reliably measured.

The Group amortises development on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life of up to three years See Note 16.

Research costs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are stated in the Balance Sheet at therr fair value at the date

of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and any provision for imparment The amortisation of the carrying value of the
capitaised forward order ook and customer relationships 1s charged to the income Staterment over an estimated useful Iife,
which s between four months to twelve years. The amortisation in respect of capitalised brand assets is expensed to the income
Statement over an estimated usefut life, which s between three and twelve years.

Property, plant and eguiprment are shown at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value of each asset, on a straight-Ine basis
over its expected useful Iife as follows {except for long and short leasehold interests which are written off against the remainng
perod of the lease).

Motor vehicles - three years
Computer egquipment — four years
Fixtures and egupment — four years
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3 Accounting policies continued

The Group has vanous lease arangements for properties. and other equipment. At iInception of a lease contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a certan penod of time and whether
it obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset, in exchange for consideration The Group recognises a
lease hability and a corresponding nght-of-use asset with respect to all lease arrangements In which it is a lessee. except low-value
leases and short-term leases of 12 months or less, costs for which are recognised as an cperating expense within the income
statement on a straight-line basis

A nght-of-use asset is capitalsed on the Balance Sheet at cost, comprising the amount of the initial measurernent of the lease
liability and lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred in addition to an
estimate of costs to remove or restore the underlying asset Where a lease incentive is receivable, the amount is offset against
the right-of-use asset at inception. Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
estimated Ife of the asset or the lease term

The lease lability s inmially rmeasured at the present value of future lease payments. Interest expense 1s charged to the
Consolidated Income Staternent over the lease period $0 as to produce a constant penodic rate of interest on the remaining
balarce of the hability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s Incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value In a similar economic environment with smilar terms and conditions. Generally, the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, as such the incremental borrowing rate is used to discount future
lease payments.

For the Group, lease payments generaily comprnise the following:

- Fixed payments, less any lease incentives recevable,
— Vanable payments that are based on an index or rate; and
- Payments to be made under extension options which are reasonably certain to be exercised.

Lease payments made are apportioned between an interest charge and a capital repayment amount which are disclosed within
the financing activities and the operating activities sections of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows respectively When an
adjustrment to lease payments based on an index takes effect, the lability 1s remeasured with a contesponding adjustment to the
nght-of-use asset.

Contracts entered into by the Group have a wide range of terms and conditions but generally do not impose any additional
covenants. Several of the Group’s contracts include iIndexation adjustments to lease payments in future periods which are not
reflected in the measurement of the lease liabilties at 28 February 2023 Many of the contracts entered into by the Group inchude
extension or termination options which provide the Group with additional operational flexibility If the Group considers It reasonably
certan that an extension option will be exercised or a termination opticn not exercised, the additicnal period is included in the
lease term

A modification to a lease which changes the lease payment amount {e¢. due to a renegotiation or market rent review) or amends
the term of the lease, results in a reassessment of the lease lability with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset

The Group classified leases as either operating or finance leases based on the substance of the arrangement. At commencement
of a finance lease, a receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the Group's net investment In the lease Finance income 1s
recognised reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment In the lease Lease payments from operating leases
are recognised as Income on a straight-line basis.

Investments In associates and joimt ventures where the Group has joint contre! or significant influence are accounted for under
the equity method. Investments in associates are intally recegnised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost. Subsegquently
associates are accounted for under the equity method. where the Group's share of post-acquisition prohts and losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised In the income Statement and Staternent of Comprehensive Income.,

Profits and losses ansing on transactions between the Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
mvestors’ nterests N the associate The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses arising from these transactions 1s

eliminated agamnst the carrying value of the associate

Where the Group's share of the associate’s identifiable net assets is greater than the cost of investment, a gan on purchase is
recognised in the Income Statement and the carrying value of the investment in the Consolidated Balance Sheet is increased
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When the Group dispnses of shares In asscciates or jeint ventures the Gioup recognises a profit or loss on disposal based on
the net proceeds less the weighted average cost of the shares disposed of. On disposal the Group reclassifies foreign exchange
amounts previously recognised In other comprehensive Income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gan or loss
would be reguired to be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or labilties

The most recent Financial Statements of an associate are used for accounting purposes unless itis impractical to do so Where
the Group and an associate have non-coterminous reporting dates the associate’s full-year accounts will be used for the purposes
of the Group's reporting at 28 February with adiustinenls made for any signihcant transactions or events

Investmenits where the Group has no significant influence are held at far value, with movemenits in farr value recorded in profit
and |oss.

| P

The carrying amount of the Group's assets, other than financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed for mpairment as described below. If any indication of impairment exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount Is determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and far value less costs to sell, which
requires the use of estimates. An impairment loss 1s recognised in the Income Statement whenever the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds Its recoverable amount

Goodwill 1s reviewed for mpairment at least annually Impairments are recognised immediately in the Income Statement Goodwilt
15 allocated to cash-generating units for the purposes of imparment testing

The carrying value of intangible assets with a finite life 15 reviewed for imparrment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carnying value may not be recoverable. The carrying values of other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
at least annually or when there s an indication that they may be impaired

Right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment to account for any loss when events or changes in crcumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be fully recoverable.

Where there 1s objective evidence that the investment in an asscciate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment 1s
tested for imparment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Where an imparment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets, with the exception of goodwill, is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. This cannot exceed the carrying amount prior to the impairment charge.

An imparrment recognised in the Income Statement in respect of geodwill 1Is not subsequently reversed

Contingent consideration recewvable 1s inttially recognised at fair value and 1s subsequently remeasured at its fair value at each
Balance Sheet date The resulting gain or loss is recognised immediately in the Income Staternent Contingent consideration
receivable 1s classified as level 3 In accordance with the far value hierarchy specified by IFRS 13 Deferred consideration is intially
measured at its fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost less provision for mparrment See Notes 23 and 24

[ H ) i . DR I
Cenvatives are initially recognised at far value and are subsequently remeasured at their far value at each Balance Sheet date
with gains and losses recognised immediately in the income Statement unless hedge accounting is applied Recegnition of the
resulting gain or loss depends on whetner the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if it is, the nature of the item
being hedged Changes in the fair value of dervatives that do not gqualfy for nedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
iIhcome Staterment. The Group designates dervatives that qualfy tor hedge accounting as a cash (low hedge where there is a high
probability of the forecast transacbions ansing The effective portion of changes in the far value of these dernvatives is recognised
in equity The gain or ioss on derivative instruments not designated in hedging relationships and relating to the ineffective portion of
dernvatives designated in hedging relationships 1s recognised immediately in the Income Staterment within finance costs or income
Amounts accumulated In equity are recycled to the Incorme Statement at the same time as the gains or losses on the hedged
terns. When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected o occur, the cumulative gains or losses that were reported in eguity are
immediately transferred to the Income Statement.

To gualfy for hedge accounting. the terms of the hedge must be clearly documented at inception and there must be an
expectation that the derivative will be highly effective n offsetting changes in the cash flow of the hedged risk. Hedge
effectiveness is tested throughout the life of the hedge and if at any point it Is concluded that the relationship can no longer be
expected 1o remain highly effective iIn achieving its cbjective, the hedge relationship is terminated
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3 Accounting policies continued

The critical terms of the hedging instruments match the hedged transactions r in relation to currency, tming and amounts, meaning there
Is a clear economic refationship between the hedging Instrument and hedged item as required under IFRS @ Thereby, management
qualitatively demonstrates that the hedging mstrument and the hedged ftems will move equally in the opposite direction

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge relatonship
but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity and 1s
recognised In accordance with the above poliey when the transaction occurs

The far value of dervative contracts 1s based either directly or Indirectly on market prices at the Balance Sheet date.
Financial assets and liabiities are classified in accordance with the far value hierarchy specified by IFRS 13 See Note 24,

B P P | N - [ i L - -
Trade recewables and contract assets are inmally recognised at far value (less transaction costs) and subsequently measured at
amortsed cost.

At the Balance Sheet date, there may be amounts where Invoices have ncot been raised but performance obligations have been
satished, and these are recognised as contract assets

Specific provision is made where there 1s evidence that the balances will not be recovered In full A provision for expected credit
losses 1s made for trade receivables and contract assets using the simplified approach A provision matrix 1s used to calculate an
expected credit loss as a percentage of carrying value by age The percentages are determined based on historical credit loss
experience as well as forward-looking information Expected credit loss provisions are made for other recevables based on lifetime
expected credit losses using a model that considers forward-locking informaton and significant increases in credit risk

Trade and other recevables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms payable within 30 1o 20 days.

Cash and cash eguivalents included in the Balance Sheet comprise cash in-hand, short-term deposits with an crnginal maturrty of
three months or less and restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Staterment include cash and short-term deposits. Bank overdrafts are
included in the Balance Sheet within short-term borrowings.

{ i A .

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or otherwise) as a resuft of a past event and It 1
probable that an cutflow of resources emizodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If material, the provisions are discounted using an appropnate current post-tax
interest rate

Short-term provisions for long service leave expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at
the amounts expected to be pad when the liabilities are settled.

The provision for long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is measured at the

present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods ot service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate bonds with terms to maturity and
currency that match, as clossly as possible, the estimated future cash outflows

s

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment schemes.

No awards may be granted under the schermes set out below which would result in the total number of shares issued or remaining
issuable under all of the schemes (or any other Group share schemes), In the ten-year pencd ending on the date of grant of the
option, exceeding 10% of the Company’s issued share capital {calculated at the date of grant of the relevant option).

The Group may provide a net settlement feature, whereby it withholds the number of equity Instruments egual to the monetary
value of the employee’s tax obligation ansing from the exercise {(or vesting) of the award If the total number of shares that
atherwise would have been issued to the employee. The Group has no contractual obligation to provide a net settlierment cption,
and therefcre the award Is still accounted for as an equity settled award in full and the value of the shares foregone by the
employee is accounted for as a decuction from equity
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The net cost of the shares acquired for the shares held by the ESOP and the EBT are a deduction from shareholders’ funds and
represent a reduction In distrbutable reserves Note 31 provides detall on the ESOP and the ERT and maovernents in shares to be issued

During the year the Company operated the Braemar Shipping Services Plc Savings-Related Share Option Scherne 2014 (the "SAYE
Scheme”) and the Braemar Shipping Services Plc International Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 2019 (the “International SAYE
scheme”). Options are granted at up to a 20% discount to the prevalling market price and entitle employees to purchase shares in
the Company at a fixed price subject to continued employment. The far value of share options granted under the SAYE schemes
is determined using a binomial pricing medel. The number of awards which are expected to vest 1s estimated by management
based on levels of expected forfeitures.

The Company acdopted a Deferred Bonus Plan in May 2020 (the “2020 DBP™), pursuant to which future discretionary bonus awards
will be granted to staff including executive directors. Awards under the New DBP may be Inked to an option granted under the new
Braemar Company Share Option Plan 2020, which was also adopted by the Company in May 2020 (the “2020 CSOP”). Where an
employee receves a linked avward under the 2020 DBP, if the Company’s share price rises over the vesting pericd, the 2020 CSOP
award can be exercised with the value of shares delivered on the vesting of the 2020 DBP award being reduced by the exercise
gain on the 2020 CSOP award Awards under the 2020 DBP and the 2020 CSOP may be settled by the issue of new shares of by
way of transfer of shares from the ESOP Historic practice has been to settle via the transfer of shares from the ESOP and it is the
current intention to continue to operate in this manner

The number of awards granted under the Deferred Bonus Plan each year is related to the profits generated in the previous year
The cost of the award is therefore expensed from the beginning of that profit period until the vesting date which is usually three
years after the date of award and 1s subject to contnued employment. Awards made to new joiners are expensed over the period
from date of joining to date of vesting. Therr far value is estimated based on the share price at the tre of grant less the expected
dividend to be paid during the vesting period The number of awards which are expected to vest 1s estimated by managerment
based on levels of expected forfeitures.

During the year ended 28 February 2015, the Company established a Restricted Share Plan ("RSP"). This scheme was set up to
grant awards to certain key staff to try to retain them following the merger between Braermar and ACM Shipping Group Plc, but it
can also be used where the Remuneration Committee considers it necessary to secure the recrutment of a particular ndividual.
executive drrectors of the Company are not eligible to partcipate in the RSP RSP awards are made in the form of a nil cost option
and there are no performance critena cther than continued employment. Their far value is estimated based on the share price at
the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid during the vesting period. The numibser of awards which are expected to
vest 13 estimated by management based con levels of expected forfeitures.

The Company alsc operates an LTiF, which was approved by shareholders and adopted in 2014 LTIP awards under this plan take
the form of a conditional nght to recewve shares at nil cost. The awards normally vest over three years and are typically subject to a
performance condition such as earnings per share ("EPS”) or Total Shareholder Return ("TSR”), a market-based condition.

The fair value of awards with the EPS condition are non-market conditions and therr far value 1s estmated based on the share
price at the time of grant less the expected dvidend to be paid dunng the vesting pericd The far value of awards containing
market conditions is determined using Mente Carlo simulation models. The number of awards which are expected to vest s
estimated by management based on levels of expected forfeitures and the expected outcome of the EPS condition For awards
subject to market conditions, no adjustment 1s made to reflect the likelhood of the market condition being met nor the actuai
number of awards which lapse as a result of the condition not being met.

Commissions payable to co-brokers are recognised in trade payables due within one year on the earlier of the date of Invoicing or
the date of receipt of cash

The Group has the following long-term employee benefits:

The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes. Pension costs charged aganst profits in respect of these
schemes represent the amount of the contnbutions payable to the schemes In respect of the accounting pericd. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group within independently administered funds The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
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3 Accounting policies continued

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme, the ACM Staff Pension Scheme, with assets held separately from the Group. The cost
of providing benefits under the scheme is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method which measures
the llability bacod on gervica rompleted and allowing for projected future salary increases and discounted at an appropnate rate.

The current service cost, which s the Increase N the present value of the retrement beneft obligation resulting from employee
service in the current year, and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments, are included within operating profit in the Income
Statement The unwinding of the discount rate on the scheme liabilities which is shown as a net finance cost and past service
costs are presented and recognised immediately in the Income Statement

The pension asset or hablity recognised on the Balance Sheet in respect of this scheme represents the difference between the
present value of the Group's obligations under the scheme and the fair value of the scheme’s assets Actuarial gans or losses
and returm on plan assets net of tlax. excluding nterest, are recognised in the perod i which they arise within the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

When the defined benefit plan s in a surplus, the asset 1s recogrised at the lower of the surplus and the asset celling, less any
associated costs, such as taxes payable.

The current service cost of other long-term benefits resulting from employee services in the current year is ncluded within the
Income Statement. The unwinding of any discounting on the liabilities is shown in net finance costs.

Arrangement costs for loan facilities are capitalised and amortised over the life of the debt at a constant rate

Finance costs are charged 1o the income Statement, based on the effective interest rate of the associated external borrowings
and debt instruments

The convertible loan notes are considered to be a financial liability host with an embedded derivative convertible feature which 1s
required to be separated from the host The Group has an accounting choice to record the Instrument In 1ts entirety at fair value
through praofit and loss but has not chesen to apply this treatment Instead, the financial lability host is recogrised as a euro
liability intially recognised at far value and prospectively accounted for applying the effective interest rate method The dervative
conwversion feature is recognised at fair value through profit and loss Where there are conversion options that can be exercised
within che year the liability is recognised as current.

When the terms of an existing financial liability are modified, managerment will consider both guantitative and qualitative factors
to assess whether the modification 1s substantial In the case that the moedification of the terms of existing financial kability

Is considered to be substantial, the modification shall be accounted for as an extinguishrment of that financial hability and

the recognition of a new financial labilty f the modification 1s not considered substantial, then the existing financial lability is
remeasured in accordance with its onginal classification and any gain or loss is recognised Immediately In the Income Staterment
Specihc tems are sigrificant tems considerad matenal in size or nature, including acquisition and disposal-related gans and
losses These are disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's ongang financial performance.

A non-current asset or a group of assets, such as a disposal group, 1s classified as held for sale If its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use, it 1s avalable for mmediate sale and sale 15 highly probable
within one year.

On initial classification as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of previous carrying
amount and far value less costs to sell with any adjustments taken to profit or loss.

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the Group's business that represents a separate Ine of business or gecgraphical
area of operations that has been disposed of or 1s held for sale, or is a subsidiary acgurred exclusively with a view to resale
Classification as a discontinued cperation occurs upon disposal or when the cperation meets the critenia to be classified as held
for sale, if earlier When an operatian is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative Income Statement s restated as If
the operation has been discontinued from the start of the comparative period

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed where an inflow of economic penefits is probable
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4 Segmental information and revenue

Following the simplification of the Group's activities and the way In which information is now presented to the Group's Chief Operating
Decision Maker, the Group's operating segments are Chartering, Investrment Advisory and Risk Advisory. Previously the Group's
cperating segments were based on a Divisional structure of Shipbroking, Financial, Logistics and Engineering Divisions The Logistics
and Engineering Divisions were sold in the prior year and are presented as discontinued cperations in the comparative period

The Chief Operating Decision Maker is considered to be the Group's board of directors Each of Chartering, investment Advisory
and Risk Advisory are managed separately, and the nature of the services offered to clients 1s distinct between the segments.
The Chartenng segment includes the Group's shipbroking business, Risk Advisory includes the Group's regulated securities
business and Investment Advisory focuses on transactional services.

The segmental analysis 1s consistent with the way the Group manages itself and with the format of the Group's internal financial
reporting. The board considers the business from both service Iine and geographic perspectives A description of each of the ines
of service 1s provided In the Operating and Financial Review. The Greup's main geographic markets comprise the UK, Singapore.
the US, Australa, Germany and the Rest of the World. The Group's geographical markets are determined by the lecation of the
Group’s assets and cperations

Central costs relate to board costs and other costs associated with the Group's Iisting on the London Stock Exchange
All segments meet the quantitative thresholds reqguired by IFRS 8 as reportable segments

Underlying operating profit i1s defined as operating profit for continuing activites before restructuning costs, gan on disposal
of Investment and acquisition and disposal-related items.

The segmental Information provided to the board for reportable segments for the yéjéir ‘ended 28 February 2023 is as folows:

,l Re}.;er‘»ue Operating profit
2023 - 2007 2023 2027
£000 £000 £000
Chartering 63.024 15,577 6,246
Investment Advisory 26297 7.740 5,359
Risk Advisory 1,982 2,971 1,615
Trading segments revenue/results 101,310 26,288 14,220
Central costs {6,213) (4.180)
Underlying operating profit 20,076 10,080
Specific iterns included in operating profit (8,4086) {514)
Operating profit 11,669 95646
Share of associate’s loss for the year (23) {19)
Net finance expense (2,195) {984)
Profit before taxation 9,451 8543

Prior year igures have been restated in ine with the current segment definitions

The Group manages 1ts business segments on a gicbal basis The operation’s main gecgraphical area and also the home country
of the Company s the United Kingdom.
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4 Segmental information and revenue continued
Pt . L

Geographical nformation determined by location of customers 1s set out below:

Reverue

2023 2022

£000 £'000
Urited Kingdom ~ 80,3537 54504
Singapore 26,674 19,423
Austraba 16,699 12,5656
Switzerlanc 11,112 5435
United States 6,265 972
Gerrnany 2,951 2488
Rest of the World 8,967 5003
Continuing operations 152,911 101,310
Discontinued operations - 45215
Total 162,911 146,525

[T SR I
The Group disaggregates revenue In Ine with the segmental information presented above and also by desk Revenue analysed by
desk is provided beiow

2023 2022

£000 £000

Tankers 41,602 17837
Specialised Tankers 16,240 11,622
Dry Cargo 35,821 29,782
Offshore 5,501 3,776
Chartering 99,164 63,024
Sales and purchase 32,080 19,646
Corperate finance 4,700 5,651
Investment Advisory 36,760 28,297
Securities 16,987 1,289
Risk Advisory 16,987 11,989
Total continuing operations 152,911 101,310

Al revenue arises from the rendering of services There is no single customer that contributes greater than 10% of the Group's revenue

The Group enters Intc some contracts, primarily in Chartering, which are for a duration longer than 12 months and where the Group
has outstanding performance cbligations on which revenue has not yet been recognised The amount of revenue that will be
recognised in future perieds on these contracts when those remaining performaipce:ebligations will be satisfied is sel out below

Forward order book
-2 More than

years 2 years Total

2023 £'000 £'000 £'000
Charterng 3,040 9,860 32,109
Sale and purchase 4,988 6,168 14,488
Total 8,028 16,028 46,597

Within 12 1-2 More than

months VEArs 2 years Tetal

2022 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Chartering 15724 321 9,057 27892
Sale and purchase 8,584 1832 o274 9340
Total 22,308 5043 9,981 37.332
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§ Operating profit from continuing operations
Operating profit represents the results from operations before finance income and costs, share of profit/{less) in associate, taxation
and discontinued operations.

This is stated after charging/{crediingy):

2023 2072

Hule £'000 [syelels]

Staff costs 6 HO116 75,814
Depreciation of property, plant and egquipment 17 2,823 2,834
Amortisation of intangibles 16 192 262
Bad debt charge 22 238 747
Auditor's remuneration 7 1,354 060
Other professional costs 3,410 2,782
Office costs 1,685 1,600
IT and commurmication costs 3,264 2507
Insurance 1,069 875
Net foreign exchange gans (1,465) 432)
Specific items included in operating profit (see Note 10) 8,400 (514)

Staff costs for the pnor year are stated after netting off grants totalling £01 millon against staff costs for continung operations
detailed in Note &, no grants were receved In the current year. The grants were received from both the Singaporean Government
and the Australian Government as a result of the impact of COVID All critena for the retention of both grants have been satisfied
and therefore the full amount has been recognised in the Income Statement

6 Staff costs

Cyodr o

2023 2022

Note £'000 £°000

Salaries. wages and short-term employee benefits 100,039 68043
Other pension costs 29 1,811 1,613
Social secunty costs 3,796 3.347
Share-based payments 30 4,520 2,951
Continuing operations 110,116 75,954
Discontinued operations - 8,344
Total 110,116 84,298

The numbers above INclude remuneration and pension entitierments for each drector. Details are included in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 85.

H Zoair e eee e P IR

2023 2022

number nurmber

Chartenng 263 243
Risk Advisory 32 18
Investment Advisory 83 57
Central 36 44
Continuing operations 384 382
Discontinued cperations - 190
Total 384 b52

The directors’ remuneration 1s borne by Bragmar Plc,
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6 Staff costs continued

st .

The remuneration of key management. which the Group considers to be the drectors, Is set out below. Further information about

the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 85

2023

£'000

Salanes, short-term employee benefits and fees 5,879
Other pension costs 52
Share-based payments 1,226
Total 7167

2022
£000

3484
4
521

4,046

Pension costs relate to contributions made to a defined contribution pension scheme on behalf of three (2022 three} members of

key managemsant

7 Auditor’s remuneration
A more detailed analysis of the auditor’s services is given below:

2023
£000
Audit services:
- Fees payable 1o the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s Financial Statements 740
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates for other services.
- The audt of the Group's subsicharies pursuant to legislation 457
— Other service — interim review 157
1,354
All fees paid to the auditor were charged to operating profit in both years
8 Finance income and costs
2023
Note £000
Finance Income:
- Gan on maodification of deferred consideration 10 -
- Interest on bank deposits 84
— Interest on lease receivables 35
- Interest on of Cory earnout deferred consideration receivable 83
Total finance income 202
Finance costs.
- Interest payable on revolving credit and overdraft facilities {1,151)
~ Interest payable on defined benefit liability (54)
- Foreign exchange loss on dervative instruments not eligible for hedge accounting {292)
- Foreign exchange loss on non-GBP denominated credit facilities (49)
- Foreign exchange and dernvatve (loss)/gan on Naves liability (2560)
- Interest payable on convertible loan notes (a2e)
Subtotal finance costs before Interest on lease labilities (2,222)
— Interest on lease llabilities (176)
Total finance costs {2,397)
Finance costs - net {contihuing operations only) (2,195)
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2022
£Q00

540

334
86

260

2022
£000

172

72

263

(930
(73)

226
130

(208)
(329)

(1.237)
(©984)
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9 Taxation

Current tax

Uk corpotation tex shdatged W e noonne Slaterment
UK adjustment in respect of previous years

Overseas tax on profits in the year

Overseas adjustment In respect of previous years

Total current tax

Deferred tax

UK current year ongination and reversal of termporary differences

Due to change in rate of tax

UK adjustment in respect of previous years

Overseas current year ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Overseas adjustment In respect of previous years

Total deferred tax

Taxation

Taxation on continuing operations
Taxation on discontinued operations

Taxation

Reconciliation between expected and actual tax charge

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Profit before tax at standard rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2022, 19%)
Utilsation of deferred tax asset at lower effective tax rate

Net expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Utilisation of previously unrecognised losses

Tax on overseas branch

Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable to profits n overseas subsidianes
Other differences leading to a (decrease)/increase N tax

Share scheme movements”

Unrecognised deferred tax on losses*

Prior year adjustments™

Total tax charge for the year

Governance

2023
£'000

1,194
4,569
394

6,147

(190)
(242)
(712)
(148}

1,292)
4,856

4,856

4,856

2023
£°000

9,451

1,796
22
1,680

(104)
672
758

(13)
316

{176)
4

4,855

2027
£'060

3356
3,432
(517)

3,250

377
(473)
“n
(@5)
(313)

(545)
2,708

1,839
3866

2,705

2022
£'000

8543

1623
a]e)
843
478)
234
362
4
228
(135)
{941)

1,839

* Intre prior year, a single net amount of £83.000 was disclosed in respect of share scheme movements and unrecagn sed deferred tax on losses To provide
further irformation, the comparative nformatior has been updated to spiit out the £228 000 1 relation to share scheme moverments and £{135.000) in refation

to unrecognised deferred tax on locses

“*Included within prior year adjustrents It 2022 15 the release of overprovided corporation tax creditor of £0 8 milion in respect of Singapore following a tax rate

charge from 170% to 105%

Inciuded within the total tax charge 15 £0.2 milion (2022 £05 millon) in respect of specific tems disclosed separately on the face

of the Income Statement See Note 10

A tax charge of £nl {2022 £03 milion) is inciuded in the results for discontinued operations as a result of the trading loss
contained theren (see Note 11} This tax charge arose mainly as a result of the trading profits of Cory Brothers.
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9 Taxation continued!

;o :
Pt ¢

The Group's future tax charge will be sensitive to the geographic mix of profits earned, the tax rates in force and changes toc the
tax rules In junsdictions that the Group operates in The UK Main rate is to increase to 25% from 1 April 2023 The impact of UK rate

changes on deferred tax were taken Into account in the prior year

Reconciliation between expected and actual tax charge

Profit before tax from discontinued operations

Profit before tax at standard rate of UK corporation tax of 18% (2022 19%)

Due to change in rate of tax

Net gans not taxable for tax purposes
Utiisation of losses

Other differences leading to increase in tax
Temporary differences

Other prior year adjustments

Total tax charge for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gain in respect of defined benefit pension scheme

Deferred tax charge on defined benefit pension scheme
Movement in opening balance due to change in rate of tax

Sub-total

Total

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge

Deferred tax charge on cash flow hedge
Movement in cpening balance of tax due tc change in rate of tax

Sub-total

Total

Total tax recognised in OCI

Total amounts recognised in OCI

2023
£'000

2023
£'000

2,776

4149)

@14)

2,361

388

(97)

(97)

291

{511}
2,652

2022
£'000

2,081
1535

{1,098}
{74)

88
406

866

2022
£000

1,391

(348)
275

(73}

1,318

(2.482)

620
(108)

514

{1.968)

441
(650)

Included within the UK current year origination and reversal of temporary differences is a debit of £414000 (2022 £348000 credit)

in respect of deferred tax on the actuanal gain on the Group's defined benefit pension scheme
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Deferred Tax Asset

At 1 March 2021

{Chiglye)/uredit tu Gtaternent of Total
Comprehensive Income

Credit to equity

At 28 February 2022

{Charge)/credit to Income Statement
Charge to Other Comprehensive Incame
Credit to equity

Balance at end of year
The movement in the net deferred tax asset
Balance at beginning of year

Movement to Income Statement.
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Strategic Report

Accelerated
capial
allowances

80

(128}

(48)
48

Trading
losses

746

(498}

248
(248)

Movemenit In opening balance due to change In rate of tax 25%/19%

Arising on pension costs
Ansing on bonuses
Arising on other

Total movement to Income Statement

Balance arising on business combinations
Maovement to other comprehensive iIncome:

Mavement in opening balance due to change in rate of tax 25%/18%

Related deferred tax asset
Movernent to equity

Total movement to equity and other comprehensive income

Balance at end of year

Governance
Other
Bonuses Provisions
- 766
713 {286}
442
713 913
710 219
- (611)
1,423 621

Employee
benehts

1318

bl
1,887

863
2,760
2023
£'000
3,713

390

29
632
170

1,291
(908}

(511)
883

352

4,450

Total
2900
371
442

3,713
729
(611)
863

4,794
2022
£o00
2,900

180

472

©4)

(187}
371

168
273

442

3,713

A deferred tax asset of £48 million (2022 £37 millon) has been recognised as the directors beleve that it 1s probable that there

will be sufficient taxable profits In the future to recover the asset in full

oL

Analysis of the deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences

Balance at end of year

The movement in the deferred tax liability

Balance at begnning of year

Balance arsing on business cornbinations

Adustment in respect of previous years

Current year origination and reversal of temporary differences

Balance at end of year
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As at
28 Feb 2023
£'000

(3449)
(344)

As at
28 Feb 2023
£000

(908}

662
(344)

Asg at
28 Feb L2022
£000

As at
28 Feb 2022
£000

(174)

174
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9 Taxation continued

No deferred tax has been provided In respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes and interests in
oint ventures where the Group Is In a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsicharies, for which a deferred tax liability has not been recagnised, is approximately £nil (2022 £01 million).

10 Specific items

The following 1s a surmmary of specific tems incurred Each item meets the definmon of specific items detalled in Note 3 (U} and
has an mpact on the reported results for the year that i1s considered material enther by size or nature and is not expected to be
incurred on an cngong basis and. as such, will not form part of the underlying profit in future years.

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Other operating Income:
- Gain on purchase of Southpaort 3,643 -
- Gain on revaluation of Cory contingent consideration recenvable 203 -
3,846 -
Operating costs’
- Commission obligation (257) -
- Imparment of inancial assets {848) -
- Impairment of goodwill (9,060) -
- Other operating costs (98) (392
(10,263) (392)
Acquesition-related items:
- Consideration for Scuthport treated as an employment expense {1,325) -
- Madnd transaction costs (264) -
- Acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH {60) (122)
- Amortisation of acquired intangible assets {350) -
{1,999) (122)
Discontinued operations
- Wavespec - (1,787}
- Cory Brothers - 4134
- AqualsBraemar - 3,375
- 5722
Other ttems-
- Finance income - credit on modification of deferred consideration - 172
- Finance income - Cory Brothers earnout deferred consideration receivable 83 -
- Finance expense - foreign exchange and derivative loss on Naves liability (266) -
Total (8,589) 5,380

A gain on purchase in relation to the acquisition of Southport was recognised during the year, with further details provided in Note 14
The Group does not consider this gain to reflect the performance of the business I the year, and so is treated as a speciic item

Revaluation of the contingenit recewable due In respect of the Cory Brothers disposal resulted in a gan of £02 millon (see Note 23,
The tax charge on specific items ncluded within other operating income was £nil (2022 £nil)
As set out In Note 28 Provisions, the Group has recognised a provisicn In relation to an uncertain commission obligation During the

period, and amount of £03 millon was recognised to increase the provision Due to the nature of the provision being an historical
transaction and not related to curient trading, the Group has treated the cost in the year as a specific item
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During the year, an impairment charge of £08 miflion was recognised in relaticn to a disputed staff loan with an ex-employee

of our Indian cperations Since no significant progress had been made with the ongoing legal case 1t 1s now the opinion of the
directors that recovery of this debt s unlikely Due to the size of the mpairment and the fact that the original debt arose several
years previously and is not related to trading, this impairment charge 1s not deemed to relates to the performance of the business
in the year and as such is treated as a specific tem

In addition, the final transaction casts of £01 millon related to disposals In the prior year were received. In the prior year, a loss of
£04 millon was recognised in other operating costs ansing from the imparment tc a nght-ot-use asset inrespect of a Londor
office which was vacated by AgualisBrasmar LOC ASA (see Note 17 for more details)

During the year an impairment of gooawill of £21 millon was recognised in relation to the goodwill allocated to the Corporate
Finance business Further detalls are provided in Note 15 The Group does not believe that this imparment reflects the performance
of the business during the year, and as such. is treated as a specific item

The tax income on specihc items ncluded within operating costs was £01 million (E01 million charge)
As set out n Note 14, as a result of the acquisition of Scuthport, due to the requirement for cngoing employee service, the upfront
cash payment of £60 million and working capital adjustrment of £06 millon are treated as a post-combination remuneration expense
in addiion to the IFRS 2 charge related to share awards made to the sellers and existing employees of Southport The total expense
related to armounts Inked to ongeing employee service In cennection with the acquisition of Southport was £13 million in the year
The pericd of required employee service 1s three years from the acquisition date As a resuit, this specific tem will exist in future
periods In addition, as expiained further in Note 14, the Group recognised a gain on acquisition of Southport. Consistent with the
Group's policy on specific items, this cost does not reflect the performance of the business and so is treated as a specific item

As aresult of the recruitment of a team of brokers based In Madnd, service agreements were entered into with employees
The recrutment of the broker team in Madnd included the following key elements:

— The Group assumed a llability of £0.3 millon for a post-contractual payment 10 the employees, which was fully vested on
signing the contracts.

- An upfront cash payment of £13 million with a further payment of £13 milion due in December 2023.

— Share awards to a total value of £08 million which vest evenly in ore, two and three years from December 2022

The upfront payments and share awards have a clawback mechanism which 1s inked to the continued employment of the
brokers over a three-year penod fram December 2022, The costs associated with the upfront payments and share awards are
not considered by the Group to be specific items But the cost related to the post-contractual payment obligation is treated as a
specific item because it 1s akin to a transaction cost with no requirernent to provide service.

Costs of £04 milicn {2022 £01 millon} are directly inked to the acquisition of Naves Cerporate Finance GmbH In the current

year £0.3 milion relates to foreign currency translation losses on the euro liabilities linked to the acquisition of Naves Corporate
Finance GmbH and £01 millon in relaticn tc an 1AS 19 service cost. The prior vear expenditure included £01 million related to foreign
exchange translation of eurc labilities linked to the acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GrmibbH

An amount of £04 millon relates to the amortisation of acguired intangible assets, primarily in relation to intangible assets
recognised as a result of the acquisition of Southport.

The tax charge on acquisition-related tems was £01 million (2022, £nil).

In the prior year, the Group recognised a net gan of £67 millicn on the disposal of discontinued operatons Gains arose on the
disposal of Cory Brothers, AgualisBraemar and Wavespec of £41 milkon, £34 millen and £06 millon respectively, which were offset
by animpairment charge of £24 million on the consideration due in respect of Wavespec See Note 11

The urwinding of the discounting of the deferred receivable due in respect of the Cory Brothers disposal contributed interest
income of £01 mitlion (see Note 23). This Income is not related to the trading of the business In the period but 1s related to the
dispesal of the logistics business In the prior year As a result, it is treated as specific item.

The foreign exchange loss and fair value loss on the Naves-related habilties and dernvative of £03 millon 1s included as a specific
item as it relates to the acquisition of Naves and is not related to trading In the prior year, on 3 June 2021 the Group completed a
restructuring of the deferred consideration amounts In relation to the acauisition of Naves. This resulted in a gain on modification
of £02 millon, which is classified as specfic finance ncome (see Note 27) The Naves-related gains and losses do not relate to the
trading performance of the businesses durng the year. and as a result are classified as specific tems. The tax charge on specific
items included within other terns was £02 millicn (2022 £nil},
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 Discontinued operations
Curing the vear ended 28 February 2022, the Group has sold its Engineering Division, Wavespec, its Logistics Division, Cory
Brothers, and its entire shareholding in AgualisBraemar

[

2023 2022
Underlying Specific Total Underlying Specific Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Wavespec - - - {146) {1787} {1.933)
Cory Brothers - - - 1,563 4134 5,697
AqualisBraemar - - - 78 3,375 3,451
Profit - - - 1493 5722 7215

On 31 March 2021 the Group completed the sale of Wavespec, which was classified as held for sale at 28 February 2021. A gain
of £06 million was recognised cn disposal. The sale was for maximum censideration of £26 millon which was expected to

be satisfied by the 1ssuance of a promissory note with a maturity date of 3t March 2026. The disposal agreement contained

an obligaticn for the buyer to secure the note by providing a standby letter of credit issued by an international bank with an
acceptable credit rating Should they fail to deliver such a letter of credn, the Group could elect to receive a sum of cash of

£05 milion from the buyer with the balance of the note of £21 milllon remaining unsecured. The fair value of the consideration
was £24 milion At 28 February 2022, the buyer had not delivered a secured letter of credit nor had the cash sum of £05 milion
been receved The letter of credit and cash dues continue tc be outstanding at 28 February 2023. Managernent believe that the
censideration (far value of £2.4 milion) is unlikely to be recewved and the amount was provided for in full (charge of £2.4 million) in
the year ended 28 February 2022,

Year ended
28 Feb 2022
£000
Underlying:
Revenue 15
Costs 152
Trading loss befare tax (146)
Taxation -
Underlying loss for the year from Wavespec (148)
Specific items:
Imparment to tar value and other disposal costs (7}
Gain on disposal 594
Credit impairment charge (2,374}
Loss from specific items (1.787}
Loss for the year from Wavespec (1,933}
No taxation arises In relation to this discentinued operation as Wavespec was [oss making.
A reconciliation of the derecognition of the Wavespec assets held for sale to gain on disposal is as follows
£000

Intangbles Q0
Property plant and equipment 1
Cash 53
Trade and other receivables 292
Trade and other payables 271
Net assets held for sale disposed of 185
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E000
Disposal proceeds 2,374
Net assets disposed of (165)
| oAN waiver (1.008)
Disposal related costs (60Q)
Gain on disposal of Wavespec 504

Intercompany loans totaling £10 million were owed to the Group from Wavespec were waved on disposal

There were no cash proceeds from disposal in the period

On 28 February 2022 the Cormpany scld Cory Brothers to Vertormn Agencies BY for a maximum consideration of £155 milion

Initial cash proceeds were £65 milllon, in addition, three further cash payments are due based on a percentage of the gross
profit of the combined VertomCory business. Each of the three earnout payments is sulziect to a minimum and a maximum The
rminimum aggregate earnout payment s £375 millon and the maximum aggregate earnout payment 1s £90 milllon The initial
estimate of the fair value of the deferred and coningent consideration was £4.8 milion, presented within receivables (more detail
on the calculation of the deferred consideration is included in Note 23)

The profit on disposal Including foreign exchange recycling totalied £4 2 milion for the year ended 28 February 2022

Year ended
28 Feb 2022
E'Q00
Underlying.
Revenue 45,215
Costs (42,759}
Trading proht before tax 24566
Finance Income 9
Finance expense (3¢)
Profit before taxation 2,429
Taxation (BB0)
Underlying profit from Cory Brothers 1,563
Specific iterns.
Gain on disposal 4134
Total profit from Cory Brothers 5,69/
A reconciliation of the derecognition of the Cory Rrothers assets held for sale to gan on disposal is as follows.
£'000
Goodwll 3,645
Intangibles 1180
Property, plant and eguipment 1,220
Investments 1o
Cash 12,353
Trade and other recevablaes 15110
Trade and other payables (27042}
Net assets held for sale disposed of 6,596
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11 Discontinued operations continued
3 STy [ -

£000
Disposal proceeds — completion payment 6,500
Disposal proceeds - earn-out payments (deferred) 47568
Net assets disposed of 6,595)
Disposal-related costs {492}
FX recycling (37
Gain on disposal of Cory Brothers for the year ended 28 February 2022 4134

Note 23 describes the valuation of the deferred receivable arnsing from the earn-out payments.
A sensitivity analysis of the contingent consideration to changes in the gross profits and discount rate 1s provided in Note 23

[

The Group recognised its minonty shareholding in AqualisBraemar as an investment in associate until its disposal on 19 May 2021

In the prior year, the Group's share of profit of associate and the profit on disposal including foreign exchange recycling totalled
£35 million (see Note 20)

Year ended
28 Feb 2022
£'000
Underlyng:
Share of associate proftt for the pencd — trading 78
Specific tems:
Profit on disposal 3,375
Profit from specific tems 3,375
Total profit for the period from AgquahsBraemar 3,451
The basic and diluted earnings per share in respect of discentinued cperations were as follows
Year ended
28 Feb 2022
Basic earnings per share 2362p
Diuted earnings per share 19 24p

During the year there were net cash inflows of £85 millon relating to Investing activities concerning discontinued operations,
bemng the cash proceeds on complction of the Cory Brothers disposal. In the prior year, the cash flows relating to discontinued
operations were net operating cash inflows of £7.3 milkon, net cash cutflows relating to investing activities of £4.7 million, which
includes the £72 milllon proceeds from the sale of AqualisBraemar shares less the combined cash of £124 million held within
Wavespec and Cory Brothers at the time of their disposal
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12 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Ordinary shares of 10 pence each
Final dvidend of 70 pence per share for the year ended 28 February 2022 (2022 50 pence per share) 2,018 1,49¢
Intenm dividend of 40 pence per share (2022. 2C pence per share) 1,172 G610
3,190 2,109

The dividends paid by the Group dunng the year ended 28 February 2023 totalled £32 mition (1.0 pence per share) which
comprised a final dividend in respect of the year ended 28 February 2022 of £20 milien (70 pence per share) paid on 14 October
2022 and an interm dwdend for the year ended 28 February 2023 of £12 milion (40 pence per share) paid on 4 January 2023,

The right to receive dividends on the shares held in the ESOP has been waived (see Note 31). The dividend saving through the
wanver is £04 millon (2022 £01 milion).

Dunng the year ended 28 February 2022, the Group paid dividends totalling £21 millon (70 pence per share), being a final dvidend
In respect of the year ended 28 February 2022 of £15 millon (50 pence per share) paid on 21 September 2021 and an interim
dividend for the year ended 28 February 2022 of £06 rmullion (20 pence per share} pad on 16 December 2021

In December 2022 the Company commenced a project to research various options for Increasing the distributable reserves
avalable to the Company in order to support the stated progressive dividend policy After the payment of an interm dividend in
January 2023, the outcome of the research identified an accounting practice of the Company used since IFRS 2 was ntroduced in
2005, which carned realised gains which could only be used In very Iimited circumstances with the consequence that a significant
balance within retained earnings {that was not previously dentified as created by unrealised gans) was incorrectly used by the
Company in the calculation of distributable reserves

Dwidends paid between 2016 and 2023 were therefore paid by the Company without having sufficient distributable reserves
from which to lawfulty pay them. Having identfied these 1ssues, 1o rectify the gap In retaned earnings and the unlawful payment
of drividends, after the Balance Sheet date, the Company reduced its share premium account and capital redsemption reserve
and capitalised and reduced £198 milion of the merger reserve ("Capital Reduction”) and entered into releases from liability for
the benefit of shareholders and directors (to ensure that no persen was disadvantaged as a consequence of the payment of
unlawful dividends),

On 15 February 2023 the Company entered into deeds of release In favowr of shareholders receiving the unlawful dividends and
the directors of the Company at the time the unlawful dvidends were paid These releases were conditional on various conditions,
including shareholder approval for the Capital Reduction, the Capital Reduction becoming effective, and the terms of the deeds of
release for shareholders and directors At a General Meeting of the Company on 14 April 2023, shareholders approved the Capital
Reduction and the deeds of release for shareholders and directors which allowed the Company to proceed with the process for
the Capital Reduction by seeking approval from the High Court of Justice On @ May 2023 the High Court approved and confirmed
the Capital Reduction and on 5 June 2023 the Capital Reduction became effective providing the Company with £73.9 millon of
distributable reserves at that time

For the year ended 28 February 2023, a final ordinary dividend of 80 pence per share has been proposed totallng £26 million
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13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
rumber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan

and ordinary shares held by the ACM Employee Benefit Trust which are not treated as outstanding

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all
cilutive potential ordinary shares The Group has dilutive ordinary shares, being those options granted to employees where the
expected consideration 1s less than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the period \bat they are

outstanding, and convertible loan notes 1ssued in respect of the acquisition of Naves.

2023

Total operations £'000
Profit for the year attributabie to shareholders 4,596
pence

Basic earnings per share 16.856
Effect of diutive share options (2.60)
Diluted earnings per share 13.25
2023

Underlying operations £'000

Underlying profit for the year attrbutable to shareholders 13,399

pence

Basic earmings per share 46.22
Effect of dilutive share options (7.70)
Diluted earnings per share 38.52

2022
E'000

13,218

pence

45 66
(8.43)

3713

2022
£000

8639

pence

2795
(&17)

2278

A reconcilation by class of instrument in relation to potential dilutive ordinary shares and therr mpact on earnings is set out below:

2023 2022
Woeighted Weighted
average Underying Statutory average Underlying
number of eamings earnings rurmber of earnings
shares £000 £000 shares F000
Used in basic earnings per
share 28,990,886 13,399 4,696 30,5525632 8.53¢
RSP, DBP and LTIP 5,428,815 - - 6,790,266 -
Options {(SAYE) 216,764 - - 147998 -
Convertible loan notes 201,118 20 20 - -
Used in diluted earnings per
share 34,837,582 13,419 4,616 37490785 8,539

14 Business combinations - acquisition of Southport Maritime Inc.

Statutory
carrings
£000

13,818

13,919

On 16 December 2022, Braemar Plc acquired 100% of the 1ssued capital of Southport Martime Inc ' Southport”) Southport 1s a

tanker broker based in North America, and their addition is a key part of the Group's strategic global growth plan.

Southport strongly complerments our existing Tanker desks In London, Singapore, Houston, and Geneva, and provides the ideal

platform for the Group to penetrate new markets and add further scale and reach to our global shipbroking activities
Consideration for the acquisition was made up of

i} £60 millon {573 milklon) cash paid on completion,
i) £08 milkon {SO7 millon) estirmated working capital adjustment, and
iy £2.6 milion ($3C million) relating to 1016121 shares in Braemar Pic.

The cash amount of £60 million is subject to a clawback inked to continued service under the terms of the Sale and Purchase
agreement with cne third of the amount vesting to the sellers each yvear following coempletion The working capital adjustment is
also subject to an employment service condiion up to the date that it 1 agreed. The cash payments are treated as prepayments

for service with the cost recoghised over the vesting period
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The Braemar Plc shares are subect to an employment condition and will be 1ssued on the third anniversary of completion, provided
the seflers are employees of the Group {or the sefler is a Good Leaver} The share consideration which is inked to employment is
accounted for as a share-based payment under IFRS 2 with the accounting charge recognised on a straight-line basis over the
three years from acauisition date to the vesting date In addition to the grant of share awards to the sellers, cther awards were
granted to key employees and are accounted for n the same way as the awards made to the sellers

The acquisition date balance sheet of Southport, is summarised below:

£000
Intangible assets 3545
Property, plant and equipment 168
Trade and other recenvables 2125
Cash 349
Lease labilties (86)
Trade and other payables (1.347)
Corporation lax (203)
Deferred tax liabiity (906)
Net asset acquired 3,643
Fair value of consideration -
Gain on acquisition 3,643

The gross contractual value and far value of acquired receivables was £21milion As at the acquisiton date, the full amount
of receivables was expected to be collected Intangible assets include Customer-related (relatonships and arder backlog) of
£30 million, along with an intangible asset n relation to the Southport trade name of £05 million.

The accounting gain on acauistion of £36 million arises due to the requirements of IFRS 3 which result in all consiceration with an
employment service condition being treated as a post-combxnation remuneration expense, rather than the economic reality that
they also represent the commercial consideration for the acquired business Because there 1s no consideration under IFRS 3, the
cash In the acquired business 1s reflected as a cash nflow for the Group In the Cash Flow Statement

The revenue and loss of Southport included In the Group's annual results are £37 millien and (£0.2 milion) respectively. Had the
acquisition taken place at the beginning of the financial year, the Group's revenue would have been £10.3 million higher than
reported, and its profit would have been lower by £2.0 milion.

15 Goodwill
£000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 91,614
Disposal of Cory Brothers (3.8645)
Exchange adustments (419)
At 28 February 2022 875560
Cxchange adjustments 566
At 28 February 2023 88,116
Accumulated impairment
At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2021 7659
imparment charge recognised In the year 0,080
At 28 February 2023 16,709
Net book value at 28 February 2023 7,407
Net book value at 28 February 2022 79,891
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16 Goodwill continued
Al goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units. The allocation of goodwill to groups of cash-generating units I1s as follows:

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Chartering 68,696 08,696
Curpurdle Finanive {pai L uf hvestracnt Adviacry scgment) 2,71 1195
71,407 79,891

These groups of cash-generating units represent the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes

Following the simplification of the Group's activities and the way in which information is now presented to the Group’s Chief
Operating Decision Maker, the Group's cperating segments are Chartering, Investment Advisory and Risk Adwvisory. The Chief
Operating Decision Maker is considered to be the Group's board of directors These three segments are managed separately on
the basis of the nature of the services offered to clients and differences in the regulatory environment applicable to each segment.
Previously the Group's operating segments were based on a Divisional structure of Shipbroking and Financial. The goodwill
allocated to Shipbroking in 2022 1s now allocated to Chartering on the basis that the goodwill arose and benefited the same CGUs
which were included in the Shipbroking segment and now INncluded n the Chartering segment. Goodwill allocated to Corporate
Financial in 2022 continues te be allocated to Corporate Finance within the Investment Adwisory segment in 2023

The table below ilustrates the change in segment structure.

2023 2022
Segment Chartering Shipbroking
Component Deep Sea Tankers Deep Sea Tankers
Specialised Tankers Specialised Tankers
Offshore Offshore
Dry Cargo Dry Cargo
Sale and Purchase
Secunties
Segment Investment Advisory Financial
Cormponent Corporate Finance Corporate Finance

Sale and Purchase

Segment Risk Advisory
Component Securties

All goodwill is denominated in the Group's reporting currency, with the exception of the Corporate Finance Division which
15 denominated in eurcs Goodwill denominated in foreign currencies I1s revalued at the Balance Sheet date The exchange
adjustment at 28 February 2023 was a gain of £666000 (2022: loss of £419000}.

The Logistics Division, Cory Brothers, was dispesed of on 28 February 2022, the goodwill previously held in respect of this cash-
generating unit was therefore disposed of See Note 11

The Group Is reguired to test, on an annual basis, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment The recoverable amount is
determined based on value-in-use calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the
determination of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows

The key assumptions on which the value-in-use calculations are based relate to () business performance over the next five years,
{ii} long-term growth rates beyond 2027 and () discount rates applied.

1) Business performance over the next five years — The estimated cash flows were based on the approved annual budget for
the next financial year and projections for the following four years which are based on management’s estimates of revenue
growth and cost Inflation which reflect past expernence and management’s expectation of future events given the specific nsks
and econamic and market conditons of each cash-generating unit, Cash flows have been used over a penod of five years as
management believes this reflects a reasonable time honzon for management to monitor the trends in the business.

1 Long-term growth rates — this 1s the average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyand the budget perod The rate 1s
consistent with forecasts mcluded N industry reperts

n) Discount rates - The pre-tax discount rate was determined based on a weighted average cost of capital ("WACC”™) and
adjusted for CGU-specific risk factors specific to the CGU group
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The results of the impairrment tests are as follows

Cor
N

The key assumptions and resulting net present values are as follows'

Chartering 2023 2022
Post-tax discount rate 13.04% 10.87%
Equivalent pre-tax discount rate 16.47% 1319%
Average revenue growth rate 3.5% 5.0%
Operating profit margin years 2-5 16.0 - 16.4% 125 -161%
Long-term growth rate 1.7% 17%

At 28 February 2023, the net present value of the Chartering segment is significantly higher than the carrying value of the goodwil
in respect of this cash-generating unt At the Balance Sheet date, management concluded that there were no reaschably possible
changes In the key assumptions used in the Imparrment review that would reduce headroom to nil or result in an mpairment

R I R Y

Revenues for the Corporate Finance Division are challenging to forecast because of the highly variable nature of success fees.
Managerment forecasts over the period of two to five years consider recent performance and reflect management’s best estimate
of success fee taken nto account of volatiiity of the success fee Growth rates used in the value-in-use test reflect this varniability
and were based on the best estimate of the Management.

Corporate Finance 2023 2022
Post-tax discount rate 14.82% 12.37%
Equivalent pre-tax discount rate 20.66% 15 01%
Average revenue growth rate 5.0% 8.0%
Operating profit margin years 2-5 1.6% -14.4% 345% - 456%
Long-term growth rate 1.7% 17%

The gooawil included in the Corporate Finance Division arose from the acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmibH in 2017
At 28 February 2023, the recoverable amount of the Corporate Finance Division 1s based on a value-in-use of £2.835000, which
is lower than the carrying value of its assets. This is as a result of market conditions and trading below expectations In the year
to 28 February 2023 and an increase in discount rate from 1501% in 2022 to 2066% in 2023 as well as a reduction In forecast
revenues compared to management view in the prior year. As a result, Management recognised an impairment of £81 millon at
28 February 2023

Il . v PR
[P L4 AR S T

To test the sensitivity of the results of the impairment review, the calculations have been re-performed, flexing the three
key assumptions:

- revenue growth rate;
- post-tax discount rate, and
- revenue outperforms or underpertorms torecast.

Change In post-tax Revenue outpertorns or
Change i revenue growth discount rate underperforms forgcast
+1% -1% +2% 2% +15% -15%
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Corporate Finance 372 {363) (383) 523 1,702 {1,702)

The effect on cash flows of climate change was considered but assessed o have no material iImpact at this time Management
does not believe that climate-related nisks nor the potential impact of climate change on the Group's operations would matenally
affect the recoverability of goodwill in either of the cash-generating units (see Note 2)
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16 Other intangible assets

Other
Computer ntangiole
software assets Total
Note £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 6420 1,005 17425
Addtions 515 - 515
Disposal of Cory Brothers 1.344) (1,480) (2.824}
Exchange rate adjustrments 5) - (5
At 28 February 2022 5,686 9,625 15,111
Additions 90 - 90
Busingss combination 14 - 3545 3,545
Disposals (87} - (87)
Exchange rate adjustments 5 33 38
At 28 February 2023 5,594 13,103 18,897
Amortisation
At 28 February 2021 4775 10,621 15,296
Charge for the year 346 107 453
Reclassified as held for saie (275} (1,359) (1.634)
Exchange adustments M - M
At 28 February 2022 4,845 8,269 4n4
Charge for the year 192 349 541
Impairment Gl - 60
Exchange adjustments 1 1 2
At 28 February 2023 5,098 9,619 14,717
Net book value at 28 February 2023 496 3,484 3,980
Net bock value at 28 Febryary 2022 7 256 97

Cther intangible assets brought forward from the prior year relate to forward books of Income acquired in acquisitions which are
beng amortised over the period that the Income Is being recognised; customer relationshyps which are amortised over a period
ol up to twelve years; and brand which 1s being amortised over a perniod of up to ten years

The addiicn of £35 milion relates to the acguismion of Southport, which grves nise to customer-related intangitle assets of
£31 milion (including customer relationships of £2.8 milion arxi order backlog of £02 millon) and an asset of £04 millon in

relation to the tradename. The amortisation period for customer relationships 1s twelve years, order backlog is four months,

and tradename 1 five years.

The customer relationships and crder backlog have been valued using an excess earnings method Under the excess earnings
method, a stream of revenue and expenses are Identified as those associated with a particular group of assets This group

of assets inciudes the subject intangible asset as well as other assets {contributory assets) that are necessary 1o support the
earnings associated with the subject ntangible asset By identifying and subtracting contributory assets, the residual earnings are
estmated to be attributable to the subject Intangible asset and are discounted to present value at an appropriate discount rate
{estimated at 19%) The tradenamea has been valued using a royalty savings method The royalty savings method is a derivation
of the income approach often used to value intangible property that may be licensed to third partes. Under this method, it is
assumed that a company, without a smilar asset, would license the nght to use this intangible asset and pay a royalty related to
turnover achieved, The value of the asset Is established by calculating the present value of the royalty stream (estimated at 4%)

that the business is saving by owning the asset.

At 28 February 2023, the Group had no contractual commitrnents for the acquisitien of computer software or other intangible

assets (2022 £nil}.
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17 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Fixtures and
bulldings Computers eguipment Total
Note £000 £:000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 - as reported 14,308 859 2.384 17551
Restaternent! 475 835 224 1634
At 28 February 2021 - restated 14,783 1694 2608 18,086
Additions at cost 1,087 315 337 1739
Disposals (244) - B31) (875)
Disposal of Cory Brothers (1204} (418} (478) (2188
Exchange differences 75 1§ 42 123
At 28 February 2022 14,407 1,699 1,878 17884
Additions at cost 757 374 334 1,485
Business combination 14 86 - 80 166
Disposals (2,445) @ 369 (2,818
Exchange differences 427 4 88 556
At 28 February 2023 13,232 2,010 2,01 17,263
Accumulated depreciation
At 28 February 2021 - as reported 5378 352 1980 7710
Restatement’ 565 8356 134 1534
At 28 February 2021 - restated 5,043 1187 214 9,244
Charge for the year 2,663 148 220 3,031
Disposals (244) - {B20) (864}
Imparment 392 - - 392
Disposal of Cory Brothers 490) {300) (178} {968)
Exchange dfferences (85) 28 10 (29)
At 28 February 2022 (restated) 8199 1,061 1548 10,806
Charge for the year 2477 171 175 2823
Disposals 1.852) i (313) {2,166)
Imparment - 160 - 150
Exchange dfferences 234 25 61 320
At 28 February 2023 9,058 1,406 1,469 11,933
Net book value at 28 February 2023 4474 604 542 5,320
Net book value at 28 February 2022 6,208 538 332 7078

1 At 28 Febraary 2021, both cost and accumlated depremiation have been ircreased by £15 millor {Computers increase of £0 8 raillion, Fixtures ang equipment
ncrease of £0 2 millon, Land and buldings decrease of £O5 milion} This primanly relates 1o a correction of grossed up disposals in pror years relaung
to business combinatons where *he addiion of the asset was based onits tar value at the point of acguisition, bus the eventual disposal being based
on ongmnal cost

On 28 March 2022, the Group assigned the lease for its Bewis Marks premises to Beat Capital The impairment charge of £392.000
recognised In the year ended 28 February 2022 is equal to the subseguent loss on assignment of this lease, being the lease
assignment premium paid plus the net book value of the RCU asset disposed of less the outstanding lease llability At 28 February
2023, the Group had ng contractual commitrnents for the acquisition of property. plant and egupment (2022 £nil)
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18 Leases

M

The Group leases a number of properties in the jJunsdictions from which it operates In some junsdictions it is customary for lease

contracts to provide for payments to ncrease each year by Inflation and in other property leases the periodic rent 1s fixed over
the lease term. The Group also leases certain items of plant and equipment which are typically motor vehicles These contracts

normally compnse only fixed payments over the lease terms

At 28 February 2021
Additions

Amortisation

Imparment

Disposals

Disposal of Cary Brothers
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Additions

Business combination
Depreciation
Disposals

£xchange differences

At 28 February 2023

At 28 February 2021
Additions

Interest expense

Lease payments
Disposal of Cory Brothers
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Additions

Business combination
Disposal

Interest expense
Lease payments
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

Note

Land and  Fixtures and
buildings equipment

£'000 E'000
7307 138
1,036 1l
(2,079 {76)
(392) -
- (10}
(856} (51
166 -
5182 12
rail 59
86 -
{2.079) (8)
481) 10
166 1
3,585 b4
Note
14

Total
£'000
7445
1,047
(2155}
(392
(10}
(207)
166

5124
770
86
(2.087)
(49
187

3,639

Total
£'000
12554
814
329
(3.950)
1,243)
2

8,506
770
86
(632)
175
(4,039)
161

5,027

Right-of-use assets and lease lablities ansing on business combinations represents lease on property of £86 000, For further

detalls refer to Note 14 Business combinations

Total cash outflow for leases 1s £4 039000, of which £175,000 represents payment of interest
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At 28 February 2021
Disposal

Intaract incorme

Lease payments
Disposal of Cory Brothers
Movement in provision
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Disposal

Interest income

Lease payments
Movement in provision
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

Short-term lease expense
Short-term lease Income

beto o by doehinge s

Strategic Report

Coritractual payments by matunty are provided in Note 24e

N T

At 28 February 2023
At 28 February 2022

Within
1year
£'000
642

842

Contractual receipts by maturity are provided in the table below

1to2 2to b
Years years
£'000 £000
241 -
542 284

More than
o years
£000

Governance

Unearmed
Total Interest
£000 £000

883 (17}
1568 {56}

Prowision
£'000

(12)

2023
£'000

@17
L)

Provision
£:000

(12)

(18

Net
£000
2,827
(238)
72
(870)
(272)
(18)
©
1,434
(39)
35
{642

854

0
£000

(234)
73

Met
recevable
£°000
854

1494

During the year, the financial effect of revising lease terms ansing from the effect of exercising extension and termination options
was an increase of £88000 in the recognised lease labilities. As at 28 February 2023, potential future cash cutflows of £39 million
{undiscounted) have not been included in the lease liability because it 1s not reasonably certan that the leases will be extended

{or not terminated).

19 Investments

Unlisted investments

The Group recogrises unbsted nvestrnents at fair value through profit or loss

Maovement in unlisted investments

At 1 March 2021
Disposal

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023
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2023
£000

1,780

2022
£:000

1,780

Total
£000

1,962
(182)

1,780
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19 Investments continued
A list of subsidiary undertakings is ncluded in Note 34

The Financial Statements of the principal subsidiary undertakings are prepared to 28 February 2023
The Group's unlisted investrments include 1000 (2022 1,000) ordinary £1 shares in London Tanker’s Broker Panel Limited The
investment 1s carmned at fair value of £15 million, being the value of the most recent comparable transaction, which occurred during
the year ended 28 February 2019 There have been no transactions or events in the current or prior year which would result in a
materal adjustment to the far value at 28 February 2023.

20 Investment in associate
On 29 October 2020 the Group subscribed for 1000 ordinary shares (n Zuma Labs Limited. Zuma Labs Limited 1s a private
company incorporated in England and Wales and its registered address 1s Kemp House, 128 City Road, London, United Kingdom.

ECIV 2NX, Zuma Labs Limited has one share class and each share carnes one vote.

During the penod, In accordance with the shareholders’ agreement, four further subscriptions for shares were made totalling of
SO5 million (£03 millkion), iIncreasing Braemar's shareholding by 1500 shares

At 28 February 2023 the Group's shareholding was 2500 shares, which equates to 200% of Zuma Labs Limited’s share capital and
200% of voting nghts (2022 2500 shares, 20% of share capital and 20% of voting rights). The Group has representation on the
board of Zuma Labs Limited, and as a result, the Group considers that it has the power to exercise significant influence in Zuma
Labs Limited and the investment in it has been accounted for using the equity method.

A purchase price allocation exercise was undertaken to measure the far value of the net assets on the date at which Zuma Labs
Limited became an associate, and also at each date at which further shares were subscrbed for. Based on the purchase price
allocation exercise, the difference between the cost of the investment and Braemar's share of the net far value of Zuma Labs
Limited's identifiable assets and llabilities will be accounted for as goodwil. Amortisation of that goodwill 1s not permitted

IAS 28 requires the most recent Financial Statements of an associate are used for accounting purposes, and that coterminous
information should be used unless 1t 1Is iImpractical to do so. Zuma Labs Limited has a year end of 31 March and accounts up to

31 December 2022 have been made avalable, so for practical reasons Zuma Labs Limited's management accounts for the nine
menths ended 31 December 2022 will be used for the purposes of the Group's full-year reporting at 28 February with adjustments
made for any significant transactions and events. Zurma Labs Limited will prepare its next set of Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023. At 28 February 2023 Zuma Labs Limited had no contingent labilities

The summansed financial information of Zuma Labs Limited for the penod ended 28 February 2023 is as follows. These figures
are taken from the managerment accounts of Zuma Labs Limited, adjusted for any fair value adjustments but before any

intercompany eliminations

28 Feb 2023
£000

Balance Sheet
Current assets 177
Non-current assets 223
Current labilihes (68)
Net assets (100%) 332
Group share of net assets (209%) 66
Income Statement
Revenues -
Post-tax koss {6}
The Group's share of the loss (23)

Management have reviewed the carrying vaiue of the investment in Zuma Labs Limited at 28 February 2023 and do not consider
this to be impaired
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On 2 June 2019 the Group recognised an investment in associate as a result of the divestment of the Offshore, Marine and
Adjusting procdiuct Ines in return for a significant shareholding in AqualisBraemar LOC ASA AgualisBraemar LOC ASA is listed on the
Oslo Bers, its principal place of business 1s Oslo and its registered address 15 Olav Vs gate 6, 181, Oslo. Norway AgualsBraemar
LOC ASA has one share class and each share carnes one vote

Cni 28 January 20M the Group sold @80N0NN sharas and nn 18 May 2021 the Group sold its entire remaining shareholding in
AgualisBraemar LOC ASA see Note 11 The Group was entitled to representation on the board of AgualisBrasmar LOC ASA for as
long as the Group's shareholding remans more than 100%. Based on this the Group considers that it had the power to exercise
significant influence for the year ended 28 February 2022, and untit it sold its shareholding on 19 May 2021 At that point significant
influence was lost, the Group ceased to equity account for AgqualisBrasmar and the Group's interest in AqualisBraemar was Iimrted
to s holding of 69523 877 performance-based warrants which were accounted for as a financial asset at far valus.

On 20 August 2021, 1000000 of the 8523977 warrants vested with the remander lapsing. A loss on vesting of £2000 was
recognised in specific items. The shares received were subseguently sold on 31 August 2021 crystalising a further loss of £4,000.

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group's shareholding was nil which eguates to 0% of AgualisBraerar's share
capital and 0% of voting nghts

The results of AgqualisBraemar are presented within discontinued operations

The movements in the investment in asscciates are provided below

Zuma AgualisBraemar Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 March 204 48 3,345 3,763
Book value of 450 shares acquired 326 - 328
Share of profit in associate 20 76 56
Share of associate’s other comprehensive iIncome - 52 52
Book value of 868408621 shares disposed - (3.473) (3,473)
At 28 February 2022 724 - 724
Share of loss In asscclate — underlying {23} - 23
At 28 February 2023 701 - 701

A reconciiation of the ook value of the AgualisBraemar shares disposed of to the profit on disposal n Note 11 1s as follows.

19 May 2021

Number of shares sold 9,640,621
Share price NOK 800
NOK*000

Gross disposal proceeds 86,776
Broker's commission at 15%,/2% (1,301
Net disposal proceeds 85,475
£000

Net disposal proceads 7232
Book vaiue of shares sold (3.473)
Legal costs (12
Recycle of amounts in other comprehensive income (371
Profit on disposal 3,375
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21 Other long-term receivables

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Deferred consideration 2,540 3,482
Contingent consideration 1,004 1276
Socurty doposite 16 17
Finance lease recevabies 228 861
Prepayments 4,766 -
8554 5636

Deferred consideration of £25 millen and contingent consideration of £1.0 millon relates to the earn-out paymenits receivable in
respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers, further detail is provided in Note 23, Prepayrments includes an asset of £4.8 millon (2022
£nil} which s the non-current element of the clawback provision on joining Incentives paid to certain employees. This iIncludes an
amount of £36 milicn added in the year in relation to the acquisition of Southport and £0.2 millon in relation to the broker team in
Madnd. The receivable 1s amorused over the clawback period.

See Note 18 for a matunty analysis which reconciles the long-term finance lease recewvables to the undiscounted lease receipts
and unearned finance income.

22 Trade and other receivables

Restated

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Trade receivables 31,989 24970
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (3,725) (3,159}
Net trade recevables 28,264 21841
Deferred consideration 1,097 -
Contingent consideration 403 -
Other recevables 4,148 7,822
Finance lease recewvables 626 633
Contract assets 3,388 1,965
Prepayments 5,397 3,212
Total 43,323 35,792

Deferred consideration of £11 millon and contingent consideration of £0.4 millon relate to the earn-out payments recevable in
respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers, further detall 1s provided in Note 23

Included in other recewvables at 28 February 202215 £65 milion of completion proceeds relating to the disposal of Cory Brothers.
The cash was received on 2 March 2022, Also included in other receivables in both years are secunty deposits, VAT and other
sales tax receivaples and employee loans.

Prepayments includes an asset of £4.0 milion (2022, £21 million) in respect of the current portion of the clawback provision an
joming incentives paid to certain employees which are being charged to the Income Statement in accordance with the clawback
provisions of the underlying contracts Thrs includes an amount of £20 mitlon added in the year in relation to the acguisibon of
Southport and £08 millon in relation te the broker team In Madnd The recevable is amortised over the clawback period

The movement In the asset between years Is due o the invoicing of all prior year assets and the accrual of amounts relating to the
current year

The total receivables balance 15 denominated In the following currencies:

Restated

2023 2022

£'000 £000

US dollars 36,888 20,083
Sterling 6,114 14,451
Cther 1,321 1258
Total 43,323 35,792
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The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade receivables approxmate to therr far value.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms payable within 30-80 days; terms associated with the
settlement of the Group's trade receivables vary across the Group Specific debts are provided for where recovery is deemed
uncertain, which will be assessed on a case-by-case basis whenever debts are older than the due date, but always when debts
are older than usual for the industry in which each business in the Group operates

As at 8 February 2023, trade recenables of £3,003,000 (2022: £2,008,000) which were over 12 months old were treated as credit
impaired and have been provided for No provision {2022 £396,000) has been made for specific trade receivables which are less

than 12 months overdue

The Group applies the IFRS 9 smplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a Ifetime expected credit loss
provision for trade receivables and contract assets To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade recevables and
contract assets are grouped based on similar credit nsk and ageing The contract assets have similar nsk characterstics to the

trade recewvables for similar types of contracts

The expected loss rates are based un the Group's historical credit losses and rates are then adjusted for current and forward-

looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Group’'s customers

The ageing profile of trade recevables and the Hfetime expected credit loss for provisions and contract assets Is as follows'

2023

Up to 3 months
3to 6 moenths
6 to 12 maonths
Qver 12 months

Trade recevables

Contract assets

Total

2022

Up to 3 menths
3to 6 months
6 t0 12 months
Qver 12 months

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Total
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Trade
receivables
£'000
23,666
3,185
2,078
3,170

31,989

3,388

35,377

Trade
receivables
£000

14,562
3,952
4,036
2420

24,870

1965

26,035

Expected
loss rate
%

0.015
0.020
0.051
0.591

0.096

0.012

0.020

Expected
loss rate
o

001b
0.020
¢ 051
0591

0086

0.015

0028

Group
provision
£'000

3,033
3,033

3,033

Group
Drovision
£000
100
100

196
2,008

2404

2404

ECL
provision
£000

333
Fa
149
29

652

40

692

ECL
provision
£000

210

77
196
243

726

29

755

Total
provision for
impairment
of trade
receivables
£000

333

Fal

149

3,132
3,685

40

3,725

Total
provision for
Imparmerit
of trade
receivables
£000

310

177

392

2,251
32130

29

3,168
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22 Trade and other receivables continued
Movements on the provisicn for impairment of trades receivables and contract assets were as follows

2023 2022

£'000 £000
At 1 March 3.169 28568
Bad Jebt charge 238 747
Recewables written off during the year as uncollectible - (204)
Reclassification of other provisions 328 -
Transferred on disposal - (242)
Af 28 February 3,726 3159

O I Y

The Group's contract assets related to accrued income which has not yet been invoiced at the Balance Sheet date. Significant
changes in contract assets during the penod are analysed as follows.

£'000
At 1March 2022 1,965
Changes due to business combinations 647
Contract assets converted to recevables on completion (2,049)
Contract assets arnsing on new contracts in-year 2,825
At 28 February 2023 3,388

Contract assets increased by £06 million due to the acquisition of Southport in December 2022; all other movements in contract
assets arise from normal underlying operations

23 Deferred and contingent consideration receivable

Pl B LRI L PES R PL LI LN SEAF S AT I SRS K I A

On 28 February 2022 the Company sold Cary Brothers to Vertom Agencies BV for maximum consideration of £155 millon initial
cash proceeds of £65 millon were received on completion of the transaction and three further cash payments are due contingent
on an agreed percentage of future gross profit of the combined VertomCory business These “earnout” payments are subject to a
combined minimum of £37% milion and a coembined masumum of £9.0 millon.

Fach agreed minimum earnout payment 1s presented as deferred consideration recognised at amortised cost, using a discount
rate of 239% determmned on inttial measurement. The uncertain element of each earnout paymenits i1s recognised at far value
through profit or loss and presented as contingent consideration.

The far value of the contingent consideration 1s calculated using the forecast gross profit for the combined VertomCory business
for each earnout period, applying the agreed percentage, deducting the minimum payment and discounting the forecast
contingent cashflow using the discount rate of 528% (2022 239%)

Deferred and contingent consideration are included in other long-term recervables (see Note 21} and current other recevables
{see Note 22) The amortised cost of the deferred consideration i1s £36 million (2022 £35 milion} The fair value of the contingent
consideration is £14 milion (2027 £1:3 milion)

The valuation of the contingent consideration involves two critical estimates' the future profitability of the combined business

and the discount rate used to calculate the net present value. The future profitability forecasts are based on a business plan
prepared by the combined VertomCory business and was reviewed by management as part of the financial due diigence process
A discount rate of 529% was used to calculate the net present value. this was based on the credit nsk of Vertom Agencies BV
following a credit check performed by management

The contingent consideration relating to the first earnout payment 1s resolved as it 1s based on the performance of the VertomCory

business to December 2022, The receivabie held on the Balance Sheet at 28 February 2023 in relabion to the first earnout payment
is £15 millen (£11 millon deferred consideration and £04 rmillon contingent consideration)
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Management have considered the sensitivity of the contingent consideration recenvable arising from the second and third
earnout payments to both changes in the estimate of future profitability of the VertomCory agency business, and the discount

rate selected

Carrying

value as at

28 Feb 2023

£'000s

Payrnent due on 31 May 2023 403
Payrnent cue on 31 May 2024 515
Payment due on 31 May 2025 489
Total 1,407

Sensitivity (o the estimate of future
gross profits of the Vertomory
agency busincss

Undiscounted
value as at Decrease Increase
28 Feb 2023 by 10% by 10%
£'000s £'000s £000s
408 n/a nfa
560 (176) 176
550 (167) 167
1,508 (343) 343

Sensitivity to change In the
discount rate selected

Decrcase Increase
by1% pa by 1% pa
£'000s3 £'000s
n/a n/a

& {©)

il {10)

17 (16}

The 10% increase/decrease in future gross profits of the VertomCory agency business considered in the sensitivity analysis is
selected to reflect a reasonably Iikely variation in outcomes, which lie within range covered by the minimum and maximum earnout
thresholds. The change in discount rate considered reflects the cbserved range of three-year GBP corporate bond rates with

similar credit risk.

24 Financial instruments and risk management
The Group is exposed through its cperations to the following financial risks:

- Currency nsk

- Interest rate nsk
- Credit nsk

- Ligudity nsk

In common with all other businesses, the Group 1S exposed to risks that anise from its use of financial Instruments. This note
describes the Group's ohjectives, policies and processes for managing those nsks and the methods used to measure them
Further quantitative information in respect of these nsks I1s presented throughout the Financial Statements

There have been no substantive changes In the Group's exposure to financial Instrument risks, its objectives. policies, and other
processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous perods

R A N T

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial risks anse, are as follows

— Trade and other receivables

- Cash and cash gquivalents

— Deferred consideration recenvable

- Contingent consideration recewvable
- Unlisted investments

- Trade and cther payables

- Revolving credit facllity

- Lease labilties

— Derwvative financial instrurnents

- Deferred consideration payable
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Financial instrurents measured at fair value

The Group's financial assets and llabiliies measured at farr value through profit and loss, including ther far value herarchy, are as
follows. Far value 1s the amount at which a financial nstrument could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction, other than in a
torced or lquidated sale.

As at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2B Feb 2023
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets.
Unfisted investment - 1,780 - 1,780
Contingent consideration receivable - - 1,407 1,407
Derivative contracts® - 1,254 - 1,254
Total - 3,034 1,407 4,441
Financial llabifties
Derivative contracts* - 1,760 - 1,760
Embedded derivative - - 384 384
Total - 1,760 384 2,144
As at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 28 Feb 2022
£000 E'000 E£'C00 £000
Financial assets
Uniisted investment - 1780 - 1,780
Contingent consideration recevable - - 1,276 1,276
Derwvative contracts™ - 82 - 62
Total - 1,842 1276 318
Financial fabilities
Dervative contracts* - 772 - 772
Ermbedded denvative - - 251 251
Total - 772 261 1,023

" Currency forwards with a fair valuc of £1,224 000 (2022 £54,000) maturing within 12 menths have been shown as current assets Currency forwards with a
faur value of £30.000 (2022 £8,000) maturing within 12 to 24 months of the Balance Sheet date have been shown as non-current assets Liabines irclude
currency forwards with a far value of £1108,000 (2022 £688 000) maturing within 12 months shown as current habihities and currency forwards with a tair value
of £652 000 {2022 £84,000) maturing within 12 to 24 months of the RBalance Shec! date shown as non-current liab Iities

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset or liability is categonsed s determined on the basis of the lowest
level mput that i1s significant to the far value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are classihed in ther entirety into one of three levels

- Leveldl Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for iIdentical assets or labllities

- Level2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly
or indirectly.

- Level 3 Inputs for the asset or llability that are not based on observable market data

Unlisted investment

The unlisted Investment relates to the Group's investment in the London Tanker's Bioker Panel, see Note 19 The investment is
carried at far value, being the value of the rmost recent comparable transaction and is therefore classified as Level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy

There was no movement in the fair value of the unlisted iInvestment
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Contingent consideration receivable

The far value of the contingent consideration receivable includes uncbservable nputs and are therefore classified as Level 3.

The contingent consideration recevable relates to the disposal of the Logistics Division whereby the Group 1s entitied to three
future cash payments. The SPA provides for a minimum guaranteed amount in each of the three years; this amount has been
classified as deferred consideration The balance of the earnout consigderation 1s contingent on the future performance of the
comiined business up to a maximum specified in the SPA, this has been classified as contingent consideration. The far value

of the contingent consideration has been calculated by reference to management’s expectation of the future profitability of the
combined business and discounted to present value using a discount rate of 522%. The discount rate 1s based on the credit risk
of Vertom Agencies BY assessed by a third party credit agency See Note 23 for further details and a sensitivity analysis on the
contingent element

Derivative contracts

Contracts with dervative counterparties are kased on ISDA Master Agreements Under the terms of these arrangements, only in
certain situations will the net amounts owing/receivable 1o a single counterparty be considered outstanding. The Group does not
have the present legal ability to set-off these amounts and so they are not offset in the Balance Sheet Of the dervative assets
and derivative liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet, an amount of £01 million {2022 £01 million) would be set-off under
enforceable rnaster netting agreements

The fair value of the forward currency contracts are based on prices quoted by the counterparty within these contracts versus the
rmarket rate at the Balance Sheet date and have therefore been classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. See the currency risk
section for further details

The fair value of the currency options are based on prices quoted by the counterparty within these contracts versus the market
rate at the Balance Sheet date and have therefore been classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy

Embedded derivative

The convertible loan note instruments issued on the acquisition of Naves contain an embedded derivative, being a euro liability

of principal and interest. The equity value of the underlying derivative is not considered closely related to the debt host, therefore
the loan note 1s considered to be a financial liability host with an embedded derivative convertible feature which is reqguired to be
separated from the host The far vatue of the embedded derivative includes unobservable inputs and is therefore classified as
Level 3 They key assumptions underpinning the fair vaiue of the embedded derivative relate to the expected future share pnce of
the Group and the GBP EUR exchange rate The far value has been determined using a Black-Scholes valuation model

A loss of £18000 (2022 gan of £E7000) has been recognised In the Income Statement in respect of the fair value movernent of
the embedded dernvative from 1 March 2022 10 28 February 2023

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Group's financial assets and labilities that are not measured at farr value are held at amortised cost. Due to therr short-term
nature, the carrying value of these financial Instruments approximates their fair value. Therr carrying values are as follows:

2023 2022
Financial assets £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 34,735 13,964
Deferred consideration recevable 3,637 32,482
Trace and other receivables 41,448 38,601
Total 79,820 56,047

2023 2022
Financial liabilitles £000 £000
Trade and other payables 6,446 7772
Corwvertible loan notes 3,651 4666
Leng term porrowings 27,815 23,2564
Total 37,812 35698
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Deferred consideration receivable

The initial fair value of the deferred consideration recevable was determined by discounting the guaranteed mnimum amounts
as per the SPA to present value using a discount rate of 2 39% and 115 subsequently measured at amortised cost

Currency nsk arises whien Gioup entitics enlur wito transactions denominated in a currency other than their functional currency
The Group's policy 1s, where possible, to allow Group entities to settle liabilties dencminated in their functional currency with the
cash generated from operations in that currency. The Group's currency risk exposure arises mainly as a result of the majority of

its Shipbroking earnings being dencrminated in US dollars while the majority of its costs are denominated in sterling There 1s alsc
some currency expasure related to convertible loan notes and deferred consideration denomnated in eurcs and from the carrying
values of its overseas subsidianes being denominated in foreign currencies

The Group manages its transactional exposures to foreign currency nsks using forward exchange contracts and currency options.
The Group 1s primarily exposed to fluctuations in US doliar to sterling exchange rates on foreign currency sales and hedges a
proportion of those expected cash flows out to 21 months. The principal source of hedge ineffectiveness is the nsk of changes

N timing of the forecast transaction or that they do not cccur, which 1s addressed by only hedging a proportion of future foreign
currency sales. There were no hedged transachons forecast in the current year which did not occur {2022, nil).

The Groug's results, which are reported in sterling, are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates across a number
of different currencies with the most significant exposures relating to the US dollar The Group 1s exposed tc the underlying
translational movements which rermain outside the control of the Group. The Group's translational exposures to foreign currency
nisks relate to beth the translation of income and expenses and net assets of overseas subsidiaries which are converted into
sterling on consclidation The Group inances overseas nvestments partly through the use of foreign currency Borrowings in order
to provide a net nvestment hedge over the foreign currency risk that arises on translation of its foreign currency subsidiaries

The Group continues to apply hedge accounting to hedging instruments that meet the critena set out in IFRS 9.

Cash flow hedges are used to hedge the varnability in cash flows of highly prolbable forecast transactions caused by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates Where a dervative financial instrument 1s designated in a cash flow hedge
relationship with a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any change in far value arising 1s deferred in the
cash flow hedging reserve within equity, via the Statement of Comprehensive Income The gan or loss relating 1o the ineffective
part is recognised in the Income Staternent within net finance expense Amounts deferred in the cash flow hedging reserve are
reclassified to the Income Statement in the periods when the hedged itern is recognised In the Income Staterment

If a hedging Instrument expires or 1s sold but the hedged forecast transaction s still expected to oceur, the cumulative gain or
loss at that point remains i equity and 1s recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs If the
hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity 1s recognised
immediately n the Income Statement If a derivative financial instrument is not formally designated in a cash flow hedge
relationship, any change in fair value is recognised in the Income Staterment.

The critical terms of the hedging instruments match the hedged transactions in relation to currency, timing and amounts,
meaning there 1s a clear economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item as regured under IFRS 9
Thereby, management qualtatively demonstrates that the hedging instrument and the hedged items will move equally In the
opposite direction

Aloss of £4,826000 (2022 £1613000 gain) has been recognised in the Income Staternent in respect of dervative contracts which
have matured In the percd

The Group entered into currency opticns featurng a “‘cap and floor” feature. The intrinsic value of the options is designated In
cashflow hedge relationships The time value of the options is deferred in equity as a cost of hedging and reclassified to the
Income Statement In the perod that the hedged cash flow affects the Income Statement

The Group also entered Inte a currency cption which 1s not designated in a cash flow hedge relationship with a far value of a

£0.2 milion liability (28 February 2022 £nil hability). The £0.2 millon movement in farr value in the period was charged 1o the income
Statement (2022: £nily and 1s Included within Finance costs.
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The effects of the foreign currency-related hedging instruments on the Group’s financial positicn and performance are as follows

Currency options 2023 2022
Carrying amount of (lability}/asset (£28,000) £14000
Total notional amount $1,500,000 $5000000

March 2023 to April 2021 to
Maturity dates April 2023 August 2022
Hedge ratio 11 11
Change n fair value of outstanding hedging nstrurnents since nception of the hedge {£23,000) £14000
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge ineffectiveness £23.000 (£14,000)
Weighted average strike rate for cutstanding hedging instruments 123 to 1.29 129
Forward currency contracts 2023 2022
Carrying amount of asset £1,264,000 £82000
Carrying amount of hability {£1,547,000) (£771000)
Total notional amount US $123,048,000 US $49,300000

March 2023 to March 2022 to
Maturity dates November 2024 August 2023
Hedge ratio 11 11
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instrurments since inception of the hedge {£218,000) {(E723000}
Change in value of hedged item used tc determine hedge neffectiveness £218,000 £723000
Weighted average strike rate for outstanding hedging nstruments 1.22 137

The Group uses its US dollar dencminated borrowings as a hedge against the translation exposure on the Group's net investment
in overseas companies The Group designates the spot rate of the loans as the hedging nstrument. There was no ineffectiveness
to be recognised on hedges of net Investments in foreign operations Where the hedge is fully effective at hedging the variability in
the net assets of such companies caused by changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borrowings are recognised
N the translation reserve within equity, via the Staterment of Comprehensive Income The ineffective part of any change in value
caused by changes In exchange rates is recognised in the Income Statement. The effective portion will be recycled into the
Income Staterment on the sale of the foreign operaton.

The table below provides further informaticn on the Group's net INvestment hedgng relationships.

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Hedge ratio 1t n/a
Change in value of hedging instruments due to foreign currency movements since 1 March 124 n/a
Change in value of the hedged item used to determine hedge effectiveness (124} n/a

The balances and movernents into and out of the forergn currency translation reserve are shown in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Consolidated Staterment of Changes in Equity respectively The amount in the foreign currency

- continuing net investment hedges loss of £01 miflion (2022 £nil}, and
— hedging relationships for which hedge accounting is no longer applied, £nil (2022 £nil).
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24 Financial instruments and risk management contirued

The effect on equity and profit before tax if the US dollar or the eurc strengthened/(weakened) by 10% against sterling, with all
other vanables being equal, 1s as follows.

Froht or loss Equity, net of tax
+10% strengthening -10% weakening +10% strengthening -10% weakening
£'000 £'D0C £oon £000
28 February 2023
US dollars 874 (1,.220) (4,529) 3,656
Euros {36} 38 {36) 38
Total 838 (1.184) (4,565) 3,692
28 February 2022
US dollars 2,697 (2.697) 2185 (2185)
Euros {111} M {(80) a0
Total 2,680 (2.586) 2,096 (2,095)

The Group is exposed to interest rate nisk from borrowings at floating rates The Group minimises its short-term exposure to
interest rate nsk on its cash and cash equivalents by pooling cash balances across the Group's hubs

The Group has not entered into any iinancial INnstruments to fix or hedge the interest rates applied to ts bank borrowings
and overdrafts.

The following table sets cut the carrying amount, by matunty, of the Group's financial INstruments which are exposed 1o INterest
rate risk.

2023 2022
Notes £'000 £000
Floating rate
Within one year
Cash and cash equivalents 25 34,735 13,964
Long-term borrowings 27 (27.816) (23.254)
8,920 (8,200)

Cash balances are generally held on overnight deposits at floating rates depending on cash requirements and the prevailing
market rates for the amount of funds deposited The other financial instruments of the Group are non-interest bearing

The effect on equity and profit before tax of a 1% ncrease/(decrease) in the interest rate, all other variables being equal, is as follows:

Profit or koss Equity, net of tax
+1% increase —1% decrease  +1% increase -1% decrease
£000 £000 £:000 £'000

28 February 2023
Cash and cash eqguivalents 187 (187} 187 (187)
Long-term borrowings (195) 195 {195} 1956
Total {8) 8 (8) 8
28 February 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 63 63) 51 (3)))
Long-term borrowings {104) 104 84) 84
Total {41) 41 (33} 33
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The maximum exposure 1o credit nek at the end of the reporting penod is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
Concentrations of credit nsk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the diversity of the Group’s custormer base
The drrectors believe there 1s no further crecht risk provision required in excess of normal provisions for doubtful receivables,
estimated by management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment The Group
seeks to trade only with creditworthy parties and carries out credit checks where appropriate. The maximum exposure 1s the
carrying amount as disclecod in Mote 241

Liquidity risk arises frem the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges and principal repayments on its
debt instruments It 1s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty i meeting its inancial obligations as they fall due

The Group's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due.
Management receive rolling 13-week cash flow projections on a weekly basis to ensure the Group has sufficient iquicity.

The board receves roling 12-ronth cash flow projections on a monthly basis as well as information regarding cash balances.
At the end of the financial year, these projections Indicated that the Group expected to have sufficient Ilguid resources to meet its
chligations under all reasonably expected circurnstances.

The following table sets out the undiscounted contractual amounts due, in relation to the Group's financial liabilties which exposes
the Group to liguidity risk .

Between Total Total
Upto3 3and12 Betweeon 1 Between 2 Over contractual edrrying
months menths and2years and®5 yoars 6 years amount ~aimount
At 28 February 2023 £'000 £000 £000 *000 E'000 £'000 v £'000
Trade and other payables 4,971 1,388 87 - 6,446 :
Loans and borrowings 422 1,266 1,688 242 - 32,618
Lease labilties 767 2,271 1,376 23 6,226 02’
Deferred consideration 66 764 109 3,726 - 4,666 316618
Total 6,216 6,689 3,269 33,767 23 48,964 42,839
Forward currency contracts 1,547
Gross cutflows 14,749 48,9256 298,414 - - 83,088
Gross inflows {(14,663) (48,866) (28,621) - - (91,940)
Currency options 213
Gross cutflows 3,107 5,693 1,864 - - 10,664
Gross inflows (3,084) (5,593) (1,864) - - {10,541)
Net outflow from dernvative contracts 219 59 893 - - 1,171
Between Total Total
Upto3 3 and 12 Between 1 Between 7 Over contractual carrying
months months and 2 years and 5 years b years amount arnount
At 28 February 2022 £'000 £000 £000 £'00C £'000 £000 £'000
Trade and other payables 5,649 2,130 - - - 7779 7779
Loans and borrowings — - 23,254 - - 23,254 23,254
Lease labilities 864 2,567 3197 2331 16 8,775 8,606
Ceferred consideration - 1,480 1,654 1,562 - 4666 4666
Total 6,513 6,147 28,05 3,693 16 44,474 44,205
Forward currency contracts 772
Gross cutflows 11,204 18,748 65,498 - - 36,450
Gross inflows M.034) {18,231 {6.414) - - (35679
Net outfiow from forward currency
contract 170 517 84 - - 7

Loans and borrowings have been represented to show the expected nterest payments payable on the revolving credrt facility in
addition to the repayment of the loan
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

The Group manages its captital structure sc as to mantain Investor and market confidence and to provide returns to shareholders
that will support the future development of the business The Group makes adjustments 1o the capital structure f required In
response to changes N economic conditions The Group considers its capital as consisting of ordinary shares and retained
earnings. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders cr issue new shares.

The Group has a policy of maintaining positive cash balances and also has a revolving credit facllity which it draws down as
required to provide cover against the cyclical nature of the shipping industry

The board monitors underlying business performance to determine the ongoing use of capital, namely executive and staff
incentive schemes (and whether 10 fund this through cash or share incentives), acguisition apprasals ahead of potential business
combinations; Investrnent In property, plant and equipment; and the level of dividends

No changes were made in the oljectives, policies or processes during the years ended 28 February 2023 and 28 February 2022

; N

Loase
liabilities Total
£:000 £'000

At 1 March 2022 8,506 36,426

Cash flows {4,039) (1,287)
Non-cash flows.

- Shares issued - @t}
— Derivatives issued - {71}
- Accrual of service cost - 59

— Interest accruing in the period 175 615

- New leases - - 770 770

- Business combinations - - 86 86

- Lease terminations - - (632) (632)
- Amounts rectassified from deferred consideration to loans 615 (615) - -

- Effects of foreign exchange 317 &1 161 539

At 28 February 2023 31,387 - 5,027 36,394

Current portion 899 - 2,923 3,822

Loans and Ceferred Lease
borrowings  conaideration labities Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000

At 1 March 2021 30142 882 12,654 43578

Cash flows {2,955) - (3.950) (8,906)
Non-cash flows

— Ghares issued (541} - - (B41)
- Dervatives issued (283) - - (293)
- Interest accruing in the period 671 238 328 1238

- New leases - - g814 814

- Amounts reclassfied from deferred consideration to loans 625 {625) - -

- Cory Brothers disposal - - (1243} (1,243}
- Effects of foreign exchange (224) - 2 (222}
At 28 February 2022 27425 495 8,506 36,426

Current portion 1416 - 3429 4845
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25 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
E'000 £000
Cash at bank and cash on hand 34,735 13,964
Total 34,735 13,964

Cash and cash eguivalents largely comprise bank balances dencminated in sterling, US dollars, euros and other currencies for the
purpose of settling current liabilties

Cash includes an amount of £4.0 millon {2022 £29 milicn} held in the bank accounts of regulated entities where there is a
requirerment to hold a certain amount of cash at any one time in order to cover future abligations. No charge or other restriction
of use is held over this cash

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their far value.

26 Trade and other payables

Restated

2023 2022

Current liabilities £'000 000
Trade payalies 1,809 3,397
Lease liabilities 2,923 3,429
Other taxation and social security 1,869 721
Other payables 767 400
Contract labilities 329 b4
Accruals 49,613 31.082
Total 57,310 39,183

Accruals Includes accrued bonuses and other general accruals

The average credit penod taken for trade payables 1s 33 days (2022 102 days) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
trade payables approximate to their fair value.

27 Borrowings

2023 2022
£000 £'000
Long-term borrowings
Secured revelving credit faciities 27,816 23,254
Lease liabilities 2,104 5077
Total 29,919 2833

During the period, the Group extended its revolving credit facllity ("RCF”} with its main bankers, HSBC The RCF is for £30C million
plus an accordion imit of £100 millon and has an inmal terminaticn date of Novermber 2025 with two options, subject to lender
approval, to extend the term of the facility by 12 and 24 months respectively Drawdown of the accordion facility is subject to
additional credit approval. The RCF agreerment has an EBITDA leverage covenant of 25x and a minimum interest cover of 4x At
31 May 2022, 31 August 2022, 31 Novernber 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group met all financial covenant tests, Amounts can
be roled on a monthly basis untll the facilty expires subject to certan conditions, and on that basis the borrowings have been
classified as non-current. The armounts drawn under the RCF bear interest based on SONIA, SOFR and EURIBCR from amounts
drawn in sterling, US dollars and euros respectively, plus a credit margin dependent on the Group's leverage ratio.

All revolving credit facilities are drawn by Braemar Plc and appear in the accounts of the Company See Note 25 for details of the
Group's cash pooling arrangernents and the net overdraft avalable to the Group.

The directors consider that the fair value of the revolving credit facilty liability 1s equivalent to its carrying amount
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27 Borrowings conunuec
In September 2017, the Group acquired the entire share capital of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH ("Naves”) Naves 1s an
established and successful business. headguartered in Hamburg, Germany, which advises national and international clents
on corporate finance related to the maritime industry including restructuring advisory, corperate finance advisory, M&A, asset
brokerage, interim/pre-insclvency management and financial asset management including loan servicing

The acquisition agreement provided for consideration of £18.0 million (€184 milicn) payable as follows

1) at completion in cash of £7.3 millcn (€8 3 million}, In shares of £1.3 milion (€15 millien) and in convertible loan notes of
£64 mifhon (€74 million); and

i deferred consideration in cash of £05 million (€08 millon) and convertible loan notes of £05 million {€06 millon), payable in
instalments over the three years after the acguisttion.

No consideration was contingent consideration. As at 28 February 2023, there 1s Enil cutstanding deferred consideration
(2022 £nil) to non-rmanagement sellers,

The acquisition agreement also provided deferred amounts that would be payable to management sellers, conditional on their
ongoing service In the business IFRS 3 states that amounts paid to former owners which are condiional on ongoing service are
for the benefit of the acquirer and not for the benefit of former owners, Consideration linked to the ongoing service of farmer
owners Is treated as remuneration for post-combination services and classified as acquisition-related expenditure under specific
itemns in the Income Statement

The deferred amounts payable to management sellers comprised.

N deferred cash of £13 millon (€15 millon) and deferred convertible loan notes of £4 3 million (€42 milion} conditicnal only on
the individual management seller's continued service payable In instalments over the five years after the acquisition; and

iy deferred convertible loan notes of up to £24 millon (€110 milion) conditional on the individual management selier's continued
service and the post-acquisition Naves' EBIT in the three years post-acquisition By February 2021. there was no contingency
remaining and the total amount paid was £4 6 milion (€5.3 miilicn)

In 2022 the amount of service accrual of £05 milion 1s presented within deferrec consideration. Following the issuance of new
convertible loan notes In relation to this amount during the year, at February 2023 £nil (2022 E£05 milion) due to management
sellers was subject to future service conditions. Note 27 sets out the outstanding amounts in relaticn to the Naves acquisition

Post-acquisition remuneration of £01 milien assooiated with the acquisiion were incurred during the year ended 28 February 2023
(2022 £02 milion) and have been classified as acquisition-related expenditure under specific items In the Income Statement.
See Note 10

\ .
The Group 1ssued cenvertible loan notes in connection with its acquisttion of Naves In September 2017,

These convertible loan note Instruments are unsecured, unlisted and non-transferable. The notes are eurc denominated and carry
a 3% per annum coupon Fach tranche 1s redeemable on or after two years from the date of issue by the Group or by the individual
holder The conversion prices were fixed at 3903 pence for management sellers and 4503 pence for non-management sellers.

The convertible loan note Nstruments carry cortain accelerated conversion rights in the event of default on financial commitrmenits
associated with the instruments or business distress within the Group. The loan notes shall automatically convert or be redeemed
in the event that any person or persons acting in concert hold more than 50% of the 1ssued share capital of the Group or an
imparment charge in excess of £43.82 mulion (€500 milien) is reflected N the audited Financial Statements of the Group.

The embedded denvatives within the convertible loan notes are valued using level 3 hierarchy technigues under IFRS 13 See Note 24.

The total value of convertible loan note llabilities, Nncluding inked derivatives, is £3 @ milion (2022 £4 8 millon} The following table
shows amounts In the Group balance sheet relating to the convertible loan notes 1ssued on the acquisition of Naves.

2023 2022
Represented in the Group Balance Sheet £000 E'000
Current liabilities

Convertible loan notes 699 1416
Non-current habilities:

Corwertble loan notes 2,852 2765

Accrued employee costs - 495

Derivatives 384 251

3,236 3,501

3,935 4917
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The moverment in the Naves-related balances in the Group Balance Sheel during the year 1s explained by the items below:

2023 2022
£000 £°000
Total Naves-related balances at start of year 4,917 8,080
Finance expense 426 130
Host-acquision remuneration 59 238
Foreign exchange movements 250 (225)
Renegotiation gain - (172)
Cash pad (1,606) (2.593)
Equity 1Issued 111) (541
Total movements {982) (3163}
Total Naves-related balances at year end 3,935 4,917
The current year cash paid includes interest of £158.000.
The loan notes have the following maturibes:
Accounting value Nominal value
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £000 €000 €000
Due at the reportng date
30-Sep-22 - 1184 - 1399
31-Dec-22 - 215 - -
30-Sep-23 6086 592 699 699
not yet
30-Sep-24 550 earned 899 629
30-Sep-25 2,395 2180 2,929 2,929
3,561 4171 4,327 5,726
Dervatives thereon 384 251
Accrual for notes subject to future service - 495
Total llabilities on lcan notes 3,936 4917

Note that current labiities in respect of the loan notes differs from the amounts shown above maturing within one year due to
interest payable within one year on non-current loans and the outstanding current liability to deliver cash and shares in respect
of matured loan notes

Where loan notes are subject to future service conditions, they are accrued as an employee expense over the relevant service
period. At the end of the service period they are recognised as financial Instruments. The nominal value of loan notes subject to
future service is Included in the maturity analysis above but s not Included in the Group's financial labilties The accrual in respect
of these items was £nil at 28 February 2023 (2022: £08 million).

On 3 June 2021 the Group reached an agreement with two of Braemar Naves' managing directors, Axel Siepmann and Mark
Kuchenbecker, and ther connected parties, to restructure certain convertible loan notes owed by the Group. These loan
notes arose on variable consideration for post-acquisition services arising from the 2017 Naves acquisition At the time of the
renegotiation there were no contingencies or further service obligations cutstanding in respect of any of these amounts

A total of £25 milion (€29 millon) which was previously due to mature before the end of December 2022 was deferred 1o mature
no earler than September 2025 In addition, a further amount of £0.7 milion (€075 milion) was agreed to be satished by the

issue of Braemar shares in three tranches The first two tranches, totalling £06 milion (€06 milion) were 1ssued in September and
December 2021 with the remaining tranche of £01 milion (€01 millon} issued in December 2022 As part of the modification the
Group also agreed 1o Increase the interest rate on certain convertible loan notes, to the extent that they are still cutstanding, to 5%
per annum from September 2025 from the 3% payable until that date.

In the pricr year a credit of £0.2 millon was recognised in respect of the accounting for the modification and classified in finance
Income under specific tems In the Income Statement See Note 10,
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28 Provisions

Uncertan

COMMISSION
Dilapidations obligation Other Total
£'000 £1000 £000 £000
At 28 February 2021 675 - 322 997
Provided i Lhe yeat / - 279 286
At 28 February 2022 682 - 601 1283
Reclassification 18 1,707 (346) 1,379
Provided in the year - 267 462 719
Utilsed In the year - - {15} (15)
Reversal of provision in the year {124) - - (124)
Exchange differences 16 - 51 57
At 28 February 2023 592 1,964 763 3.309
Current 122 1964 480 2575
Nor-current 470 - 264 734
At 28 February 2023 592 1,964 763 3,309

Dilapidations relate to future oblgations to make good certan office premises upon expiration of the lease term. The provision is
calculated with reference to the location and sguare footage of the office

Employee entitlerments of £0.5 rmillon 1s included in other, which relate to statutory long service leave In Braemar ACM Shipbroking
Pty Limited. This is based on the principle that each Australian employee 1s entitled to eight weeks of leave over and above

any annual leave on completion of ten years’ continuous service The prowvision is calculated with reference to the number of
employees who have at least seven years of continuous service.

In June 2023 the board commissioned an ndependent internal investigation into an historical transaction crnginating in 2013, The
Investigation was overseen by an Investigation Committee chaired by the Group's non-executive Charman and was conducted by
an independent specialist forensic accounting firm, and independent external counsel The investigation was comprehensive and
complex and ultimately encompassed saveral transactions between 2006 and 2013 which required further investigation

As a result of the Investigation, the Group has recognised a provision of £20 millon in relation to the uncertain obligations
connected to a number of the transactions and commission cbligations identified as part of the investigation. Of the £2.0 million,
£17 million relates to an historical unsettled commission payable which was recorded in 2017 upon completion of the relevant
contracts which onginated in 2013, This balance has been reclassified from trade payables to provisions dunng the year. While
the board cannoct forecast with certainty final outcomes in respect of these obligations, based on the Group's current information,
the amount recognised s the current best estimate of the amount reguired to settle the obligations at the balance sheet date,
taking Nto account the nsks and uncertainties surrounding the obligations, including interpretation of specific laws and Ikelihood
of settlement

As the ultimate potential obligations and outcomes are uncertain in relation to the transactions supject to the internal nvestigation,
there remains a risk that the final cutcornes could matenally itmpact (he recognised balance within the next or in future financial
years |Lis impracticable to provide sensitivity estimates of potential downside variances at this time

29 Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a defined benefit scherme in the UK A full actuanial valuation was carmed out as at 31 March 2020 and
updated by the IAS 19 valuation as at 28 February 2023, All valuations have been carried out by a qualified ndependent actuary

The Group's obligations In respect of the funded defined benefit scheme at 28 February 2023 were as follows'

2023 2077
£°000 £000
Present value of funded obligations 10,658 15,166
Far value of scheme assets, net of tax {11,678) (13,104}
Total (surplus)/deficit of defined beneft pension scheme {1,120) 2,082
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The Group sponscrs a funded defined benefit scheme (the ACM Staff Pension Scheme) for qualfying UK employees The
Scheme is adrministered by a separate board of Trustees which is legally separate from the Group The Trustees are compased
of representatives of both the employer and employees The Trustees are required by law to actin the interest of all relevant
beneficianes and are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the trust assets and the day-to-day administration

of benefits

Under the Scheme, employees are entitled to annual pensicns on retirerment at age 60 of 1/60th of final pensionable salary for
each year of service Pensionable salary is defined as basic salary plus the average of the previcus three years' bonuses (capped
at three times basic salary) Pensicnable salaries for members who joined after 1 June 1989 are also subject to an earnings cap.
Other benefts are payable, for example those provided on death

The scheme 1g closed to future accrual and from 1 February 2016, post-retirernent benefits are provided to these employees
through a separate defined contribution arrangement.

Pt Tt ten St a

The defined benefit obligation Includes benehts for current employees, former employees, and current pensioners. Broadly,
around 51% of the liabilities are atinbutable to deferred pensiens for current and former employees, with the remaining 49% to
current pensioners

The Scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted average time until benefit payments are made For the Scheme as a whole,
the duration is around 153 years

Fumtee £ g G,

UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently The most recent funding valuation of the Scheme was
carried out by a qualiied actuary as at 31 March 2020 and showed a deficit of £15 millon. As a result, the Company has made
centributions of £450000 pa between April 2020 and March 2023 Contributions to the Scheme have ceased since March 2023

TN MR SR AN AN L I B 2N BT LA

The Scheme exposes the Group to a number of nsks, the most significant of which are:

The liabilities are caiculated using a discount rate set with reference to corperate bond yieids, If assets underperform this yield, this
will create a deficit The Scheme holds a significant proportion of growth assets which, though expected to outperform corporate

bonds in the long term, create volatiity and nsk in the short term The allocation to growth assets is monttored to ensure it remains
appropriate given the Scheme's long-term chjectives

An increase In corporate bond yields will decrease the value placed on the Scheme's llabilities for accounting purposes, although
this will be parbally offset by a Decrease i the value of the Scheme’s bond holdings.

A proportion of the Scheme’s benefit cbligations are inked to inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher liabiities (although, in
most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extreme inflation). The majority of the assets
are etther unaffected by or only loosely correlated with inflation. meaning that an increase N inflation will also increase the deficit

L

The majority of the Scherne’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases In lIfe expectancy will result
N anncrease in scheme llabilties.

The Company and Trustees have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment rnisk as and when appropriate. This includes
moving assets to match pensicner llabilities when members reach retirement

The Trustees Insure certain benefits payable on death before retirement
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continwed
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The principal assumptions used for updating the latest valuation of the Scheme were

2023 2022
(% p-a} (% pa)
Discount rate 4.90 265
CPl inflation 3.0 31
Pension increases
CPl capped at 25% pa 2.0 21
CPlcapped at 50% pa 3.0 32
Deferred pension increases.
CPl capped at 25% pa. 2.0 21
CPl capped at 50% pa 3.0 32
2023 2022
Years Yoears
Life expectancy from age 60 for:
Current 60-year-old male 251 275
Current 80-year-old fernale 277 287
Pre-retirement mortality N R
Post-retirerment mortality S2 PXA, CMI 2021 {min 1.25%)
Early retrernent 33% of members retire at age bb, with the remainder retrnng at age 6C
Withdrawals from active service No allowance
Cash commutation 26% of the member’s pension 1s commuted

Under early retirement it is assumed that 33% of rmembers wiil retire at age 55, with the remainder retinng at age 60

The Scheme's assets are splt by type of asset in the following table

2023 2022
Scheme assets £°000 £'000
Scheme assets are compnsed as follows:
UK equities 434 366
Overseas equities 4,374 4,391
Unguoted equities 78 57
Absolute return - 315
High yield debt 1,019 325
Cash 707 322
Inflation-hnked bonds 1,022 4364
Corporate bonds 1,883 1547
Government bonds 1,303 234
Other 1,462 1193
Total 12,282 12,104

The Pension Scheme assets do not include any ordinary shares issued by the Company All assets are held through pocled
investment vehicles

Braemar Plc Annal Report and Accounts 2023



157 Strategic Report Governance € A

2023 2022
Expense recognised in the Income Statement {included in operating costs) £'000 £'000
Current service cost - -
Curtalment credit - -
Interest cost on net asset/liability 54 /3
Expense recognised In Income Staternent B84 73
Remeasurements in other comprehensive expense:
Loss/(gain) on assets in excess of that recognised In net interest 1,061 (316)
Actuarial gains due to changes in financial assumptions (4,594) {(2174)
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions (220) (268}
Actuarial losses due to lability experience 374 1,368
Deferred tax charge 414 72
Expected tax charge on recovery of assets 604 -
(Gain)/loss recognised in other cormprehensive ncome (2,361) (1.318}
Total amount recognised in Income Statement and other comprehensive expense (2,307) (1,245)
Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obligation are analysed as follows'
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Cpening defined benefit ckligation 165,156 16174
Interest expense 402 307
Actuanal losses due to changes in financial assumptions {4,694) 2374
Actuanal losses due to changes in demographic assumptions {220) (268)
Actuarnal gains due to habillity expenence 374 1,368
Net benefit payments frorm scheme {560) {261
Closing value at 28 February 10,668 15,156
Changes in the farr value of plan assets are analysed as follows:
2023 2072
E'000 £000
Opening fair value at 1 March 13,104 12,355
Interest income 348 235
farr value (losses)/gains on assets (1,0e1) 316
Centributions by employers 450 450
Net benefit payments from scheme (559) (252)
Expected tax charge on recovery of assets (604) -
Closing value at 28 February 11,678 13104
The Croup does nat expect to make any contributions to the scheme in the next 12 months (2022 £412500).
2023 20272
Actual return on Scheme assets £'000 £000
Interest income on plan assets 348 2356
Remeasurement (loss)/gain on assets {1,081) 316
Actual return on assets (713) 551
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29 Retirement benefit schemes continued

L -

The tabie below llustrates the sensitivity of the Scheme liabilties at 28 February 2023 te changes in the principal assumptions. The
sensitivities assume that all other assumptions remain unchanged and the calculations are approxmate (full calculations could lead
to a different result).

Approxmate  Approximate

ncrease In ncrease In

habiites labilities

Change in assumption % £:000
interest rate reduced by 05% pa 12 1180
Inflation assumption increased by 05% pa’ 72 760
Increase N Iife expectancy of one year for all members reaching 60 22 230

* The inflabon assumplion sensitiy ty applies to both the assumed rate of increase in the CPland the RPY, and includes the impact on the rate o* increases to
pensiors, both befere anc after retirement

There are a number of defined contribution schemes In the Group, the principal scheme being the Braemar Pension Scheme,
which 15 open to all UK employees Cash contrioutions paid into the defined contripution schemes are accounted for as an Income
Staterment expense as they are incurred. The total charge for the year in respect of this and other defined contribution schemes
amounted to £1.81000 (2022 £1613,000) of which £1,8H.000 (2022 £915000) was in respect of centinuing operations

No contributions were due to these schemes at 28 February 2023 (2022: £99000).

The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group In funds under the control of the Trustees

30 Share capital

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Number £000 £000
IR S B
Crdinary shares of 10 pence sach 34,203,000 34.903,000 3,490 3,460
Ordinary shares Ordinary shares Share premium
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Nurmniber £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Fully paid ordinary shares of 10 pence
each
As at start of year 32,200,279 31.731,218 3,221 3,174 63,030 52,510
Shares 1ssued and fully paid (see below} 724,698 469 061 n 47 766 520
As at end of year 32,924,877 32200279 3,292 3.221 63,796 53,030

During the year, In connection with setting up a broker team N Madnd, 2563434 shares were issued to certan employees as a
Jjoining Incentive. and 37636 shares were issued to settle part of the deferred consideration payable m respect of the acquisition
of Naves

During the year ended 28 February 2023, no shares were 1ssued as part of the restricted share plan scherne. nor the long-term
incentive programme (2022 no shares were 1ssued at ni cost) 433528 shares were 1ssued in the year as part of the Save As You
Earn ("SAYE") Scheme (2022 1o shares were issued), for which cash totaling £694,000 was received on exercise

No shares remained unpaid at 28 February 2023 or 28 February 2022

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no night to fixed income.
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The Company operates a variety of share-based payment schemes which are listed below.

Details of the share options In issue and the moverments in the year are given below

Number at
Year option  Number at 1 2B February Exercise price Exercisable
Share scheme granted  March 2022 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2023 {pence] between
SAYE 2019 437422 - 433,528} (3,894) - 1600 2022-2023

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised curing the year was £2 82 (2022 n/a).

These options are valued using a binomial pricing mode!. The value of the awards was expensed over the perod from the date of
grant to the vesting date

The number of outstanding share options as at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previously reported figure at 28 February
2022 of 413771 During the year, 433528 options were exercised (2022 no options exercised).

Details of the share awards in issue and the movements in the year are given below

Number at Number at
1March 28 February Exercise price

Share scheme 2022 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2023 (pence) Exercisable
Jun-19 1.512,351 - (1,422 155) (90,196) - nil Jun-22
Juk-20 3,030,763 - {18160} (179 536) 2,833,067 nil Jul-23
Nov-20 341905 - (15,000) (10,930) 316,976 nil Nov-23
Jun-21 1212103 - - {40142) 1,172,061 alll Jun-24
Nov-21 239,415 - - - 239,415 alll Nov-24
Sep-27 - 967737 - (33,043) 934,694 alll Jun-26
Jan-23 - 400,679 - - 400,679 nil Jun-26
Fel-23 - 137132 - - 137,132 nil Jun-25
Deferred Bonus Plan 5,336,627 1506548 (1,455,315) (353,847) 6,033,013

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised during the year was £3.32 (2022 £277). The weighted average
share price at grant date for awards granted dunng the year was £298 {2022 £3.03) The fair value of the award is estimated
based on the share price at the time of grant less the expacted dividend to be paid during the vesting penod

Under both the Plan and the New DBP. sufficient shares to satisfy each award are bought over the course of the vesting

period, and held in an employee trust ("ESOPT) until vesting As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held 3587130 ordinary shares
(2022: 2869603) The ESOP holding is in line with expectations of how many shares will be needed to satisfy the current awards
under this scheme This amount 1s net of expected lapses in the scheme and the fact that recipients typically forego sufficient
shares in order to satisfy the associated tax fiability that anses on their vesting

The number of cutstanding share awards at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previously reported figures at 28 February
2022 of 33,38/ for Jun-18 (to nil), 1,606,427 for Jun-19, 3167855 for Jul-20, 315275 for Nov-20, 1328538 for Jun-21 and nil for Nov-21.
During the year ended 28 February 2015 the Company issued 1409000 RSP awards, of which B0O% will vest after three years and

25% after each of the fourth and fifth years provided the individuals remain employed by the Group.

During the year ended 29 February 2016 a further 315000 RSP awards were granted, of which 50% waill vest after three years and
25% after each of the fourth and fifth years provided the individuals remain employed by the Group.

During the year ended 28 February 2019 a further 144000 RSP awards were granted. of which 100% will vest after three years
provided the indviduals remain employed by the Group

During the year ended 28 February 2022 a further 13,000 RSP awards were granted. of which 100% will vest after seven months
provided the individuals remain employed by the Group
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30 Share capital contnued

Details of the RSP share awards In issue and the movements in the year are given below.

Number at Number at

1 March 28 February
Share schame 2072 Gianited Exeroised Lapsed 2023 Exercisable between
July 2014 13,750 - - - 13,750 Jul17 = Jul 24
August 2016 12,500 - - - 12,500 Aug 18 - Aug 25
November 2020 144 000 - (144,000) - - Feb 22 - Feb 26
November 2021 13,000 - (13,000) - - Feb 22 - Feb 29

Restricted Share Plan 183,260 - (157.000) - 26,250

The number of outstanding share awards at 1March 2022 has been updated from the previously reported figures at 28 February 2022
of 38320 for July 2018 {to nily and nil for November 2021

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised during the year was £332 (2022 £281)

The fair value of the nil cost options is approximated to the share price at the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid
during the vesting penod

The value of the awards are expensed over the pericd from the date of grant to the vesting date or If used as a recruitment
incentive, from the date of joining to the vesting date. The awards are satishied by the 1ssue of new shares

The Company also has LTIP awards, which allow for the form of a conditional nght to receive shares at nil cost. The awards
normally vest over three years and are subject to various performance conditions based on earnings per share (EPS") or
segmental operating profit.

In June 2018, awards of 527464 shares were made to one executive director and three senior members of management

In June 2019, awards of 384,735 shares were made to one executive director and three senior members of management

In June 2020, awards of 506,250 shares were made to one executive director and three serior members of management
In June 2021, awards of 437116 shares were made to two executive directors and one senior member of management.

In February 2023, awards of 624174 shares were rmade to two executive directors and four semar members of management

Details of the L TIP share awards inissue and the movements in the year are given below.

Numbser at Number at
1 Margh 28 February
Share scheme 2002 Granted Exercreed Lapscd Forfeited 2023  Exorcsable between
LTIP 2018 33,794 - - - - 33294 May23 -~ 0ct 28
LTIP 212 2316578 - - (86,620) (42 109) ‘,‘292-853 _ Jul 24 - Jul 29
LTIP 2020 431,250 - - - (56,250) 375,000 Jul 25 — Jul 30
LTIP 2021 437166 - -~ - 47787) 389,379 Jun 26 - Jun 31
LTIP 2023 - 624174 - - - 624174 Jul 27 — ul 32
Long-Term Incentive
Plan 1,233,288 624174 - {86,820) (146142) 1,624,700

The weighted average share price at grant date for awards granted dunng the year was £314

The far value of the LTIP 2021 award which has a TSR based vesting condition has been calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation
The far value of the other LTIPs 1$ deterrnined based on the share price at the tme of grant less the expected dividend to be paid
during the vesting pencd calculated using the market consensus dividend yietd

The value of the awards is recognised as an expense over the pericd from the date of grant to the vesting date The awards are
satisfied by the issue of new shares
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On b December 2022, 253434 shares were awarded as a joining ncentive to certan employees of Madnd Shipping Advisors SL
and on 16 Decemper 2022, 1016121 shares were 1ssued to the former owners of Southport, as part of the acquistion. In addition.

on the acquisition of Southport, a further 872,821 shares were awarded to key employees of Southport. The fair value of the awards
is determined based on the share price at the time of grant less the expected dvidend te be paid dunng the three-year vesting
period calculated using the market consensus dividend yield. For further details, see Note 14 Business combinations

The value of the awards 1s recognised as an expense uver the period from the date of grant to the vesting date The awards will be
satisfied by the 1ssue of new shares.

Number at Number at
1 March 28 February
Share award 2027 Granted Exercised Lapsed Forferted 2023 Vesting
Southport Maritime Inc - 1.888.942 - - - 1,888,842 Dec 25
Madnd Shipping
Advisors SI - 263434 - - - 253,434 [Dec23-Dec2b

31 ESOP reserve

An Employee Share Ownership Plan (*ESOP™} was established on 23 January 1995, The ESOP has been set up to purchase
shares in the Campany. These shares, once purchased, are held in trust by the Trustee of the ESOP, SG Kleinwort Hambros Trust
Company (Cl} Limited, for the benefit of the employees. Additicnally, an Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT) previously run by ACM
Shipping Group ple also holds shares in the Company The ESOP and EBT are accounted for within the Company accounts.

The ESOP reserve represents a deduction from shareholders’ funds and a reduction in distributable reserves. The deduction equals
the net purchase cost of the shares held in trust by the ESOP. Shares allocated by the ESCP to satisfy share awards issued by the
Group are released at cost on a First in First Out basis

Group and Company £'000
At 29 Febryary 2021 1,362
New shares fully paid up and issued to the ESOP 25
Shares acquired by the ESOP 7043
ESOP shares allocated (1,659)
At 28 February 2022 6,771
Shares acquired by the ESOP 7963
ESOP shares allocated 4127)
At 28 February 2023 10,607

As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held 3579630 (2022 2669,837) ordinary shares of 10 pence each The funding cof the purchase
has been provided by the Company in the form of a gift and the Trustees have contracted with the Company to walive the ESOP's
right to receve dividends. The fees charged by the Trustees for the operation of the ESOP are paid by the Company and charged
to the Income Statement as they fall due

As part of the acquisition of ACM Shipping Group plc in July 2014, the Company 1ssued 126621 shares nto an Employee Benefit
Trust ("EBT") previcusly run by ACM Shipping Group plo. As at 28 February 2023, the EBT held 62,290 (2022, 62,290) ordinary
shares of 10 pence each

The total cost to the Company of shares and cash held in the ESOP and EBT at 28 February 2023 was £10606000 (2022 £6.771000)
including stamp duty associated with the purchase The shares owned by the ESOP and EBT had a market value at 28 February 2023
of £10248000 (2022 £6420395) The distribution of these shares is determined by the Remuneration Committes

1877473 shares (2022 59863868} have been released to empioyees during the year The shares acquired by the ESOP had an
aggregate cost of £80 million
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32 Other reserves

Foreign
Capital currency
redemption Merger translation Hedging
reserve resarnve reserve reserve Total
£'000 £'000 E'000 £000 £'000
At 1 March 2021 R0A 24, RA1 1,822 1,135 28 .00
Prior peniod adjustment (994) (284)
396 24,641 628 1435 27100

Cash flow hedges:

- Transfer to ncome statement - - - (1,613) (1,613)
— Far value losses In the perniod - - — (86 (8GQ9)
Exchange differences - - 098 - oe8

Deferred tax on tems taken to equity - - - 514 514

At 28 February 2022 396 24,641 1,626 (533) 26,130

Cash flow hedges.

- Transfer to income statement - - - 4,826 4,826

- Far value gan/losses In the period - - - (4,438} {4,438)
Investment hedge - - {124) - (124}
Exchange differences - - 2,522 - 2,522

Deferred tax on items taken to equity - - - {97} {97)
At 28 February 2023 396 24,641 4,024 {242) 28,819

The capital redemption reserve arose on previous share buy-backs by the Company.

The merger reserve arises on transactions where the Company 1ssues shares pursuant to an arangement to acguire more than
a 90% interest in another company and no share premium is recorded. The merger reserve arose principally in 2001 in relation to
the acquisitions of Braemar Shipbrokers Limited and Braemar Tankers Limited, Further additions have arisen in respect of Naves
and Atlantic Brokers. The amounts in the merger reserve are unrealised profits relating to the corresponding assets acqured by the
Company on the ssue of shares These profits may beccme realised on the disposal or write down of these assets

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change In far value of cash flow hedging nstruments
relating to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred of £321000 hability (2022 £710000 labilty} A decrease of £97000 in
the deferred tax asset (2022 £514000 increase} 1s attricutable to these transactions

The Group defers the time value of option contracts in the costs of hedging reserve

33 Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees entered into N the normal course of business given as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £7000

Bank guarantees given to:
Third parties {non-cash collateralised) 324 837
Total 324 837

The Company and certan of its subsidianes have provided cross guarantees and fixed and floating rate charges over ther assets
to secure therr borrowing facilities and other financiai Instruments (see Note 24)

From time to time the Group may be engaged In itigation in the ordinary course of business The Group carries professional

indernnity msurance There are currently no labilities expected to have a matenal adverse financial impact on the Group's
consolidated results or net assets.
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34 Related party transactions
During the period the Group entered into the following transactions with joint ventures and investments

2023 2022
Recharges Balance due Recharges Balance duc
to/(from) Dividends {to)/ from to/thorn) Didends {to)/ from
Group £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £:000 £:000
AqualsBraemar LOC ASA n/a nfa nfa 221 - 282

AqualisBraemar LOC ASA was a related party until the Group sold its significant shareholding in the entity and lost its
representation on the board, on 18 May 2022, Al transactions with Aquals Braemar LOC ASA in the prior year have been included
as related party transactions. Recharges to AgualsBraemar LOC ASA consisted primarily of rent, IT services and HR services In

accordance with a transitional services agreement In the pnor year, the net recharge 1o AgualisBraermar LOC ASA included a fee

payable to the Gioup's former Chairman, Ronald Sernes of £3750.

The balance due from AgualisBraemar LOC ASA 1s unsecured, interest-free and immediately repayable

Key management compensation 1s disclosed in Note 6.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consoldation and are

not disclosed in this Note

A list of the Group's subsidiary undertakings is on pages 163 to 165 Unless otherwise indicated, all shareholdings owned directly or
indirectly by the Company represent 100% of the 1ssued share capital of the subsidiary and the share capital comprises ordinary

shares All entities primarily operate in their country of incorporation

Incorporated in England & Wales

One Strand, Trafalgar Square, London WC2N GHR Principal activity Registration number
Braernar Shipping Group Limited” Holding company 05990315
Braemar Securities Holdings Limited” Holding company 10010995
Braemar Financial Holdings Limited* Holding compaty 10917096

Braemar Shipbrokers Limited® Shipbroking 01674710
Seascope Caprital Services Limited” Non-trading 035927906
Braemar Shipping Services Limited Dorrnant 023605026
Braemar Developments Limited* Dormant 2186720
Braemar Tankers Limited Dormant 02001027
Incorporated in the US

2800 North Loop West, Suite 900, Houston, Texas 77092, US Principal activity Registration number

Braemar Holdings (USA) Inc

Holding company

FEIN 811568938

2401 PQA Boulevard, Suite 236, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 US Principal activity Registration number
Southport Maritime: Inc Shipbroking 65-0342509
Incorporated in Spain

Madrid, ctra. Humera 43, 8, Spain Principal activity Registration number
Madrid Shipping Advisors SL Shiploroking B10866028
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34 Related party transactions contnued

Incorporated in England & Wales

One Strand, Trafalgar Square, London WC2ZN 5HR
Braemar Shipbroking Group Limited*
Braernar Shipbroking Limited

Braemar Shipbroking (Dry Cargo) Limited*
ACM Shipping USA Limited*

Braemar Valuations Limited*

Braemar Securities Limited

Braemar Corporate Finance Limited”
ACM Shipping CIS Limited

Braemar Martime Limited*

Braemar Burness Maritime Limted*
Burness Marnne (Gas) Limited™

Braemar Pension Trustees Limted

Incorporated in Germany

Domstrasse 17, 20095 Hamburg, Germany
Braemar Corporate Finance GrbH

Braemar Financial Holdings Germany GmbH

Incorporated jn United Arab Emirates
One LT 06-65 One AT, Plot No. Dmcc-Ez1-1ab, Jumeirah Lakes Towers,
Dubal, UAE

Braemar ACM Shipbroking DMCC

Incorporated in the US
2800 North Laop West, Suite 800, Houston, Texas 77092, US

Braemar ACM Shipbroking {USA) Inc
Braemar Technical Services (USA) Inc

24 Grassy Plain Street — Ste 4, Eethel, CT 06801-1700 US
Braemar ACM Shipbroking LLP

Incorporated in Singapore
80 Robinson Rd, #24-01/02, Singapore 068898

Rrarmar Shinhrmiking Pre Lirmited
Braemar Corporate Finance Pte Limited

Incorporated in Australia
Levet 3, 70 City Road, South Bank, Melbourne, Victoria 3008, Australia

Braemar ACM Shipbroking Pty Limited

Incomoarated in other overseas countries
Piazza 2 Giugno No 14, 54033 Carrara, [taly

Bragmar Seascope Itala SRL

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Principal activity

Holding company
Shipbroking
Shipbroking
Shipbroking
Valuations
Futures broker
Corporate finance
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dorrmant

Principal activity

Corporate finance
Holding company

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity

Shipbroking
Energy loss adjuster

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity
Shipleralking
Corporate finance

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Registration humber

01611096
0102098/
07223509
0830132
03439765
07899358
02710842
06934065
03321898
03674230
01081837
05502209

Registration number

HRE 114181
HRB 146088

Registration number
DMCC-749566

Registration number

48-2641490
76-0036858

Registration number

109933/

Registration number

200602517M
201834760K

Registration number

ACN 000862 993

ABN 35 000 862 993

Registration number
01268770468
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Suite 2008, Building C Luneng International Center,
No.211, GuoYoa Road, Pudong District, Shanghai, 200126, China Principal activity Registration number

Braemar Seascope {Shanghai) Limited Shipbroking S13100005588064761

2nd Floor, Building No. 22, Pushp Vihar, Commercial Complex,
Madangh, New Dulhi — 110 082, India Principal activity HRegistration number

Bragmar ACM Shipkroking India Private Limited (422% owned) Shipbroking UG3080DL2003PTC120247

Office No. 1004, 10th Floor, Dalamal House, 206-Jamanalal Bajaj Road, Nariman
Paint, Mumbai-400021, India Principal activity Registraticn number

ACM Shipping India Limited Dormant U23080MRHZ2006FLCIB419

Subsidiaries marked with an asterisk (*) are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of
incividual accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the inancial year ended 28 February 2023 The
Company has provided a guarantee of all cutstanding liabilities to which these subsidiaries were subject as at 28 February 2023
In accordance with section 479C of the Comparies Act 2006

35 Prior period adjustment

During the preparation of the 2023 Financial Statements, errors In consclidation entries from pror years were identified These
errors date back to before 2021 and were not fully corrected as part of the prior year adjustments in the Financial Statements

for the year-ended 28 February 2022 Therefore, the Group has provided a restated Balance Sheet as at 28 February 2022 and 1
March 2021 1n accordance with |AS 8 Principally, there were two errors identified: 1) A consolidation error in relation to the sale of
the Group's Technical Division in 2019 resulted in the overstatement of other recevables, and retained earnings as at 1 March 2021
and 28 February 2022 of £11 millon; 1} An error in the elimination of intercormpany balances principally related to postings required
in respect of the Naves transaction and associated habilities resulted in the overstatement of other recewvables and understatement
of other payables. The effect of the restatement on the 2022 Balance Sheet Is o decrease trade and other recevables by

£19 million, increase trade and other payables by £05 millon, decrease retained earnings by £14 milion ana foreign exchange
reserve by £10 milion. The effect of the restatement at 1 March 2021 is to decrease trade and other recevables by £02 million,
ncrease trade and other payables by £22 millon and decrease retained earnings by £14 milion and foreign exchange reserve
by £10 rmilhion

The overall effect of the restaterment on the 2022 Balance Sheet 15 to decrease trade and other recevables by £30 milkon and
increase trade and payables by £06 million, with an overall reduction In retained earnings of £2.6 millon and foreign exchange
reserve of E10 milion The overall effect of the restatement at 1 March 2021 1s to decrease trade and other recervables by

£14 milion and increase trade and other payables by £2.2 million, with an overall reduction in retained eamings of £2.6 milion

and foreign exchange reserve of £10 milion The impact on the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement for the year to February 2022
is to decrease the movement In recevables by £16 milion with a corresponding decrease to the movement in payables balances
and does not impact any actual cash movements

36 Events after the reporting date

In June 2023 Braemar Plc completed a capital reducton in relation to its share premium and rerger reserves For further details
see ‘Note 12 Dividends’ | here were no other adiusting or signficant non-adjusting events between the reporting date and the
date these Financial Statements were authorised.
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Company Balance Sheet
As at 28 February 2023

Note

Assets

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 5
Property, plant and equipment 6
Investments 8
Deferred tax assets 10
Other long-term recewvables n

Current assets

Other recewvables 12
Derivative financiaf instruments 16
Cash and cash eguivalents 13
Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Other payables 14
Convertible loan notes 16
Denvative llabilities 16

Non-current liabilities

Other payables 14
Long-term borrowings 15
Conwvertible loan notes 16
Derivative labiliies 18
Provisions 17
Total liabilities

Total assets less total liabilities

Equity

Share capital 18
Share premium 18
ESOP reserve 19
Other reserves 20
Retamed (deficit)/earmings

Total equity

As at
28 Feb 2023
£'000

422
2,004
119,639
844
13,732

136,541

8,442
1,183
2,174

11,799
148,340

60,010
703
a2

60,756

868
28,744
2,899
6b4
417

33,482
94,237
54,103

3,292
63,706
(10,607)
23,762
{16,140}

64,103

As at
28 Fob 2077
£000

827
3.891
108,389
179
38,775

151,861

10,800

700
11,500
163,361

45,268
1416

46,714

570
27305
3,241
85

541

31,772
78486
84,875

3.22
53,030
(8,771)
23,782
1,633

84,875

In accordance with the exemptions allowed by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented (s own
profit and loss account A loss of £25694.000 (2022 profit of £15220000) has been dealt with In the Financial Statements of

the Company.

The accompanying notes on pages 188 to 179 form an integral part of these Financial Staterments.

The Financial Staternents of Braemar Plc on pages 166 to 179 were approved by the board of directors on 15 November 2023 and

were signed on its behalf by

James Gundy Grant Foley

Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer Registered number 02286034
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Company Statement of Changes in Total Equity
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Retained
Share Share ESOP Other carnings/ Total
capital premium reserve reserves {defcit) equity
Note £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 March 2021 3174 52,510 (1.362) 23,762 {2.713) 75,371
Profit for the year - - - - 15,220 15,220
Drnidends paid - - - - (2109} (2109
Issue of shares a7 520 (2b) - - 542
Own shares acquired - - (7043) - - (7043}
lssue of shares held by ESOP - - 1652 - (1.659) -
Share-based payments - - - - 2,894 2,894
At 28 February 2022 2.221 53.030 ®,771) 23,762 1,633 84,875
Loss for the year - - - - (26,694 (25,604}
Dividends paid 4 - - - - (3,180} (3,120}
lssue of shares 18 71 766 - - - 837
Qwn shares acaured 19 - - (7.963) - - (7963}
issue of shares held by ESOP 19 - - 4127 - (3,8650) 477
Share-based payments - - - - 4,520 4,520
Deferred tax credt on share awards - - - - 241 24
At 28 February 2023 3,292 53,796 {10,607) 23,762 {16,140) 54,103

The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 179 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

General information

The separate Financial Statemenits of Braemar Plc {previously Braemar Shipping Services Plc) for the year ended 28 February 2023
were authonsed for 1ssue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 15 November 2023 Braemar Plc is a public limited
company Incorporated in England and Wales, and its principal activity 1s a holding cormpany for the shipbroking business.

The term “Company” refers to Braemar Plc.

1 Significant accounting policies

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice} No Income Statement is presented for Braemar Plc as provided by Section 4G8 of the Companies Act 2006

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention except for items measured at fair value as set
out In the accounting policies below and have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Company Financial Staterments are presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand sterling (£'000)
except where otherwise indicated.

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Frarnework The
Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures

- cash flow staterment and related notes,

- comparative pericd reconciliaticns for share capital,

- disclosures In respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries,

- disclosures Iin respect of capital management;

- the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs, and

- disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel.

As the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group on pages 98 to 165 nclude the equivalertt disclosures. the Company has
also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following disclosures,

— IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” in respect of Group-settied share-based payments,

- certan disclosures required by IFRS 13 “Farr Value Measurement” and the disclosures reguired by IFRS 7 “Financial Instrument
Disclosures™; and

- the requirernents in |AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” to disclose related party transactions entered intc between two or more
members of a group, provided that any subsiciary which is a party ta the transaction is wholly owned by such a member, and
the exernption to disclose key management compensation

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis In reaching this conclusion regarding the going
concern assumption, the directors considered cash flow forecasts for a period of greater than 12 menths from the date of signing
of these Financial Statements The going concern assumption for the Company is considered together with the going concern
assumption for the Groug; see Note 1in the Consclidated Financial Statements for more detall

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilties. at the
reporting date, Estimates and Judgements are continually evaluated based on historical expenence and other factors. including
expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual expernence may
differ from these estimates and assumptions.

The following are key areas where the Company makes significant estimates and judgements.

Estimates regarding (1) the fair value of contingent consideration recewvable and (1) share option vesting are described in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 104 to 165.

Preference share assets

The Company holds investrnents in preference shares issued by a subsidiary at far value through profit and loss The preference
shares are not traded in any market and there are no similar assets N quoted markets Therefore, the Company performs a
valuation based on the present value of future cashflows using uncbservable (“Level 3”) nputs.
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The Company develiops uncbservable Inputs using the best nformation available in the crrcumstances, which include the Group's
forecasts of cash flows for the underlying businesses of the holding company 1ssuing the preference shares using a risk-agusted
discount rate See also accounting policies Note 1(d}

The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable discount rates and the estimation of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units depending on the specific risks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to
each cash-generating unit. The far value was estimated based on discounted cashflow forecasts with an adjustment for net debt
in relation to balances not forming part of working capital of the entity. The discount rates and growth rates are consistent with
those appled to the same business in the Group's assessment of the impairment of goodwill (see Note 15 In the Consclidated
Financial Statements for a description of the approach used by management tc determine these key values).

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company recognises provisions for impairment of investments in subsiciaries based on management’s judgement of whether
or not there 1s an indication of iImpairment at the Balance Sheet date A judgement s made Dased on the net assets, cash balance
and future trading performance of the subsidiary.

Provision for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries

The provision for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries represents management’s best estmate at the Balance Sheet
date. A number of Judgements are made in the calculation of the provision, primarily based on the net assets, cash balance and
future trading performance of the subsichary.

The application of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” results in an additional provision for expected credit losses. When measuring
expected credit losses, the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward-locking information. which is based on
assumplions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. Probabillity
of default constitutes a key input In measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default i1s an estimate of the likelihood

of default over a given time hornizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
rmarket conditions

Classification of financial assets

The Cormpany holds investments in preference shares i1ssued by a subsidiary. The preference shares do not provide a contractual
night to unpaid amounts In the event of a bankruptey of the 1Issuer and therefore, in the jJudgement of the directors. the returns do
not meet the conditions of being solely payments of principal and interest and are required to be held at farr value through profit
and loss. The valuation of these shares is considered in the use of estimates and critical judgements above The preference shares
are recognised as amounts due from subsidiaries receivable after more than one year

The Company’s accounting policies are the same as the accounting policies of the consolidated Group described on pages 104 to
118 except for the policy described below

Investments i subsidianes, associates and joint ventures are held at cost less accumulated imparment. Where there 1s objective
evidence that the investrent in subsidianies, associates and jont ventures has been impaired. the carrying amount of the
nvestment 1s tested for imparment in the same way as other non-financial assets

For share awards granted to employees of subsidiary companies. the IFRS 2 charge is recognised as an increase of the
Company's investrment in the relevant subsidiaries

Investments where the Company has no significant nfluence are held at far value, with movements in fair value recorded in profit
and loss.

The expected credtt losses on amounts due from subsidiares is assessed under the general approach with reference to changes
in credit quality since intial recognition. An amount due from a subsidiary is considered to be in default and credit impared when
there 1s evidence that the subsidiary 1s In significant financial difficulty such that it wili have nsufficient lguid assets to repay the
loan. The assessment of a significant increase in credit sk 1s performed gualitatively by reference to the borrower's expected cash
flows, lquid asset position and considers the mpact of the wider Group’s support.

The merger reserve arises on transactions where the Company issues shares pursuant to an arrangement to acqguire more than an
90% interest in another company and No shate premium is recorded The amounts In merger reserve are unrealised profits relating
to the corresponding assets acguired by the Company on the issue of shares. These profits may become reahsed on the disposal

or write down of these assets
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

2 Loss/profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of tha Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own staterment of
comprehensive Income (including the profit and loss account} for the year

The auditor’s rernuneration for audit services to the Company is disclosed in Note 7 to the Consclidated Financial Statements

Al fees paid to the auditar were charged to operating loss/profit in both years.

3 Staff costs

Staff costs for the Company during the year (including directors) are provided in the table below.

Salaries, wages and short-term employee benefits

Other pension costs
Social security costs
Share-based payments

The numbers above Include remuneration and pension entitlements for each director Details are included in the Directors’

Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 85

The average number of full-time employees of the Company was 16 {2022 16)

4 Dividends

2023
£'000
2,31
46
764
1,264

4,465

2020
£000
1,776

51
214
56

2,087

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year are detailed in Note 12 to the Consoldated Financial Staterments.

Certain dividends paid between 2016 and 2023 were paid by the Company without having sufficient distributable reserves

fromn which to lawfully pay them The Company has rectified its position with respect to these dividends; refer to Note 12 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further detalls

&5 Intangible assets

Cost
At 28 February 2021
Addaitions

At 28 February 2022

Addrtions
Disposal

At 28 February 2023

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 28 Fobruary 2021

Charge for the year
At 28 February 2022

Charge for the year
Impairtnent
At 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2022

At 28 February 2023, the Company had no contractual commitments for the acguisition of computer software (2022 £nil)
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Computer
software
E£'000

782

272
1064

422

627

Total
£'000

782
272

1.054

74
&7)

1,04

422

627
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 28 February 2021
Additions at cost
Disposals

At 28 February 2022
Additicns at cost
Disposals’

At 28 February 2023

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 28 February 2021

Charge for the year

Imparment

Dispesals

At 28 February 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals'

At 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2022

Governance
tand and

buldings Computers
£000 £000
9,142 6
- 214
{154) -
8988 220
- 7
{2,181) -
6,827 227
3,504 3
1,647 27
392 -
{154 -
5,289 30
1,244 56
1,568} -
4,965 85
1,862 142
3699 190

Fixtures and
equipment
£000

222

(205}
17

17

193
27

(205)

15

17

2

Total
£000

9,370
214
(359)

9,226

(2,181
7.0M1

3,700
1,601
382
(359

5334
1,301
1.568)

5,067

2,004

3,891

1 The dispasal In the year primarniy relates 1o the Bevis Marks premises assigned 1o Beat Capttal by the Company As part of the arrangement, a payment of
E£0 9 milhon was made in relation to the outstanding lease habilty The disposal resulted in the derecognruor of land and buldings of £0 S milion net book
value ana the transfer of £05 milion of the lease hability resulting in no gain or loss in the year

The leaseholds category iIncludes land and buldings held under leases and leasehold improvements At 28 February 2023, the
Company had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2022 £nil}

The imparrment charge in the prior year arcse following the assignment of a lease. On 28 March 2022, the Group assigned

the lease for its Bevis Marks premises to Beat Capital The impairment charge of £392000 1s equal to the subsequent loss on
assignment of this lease, being the lease assignment premium paid plus the net book value of the right-of-use asset disposed of

less the outstanding lease liability on that lease

7 Leases

At 28 February 2021
Arnortisation
Inmparment

At 28 February 2022
Arnortisation
Disposal

At 28 February 2023
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Land and
buildings
£000
5,271
{1,436)
(392)

3443
1,168}
(527)

1,748

Fixtures and
equipment
£000

23

(23)

Totat

£000

5,294
(1.459)
(392)

3,443
(1168)
527)

1,748
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

'
¢

At 28 Mebruary 202
Interest expense
Lease payments
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Interest expense
Lease payments
Disposal’

At 28 February 2023

1 Refer to Note 6 Property, plant ana equipment tor the detalls of the disposal

At 28 February 2021
Interest received
Lease payments
Movement in provision
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Interest received
Lease payments
Movernent in provision
Disposal

At 28 February 2023

7 Leases contmued

There was no short-term lease expense. No short-term lease Income and no low-value iease expense In the year {2022 £nil}.

At 28 February 2023
At 28 February 2022

At 28 February 2023
At 28 February 2022

Upto 3

maonths

£':000

539

664

Between

Upto3 3and 12
months months
£'000 £000
160 482
160 481
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Between
3and 12
months
£000

1,615
1,963

Between
1and 2
YArs
£'000

245
542

Between
1and 2
years
£000

934
2618

Between
2and b
years
£000

285

Between
Zand b
years
E000

1669

Over &
years
£'000

Land and Fixtures and

bulidings equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £000
8,926 i1 9,03/
226 15 241
(2 517) (126) {(2,643)
4 - )]

6,631 - 6,631
125 - 125
(3,080) - (3,080)
(B50) - B50)
3,026 - 3,026
Gross Provision Net
£000 E'COC £000
2105 - 2,105

55 - 55

(642) - (642

- {15) (15}

(&) - )

1,512 (15) 1,497

35 - 35

(B842) - (642)

- 6 6

(38} - (38)

867 (9) 858
Over 5 Unearned Net
years Total interest payable
£000 £000 000 EDUG
- 3,088 (62) 3,026

- 6,204 (273) 0.631
Unearncd Net

Total interost Provizion  receivable
£000 £000 £000 £000
887 (20) (9} 858
1568 (£8) (15) 1497
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8 Investments

Unlsted
Subsidiaries nyestments Total
£000 £'0G0 £000
Cost
At 1 March 2021 115,31 1,500 16,811
Capital contribution to Cory Brothers 3,664 - 3,664
Disposal (4.462) - (4.462)
Share-based payments 2969 - 2,968
At 28 February 2022 117472 1,500 18,972
Additions 7894 - 7824
Share-based payments 3.266 - 3,256
At 28 February 2023 128,622 1,500 130,122
Impairment
At 1March 2021, 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 10,683 - 10,683
Net book value at 28 February 2023 118,039 1,500 119,639
Net book value at 28 Febryary 2022 106,889 1,600 108,389

The Company recognises investrments in subsidiaries at cost less impairment

Additions for the year represent an investrnent made on the acquistion of Southport Maritime Inc. of £6.5 million and an investment
made inrespect of Madnd Shipping Advisors SL. of £14 milicn. Both payments are subject to claw-back conditions linked to
continuous employment within the Group which are treated as a cost of nvestrnent by the Company, but treated as prepayments
for future service In the Group For further detalls on the acquisition of Southport refer to the Consoldated Financial Statements
Note 14 Business combinations

The Company invested £32 million {2022 £30 mifion) in the subsidianes of the Group In respect of share-based payment charges
incurred in the year

The carrying value of the Company’s investmenits in subsidiary undertakings are reviewed for indicators of impairment cn an
annual basis In the event imparrment indicators are identified, the recoverable amount is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation which requires the determination of appropriate assurmptions in relation to cash flows over a forecast perod, the loeng-
terrm growth rate to be applied bayond this period and the risk-adjusted discount rate used to discount the estmated cash flows
to present value There 1s no indicator of impairmert in relation to the Company’s investrments measured at cost If any impairment
indicators anse, the investments would be tested for mparment.

The Company’s principal investment in Braemar Financial Holdings Limited 1s held as preference shares. see Note 11 for
further nformation,

On 28 February 2022 the Company sold its investment in Cory Brothers Shipping Agency Limited, A reconciliation of the
derecognition of the investment to the gain on disposal is as follows:

£'000
Digposal preceeds 9,897
Carrying value of Investrnent {4.449)
Disposal-related costs {485)
Gain on disposal of Cory Brothers 4,963

For the year ended 28 February 2022, the disposal proceeds aftributable to the Company is an 88% share of the Group's £11.3 million
disposal proceeds for the sale of the entire Cory Brothers group The disposal proceeds had not been received at vear end,

cther recevables Includes a £65 million completion payment which was not received until 2 March 2022 (see Note 12), long-term
receivables includes £35 millon deferred and contingent consideration (2022 £4.8 milicn) {(see Note 1) The 12% share of disposal
proceeds due to Braemar Holdings (USA) Inc on a pass-through basis 1s included in amounts due to subsidianes {see Note 14)
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

8 Investments continuecd
investments with a carrying value of £13000 relating to Wavespec were also disposed of during the year ended 28 February 2022

A list of subsidiary undertakings 1s included in Note 34 of the Consoldated Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements of the principal subsidiary undertakings are prepared to 28 February 2023

The Group's uniisted investments Include 1000 (2022 1000) ordinary £1 shares in London Tanker Broker Pane! The investment
is carned at fair value, being the value of the most recent comparable transaction, which occurred dunng the year ended

28 February 2019 There have been no transactions or events in the current or prior year which would result in an adjustment
to the fair value at 28 February 2023,

9 Investmentin associate
The Company recognises its Investment in AgualisBraemar LOC ASA at cost less imparment AgualisBraemar LOC ASA 1s listed on
the Oslo Bors, its principal place of business is Osle and ts registered address 1s Olav Vs gate 6, 0161, Oslo, Norway

£'000
At 28 February 2021 3,247
Disposal (3,247)
Cost at 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 -
0On 19 May 2021 the Company fully disposed of its minonty shareholding in AgualisBraemar LOC ASA for cash proceeds of
£7232000. A reconcilation of the derecognition of the Investment to the gain on disposal 1s as follows.

£000
Disposal proceeds 7232
Carrying value of Investment (3,247}
Gain on disposal of AqualsBraemar 3,286

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group's shareholding was nil which eguates to 0% of AqualisBraemar’s share
capital and 0% of voting nghts (2021, market value of £6.3 milion, being 1042% of share capital and 1042% of voting rights)

10 Deferred tax
Total

The movement in the deferred tax asset £000

Balance at 1 March 2022 179

Credt for the year to profit or loss 424
Credit for the year 1o reserves 24
Balance at 28 February 2023 844

A deferred tax asset of £08 millon (2022: £02 millon) has been recogrused as the directors believe that 1t is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits In the tuture to recover the asset in full.
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11 Other long-term receivables

2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000

Armounts due from subsidiary undertakings
Preference shares measured at fair value 3,676 26,011
Other amounts due from subsichary undertakings f A3R 7390
Provision for impairment of other amounts due from subsidiary undertakings (258) (257}
Net amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 9,956 33,163
Deferred consideration 2,540 32,482
Contingent consideration 1,004 1,276

Finance lease

Finance lease recewvables 7 241 879
ECL prowsion for imparment of finance lease recevables (9) (15)
Net finance lease receivables 232 864
Other long-term receivables 13,732 38,775

The Company holds an investment in preference shares issued by a subsidary, Braemar Financial Holdings Limited, which holds
the Company’s investment in the Naves entities, at farr value through profit and loss and recognised as amounts due from
subsidianies receivable after more than one year, The preference shares are not traded in any market and there are no similar
assets In quoted markets The Company performs a valuation based on the present value of future cashflows using unobservable
("Level 3") Inputs

The Company develops unobservable inputs using the best information avallable in the circumstances, which include the Group's
forecasts of cash flows for the underlying Finance businesses of the holding company 1ssuing the preference shares using a risk-
adjusted discount rate.

The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable discount rates and the estimation of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units depending on the specific nsks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to
each cash-generating unit The discount rates and growth rates are consistent with those applied to the same business in the
Group's assessment of the Imparment of goodwill See Note 15 in the Consolidated Financial Staterments for a description of the
approach used by management to deterrmine these key values and the sensitivity analysis on the imparment.

The far value of the investment in preference shares is based on the value-in-use of the Corporate Finance Division of £28 million
{see Note 15 In the Consclidated Financial Statements), with adjustments to determine a far value, prnncipally an adjustment for
net debt in relation to balances not forming part of working capital of the entity of £0.7 million. The reduction in farr value during
the current year is as a result of market conditions and trading below expectations in the year to February 2023, an increase in
discount rate in 2023 as well as a reduction in forecast revenues compared to Management's view in the prior year As a resull, a
far value loss of £24 7 milion has been recognised in the profit and loss account In the year.

Deferred consideration of £25 millen and contingent consideration of £10 mullion relates to the non-current element of the earm-
out payments recelvable In respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers The deferred consideration relates to the minimum earnout
payments accounted for on an amortised cost basis. The contingent consideration represents the varnable element of the earnout
payments which are contingent on the future gross profit of the newly formed VertomCory agency business, which are recognised
at fair vaiue through profit or logs Note 23 in the Consolidated Financial Staternents provides further detall

See Note 7 for a matunty analysis which reconciles the long-term finance lease recevables to the undiscounted lease receipts and
unearned finance mcome
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

12 Other receivables

2023 2022

£000 £000
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 4,881 2,294
Deferred consideration 1,097 -
Contingent consicderation 403
Other recevables 1,111 7625
Finance lease receivables 626 633
Prepayments 324 248
Total 8,442 10,800

Deferred consideration of £11 milion and contingent consideration of £C6.4 millon relates to the current element of the earm-out
payrments receivable In respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers. Gther receivabies as at 28 February 2022 includes the completion
payment of £65 millon for the disposal of Cory Brothers which completed on 28 February 2022, although the cash was not
recerved until 2 March 2022,

The total recevables balance (including long-term recevables) 1s denominated in the following currencies.

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Stering 18,598 21563
Eurc 3,676 28,012
Total 22,174 42,575

The Company has no trade recevables (2022, £nil). Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable cn demand. The Company provides for impairment using a lifetime expected credit loss provision for amaunts due from
subsidiary undertakings

13 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Cash at bank 2,174 700

Cash and cash equivalents largely comprise bank balances denominated in sterling, US dollars, eurcs and other currencies for the
purpose of setthing current liabiliies

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to therr fair value.

14 Other payables

2023 2022
Current liabilities £000 £o00
Lease labilties 2,097 2580
Armounts owed to subsichary undertakings payable within onc year 66,334 40780
Other payables' 751 779
Accruals 828 1,166
Total 60,010 45298

1 Included in other payables, s a payable of EB87000 in relazion to the warking capital adjustment on the acquisiion of Southport

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings payable within cne year are interest-free and unsecured and repayable on demand.

2023 2027
Non-current kabilities £000 £'000
Armounts cwed to subsidiary undertakings payable after more than one year 425 570
Cther long-term payables 443 -
Total 868 570
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15 Borrowings

2023 2022
Long-term borrowings £°000 £000
Lease labilities 929 4,051
Secured revolving credit facilibies 27,816 23,254
Total 28,744 27.30%

During the period. the Group extended 1ts revolving credit facility {"RCF”) with 1ts main bankers, HSEC For further detalls see ‘Note
27 Borrowings’ N the Group's Financial Statements Amounts can be rolled on a monthly basis until the faciliity expires subject to
certain condtions. and on that basis the borrowings have been classified as non-current The amounts drawn under the RCF
bear interest based on SONIA. SOFR and EURIBOR from amounts drawn in stering, US dollar and euros respectively, plus a credit
rmargin dependent on the Group's leverage ratio

16 Convertible loan notes and derivative financial instruments

The Cornpany has issued canvertible loan notes as part of the acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH {(further details of
the acquisition are provided in Note 27 to the Consoldated Financial Statements). Convertible loan notes have been valued at
amortised cost with a dernvative hability recognised in respect of the conversion feature.

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Assets
Denvative assets matunng within cne year* 1,183 -
Liabilities
lssued convertible loan notes maturing within one year 703 1,416
Issued convertible loan notes maturing after more than one year 2,899 3.271
Denvative labiities due within one year 42 -
Derivative labllities due after maore than one year 664 85
Total liabilities 4,198 4772

Currercy forwards with a far value of £1183 000 (2022 rul} matuning withir 12 rnenths have peen shown as current assels

i [ . . . [T o

The following table shows amounts in the Company balance sheet relating to the convertible loan notes issued on the acquisition
of Naves The amaunts shown in the table below differ from the similar amounts disciosed In Note 27 to the Group's Consclidated
Financial Statements primarily due to the difference in accounting ansing from the employment condition relating to certain of the
Instruments 1ssued, which results in different effective interest rates applying at the Group and Company level At 28 February 2023,
there are no unsatisfied ongoing employment conditions.

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Current liabilities

Convettible loan notes 703 1,416
Derivatives 14 -

Non-current liabilities
Convertible loan notes 2,899 3,271
Dervatives 370 85
3,269 3,356
3,986 4772
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

17 Provisions

Diapidations Total

£'000 £'000

At 28 February 2021 and 28 February 2022 544 541
Reversal of provision in the year (124) (124
At 28 February 2023 417 a17

The Company holds a dilapidations provision of £04 milion (2022 £05 million} which is classfied as a non-current liabibty
Dilapidations relate to future obligations to make good certain office premises upon expiration of the lease term The provision is
caleulated with reference to the location and square foctage of the office

18 Share capital and share premium
The Cornpany has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Note 30 to the Consohdated Financial
Statements provides detail on authorsed share capital and movements In ssued share capital

19 ESOP reserve

An Employee Share Ownership Plan (‘ESOP”) was established on 23 January 1995 The ESOP has been set up to purchase
shares in the Company These shares, once purchased, are held in trust by the Trustee of the ESOP, $G Kleinwort Hambros Trust
Company (Cf Limited. for the benefit of the employees. Additicnally, an Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT”} previously run by ACM
Shipping Group plc also holds shares in the Company The ESOP and EBT are accounted for within the Company accounts

The net cost of the shares acquired for the shares held by the ESOP and the EBT are a deduction from shareholders’ funds and
represent a reduction in distributable reserves. Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides detail on the ESOP and
the EBT and movements in shares to be issusd.

20 Other reserves

Capital
redermnption Merger
rescrve resarve Total
£'000 £'000 F'020
At 28 February 2021 (restated), 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 396 23,366 23,762

The capital redermption reserve arcse on previous share buy-backs by the Company.

The merger reserve arnises on transactions where the Company 1ssues shares pursuant to an arrangement to acquire more than
an 90% interest In another company and no share premium is recorded. The merger reserve arose principally in 2001 in relation to
the acquisitions of Brasmar Shipbrokers Limited and Brasmar Tankers Limited. Further additions have arisen in respect of Naves
and Atlantic Brokers included in the prior pernod adjustment (£13 millon and £2.0 millon respectively). Following a transfer to
retained earnings in the prior year in relation to farr value losses on the Company’s investment In the preference shares issued by
Braemar Financial Holdings Limited, there is no remaining balance relating to the Naves acquisition The amounts n merger reserve
are unrealsed profits relating to the corresponding assets acqurred by the Company on the issue of shares. These profits may
become realised on the disposal or wnte down of these assets
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21 Contingent liabilities
The Company has contingent labilites In respect of guarantees entered into on behalf of its subsidiaries in the normal course of
business given as follows'

2023 2022
£000 £'000

Bank guarantees given to:
Third parties {non-cash collateralsed) 232 710
Total 232 710

The Company and certain of its subsidianies have provided cross guarantees and fixed and floating rate charges over their assets
to secure therr borrowing facilties and other financial instruments

Frorn time to time the Company may be engaged in itgaton in the ordinary course of business. The Cormpany carnes professional
ndemrity nsurance. There are currently no llabiities expected to have a matenal adverse financial impact on the Company’s
results or net assets.

The Company has issued guarantees 1o certain subsidiaries in order to exempt them from audit for the year ended 28 February
2023 See Note 34 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 Related party transactions
The Company has applied the disclosure exemption of FRS 101 In respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidianes

During the period the Group entered into the following transactions with joint ventures and investments:

2022/23 2022
Recharges Balance Recharges Balance
tof(from) Dividends due(to)/ from to/ifrom) Dividends duefto)/ from
£'000 £'000 £'000 E'O00 £000 £'000
AgualisBraemar LOC ASA - - - 2 - 282

0On 12 May 2021 the Company fully disposed of its minority shareholding in AqualisBraemar LOC ASA, see Note 111n the
Consolidated Financial Statements for details

In pricr year, recharges to AqualisBraemar LOC ASA consisted primarily of rent, IT services and HR services in accordance with a
transitional services agreement Included in the net recharge to AgualisBraermar LOC ASA is a fee payable to the Group's former
Chairman, Romald Sernies of £3,750.

A list of the Company's subsidiary undertakings is provided in Note 34 in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
23 Events after the reporting date
In June 2023 the Company completed a Capital Reduction relating to its share premium and merger reserve For further details, see

‘Note 12 Dvdends’ in the Group's Financial Statements. There were no other adiusting or significant non-adjusting events between
the reporting date and the date of authorisation
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Five-year financial summary (unaudited)

Consolicdated Ihcome Staternent

Continuing operations

Group revenue

Other operating expenses
Specific tems (net)
Total cperating expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Gain on revaluabion of Investrent

Net interest expense

Share of associate profit for the period

Profit before taxation
Taxation
Gain/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) after taxation

Dwvidends
Interim
Final proposed

Earnings per crdinary share - pence
Basic — underlying from continuing operations

Diluted - underlying from continuing operations
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12 months to
28 Feb 2023
£000

FE(32
{8,406)
{141,242)

11,669

(2,195)
(23)

9,451
(4,855)

4,696

1,172
2,634

3,806

46.22p
38.52p

12 months to

12 months to

12 months to

136).

28 Febz 2022 28 Feb 2021 29 feby 2020
£'000 £000 £000
101,310 83,605 17655

S (@1250) (75078)  (106.028)
(514 (1,097) (3.344)
(91,764) (77073)  (109.969)
9546 6,622 7686
172 - -
(1156) (1.485) (1,853)

(19) - 436

8543 5,136 6.269
(1,8309) (1574) 46
7215 970 (2.209)
13,919 4532 4016
B10 - 1564
2254 1495 -
2864 1495 1564
23.06p 15.80p 29.45p
18 79p 1291p 26.62p

12 months to
28 Fob 2012
£000

17863

(108,787)
1,719}
(120,5086)

(2,653
500
(987)

(3140)
(1,5256)
(22700

(27,365)

1,501
2,951

4,452

23 32p
21.36p
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Five-year financial summary (unaudited)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets

Non-current assets
Goodwil

Other intangible assets
Property. plant and equipment
Other investrments

Investment in associate
Financial assets

Dervative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets

Pension surplus

Other long-term recevables

Current assets

Trade and other recevables
Financial assets

Derwvative financial instruments
Current tax recewvable

Assets held for sale

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Derwvative financial nstruments
Trade and other payables
Short-term borrewings

Current tax payable

Provisions

Convertible loan notes
Deferred consideration
Liabilties directly assoclated with assets ciassified as held for sale

Non-current liabilities
Leng-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilties
Denvative financial instruments
Provisions

Convertible loan notes
Deferred consideration
Pensicn deficit

Total habilities

Total assets less total liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
ESOP reserve
Other reserves
Retained eamings

Total equity

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

As at As at

Asat 28Feb2022 28 Feb 2021 As at As at

28 Feb 2023 £000 £000 29 Fel 2020 28 Feb 2019
£'000 (restated) {restated) £'C00 £:000
71,407 79,891 83,066 83812 83.812
3,980 Qg7 2129 2411 2228
5,320 7078 9,84 11928 1,978
1,780 1,780 1,962 1,962 1773
701 724 3,763 7315 -

- - - 1184 -

30 8 200 - -
4,794 3,713 2900 3,620 1640
1,120 - - - -
8,554 5,636 1,888 2467 264
_ﬂ 99827 106,638 114,689 91,693
43,323 35,792 33,416 39,541 37128
- - 746 - -

1,224 b4 1573 - -
973 - - - -

- - 436 - 10,611
34,735 13,9264 14,11 28749 24 11
80,255 49,810 50,282 68,2920 71.850
177,941 149,837 156,920 182,289 183,543
1,122 588 - 437 49
57,862 32183 47833 47209 44,887
- - - 2516 35,844

4,140 1,608 1318 1,334 1408
2,575 486 307 201 a0
699 1.416 4461 4444 5,339

- - - 177 800

- - 125 - 2,797
66,388 43,381 54044 78,918 92,014
29,919 28331 31634 34,585 -
344 - 174 203 230
1,022 335 56 - -
733 797 690 765 324
2,852 2,755 2,681 2,603 4,579
- 495 2882 2,293 5,357

. - 2,082 3,819 3672 1,986
34,870 34,765 39,936 44,861 13,176
101,258 78146 93,980 123,779 105190
76,686 71,491 62,940 59,210 58,353
3,292 3,221 3174 3,167 3144
53,796 53,030 52,510 52510 55,805
{10,607) (6,771} 1,362) (2,498} (3.446)
28,819 26130 27100 25,862 22,857
1,381 (4,119} (18,482) (19,831} (20,007)
76,686 7143 62,840 59,210 58,363
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Contact information

Registered office

Braemar Plc

One Strand

Trafalgar Square

Londen

WOC2N BHR

Company numhber D2?86MR4

Telephone. +44 (0120 3142 4100

Web address:
www bragmarcom

Principal offices
Sy e .

One Strand
Trafalgar Square
London

WC2ZN BHR

80 Robmson Road
#24-01/02
Singapore

068898

Level 3,70 City Road
South Bank
Melbourne

Victona 3006
Australa

DomstralBe 1/
20085 Hamburg
Germany

One Strand
Trafalgar Sguare

Londeon
WC2N BHR

www.braemar.com
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